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Message to OL tLhoI or

Last year marked on mportant tui ning point foi

fth Third as many of the actions we ye taken ovci

the pist several years had direct and positive

mpact on ou resu ts ft hird took aggressive

iction carly thc credit cycle and Im pleased with

the progress we ye shown through improved credit

trends continued strong opciting metrics and our

strong capital position We returned to profitability

in oary 2010 and have continued to generate

increasing levels of earnings ouqh the remaindcr

of thc year over $750 million in not income for the

full ycs Our retui on assets wss 07 percent in 2010

and 12 percent the most ncent qi arter which

demonstrates our piogiess to normal zed levels

Thruary 2011 we fuily repaid the U.S Dr partment

of Treaurys $3.4 billion invstment ir pieforred

stock under ts rou bled Asset Relief Program TARP
Capital Purchase Program Sincc December 2008
weve paid more than $350 mi lion of dividends to

the American taxpayers who will also benefit from

the disposition of the warrants issued in conjunction

with that investment We are oleased to close this

chapter in our history and move forward into

period that we believe will be marked by continued

mprovement in results enhanced shareholder value

and prudent management of our capital

Getting to where we are today dnt happen by

chance We began taking aggressve actions to

position the Company for the coming storm hack in

2007 and we have seen and will continue to see the

benefit of those actions Our story is about more

than aggiessively attacking credit issues about

mproving the evels of customer satisfaction and

employee engagement continuing to invest in our

already strong earnings capacity and deepening

customer relationships through new products and

services hose are pait of strategic plan that

along with rclei tless focus on execution allows us

to chart our future course with confidence

Our strategic agenda as we move forward is

focused on opportunities in markets where

we are underpenetrated and on continuous

improvement of the customer expcriencc both of

which aim for deeper customer relationships and

improved retention This focus contributes to our

overall goal of positioning Fifth Ihird as unique

value proposition bank with the capabilities

technology and products of the largest banks in

the country and with the service and local touch



typical associated wit community bank We re

making great progress on this fro it the most

recent University of Michigan Ametican Customer

Satisf act on ndex ACSI Fifth Third overall

score was the highest we have ever received

sign ficantiy above the average for the ndustry

and other iaige peers This is testament to our

comm tment .n ma ing customer satisfaction one of

our top iorities id it emphasi es the importance

of woi king with our customers as valued partners

their financia dec sion makir

Our core businesses remain strong and we remain

focused on providing quality products to our

customei We see sig iificant opportunity our

markets oday nd ou sales force continues to win

new busi iess throughout our footprint We see that

in stronger relative oan growth deposit growth

ard fee growl- compaied th our competitors

SubsequEntly our stock continued its recovery and

sign fica itly ouperformed the industry in 2010

with total sharcholder retu stock pi ice plus

dividends of 51 perce it compard with 20 percent

for the SP Banks Index

Signift ant tvenls In tin

banking Industry
There have been number af It gislative and

regulatory developmE nts thin the banking

idustry durino 2010 Many of these are aimed

at reduc ng risk ir the indust and pi otecting

the iconomy and taxpayers from the effects of

financial system dislocations We wholeheartedly

suport strong global inanci al systan and feel

that many of the changes II ultimately prove to be

beneficial There will be additional costs associated

with Implementing many new regulat ons however

we are prepared to address -my challenges that

may lic ahead Wevc demonstrated succecs

throughout difficult operating environment and

we expect to generate sustainable growth in the

new operating environment

Overdraft regulation sometimes referred to as

Req went into effect .n the m.ddle of the yea
and prohibits banks from processing electronic

wIthdrawal transactions and charging overdraft

fees In accounts that lack sufficient funds unless

the customer has foptedlnw to he program Many

of our customers have opted in and therefore

approved such payments oi have otherwice

ranged for overdraft protection

In the second half of the year the Dodd-i--rank

Act with multiple elements aimed at financial

reform was signed into law significant focus of

the financial reform bIll is teduc ng or eliminating

ativities not related to traditional banking

activities thatare inherently volatile add complexity

and create interconnections across financial

companies Fifth Thirds business model largely

driven by traditional banking activities which are

generally not the focus of the legislation and we

believe we are well-positioned to adapt and even

benefit from changing regulations An additional

olement of the Dodd-Frank Act unrelated to the

financial crisis is commonly referred to as the

Durbin Amendment This requires the Federal

Reserve to limit debit nterchange rates charged to

merchants by issuers Significant limits have been

proposed on such interchange rates that unless

mItigated would prevent us and other banks om
fully recapturIng the costs of operating our debit

card businesses While no one knows what the

final es and limits wi be we are confident that

we can offset substantial portion of the impact

through mitigation strategies

New capital proposals were another focal po nt of

financial reform in 2010 Both the Dodd-F rank Act

and Basel Ill an international capital standard

ere Introduced to establish future guidelines

regarding the minimu 11 amounts and types of

capital we may be required to maintain While

we are still awaiting clarity on what the U.S rules

will be we do not expect them to present any

significant difficulty for Fifth hird Despite the

ack of final rules the publication of Basel Ill and

the stabilization and relative improvement in the

economy have begun to provide the industry with

important direction regarding capital requirements

in the future

Fi ially as previously noted in February of 2011

Fifth Third fully repaid the $3.4 billion In preferred

stock that was issued under the governments

oubled Asset Relief Program Fifth Third Issued

$1.1 billion of common equity and $1 billIon of

senior debt to facilitate this repayment Fifth Thirds

capital levels upon repayment substantially exceed

all capital standards as they exist today and we
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believe they will also exceec the fully phascd in

Basel propos apital ret uirements Now that

we have this behind us and ased on our strong

financial results and capital position we expect

to have greater flexibility in managing our capital

includ ag vidends

Despite thc he dwinds wt have faced we are

generating scUd levels of carnings and expect

results to further mprove Change can be

Lha erg/Pg but ho company deals s0th change

detern ines ts success and ultimate its ieturn to

share5olders Vve are confident hat we are up to

the challenge

For the full ycar 2010 we reported net income of

$753 mill on an increase from our 2009 results that

included the benef of $11 billion afteNtax gain

on the sale of 51 percent aterest in ifth Third

Processing Solutions

Core operating results remained strong Weve
maintained consistently strong pretax pre

provision net revenue revenue minus expenses

nearly $2 billion in 2010 which is relatively high

compared with our asset se and has enabled

us to absorb losses better and generate stronger

profits compared with many peer institutions

Net interest ncome and net interest margin

continued to exoand as we lowered our excess

liquidity and benefited from deposit repricing We
have begun to see some stabilization in our loan

balances arid continue to see solid loan production

particuiarly in commercial and industrial Cl
loans Within CAl origination volumes have been at

bistoriall high love but paydowns also remain

high thin consumer loans auto loan orignations

have been very strong and our mortgage production

picked up in the latter ha of the year Overall weve

been pleased with our lending volumes throughout

the year and believe that we have some positive

momentum heading into 2011 We also continued

to grow highvalue transaction deposit accounts in

2010 with average balances increasing 19 percent

or $10.4 billion over last year

Our p/ovisiun expense for loan and Dane onSSn

declined more than $2 billion from 2009 reflecting

significantly lower net charge offs and reductions

in problem assets We finished the year strong

with fourth quarter net chargeoffs dropping

below percent of average loans on an arlnualized

basis significantly better than most large peers

p.9
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he improvement credit trends resulted

reductio is of our loan loss esorves by $/45
Ilion during ihe year however those resc rves

are St among the stiongest covcrage levels In the

nductrc at .88 pcrcent of loans and 1/9 percent of

nonperforming oans

Nonunteiest ncome be iefited rm sol mortgage
banking revenue of $641 millio 2010 an increase

of 1/ percent over 2009 Our rvestment advisory

revenue ncreased ii percent over the prior year

and deposit fees dec med on percent desp te

the mpact of the overdraft regu ation

Our ap tai position remains robust Our Tier

cap tal atio was 139 percent al year-end coirpired

th 13.4 oercont at tho end of 2009 Our tangible

common equty ratio lud ng unrealized

gains on secu es whlc increased to /.3 percent

continues to omp ire favorably with our peers and

even more favorable when viewed ight of our

capita raise at the beqnnlng cf 2011 Given our

capital position and our stroncj reserve position

Fifth Thud has one of the strongest balance sheets

among commor ial banks

Strategic initiatives and
Lint of Busuies

ifth Third has simple overall value proposition

we have the resour-es and tcchnology to offer

products competitive with the c.rgest banks the

country for traditional banking business but our

customo service rivals that of most community
banks By focus ng on this sweet spot we
believe we are able to drive dif erentiatlon to our

customers and alue creation foi our shareholders

Our strategic plan is designed to further improve

that position th ough variety of mit atives that

have ic ultimate peal of veloping deeper

custo ner relaVonshipi and growing our customer

base through the strength of the Fifth Third brand

Our Commercial Banking ii ie of business is

focused on ii itaining cloe relationship with

oui customers developing new value-added

products based on customer needs and continuing

to enhance sale processes We strive to develop

innovative solut ens for our customers such as

our Remote CL rrency Manager product which

has enhanced our suite of treasury management
product offerings Weve also hired exceptional

talent acioss our footprint and we expect this to

contribute to our revenuo growth going forward

Recentiy weve begun to see some positive

signs within Cl lending particularly thin the

manufacturing and health care industries and

we have seen significant growth in core deposits

posting 32 percent increase ever last year

Our Branch Banking line of business has continued

to post strong results We have been successful

in introducing new product bundles in the last

few years such as our Secure Checking Package
that combines identity theft protection with

traditional chccking account Our Relationship

Savi igs product has attracted ever $9 billion in

balances since Inception and has more than tripled

in balances this year alone We were one of the first

of our peers to eliminite free checking products

aid we continue to focus on providing value added

products to our customers CuEtomer serv cc

remains top priority and during 2010 we expanded
our traditional branch hours on weeknights and

weekends at many locations In order to be even

more accessible to our customers Additionally we
have hired over 100 small business banking officers

focused on customers in the $1 million to $3 million

revenue range as we see additional opportunities

this underpenetrated market space and are

committed to festering econem giowth through

investing in this area

Our Consumer Lending line of business had another

outstanding year Our mortgage originations

exceeded $18 billion and we generated over $600
mi lien of mortqage banking revenue Our recent

Power Mortgage Origination Customer Satisfact on

scores mproved sign ficantly compared with

2009 results Our Power Mortgage Servicer

Satisfaction score increased ranking Fifth Third In

the top five while the industry average declined

compared with 2009 Our auto lending operations

continued to perform well as we maintained

strong credit quality and pricing discipline while

generating more than $5 billion in originations

We remain committed to offering responsible

credit solutions to our customers and helping them

through our mortgage modification programs
while also keeping long-term value creation for

shareholders priority

Our investment Advisors business benefited

from the overall lift in the equity and bond



FirK1 jr chH nqir

but how company deals

with change determrnes its

success and trrrte ts

ur drehod

crkes throughout 2010 As result of market

peiformcncc and continued nvestment in oui

sa cc force invr ct sent 3dv sory revenue increased

more than a0 Si Ilion inpared wit 2009

Addit onal asset under care were up 46 percent

on yea overyear basis reflecting inflows from

new business wc in 2010 tc rms of year ovc

yeci revenuc giowth Fifth Tnird retail brokerage

segment outpei formed its ners thioughout 2010

as it has shifted its focus fiors sing product

approach to full service advisory model We
be eve this business is well positioned for future

marke grow

Lookii to 2011 eeyoncr we expect to continue

our oigan cirowtk strategy ciith the ultimate goal

of developing or maintaining market leading

position in majority of our markets We have

nd that ir markets where we have top three

rket share we consisfently fave higher deposits

per branch as well as more oducts per customer

Fifth Third is curre itly in thc lop three in just under

half ot our markets and we are targetng being in

the top three about two rds of our markets

over the next several years strategy coupled

with our cu tomer experierce initiatives should

strengthen our position in the future

Economic ovcrview outlook

As we entered 2010 we started to see some

improvement ri economic trends and signs

pointi ig to an economic recovery although

we expect it will take some time betore we see

meaningful sustained economic growth The

Gross Domestic Product GDP has eeu positive

growth throughcut the year There has been

some stabili7ation in home prices Gthough values

cc nt riue to decline in come inai kets and thei cc

not been any substantial growth in most others he

unemployment rate clso appears to have stabilized

although it remains at elevated levels All of this

has contributed to uncertainty in the markets

yet despite this unccrta nty we ye demonstrated

continued improvement through our profitab lity

Despite the challenging operating environment we

have continued to lend and have extended more

than $86 billion of credit 2010 an increase of

15 percent from the previous year Our mortgage

originations have outperformed the Mortgage

Bankers Association MBA forecast each quaiter

2010

Commercial loan de iand has started to pick up

and credit line ut zation appears to tiave stabil zed

Customers remain cautious although we continue

to have optimistic conversations with our customers

about business expansion and investment We
remain focused on developing and ncamntaining

relationships with our customers so that as they are

ready to invest in business expansion we are there

to assist them with their plans



Fifth Third is also committed to helping our

customers stay in their homes and we continue

to offer many options to help achieve this We
recognize that finding mutually beneficial solutions

is the best way to operate We continue to outpace

the industry in permanent modification conversions

in the governments Home Affordable Modification

Program HAMP Of Fifth Thirds portfolio eligible

for HAMP consideration more than 78 percent

of those trial plans have been converted to

permanent modifications which is nearly double

the national average Additionally Fifth Third has

been providing its You Have Options program for

bankowned mortgages which offers various loan

modifications based on each customers specific

financial situation We started this program in early

2007 well ahead of the governments mortgage
modification program and have seen great success

We have modified $2.3 billion of these loans since

the inception of the program

We anticipate steady modest growth in 2011

Were not expecting double dip recession but

economic activity is not at full capacity We will

continue to execute on our core growth strategies

that we expect to build value for our shareholders

particularly as the economy imprcves

Looking forward
We have made number of positive strides over the

course of the year return to profitability proactive

management of our credit portfolio significant

improvement in our risk management capabilities

and improved customer satisfaction scores Many
of these positive outcomes are attributable to

the hard work and dedication of our employees

in challenging operating environment We have

maintained the advantages of our strong sales

culture while significantly increasing our focus on

customer satisfaction and employee engagement

There will likely still be headwinds in 2011 in part

due to the regulatory changes that will continue to

evolve However our traditional banking model is

consistent with the objectives of financial reform

and it is this traditional banking focus that we

expect will position us well for the future Weve
endured one of the most trying economic and

banking periods in history and we have made many
difficult decisions that we believe were in the best

longterm interests of our shareholders We have

made the appropriate investments over time

without indiscriminate expense cuts in order to

preserve and increase future revenue opportunities

Our actions and investments have positioned us

well and we will continue to focus on enhancing

our performance in the future to enable us to

deliver results and returns that create value to you

as shareholders

Thank you for your continued support of Fifth Third

appreciate your loyalty especially throughout

the difficult times and look forward to taking

advantage of the positive momentum we have

going into 2011

Since rely

Nj

Kevin Kabat

President and Chief Executive Officer

February 2011
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Branch Pnkir

Business Detip ior

Branch Banking provides fuH range of deposit
md lending products to nd duas and small

basesses in 12 states in the Midwestern and

Southeastern regijns of the United States Bianch

Binking of ers depository and ba products such

as chec king and savings accoun home equity

oans and Ii es ol credit crodit cards and direct

ans for automobiles other personal financing

needs as well as prodLcts desijned to meet the

spocihc necds small businessc including cash

anagernent serv ces

Cvstomtr Ious
As the needs of ou customers change Fifth third is

looking toward thr future and tailoring its offerings

to reflect how people want to bank today To add
convenience to the branch banking experience

we extended operating hours at majority of our

banking centers across our footprint In addition

to the branch network which includes BankMart

locations inside select grocery stores rifth Third

offers online ATM telephone and mobile banking

services that are available 24 hours day seven

days week

Whether saving for home or childs ednr ation

planning for retirement or building business

customers can depend on our knowledgeable and

reliable employees to provide banking products

that meet their needs and help reach their goals

Likewise our business bankers provide full solutions

including loans treasury managernc nt products

employee savings plans and employee banking

programs to small business customers

Strategy

Fifth Third continues to enhance its branded sales

ano servce process which drove 13 percent

improvement in our 90day new customer cross

sell ratio during 2010 and contributed to account

growth of percent compared with the prior year

During 2010 Fifth third continued to offer several

packaged cnecking products designed to provide

significant customer benefits for standard

monthly fee These products which include Gold
Rewards and Secure checking drove growth in fee

income from valueadded services that are bundled

with deposit accounts Balances of the Relationship

Say ngs product which doubles customers
interest rate when accompanied by an active

checking account more than tripled over the year



Consumer

Consumer Lendng prov es loan solutions

to customers across and beyond Fifth Thirds

footprint Our loan products include mortgages
and home equity loans and lines Consumer

Lend also oartners with network of auto

dealers that originate loans on the Banks behalf

Whether in need of mortgage or new car our

customers know we offer solution to help them

achieve their goals

VVe recognize that personal loans are often tal

alement for the piosperity of our customers We
delivei fu spectrum of competitive lending

solutions that correspond to tf eir rinancial situations

Throughout the entire customer experience we

strive to provide expert advee and outstanding

service To help pm pare for major life moments like

buying car or for purchasing every day necessities

Fifth Third provides lending solutions that fit our

customers needs today and tomorrow

01 hnq
We also support homeownership by offering

variety of refinancing and workout arrangements

to give our customers options While each situation

is different we intend to work toward mutually

beneficial outcomes with our borrowers Some

alternative modification notions may include

changing the terms of the orginal loan to make the

payments more affordable primarily by lowering

interest rates and extending the terms

Sira

fth Third undeistands that each customer

has unique needs To evolve with the dynamic

marketplace and meet the changing needs of

customers as they progress through life we continue

to adjust our lending solutions Our strateg focus is

to surround each new and existing customer with

team of professional bankers committed to providing

complete banking solutions in order to profitably

grow market share

Our sales and service associates strive to achieve

the highest ratings for customer experience while

delivering operational excellence In 2010 we

advanced our mortgage origination market share

within the top 20 and remain top five market

share leader within the nomcaptive prime auto

lending space



Commercial

Business Description
Fifth Thirds Commercial line of business offers

banking cash management and financial services

to lago rad middle market bus nasses government

and profcssiona customers in addition to the

traditional lending and depository offerings

commorcia products and services ncludeglobalcash

management foreign exchange and international

trade finance derivatives ar capital markets

services asseObased ending rcal estate finance

public finance commercial leasing and syndicated

finance Our Conmercial line of business serves

clients ranging from middle market companies with

$20 million annual revenue to some of the largest

companies in the world

Customer Locus

Fifth Third has long tradition of commercial

banking experience In addition to offering complete

financial solutions to our clients we believe the

focus should be on our total relat onship with them
In 2010 to support the focus on developing those

trusted advisor relationships we implemented

nHnq
customer experience initiative to provide quick and

consistent feedback from our clients to the sales

teams Keeping in close contact with customers and

offering specific solutions is more important than

over in today demanding operating environment

Strategy
Our Commercial line of business delivers innovative

and clienOspecific solutions that leverage Fifth

Thirds expertise in treasury management capital

markets and international products and services

Our sales process drives the delivery of financial

solutions through relationship team consisting of

subject matter experts to ensure that all aspects of

client needs are assessed and met

During 2010 Fifth Thiro contiriueo to invest iii

treasury management solutions with the rollout of

Working Cap tel Management tool implementation of

the Sales Resource Center and enhancements to the

Remote Currency Manager and RevLink products Our

Remote Currency Manager product which automates

cash handling in the marketplace processed $4.7

bi lion in transactions through 300 locations in 2010

The RevLink product which accelerates the posting

of paperbased claim payments for healthcare

providers processed 7.2 million payment transactions

accounting for $5 billion in claim payments 400

percent increase from the prior year

Fifth Third also invested in improved capital markets

solutions for our clients assembling teem of

strategists who consult with middle market clients

in areas such as capital structure currency risk and

private equity offerings In 2010 this team helped

drive an increase in capital markets revenue of

percent



investment Advisors

Asset Management provides asset management
services to institutional clients and also advises

the Companys proprietary family of mutual

funds Fifth Third Funds Fifth Third Institutional

Services provides consulting investment and

record-keeping services for corporations financial

institutions foundations endowments and not-for-

profit organizations Products include retirement

plans endowment management planned giving
and global and domestic custody services

Investment Advisors serves to deepen and enhancemv tm nt vi or is comprised of five distinct
the Banks most important client relationshipsbu in sse th hird Priv nk Fifth Third

by collaborating with our Retail Commercial anduriti ifth Third ag nt Fifth Third
Business Banking partners We begin by completelyInstitution ervic nd ifth Third Insurance We
understanding each clients unique needs goals andhave mor than 100 ye of xpenence helping our
circumstances For our most affluent individualsindividu bu in nd in titu onal clients build
and families we have teams of professionals toand age th ii Ith

design unbiased solutions that meet all of their

wealth management needs in one place For our
tail clients we offer comprehensive suite of

Cli nt iv cv Ii ed advi from ch of our inve tment and insurance solutions to complementbu ne lin if Third Pi ivate nk implifies th ir xisting banking products and services For
finan ompl xity for the nk fflu nt

in titutions md orporations our retirement asset
lient collabor ting with th to rn ul te and manag ment and ustody capabiliti mean th

achi their coil Fif hir curiti rv can turn to ifth Third for more th ju th ir

individu Is nd mili by of iing retirement apit By ging our intern comp nymv tm nt nd du ion nnin ed rtner hip lnv tm ntAdvi or provid th nkmon nnuiti and tr tion brok with ongoing fe nu at incr nt capit
rvi if Third In ur off numb nd provid our client with ompl pow rful

of in ur product nd rvi hf fin olution from one tru ted advisor
in ur ng rm in ur di bility

in pro ion nd annuitie to lent

minimi ci nd piot their Ith Fifth hird



iIV

Integral to our ont ued success is ths health and

vitaTty of the coinmun ties we serve Our commun ty

ving centered on empower ng people the

individuals who sre thu backbone of families non

prof and faith-based organizat ons businesses and

government that kc commun ty strong

ftc Bnk prior ty ft givc people access to the

tools and knowl dgc they need to be successful

Since ful Ilment of nearly any goal begins with

understanding money snowing how to use it wise

and hay ng the neans to invest for the future Fifth

Third Banks miss on is nancial err powerment

We have developed severa gi atu -c programs and

partnesh ps tf at help people oecone nancially

sound The riftl Thrd Bank Young Bankers Club is

de igned for fifth-grade student- and teaches the

bus cs of noney using curriculu that meets state

and ocol educat coal standards mathemftrc and

soc al studies Ncarly 000 stude ts av graduated

from Young Bankrs Clcb snce 2004

Our nun al empowcrment piograms grow with the

chi dren and when they reach the ninth grade they

can take the Bank six week financal literacy course

So art Bankers Club Smart Bunkcrr Club teaches

teenagers abs money management including

budgcting undurstanding credit and mairta ning

bunk accounts

in 2010 ftli TI ird Bank aiinouriccd an innovative

partnership with The Lampo Group the company of

nationally-syndicated radio talk show host and money
management expert Dave Ramsey to expand our suite

of financial progiams further into high school Fifth

Third Bank is sponsoring Ramseys Foundations in

Personal Finance curriculum for 11th- and 12th-grade

students in select high schools throughout our 12-state

footprint OLir sponsorship enables students to take

the course at no cost to the school or to themselves

just as many states are adopting legislation that

mandates financia iteracy education in schools The

pilot program includes 11000 students throughout

2010 and 201

The Bank also offers additional financial empowerment

piograms for adults The eBus 40-foot retrofitted

bus travels tradition Sly underserved communities

to take financial education and services directly

to people in those neighborhoods On the bus

individuals can get their credit score learn how to

obtain mortgage or avoid foreclosure and receive

individualized financial counseling The Banks Dream

Guard initiative also he ps empower individuals by

providing tips and advoe on topics ranging fiom ways

reduce everyday expenses to extend the life of what

you own and many other topcs related to budgeting

planning and using money wisely in challenging times

cam Guard tip sheets are available for free on the

Banks wcbsite wwe 53.com

addition to its emphasis on financial empowerment
Fifth Third Bank is an active supporter of many
charitable organizations community development

projects and neighborhood activties that make

positive impact in peoples lives In 2010 the Bank

made $2.5 million in grants through its corporate

foundation the Fifth Third Foundation and It nvested

$254 million in revitalization projects through the Fifth

Third Community Development Corporation CDC
Through our many Bank departments including

those focused on meeting Community Reinvestment

Act CRA requirements we supported thousands

of local events and initiatives and our employees

volunteered both their time and money to causes

they believe in from raising $7 million for the United

Way to environmental causes fundramsing walks and

more More information can be found in the Fifth Third

Bancorp Corporate Social Responsibility Report which

will be available in May 2011 at www 53 com/csrreport

Community
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Fifth Third Bancorp provides the following list of acronyms as tool for the reader The acronyms
identified below are used in Managements

Discussion Analysis of Financial Condition Results of Operations
the Consolidated Financial Statements and in the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements

ALCO Asset Liability Management Committee

ALLL Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

ARM Adjustable Rate Mortgage

ASC Accounting Standards Codification

BOLt Bank Owned Life Insurance

bp Basis Points

Commercial and Industrial

CARD Card Accountability Responsibility and Disclosure

CDC Fifth Third Community Development Corporation

CPP Capital Purchase Program

DCF Discounted Cash Flow

DIF Deposit Insurance Fund

EESA Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008

ERISA Employee Retirement Income Security Act

ERM Enterprise Risk Management

ERMC Enterprise Risk Management Committee

EVE Economic Value of Equity

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board

FDtC Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

FHLB Federal Home Loan Bank

FHLMC Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

FICO Fair Isaac Corporation credit rating

FNMA Federal National Mortgage Association

FRB Federal Reserve Bank

FTAM Fifth Third Asset Management Inc

FTE Fully Taxable Equivalent

FTP Funds Transfer Pricing

FTPS Fifth Third Processing Solutions

FTS Fifth Third Securities

GNMA Government National Mortgage Association

IPO Initial Public Offering

IRS Internal Revenue Service

LAPA Liquid Asset Purchase Agreement

LIBOR London InterBank Offered Rate

LTV Loan-to-Value

MDA Managements Discussion Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations

MSR Mortgage Servicing Right

Nit Net Interest Income

OC Other Comprehensive Income

OREO Other Real Estate Owned

OTT Other-Than-Temporary Impairment

PM Private Mortgage Insurance

QSPE Qualifying Special-Purpose Entity

RSA Restricted Stock Award

SAR Stock Appreciation Right

SEC United States Securities and Exchange Commission

SCAP Supervisory Capital Assessment Program

TAG Transaction Account Guarantee

TARP Troubled Asset Relief Program

TLGP Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program

TDR Troubled Debt Restructuring

TSA Transition Service Agreement

U.S United States of America

U.S GAAP Accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America

VIE Variable Interest Entity

VRDN Variable Rate Demand Note
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is MDA of certain significant factors that have affected Fifth Third Bancorps the Bancorp or Fifth Third financial

condition and results of operations during the periods included in the Consolidated Financial Statements which are part of this filing

Reference to the Bancorp incorporates
the

patent holding company and all consolidated subsidiaries

TABLE SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

For the years ended December 31 in millions except per share data 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Income Statement Data

Net interest income $3622 3373 3536 3033 2899

Nomnterest income 2729 4782 2946 2467 2012

Total revenue 6351 8155 6482 5500 4911

Provision for loan and lease losses 1538 3543 4560 628 343

Noninterest expense
3855 3826 4564 3311 2915

Net income loss attributable to Baneorp
753 737 2113 1076 1188

Net income loss available to common shareholders 503 511 2180 1075 1188

Common Share Data

Earnings per share basic $.63 .73 3.91 1.99 2.13

Earnings per share diluted .63 .67 3.91 1.98 2.12

Cash dividends per common shate .04 .04 .75 1.70 1.58

Market value per share 14.68 9.75 8.26 25.13 40.93

Book value per share 13.06 12.44 13.57 17.18 18.00

Financial Ratios

Return on assets
.67 0/ .64 1.85 1.05 1.13

Return on average common equity
5.0 5.6 23.0 11.2 12.1

Average equity as percent of average assets
12.22 11.36 8.78 9.35 9.32

Tangible equity
10.42 9.71 7.86 6.05 7.79

Tangible common equity
7.04 6.45 4.23 6.14 7.95

Net interest margin
3.66 3.32 3.54 3.36 3.06

Efficiency
60.7 46.9 70.4 60.2 59.4

Credit Quality

Net losses charged off $2328 2581 2710 462 316

Net losses charged off as percent of average loans and leases 3.02 0/ 3.20 3.23 .61 .44

ALLL as percent of loans and leases
3.88 4.88 3.31 1.17 1.04

Allowance for credit losses as percent of loans and leases 4.17 5.27 3.54 1.29 1.14

Nonperforming assets as percent of loans leases and other assets

including other real estate owned dgi 2.79 4.22 2.38 1.25 .61

Average Balances

Loans and leases including held for sale $79232 83391 85835 78348 3493

Total securities and other short-term investments 19699 18135 14045 12034 21288

Total assets 112434 114856 114296 102477 105238

Transaction deposits 60
65662 55235 52680 50987 49678

Core deposits 60 76188 69338 63815 61765 60178

Wholesale funding
18917 28539 36261 27254 31691

Bancorp shareholders equity
13737 13053 10038 9583 9811

Regulatory Capital Ratios

Tier capital
13.94 13.30 10.59 7.72 8.39

Total risk-based capital
18.14 17.48 14.78 10.16 11.07

Tier leverage
12.79 12.34 10.27 8.50 8.44

Tier common equity
7.50 6.99 4.37 5.72 8.22

Amounts presented sn an FEE basis The FIB adjustments for years
ended December31 2O16 2009 2008 2007 and 2006 were $1b $19 $22 $24 and $26 respecteve/y

The
tangible equly tangible common equly

and Tier common equity ratiss are non-GAAP measures Forfurther information
see the Nsn-GAAP Financial Measures sectisn of MDA

The allowance fsr credit lssses is the sum qi
the AL.LL and the reserve for unjknded

commitments

Excludes nonaccrual loans held for sale

The
Bancoep modJied its nonaccrualpoliy in 2009 to exclude consumer TDR loans less than 90 days past

due as thp were pep9rimng in accordance with
restructuring

terms For comparabilly

pa7poses prior periods were aegiistecl to reflect
this

reclassIication

Includes demana interest checking savings money market and foreign office deposits

60
Includes transaction deposits plus other time deposits

Includes
certificates $100000 and over otherforeign office deposityfederalfundspurchase4

short-term borvowings and long-term
debt

TABLE QUARTERLY INFORMATION unaudited
2010 2009

For the three months ended in millions except per share data 12/31 9/30 6/30 3/31 12/31 9/30 6/30 3/31

Net interest income ITE $919 916 887 901 $882 874 836 781

Provision for loan and lease losses
166 457 325 590 776 952 1041 773

Noninterest income
656 827 620 627 651 851 2583 697

Noninterest expense
987 979 935 956 967 876 1021 962

Net income loss attributable to Bancorp
333 238 192 10 98 97 882 50

Net income loss available to common shareholders 270 175 130 72 160 159 856 26

Earnings per share basic
.34 .22 .16 .09 .20 .20 1.35 .04

Earnings per share diluted .33 .22 .16 .09 .20 .20 1.15 .04
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW
Fifth Third Bancorp is diversified financial sewices company

headquartered in Cincinnati Ohio At Dcccmbcr 31 2010 thc

Bancorp had $111 billion in asscts and opcratcd 15 affiliates with

1312 full-service Banking Centers including 103 Bank Mart
locations

open seven days week inside select grocery stores and

2445 Jeanie ATMs in 12 states throughout the Midwestern and

Southeastern regions of the United States The
Baneorp reports

on four business segments Commercial Banking Branch

Banking Consumer Lending and Investment Advisors The

Baneorp also has 49% interest in Fifth Third Processing

Solutions LLC
This overview of MDA

highlights selected information in

the financial results of the Bancorp and may not contain all of the

informaoon that is important to you For more complete

understanding of trends events commitments uncertainties

bquidity capital resources and entical accounting policies and

estimates you should carefully read this enore document Each of

these items could have an impact on the Bancorps financial

eondioon results of operations and cash flows

The Baneorp believes that banking is first and foremost

relationship business where the strength of the competition and

challenges for growth can vary in every market The Baneorp

bebeves its affiliate operating model provides competitive

advantage by emphasizing individual
relationships Through its

affiliate
operaong model individual managers at all levels within

the affiliates are given the opportunity to tailor financial solutions

for their customers

The Bancorps revenues are dependent on both net interest

income and noninterest income For the year ended December 31

2010 net interest income on an FTE basis and noninterest

income provided S80/s and 42% of total revenue respectively

Changes in interest rates credit quality economic trends and the

capital markets are primary factors that drive the performance of

the Bancorp As discussed later in the Risk Management section

risk identification measurement monitoting control and

reporting are important to the management of risk and to the

financial performance and capital strength of the Bancorp
Net interest income is the difference between interest income

earned on assets such as loans leases and securities and interest

expense incurred on liabilioes such as deposits short-term

borrowings and long-term debt Net interest income is affected by

the general level of interest rates the relative level of short-term

and long-term interest rates changes in interest rates and changes

in the amount and
composition of interest-earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities Generally the rates of interest the

Baneorp earns on its assets and pays on its liabilities are

established for period of time The change in market interest

rates over time exposes the Baneorp to interest rate risk through

potential adverse changes to net interest income and financial

position The Baneorp manages this risk by continually analyzing

and adjusting the composition of its assets and liabilities based on

their
payment streams and interest rates the timing of their

maturities and their sensitivity to changes in market interest rates

Additionally in the ordinary course of business the Baneorp

enters into certain derivative transactions as part of its overall

strategy to manage its interest rate and prepayment risks The

Bancorp is also exposed to rlie tisk of losses on its loan and lease

portfolio as result of changing expected cash flows caused by

loan defaults and inadequate collateral due to weakened

economy within the Bancorps footptint

Net interest income net interest margin and the efficiency

ratio are presented in MDA on an FTh basis The FTE basis

adjusts for the tax-favored status of income from certain loans

and secunties held by the Baneorp that are not taxable for federal

income tax purposes
The Bancorp believes this presentation to

be the preferred industry measurement of net interest income as it

provides relevant companson between taxable and non-taxable

amounts

Noninterest income is derived ptimarily from mortgage

banking net revenue service charges on deposits corporate

banking revenue fiduciary and investment management fees and

card and processing revenue Noninteresr expense is primarily

driven by personnel costs and
occupancy expenses costs incurred

in the otigination of loans and leases and insurance
expenses paid

to the FDIC

On June 30 2009 the Bancorp completed the sale

hereinafter the Processing Business Sale of majotity interest

in its merchant
aequinng and financial institutions processing

business As result of the sale the Bancorp recognized pre-rax

gain
of approximately $1.8 billion Under the terms of the sale

Advent International acquired an approximate SI/s interest in the

business The Baneorp accounts for the retained noncontrolling

interest in the business under the equity method if accounting

Common Stock and Senior Notes Offerings

On January 25 2011 the Baneorp raised $1.7 bdlion in new

common equity through the issuance of 121428572 shares of

common stock in an undenvriting offeting at an initial ptiee of

$14.00 per share On January 24 2011 the underwtiters exercised

their option to purchase an additional 12142857 shares at the

offering price of $14.00 per share In connection with this

exercise the Bancorp entered into forward sale
agreement

which

resulted in final net payment of 959821 shares on February

2011

On January 25 2011 the Baneorp issued $1.0 billion of

senior notes to third
parry investors and entered into

Supplemental indenture dated January 25 2011 with Wilmington

Trust Company as Trustee which modifies the existing Indenture

for Senior Debt Secunnes dated April 30 2008 between the

Bancorp and the Trustee The Supplemental Indenture and the

Indenture define the nghts of the Senior Notes which Senior

Notes are represented by Global Secunties dated as of January 25
2011 The senior notes bear fixed rate of interest of 3.625% per

annum The notes are unsecured senior obligations of the

Baneorp Payment of the full pnneipal amount of the notes will be

due upon matutity on January 25 2016 The notes will not be

subject to the redemption at the Baneorps option at any time

pnor to maturity

Repurchase of Outstanding TARP Preferred Stock

As further discussed in Note 24 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements on December 31 2008 the Baneorp issued

$3.4 billion of Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock

Senes and related warrants to the U.S Treasury under the U.S

Treasurys CPP
On

February 2011 the Baneorp redeemed all 136320
shares of its Series Preferred Stock held by the U.S Treasury

As discussed above the net proceeds from the
Bancorps January

2011 common stock and senior notes offetings and other funds

were used to redeem the $3.4 billion of Seties Preferred Stock

In connection with the redemption of the Seties preferred

Stock the
Bancorp accelerated the accretion of the remaining

issuance discount on the Senes Preferred Stock and recorded

corresponding reduction in retained earnings of $153 million This

resulted in onetime noneash reduction in net income available

to common shareholders and related basic and diluted earnings

per share This transaction will be reflected in the Baneorps

Consolidated Financial Statements for the
quarter ended March

31 2011
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Dividends of $15 million were paid on February 2011

when the Series Preferred Stock was redeemed The Bancorp

paid total dividends of $356 million to the U.S Treasury while the

Series Preferred Stock was outstanding The Bancorp notified

the U.S Treasury on February 17 2011 of its intention to

negotiate for the purchase of the warrants issued to the U.S

Treasury in connection with the CPP preferred stock investment

Recent Legislative Developments

On July 21 2010 the Dodd-Frank Act was signed into law This

act significantly changes the financial services industry and affects

the lending deposit investment trading and operating activities

of financial institutions and their holding companies
The

legislation establishes Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection

changes the base for deposit insurance assessments gives the

Federal Reserve the abibty to regulate and limit interchange rates

charged to merchants for the use of debit cards and excludes

certain instruments currently included in determining Tier

regulatory capital This act calls for federal regulatory agencies to

adopt hundreds of new rules and conduct multiple studies over

the next several years in order to implement its provisions
While

the total impact of this legislation on Fifth Third is not currently

known the impact is expected to be substanoal and may have an

adverse impact on Fifth Thirds financial performance
and growth

opportunities

Earnings Summary
The Baneorps net income available to common shareholders for

2010 was $503 million or $0.63 per
diluted share which was net

of $250 milbon in preferred stock dividends The Baneorps net

income available to common shareholders was $511 mdhon or

$0.67 per diluted share for 2009 which was net of $226 million in

preferred stock dividends The Bancorps results for both
years

reflect number of significant items

Such items affecting 2010 include

$152 million of noninterest income from the settiement

of btigation associated with one of the Bancorps BOLT

pobcies and $25 milbon of noninrerest expense
from

related legal fees

$110 million of noninterest expense
from charges to

representation
and warranty reserves related to

residential mortgage loans sold to third-parties and

$68 million of net interest income due to the acereoon

of purchase accounting adjustments related to loans and

deposits from acquisitions during 2008

For eompatison purposes
such items affecong 2009 include

$1.8 billion of noninterest income from the Processing

Business Sale to Advent International

$244 million of noninterest income from the sale of the

Bancorps Visa Inc Class common shares and $73

million reduction to noninterest expense from the

release of Visa bogaoon reserves

$136 million of net interest income due to the accretion

of purchase accounting adjustments related to loans and

deposits from acquisitions during 2008

$106 milbon income tax benefit from the decision to

surrender one of the Bancorps BOLT policies
and the

determination that previously
recorded losses on the

policy are tax deductible

$31 milbon of noninterest expense from charges to

representation
and warranty reserves related to

residential mortgage loans sold to third-paroes

$55 million of noninterest expense
from special

assessment by the FDIC

$55 million indome tax benefit from an agreement with

the IRS to settle all of the Baneorps disputed leverage

leases for all open years

$53 million in charges to other noninterest income

reflecting reserves recorded in connection with the

intent to surrender one of the Baneorps BOLT policies

as well as losses related to marker value declines and

$35 million increase to net income available to common

shareholders from the exchange of 63/s of outstanding

Seties preferred shares for approximately 60 million

common shares and $230 million in cash

Net interest income increased to $3.6 billion from $3.4

billion in 2009 The primary reason for the seven percent increase

in net interest income was 39 lip increase in the net interest rate

spread due to the runoff of higher priced term deposits in 2010

and the benefit of lower rates offered on new term deposits as

well as improved ptieing on commercial loans These benefits

were partially offset by decrease in the aecreoon of purchase

accounting adjustments related to the 2008 acquisition of First

Charter which were $68 million in 2010 compared to $136

million in 2009 Net interest margin was 3.66/s in 2010 an

increase of 34
lip

from 2009

Noninterest income decreased 43% to $2.7 billion in 2010

compared to $4.8 billion in 2009 driven primanly by the

Processing Business Sale in the second quarter of 2009 which

resulted in
pre-tax gain of $1.8 billion as well as $244 million

gain related to the sale of the Baneorps Visa Inc Class shares

in 2009 Mortgage banking net revenue increased $94 mdhon as

result of strong net servicing revenue and higher margins on sold

loans partially offset by decline in mortgage originations Card

and processing revenue decreased 49% due to the Processing

Business Sale in the second quarter of 2009 Service charges on

deposits decreased $58 million pnmarily due to the impact of new

overdraft regulation and policies which resulted in decrease in

overdraft occurrences Tnvestment advisory revenue increased $35

million as the result of improved market performance and sales

production that drove an increase in brokerage activity and assets

under care Corporate banking revenue decreased two percent

largely due to decreases in international income and lease

remarketing fees partially offset by growth in syndication and

business lending fees

Noninterest expense increased $29 million or one percent

compared to 2009 Noninterest expense in 2010 included $25

million in legal fees associated with the setilement of claims with

the insurance eartier on one of the Bancorps BOLT policies while

noninterest expense
in 2009 included $73 million reducuon in

the Visa litigation reserve as well as $55 million FDIC special

assessment charge Total personnel costs increased $94 million or

six percent
in 2010 compared to 2009 due primanly to

investments in the sales force in 2010 Tn addition charges to

representation and warranty reserves related to residenoal

mortgage loans sold to third-parties totaled $110 million in 2010

compared to $31 million in 2009 due to higher volume of

repurchase demands Partially offserung these negative impacts

was $123 million decrease in the provision for unfunded

commitments and letters of credit due to lower esomates of

inherent losses as the result of decrease in delinquent loans

dtiven by moderation in economic conditions during 2010 In

addition card and processing expense
decreased $85 million

compared to 2009 due to the Processing Business Sale in June of

2009 Noninterest expense
in 2010 and 2009 included $242

million and $269 million respecuvely of FDIC insurance and

other taxes

The Bancorp does not otiginate subptime mortgage loans

does not hold credit default swaps
and does not hold asset-backed

secutities backed by subpnme mortgage loans in its secunnes
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

portfolio However the Baneorp has
exposure to disruptions in

the capital markets and weakened economic conditions

Throughout 2010 the Bancorp continued to lie affected by high

unemployment rates weakened housing markets particularly in

the upper Midwest and Florida and challenging credit

environment Credit trends however continued to show signs of

moderation in 2010 and as result the provision for loan and

lease losses decreased to $1.5 billion for the
year

ended December

31 2010 compared to $3.5 billion during 2009

Net charge-offs as percent of average loans and leases

decreased to 3.02% in 2010 compared to 3.20% in 2009 In the

third quarter of 2010 the Bancorp took significant actions to

reduce credit tisk Residential
mortgage loans in the Bancorps

portfolio with carrying value of $228 million were sold for $105

million generating $123 million in net charge-offs Additionally

commercial loans with carrying value prior to transfer of $961

million were transferred to held-for-sale generating $387 million

in net charge-offs Including the impact of these actions

nonperforming assets as percent of loans leases and other

assets including other real estate owned excluding nonaccrual

loans held for sale decreased to 2.79% at December 31 2010

from 4.22% at December 31 2009 Refer to the Credit Risk

Management section in MDA for more information on credit

quality

The Bancorp took number of actions to strengthen its

capital position in 2009 On June 2009 the Bancorp completed

an at-the-market offering resulting in the sale of $1 billion of its

common shares at an average share price of $6.33 In addition on

June 17 2009 the Bancorp completed its offer to exchange shares

of its common stock and cash for shares of its Series

convertible preferred stock As result the Bancorp recognized

an increase in net mcome available to common shareholders of

$35 million based upon the difference in carrying value of the

Series preferred shares and the fair value of the common shares

and cash issued See the Capital Management section of MDA
for further information on the Bancorps capital transactions

The Bancorps capital ratios exceed the well-capitalized

guidelines as defined by the Board of Governors of the Federal

Reserve System As of December 31 2010 the Tier capital ratio

was 13.94% the Tier leverage ratio was l2.79% and the total

risk-based capital ratio was l8.14%
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES
The Bancorp considers various measures when evaluating capital

utilization and adequacy including the tangible equity ratio

tangible common equity ratio and tier common equity ratio in

addition to capital ratios defined by banking regulators These

calculations are intended to complement the capital ratios defined

by banking regulators for both absolute and comparative

purposes
Because U.S GAAP does not include capital ratio

measures the Bancorp believes there are no comparable U.S

GAAP financial measures to these ratios Tier common equity is

not formally defined by U.S GAAP or codified in the federal

banking regulations and therefore is considered to be non

GAAP financial measure Since analysts and banking regulators

may assess the Bancorps capital adequacy using these ratios the

Bancorp believes they are useful to provide investors the
ability

to

assess its capital adequacy on the same basis

The Bancorp believes these non-GAAP measures are

important because they reflect the level of capital available to

withstand unexpected market conditions Additionally

presentation of these measures allows readers to compare
certain

aspects of the Bancorps capitalization to other organizations

However because there are no standardized definitions for these

ratios the Bancorps calculations may not be comparable with

other organizations and the usefulness of these measures to

investors may be limited As result the Baneorp encourages

readers to consider its Consolidated Financial Statements in their

entirety and not to rely on any single financial measure

The following table reconciles non-GAAP financial measures

to U.S GAAP as of December 31

TABLE NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

in millions
2010 2009

Total Bancorp shareholders equity U.S GAAP $14051 $13497

Less

Goodwill 2417 2417

Intangible assets
62 106

Accumulated other comprehensive income 314

Tangible equity
11258 10733

Less preferred stock 3654 3609

Tangible common equity
7604 7124

Total assets U.S GAAP 111007 113380

Less

Goodwill 2417 2417

Intangible assets 62 106

Accumulated other comprehensive income before tax 483

Tangible assets excluding unrealized gains losses $108045 $110487

Total Bancorp shareholders equity U.S GAAP 14051 $13497

Goodwill and certain other intangibles
2546 2565

Unrealized gains 314 241

Qualifying trust preferred securities 2763 2763

Other
11 26

Tier
capital

13965 13428

Less Preferred stock 3654 3609

Qualifying trust preferred securities 2763 2763

Qualified noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiaries 30
Tier common equity

7518 7056

Risk-weighted assets
100193 100933

Ratios

Tangible equity
1Q.42% 9.71%

Tangible common equity
7.04% 6.45%

Tier common equity
7.50% 6.99%

Under the banking agencies
risk-based

capita/guidelines
assets and credit equivalent amounts of

derivatives and ft balance sheet exposures are assigned to broad risk categories The aggregate

dollar amount in each risk category
is

multblied by
the associated risk iveight of

the
category

The resulting weighted values are added
together resulting

in the Bancotpc total risk-weighted assets

RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

provides discussion of the significant new accounting standards

adopted by the Bancorp during 2010 and 2009 and the expected

impact of significant accounting standards issued but not yet

required to be adopted
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Baneorps Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in

accnrdance with U.S GAAP Certain accounting policies require

management to exercise judgment in dctctmining methodologies

economic assumpnons and estimates that may materially affect

the value of the Bancorps assets or liabilities and results of

operations and cash flows The Bancorps critical accounting

policies include the
accounnng

for the ALLL reserve for

unfunded commitments income taxes valuation of servicing

nghts fair value measurements and goodwill No material changes

were made to the valuation techniques or models described below

during the year ended December 31 2010

ALLL
The Bancorp disaggrcgatcs its portfolio loans and leases into

portfolio segments for purposes of determining the ALLL The

Bancorps portfolio segments
include commercial residential

mortgage and consumer The Bancorp further disaggrcgates its

portfolio segments into classes for purposes of monitoring and

assessing
credit quality based on certain nsk characterisocs

Classes within the commercial portfolio segment include

commercial industrial commercial mortgage owner-occupied

commercial mortgage nonowncr-occupicd commercial

construction and commercial leasing The residential mortgage

portfolio segment is also considered class Classes within the

consumer segment include home equity automobile credit card

and other consumer loans and leases For an analysis of the

Bancorps ALLL by portfolio segment and credit quality

informanon by class see Note of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

Larger commercial loans included within aggregate borrower

relationship balances exceeding $1 million that exhibit probable or

observed credit weaknesses as well as loans that have been

modified in TDR arc subject to individual review for

impairment The Bancorp considers the current value of collateral

credit quality of any guarantees the loan structure and other

factors when evaluating whether an individual loan is impaired

Other factors may include die industry of the borrower size and

financial condioon of the borrower cash flow leverage of the

borrower and the Bancorps evaluation of the borrowers

management When individual loans are impaired allowances are

determined based on managements estimate of the borrowers

ability to repay
the loan

given
the availability of collateral other

sources of cash flo\v as well as evaluation of legal options

available to the Bancorp Allowances for impaired loans are

measured based on the present value of expected future cash

flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate fair value of

the underlying collateral or readily observable secondary market

values The Bancorp evaluates the collcctability of both principal

and interest when assessing the need for loss accrual

Histotical credit loss rates are applied to commercial loans

that arc not impaired or arc impaired but smaller than the

established threshold of $1 million and thus not subject to specific

allowance allocations The loss rates arc dctivcd from migration

analysis which tracks the histoncal net charge-off cxpetience

sustained on loans according to their internal risk grade The tisk

grading system currcntiy utilized for allowance analysis purposes

encompasses ten categories

Homogenous loans and leases in the residential mortgage and

consumer portfolio segments arc not individually risk graded

Rather standard credit scoting systems and delinquency

monitoring are used to assess credit nsks and allowances arc

established based on the expected net chargc-offs Loss rates arc

based on the average net charge-off history by loan category

Historical loss rates may be adjusted for significant factors that in

managements judgment are necessary to reflect losses inherent in

the portfolio Factors that management considers in the analysis

include the effects of the national and local economics trends in

the nature and volume of delinquencies chargc-offs and

nonaccrual loans changes in loan mix credit score migration

comparisons asset quality trends risk management and loan

administration changes in the internal lending policies and credit

standards collection practices and examination results from bank

regulatory agencies and the Bancorps internal credit reviewers

The Bancorps current methodology for determining the

ALLL is based on histotical loss rates current credit grades

specific allocation on TDRs and impaired commercial credits

above specified thresholds and other qualitative adjustments

Allowances on individual commercial loans and historical loss

rates are reviewed quarterly and adjusted as necessary based on

changing borrower and/or collateral conditions and actual

collection and charge-off experience An unallocated allowance is

maintained to recognize the imprecision in estimating and

measuring losses when evaluating allowances for individual loans

or pools of loans

Loans acquired by the Bancorp through purchase business

combination arc recorded at fair value as of the acquisition date

The Bancorp does not carry over the acquired companys ALLL
nor does the Bancorp add to its existing ALLL as part of purchase

accounting

The Bancorps primary market areas for lending arc the

Mid\vestern and Southeastern regions of the United States When

evaluating the adequacy of allowances consideration is
given to

these regional geographic concentrations and the closely

associated effect changing economic conditions have on the

Bancorps customers

Reserve for Unfunded Cominitments

The reserve for unfunded commitments is maintained at level

believed by management to be sufficient to absorb estimated

probable losses related to unfunded credit facilities and is included

in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets The

determination of the adequacy of the reserve is based upon an

evaluation of the unfunded credit facilities including an

assessment of historical commitment utilization experience credit

tisk gradtng and historical loss rates based on credit grade

migration Net adjustments to the reserve for unfunded

commitments arc included in other noninrcrcst expense in the

Consolidated Statements of Income

Income Taxes

The Bancorp estimates income tax expense based on amounts

expected to be owed to the various tax jurisdictions in which the

Bancorp conducts business On quarterly basis management

assesses the reasonableness of its effective tax rate based upon its

current estimate of the amount and components of net income

tax credits and the applicable statutory tax rates expected for the

full year The estimated income tax expense is recorded in the

Consolidated Statements of Income

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined

using the balance sheet method and are reported in other assets

and accrued taxes interest and expenses respectively in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets Under this method the net deferred

tax asset or liability is based on the tax effects of the differences

between the book and tax basis of assets and
liabilities

and

recognizes enacted changes in tax rates and laws Deferred tax

assets are recognized to the extent they exist and arc subject to

valuation allowance based on managements judgment that

realization is more-likely-than-not This analysis is performed on

quarterly basis and includes an evaluation of all positive and

negative evidence to determine whether realization is more-likely-

than-not
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Accrued taxes represent the net estimated amount due to

taxing jurisdictions and are reported in accrued taxes interest and

expenses in the Consolidated Balance Sheets The Baneorp

evaluates and assesses the relative risks and appropriate tax

treatment of transactions and
filing positions after eonsidenng

statutes regulations judicial precedent and other information and

maintains tax accruals consistent with its evaluation of these

relative risks and merits Changes to the estimate of accrued taxes

occur petiodieally due to changes in tax rates interpretations
of

tax laws the status of examinations being conducted by taxing

authorities and changes to statutory judicial and regulatory

guidance that impact the relative risks of tax positions
These

changes when they occur can affect deferred taxes and accrued

taxes as well as the current periods income tax expense and can

be signifieanr to the operating
results of the Baneorp For

additional information on income taxes see Note 21 of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements

Valuation of Servicing lb-hts

When the Baneorp sells loans through either seeuritizations or

individual loan sales in accordance with its investment policies it

often obtains servicing rights Servicing rights resulting from loan

sales are initialiy recorded at fair value and subsequently amortized

in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing

income Servicing rights are assessed for impairment monthly

based on fair value with temporary impairment recognized

through valuation allowance and permanent impairment

recognized through write-off of the servicing asset and related

valuation allowance Key economic assumptions
used in

measuring any potential impairment of the servicing rights include

the
prepayment speeds of the underlying loans the weighted-

average life the discount rate the weighted-average coupon and

the weighted-average default rate as applicable The primary risk

of material changes to the value of the servicing rights resides in

the potential volatility in the economic assumptions used

particularly
the prepayment speeds

The Baneorp monitors risk and adjusts its valuation

allowance as necessary to adequately reserve for impairment in the

servicing portfolio For purposes of measuring impairment the

mortgage servicing tights are stratified into classes based on the

financial asset type
and interest rates Fees received for servicing

loans owned by investors are based on percentage of the

outstanding monthly ptincipal
balance of such loans and are

included in noninterest income in the Consolidated Statements of

Income as loan payments are received Costs of servicing loans are

charged to expense as incurred For additional information on

servicing rights see Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

Fair Value Measurements

The Baneorp measures fair value in accordance with U.S GAAP
which defines fair value as the price

that would be received to sell

an asset or paid to transfer
liability

in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date Valuation

techniques the Bancorp uses to measure fair value include the

market approach income approach and cost approach The

market approach uses prices or relevant information generated by

market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or

liabilities The income approach involves discounting future

amounts to single present amount and is based on current

market expectations about those future amounts The cost

approach is based on the amount that currently would lie required

to replace
the service capacity of the asset

U.S GAAP establishes fair value hierarchy which

ptiotitizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair

value into three broad levels The fair value hierarchy gives the

highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities Level and the lowest ptioriry to

unobservable inputs Level An instruments caregonzation

within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of

input that is significant to the instruments fair value

measurement The three levels within the fair value hierarchy are

desctilied as follows

Level Quoted ptices unadjusted in active markers

for identical assets or liabilities that the Bancorp has the

ability
to access at the measurement date

Level Inputs other than quoted pnces included within

Level that are observable for the asset or llahilirv

either directly or indirectly Level inputs include

quoted ptices for similar assets or liabilities in active

markets quoted prices for identical or similar assets or

liabilities in markets that are not active inputs other

than quoted ptices that are observable for the asset or

liability
and inputs that are denved principally

from or

corroborated by observable marker data by correlation

or other means

Level Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
for

which there is little if any marker activity at the

measurement date Unobservable inputs reflect the

Bancorps own assumptions about what market

participants would use to pticc
the asset or liability

The

inputs are developed based on the best information

available in the circumstances which might include the

Bancorps own financial data such as internally

developed pricing models and discounted iash flow

methodologies as well as instruments for which the fair

value determination requires significant management

judgment

The Baneorps fair value measurements involve various

valuation techniques and models which involve inputs that are

observable when available and include the following significant

instruments available-for-sale and trading securities residential

mortgage loans held for investment and held for sale and certain

derivatives The following is summary of valuation techniques

utilized by the Bancorp for its significant asseis and liabilities

measured ar fair value on recurring basis

Available-for-sale and trading securities

Where quored prices are available in an active marker

securities are classified within Level of the valuation

hierarchy Level securities include government
bonds

and exchange traded equities If quoted marker prices

are nor available then fair values are estimated using

pticing models quoted prices of secutities with similar

characteristics or discounted cash flows Examples of

such instruments which are classified within Level of

the valuation hierarchy include agency and non-agency

mortgage-backed securities other asset-backed

securities obligations of U.S Government sponsored

agencies and corporate
and municipal bonds Agency

mortgage-backed secutines obligations of U.S

Government sponsored agencies and corporate and

municipal bonds arc generally valued using
market

approach
based on observable prices of secutines with

similar characteristics Non-agency mortgage-backed

secutities and other asset-backed securities are generally

valued using an income approach based on discounted

cash flows incorporating prepayment speeds

performance
of underlying collateral and specific

rranchc-level attributes In certain cases where there is

limited activity or less transparency
around inputs to the

valuation securities are classified within Level of the

valuation hierarchy Trading securities classified as Level

consist of auction rate secutioes Due to the illiquidiry

in the market for these types of secunties at December
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31 2010 the Baneorp measured fair value using

discount rate based on the assumed holding period

Residential mortgage loans held for sale and held

for investment

For residential mortgage loans held for sale fair value is

esomated based upon mortgage-backed securities prices

and spreads to those prices or for certain ARM loans

discounted cash flow models that may incorporate the

anticipated portfolio composition credit spreads of

asset-backcd securines with similar collateral and market

conditions The anticipated portfobo composition

includes the effect of interest rate spreads and discount

rates due to loan characteristics such as the state in

which the loan was originated the loan amount and the

ARI\4 margin Residential
mortgage loans held for sale

that are valued based on mortgage-backed securities

prices are classified within Level of the valuation

hierarchy as the valuation is based on external pricing

for similar instruments ARM loans classified as held for

sale are also classified within Level of the valuation

hierarchy due to the use of observable inputs in the

discounted cash flow model These observable inputs

include interest rate spreads from agency mortgage-
backed securities market rates and observable discount

rates For residential mortgage loans reclassified from

held for sale to held for investment the fair value

estimation is based primarily on the underlying collateral

values Therefore these loans are classified within Level

of the valuation hierarchy

Derivatives

Exchange-traded derivatives valued using quoted prices

and certain over-the-counter derivatives valued using

active bids are classified within Level of the valuation

hierarchy Most of the Bancorps derivative contracts are

valued using discounted cash flow or other models that

incorporate current market interest rates credit spreads

assigned to the derivative counterparties and other

market parameters and therefore are classified within

Level of the valuation hierarchy Such derivatives

include basic and structured interest rate swaps and

options Derivanves that are valued based upon models

with significant unobservable market parameters are

classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy At

December 31 2010 derivatives classified as Level

which are valued using an option-pricing model

containing unobservable inputs consisted primarily of

warrants and
put rights associated with the Processing

Business Sale and total return swap associated with the

Baneorps sale of its Visa Inc Class shares Level

derivatives also include interest rate lock commitments
which utilize internally generated loan closing rate

assumptions as significant unobservable input in the

valuation
process

Valuation techniques and
parameters used for measuring

assets and liabilities are reviewed and validated by the Bancorp on

quarterly basis
Additionally the Bancorp monitors the fair

values of significant assets and liabilities using variety of

methods including the evaluation of pricing runs and exception

reports based on certain analytical criteria comparison to previous

trades and overall review and assessments for reasonableness

In addioon to the assets and liabilities measured at fair value

on recurring basis the Baneorp measures servicing tights

certain loans and long-lived assets at fair value on nonrecurring

basis Refer to Note 28 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for further information on fair value measurements

Goodwill

Business combinations entered into by the Bancorp typically

include the acquisition of goodwill U.S GAAP requires goodwill

to be rested for impairment at the Bancorps reporting unit level

on an annual basis which for the Baneorp is September 30 and

more frequenily if events or circumstances indicate that there may
be impairment The Bancorp has determined that its

segments

qualify as reporting
units under U.S GAAP Impairment exists

when reporting units
carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its

implied fair value which is determined through two-step

impairment test The first step Step compares
the fair value of

reporting unit with irs carrying amount including goodwill If

the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value

the second step Step of the goodwill impairment test is

performed to measure the impairment loss amount if any

The fair value of
reporting unit is the price that would be

received to sell the unit as whole in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date Since none

of the Bancorps reporting units are publicly traded individual

reporting unit fair value determinations cannot be directly

correlated to the Bancorps stock price To determine the fair

value of reporting unit the Bancorp employs an income-based

approach utilizing the repornng units forecasted cash flows

including terminal value approach to estimate cash flows

beyond the final year of the forecasr and the reporting units

estimated cost of equity as the discount rate Additionally the

Bancorp determines its market capitalization based on the
average

of the closing pnce of the Baneorps stock during the month

including the measurement date incorporating an additional

control premium and allocates this market-based fair value

measurement to the Bancorps reporting units in order to

corroborate the results of the income approach

When required to perform Step the Baneorp compares the

implied fair value of reporting units goodwill with the carrying

amount of that goodwill If the carrying amount exceeds the

implied fair value an impairment loss equal to that excess amount

is recognized An impairment loss recognized cannot exceed the

carrying amount of that goodwill and cannot be reversed even if

the fair value of the reporting unit recovers

During Step the Baneorp determines the implied fair value

of goodwill for reporting unit by assigning the fair value of the

reporting unit to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit

including any unrecognized intangible assets as if the reporting

unit had been acquired in business combination The excess of

rhe fair value of the
reporting unit over the amounts assigned to

irs assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill This

assignment process is only performed for
purposes

of resting

goodwill for impairment The Baneorp does not adjust the

carrying values of recognized assets or liabilities other than

goodwill if appropriate nor recognize previously unrecognized

intangible assets in the Consolidated Financial Statements as

result of this assignment process Refer to Note 10 of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information

regarding the Bancorps goodwill
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RISK FACTORS
The risks listed here are not the only risks that Fifth Third faces

Additional risks that are not presently
known or that Fifth Third

presently deems to be immaterial could also have material

adverse impact on its financial condition the results of its

operations or its business

RISKS RELATING TO ECONOMIC AND MARKET
CONDITIONS

Weakness in the economy and in the real estate markez

including specific weakness within Fifth Thirds geographic

footprint
has adversely affected Fifth Third and may

continue to adversely affect Fifth Third

If the strength of the U.S economy in general and the strength of

the local economies in which Fifth Third conducts operations

declines or does not improve
in reasonable time frame this

could result in among other things deterioration in credit

quality or reduced demand for credit including resultant effect

on Fifth Thirds loan portfolio and ALLL and in the receipt
of

lower proceeds from the sale of loans and foreclosed properties

significant portion of Fifth Thirds residential mortgage
and

commercial real estate loan portfolios are comprised of borrowers

in Michigan Northern Ohio and Florida which markets have

been particularly adversely affected by job losses declines in real

estate value declines in home sale volumes and declines in new

home building These factors could result in higher delinquencies

greater charge-offs and increased losses on the sale of foreclosed

real estate in future periods which could materially adversely

affect Fifth Thirds financial condition and results of operations

Changes in interest rates could affect Fifth Thirds income

and cash flows

Fifth Thirds income and cash flows depend to great extent on

the difference between the interest rates earned on interest-

earning assets such as loans and investment securities and the

interest rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities such as deposits

and borrowings These rates are highly sensitive to many factors

that are beyond Fifth Thirds control including general economic

conditions and the policies of various governmental
and

regulatory agencies in particular the FRB Changes in monetary

policy including changes in interest rates will influence the

origination of loans the prepayment speed
of loans the purchase

of investments the generation of deposits and the rates received

on loans and investment securities and paid on deposits or other

sources of funding The impact of these changes may be

magnified if Fifth Third does not effectively manage the relative

sensitivity of its assets and liabilities to changes in market interest

rates Fluctuations in these areas may adversely affect Fifth Third

and its shareholders

Changes and trends in the capital markets may affect Fifth

Thirds income and cash flows

Fifth Third enters into and maintains trading and investment

positions in the capital markets on its own behalf and manages

investment positions on behalf of its customers These investment

positions include derivative financial instruments The revenues

and profits Fifth Third derives from managing proprietary and

customer trading and investment positions are dependent on

market prices
If Fifth Third does not correctly anticipate

market

changes
and trends Fifth Third may experience

decline in

investment advisory revenue or investment or trading losses that

may materially affect Fifth Third Losses on behalf of its

customers could expose
Fifth Third to litigation credit risks or

loss of revenue from those customers Additionally substantial

losses in Fifth Thirds trading and investment positions could lead

to loss with respect to those investments and may adversely

affect cash flows and funding costs

The removal or reduction in stimulus activities sponsored by

the Federal Government and its agents may have negative

impact on Fifth Thirds results and operations

The Federal Government has intervened in an unprecedented

manner to stimulate economic growth Some of these activities

have included the following

Target fed funds rates which have remained close to

zero percent

Mortgage rates that have remained at historical lows in

part due to the Federal Reserve Bank of New Yorks

$1.25 trillion mortgage-backed
securities purchase

program

Bank funding that has remained stable through an

increase in FDIC deposit insurance to covered limit

of $250000 per account from the previous coverage

limit of $100000 and

Housing demand that has been stimulated by

homebuyer tax credits

The expiration or rescission of any of these programs may

have an adverse impact on Fifth Thirds operating results by

increasing interest rates increasing the cost of funding and

reducing the demand for loan products including mortgage
loans

Problems encountered by financial institutions larger than or

similar to Fifth Third could adversely affect financial

markets generally and have indirect adverse effects on Fifth

Third

The commercial soundness of many financial institutions may be

closely interrelated as result of credit trading clearing or other

relationships
between the institutions As result concerns about

or default or threatened default by one institution could lead to

significant market-wide liquidity and credit problems losses or

defaults by other institutions This is sometimes referred to as

systemic risk and may adversely affect financial intermediaries

such as clearing agencies clearing houses banks securities firms

and exchanges with which the Bancorp interacts on daily basis

and therefore could adversely affect Fifth Third

Fifth Thirds stock price
is volatile

Fifth Thirds stock price has been volatile in the past and several

factors could cause the price to fluctuate substantially in the

future These factors include

Actual or anticipated variations in earnings

Changes in analysts recommendations or projections

Fifth Thirds announcements of developments related to

its businesses

Operating and stock performance
of other companies

deemed to be peers

Actions by government regulators

New technology used or services offered by traditional

and non-traditional competitors and

News reports of trends concerns and other issues

related to the financial services industry

The price for shares of Fifth Thirds common stock may fluctuate

significantly in the future and these fluctuations may be unrelated

to Fifth Thirds performance
General market price declines or

market volatility in the future could adversely affect the price for

shares of Fifth Thirds common stock and the current market

price of such shares may not be indicative of future market prices
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RISKS RELATING TO FIFTH THIRDS GENERAL
BUSINESS

Deteriorating credit quality particularly in real estate loans
has adversely impacted Fifth Third and may continue to

adversely impact Fifth Third

Fifth Third has experienced downturn in credit performance and

credit conditions and the performance of its loan portfolio could

deteriorate in the future The downturn caused Fifth Third to

increase its ALLL driven primarily by higher allocations related to

residential
mortgage

and home
equity loans commercial real

estate loans and loans of entines related to or dependent upon the

real estate industry If the performance of Fifth Thirds loan

portfolio does not continue to improve and/or stabilize

additional increases in the ALII may be
necessary in the future

Accordingly decrease in the quality of Fifth Thirds credit

portfobo could have material adverse effect on earnings and

results of operations

Fifth Third must maintain adequate sources of funding and

liquidi

Fifth Third must maintain adequate funding sources in the normal

course of business to support its operations and fund outstanding

liabilines as well as meet regulatory expectations Fifth Thirds

ability to maintain sources of funding and liquidity could be

impacted by changes in the capital markets in which it operates

Addioonally if Fifth Third sought additional sources of capital

liquidity or funding those additional sources could ddute current

shareholders ownership interests

If Fifth Third does not adjust to rapid changes in the

financial services industry its financial performance may
suffer

Fifth Thirds abibty to deliver strong financial performance and

returns on investment to shareholders will
depend in part on its

ability to expand the scope of available financial services to meet

the needs and demands of its customers In addition to the

challenge of compeong against other banks in attracting and

retaining customers for traditional banking services Fifth Thirds

competitors also include securities dealers brokers mortgage

bankers investment advisors specialty finance and insurance

companies who seek to offer one-stop financial services that may
include services that banks have not been able or allowed to offer

to their customers in the past or may not be eurrentiy able or

allowed to offer This increasingly competitive environment is

primardy result of changes in regulation changes in technology
and product delivery systems as well as the accelerating pace of

consolidation among financial service providers

If Fifth Third is unable to grow its deposits it may be

subject to paying hijgher funding costs

The total amount that Fifth Third pays for funding costs is

dependent in part on Fifth Thirds ability to grow its deposits If

Fifth Third is unable to sufficientiy grow its deposits it may be

subject to paying higher funding costs This could matetially

adversely affect Fifth Thirds earnings and results of operations

Fifth Third ability to receive dividends from its subsidiaries

accounts for most ofits revenue and could affect its liquidity
and ability to pay dividends

Fifth Third Baneorp is separate and distinct legal entity from its

subsidiaries Fifth Third Baneorp typically receives substantially all

of its revenue from dividends from its subsidiaries These

dividends are the principal source of funds to pay dividends on

Fifth Third Baneorps stock and interest and ptineipal on its debt

Vatious federal and/or state laws and regulations as well as

regulatory expectations limit the amount of dividends that Fifth

Thirds bank and certain nonbank subsidiaries may pay Also

Fifth Third Baneorps right to participate in distribution of

assets upon subsidiarys liquidation or reorganization is subject

to the prior claims of that subsidiarys creditors Limitations on

Fifth Thirds ability to receive dividends from its subsidiaties

could have maretial adverse effect on Fifth Thirds liquidity and

ability to pay dividends on stock or interest and principal on its

debt

The financial services industry is hijhly competitive and

creates competitive pressures that could adversely affect

Fifth Thirds revenue and profitability

The financial services industry in which Fifth Third operates is

highly competitive Fifth Third
competes not only with

commercial banks but also with insurance companies mutual

funds hedge funds and other companies offeting financial

services in the U.S globally and over the internet Fifth Third

competes on the basis of several factors including capital access

to capital revenue generation products services transaction

execution innovation reputation and ptiee Over time certain

sectors of the financial services industry have become more

concentrated as institutions involved in broad
range

of financial

services have been acqnired by or merged into other firms

Recendy this trend accelerated considerably as several major U.S

financial institutions consolidated were forced to merge received

substanoal government assistance or were placed into

eonservatorship by the U.S Government These developments

could result in Fifth Thirds competitors gaining greater capital

and other resources such as broader
range of products and

services and
geographic diversity Fifth Third may experience

pricing pressures as result of these factors and as some of its

competitors seek to increase market share by reducing prices

Fifth Third and/or the holders of its securities could be

adversely affected by unfavorable ratings from rating

agencies

Fifth Thirds abibty to access the capital markets is important to

its overall funding profile This access is affected by the ratings

assigned by raong agencies to Fifth Third certain of its

subsidiaries and particular classes of securities they issue The

interest rates that Fifth Third
pays on its securities are also

influenced by among other things the credit ratings that
it its

subsidiaries and/or its securities receive from recognized rating

agencies downgrade to Fifth Third or its subsidiaties credit

rating could affect its ability to access the capital markets increase

its borrowing costs and negatively impact its profitability

ratings downgrade to Fifth Third its subsidiaries or their securities

could also create obligations or liabilities to Fifth Third under the

terms of its outstanding securities that could increase Fifth Thirds

costs or otherwise have negative effect on the Baneorps results

of operations or financial condition Additionally downgrade of

the credit rating of
any parocular security issued by Fifth Third or

its subsidiaries could negatively affect the ability of the holders of

that secutiry to sell the securities and the prices at which any such

securities may be sold On November 2010 citing their view

that the likelihood of government support in the future for larger

regional banks had declined Moodys downgraded ten large

regional banks including Fifth Thirds subsidiary hank Fifth

Third Bank Fifth Third Banks credit ratings for short-term

obligations long-term deposit and senior debt were downgraded

to P2 j3 and A3 respectively from P1 A2 and A2 respectively

During 2010 DBRS Investors Service downgraded Fifth Thirds

issuer rating to AL from and
downgraded the long term

debt rating and deposit ratings for Fifrh Thirds bank subsidiary to

from AH

24 Fifth Third Ban corp



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Fifth Third could suffer if it fails to attract and retain skilled

personneL

As Fifth Third continues to grow its success depends in large

part on its
ability to attract and retain key individuals

Competition for qualified candidates in the activities and markets

that Fifth Third serves is great and Fifth Third may not be able to

hire these candidates and retain them If Fifth Third is not able to

hire or retain these key individuals Fifth Third may be unable to

execute its business
strategies

and may suffer adverse

consequences to its business operations and financial condition

Pursuant to the standardized terms of the CPP among other

things Fifth Third has agreed to institute certain restrictions on

the compensation of certain seniot management positions which

could have an adverse effect on Fifth Thirds
ability

to hite or

retain the most qualified senior management It is possible that

the U.S Treasury may as it is permitted to do impose further

requirements on Fifth Third In June 2010 the federal lianking

agencies issued joint guidance on executive compensation

intended to ensure that bank organizations incentive

compensation policies dont encourage excessive risk taking In

addition the Dodd-Frank Act requires those agencies to adopt

guidance or rules to enhance the reporting of incentive

compensation and to prohibit certain compensation arrangements

Also in 2010 the FDIC issued
request

for comments on

whether banks with compensation plans that encourage excessive

risk taking should be charged at higher deposit assessment rates

than such banks would otherwise be charged If Fifth Third is

unable to attract and retain qualified employees or do so at rates

necessary to maintain its competitive position or if compensation

costs required to attract and retain employees become more

expensive Fifth Thirds performance including its competitive

position could be materially adversely affected

Fifth Thirds mortgage banking revenue can be volatile from

quarter to quarter

Fifth Third earns revenue from the fees it receives for originating

mortgage
loans and for servicing mortgage loans When rates rise

the demand for mortgage loans tends to fall reducing the revenue

Fifth Third receives from loan originations At the same time

revenue from MSRs can increase through increases in fair value

When rates fall mortgage originations tend to increase and the

value of MSRs tends to decline also with some offsetting revenue

effect Even though they can act as natural hedge the hedge is

not perfect either in amount or timing For example the negative

effect on revenue from decrease in the fair value of residential

MSRs is immediate but any offsetting revenue benefit from more

originations and the MSRs relating to the new loans would accrue

over time It is also possible that because of the recession and

deteriorating housing market even if interest rates were to fall

mortgage originations may also fall or any
increase in mortgage

originations may not be enough to offset the decrease in the

MSRs value caused by the lower rates

Fifth Third typically uses derivatives and other instruments to

hedge its
mortgage banking interest rate risk Fifth Third generally

does not hedge all of its risks and the fact that Fifth Third

attempts to hedge any of the risks does not mean Fifth Third will

be successful Hedging is complex process requiring

sophisticated models and constant monitoring and is not

perfect science Fifth Third may use hedging instruments tied to

U.S Treasury rates LIBOR or Eurodollars that may not perfeetiy

correlate with the value or income being hedged Fifth Third

could incur significant losses from its hedging activities There

may be periods where Fifth Third elects not to use derivatives and

other instruments to hedge mortgage banking interest rate risk

The preparation of Fifth Thirds financial statements

requires the use of estimates that may vary from actual

results

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in

conformity with U.S AAP requires management to make

significant estimates that affect the financial statements Two of

Fifth Thirds most critical estimates are the level of the ALLL and

the valuation of mortgage servicing rights Due to the uncertainty

of estimates involved Fifth Third may have to significantiy

increase the ALLL and/or sustain credit losses that are

significantly higher than the provided allowance and could

recognize significant provision for impairment of its mortgage

servicing rights If Fifth Thirds ALLL is not adequate Fifth

Thirds business financial condition including its liquidity and

capital and results of operations could be materially adversely

affected

Fifth Third regularly reviews its litigation reserves for

adequacy considering its litigation risks and probability of

incurring losses related to litigation However Fifth Third cannot

be certain that its current btigation reserves will be adequate over

time to cover its losses in litigation due to higher than anticipated

settlement costs prolonged litigation adverse judgments or other

factors that are largely outside of Fifth Thirds control If Fifth

Thirds litigation reserves are not adequate Fifth Thirds business

financial condition including its liquidity and capital and results

of operations could be materially adversely affected Additionally

in the future Fifth Third may increase its litigation reserves which

could have material adverse effect on its capital and results of

operations

Changes in accounting standards could impact Fifth Thirds

reported earnings and financial conthWon

The accounting standard setters including the FASB the SEC and

other regulatory bodies periodically change the financial

accounting and reporting standards that
govern

the preparation of

Fifth Thirds consolidated financial statements These changes can

be hard to predict and can materially impact how Fifth Third

records and reports its financial condition and results of

operations In some eases Fifth Third could be required to apply

new or revised standard retroactively which would result in the

recasting of Fifth Thirds prior period financial statements

Future acquisitions may dilute current shareholders

ownershi of Fifth Third and may cause Fifth Third to

become more susceptible to adverse economic events

Future business acquisitions could be material to Fifth Third and

it may issue additional shares of stock to pay for those

acquisitions which would dilute current shareholders ownership

interests Acquisitions also could require Fifth Third to use

substantial cash or other liquid assets or to incur debt In those

events Fifth Third could become more susceptible to economic

downturns and competitive pressures

Difficulties in combining the operations of acquired entities

with Fifth Thirds own operations may prevent Fifth Third

from achieving the expected benefits from its acquisitions

Inherent uncertainties exist when integrating the
operations

of an

acquired entity Fifth Third may not be able to fully
achieve its

strategic objectives and planned operating efficiencies in an

acquisition In addition the markets and industries in which Fifth

Third and its potential acquisition targets operate are highly

competitive
Fifth Third may lose customers or the customers of

acquired entities as result of an acquisition Future
acquisition

and integration activities may require Fifth Third to devote

substantial time and resources and as result Fifth Third may not

be able to pursue other business opportunities

After completing an acquisition Fifth Third may find certain

items are tiot accounted for properly in accordance with financial
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accounting and
reporting

standards Fifth Third may also not

realize the expected benefits of the acquisition due to lower

financial results pertaining to the acquired entity For example

Fifth Third could experience higher charge offs than originally

anticipated related to the acquired loan portfolio

Fifth Third may sell or consider selling one or more of its

businesses Should it determine to sell such business it

may not be able to generate gains on sale or related increase

in shareholders equity commensurate with desirable levels

Moreover if Fifth Third sold such businesses the loss of

income could have an adverse effect on its earnings and

future growth

Fifth Third owns several non_strategic businesses that are not

significantly synergistic with its core financial services businesses

Fifth Third has from time to time considered the sale of such

businesses If it were to determine to sell such businesses Fifth

Third would be subject to market forces that may make

completion of sale unsuccessful or may not be able to do so

within desirable time frame If Fifth Third were to complete the

sale of non-core businesses it would suffer the loss of income

from the sold businesses and such loss of income could have an

adverse effect on its future earnings and growth

Material breaches in security of Fifth Thirds systems may
have significant effect on Fifth Thirds business

Fifth Third collects processes and stores sensitive consumer data

by utilizing computer systems and telecommunications networks

operated by both Fifth Third and third party service providers

Fifth Third has security backup and recovery systems in place as

well as business continuity plan to ensure the
system

will not be

inoperable Fifth Third also has security to prevent unauthorized

access to the system In addition Fifth Third requires its third

party
service providers to maintain similar controls However

Fifth Third cannot be certain that the measures will be successful

security breach in the system and loss of confidential

information such as credit card numbers and related information

could result in losing the customers confidence and thus the loss

of their business as well as additional significant costs for privacy

monitoring activities

Fifth Third is exposed to operational and repurational risk

Fifth Third is exposed to many types of operational risk including

reputational risk legal and compliance risk environmental risks

from its properties the risk of fraud or theft by employees

customers or outsiders unauthorized transactions by employees

operaong system disruptions or operational errors

Negative public opinion can result from Fifth Thirds actual

or alleged conduct in activities such as lending practices data

security corporate governance
and acquisitions and may damage

Fifth Thirds reputation Negative public opinion has been

observed in relation to banks participating in the U.S Treasurys

TARP program in which Fifth Third was participant

Additionally actions taken by government regulators and

community organizations may also damage Fifth Thirds

reputation This negative public opinion can adversely affect Fifth

Thirds
ability to attract and keep customers and can expose

it to

litigation and regulatory action

Fifth Thirds necessary dependence upon automated systems

to record and process its transaction volume poses the risk that

technical system flaws or employee errors tampering or

manipulation of those systems will result in losses and may be

difficult to detect Fifth Third may also be subject to disruptions

of its operating systems arising from events that are beyond its

control for example computer viruses or electrical or

telecommunications outages Fifth Third is further exposed to

the risk that its third party service providers may be unable to

fulfill their contractual obligations or will be subject to the samc

risk of fraud or operational errors as Fifth Third These

disruptions may interfere with service to Fifth Thirds customers

and result in financial loss or liability

The inability of FTPS to succeed as stand-alone entity

could have negative impact on Fifth Thirds operating

results and financial condition

During the second quarter of 2009 Fifth Third sold an

approximate 51 interest in FTPS to Advent International Prior

to the sale FTPS relied on Fifth Third to support its operating

and administrative functions Fifth Third has entered into

agreements to provide FTPS certain services during the

deconversion period Fifth Thirds operating results may suffer if

the cost of providing these services exceeds the amount received

from FTPS As part of the sale FTPS also assumed loans owed

Fifth Third Repayment of these loans is contingent on future

cash flows and profitability at FTPS
In connection with the sale Fifth Third provided Advent

International with certain put rights that are exercisable in the

event of three unlikely circumstances Based on Fifth Thirds

current ownership share in FTPS of approximately 49/o FTPS is

accounted for under the equity method and is not consolidated

The exercise of the put rights would result in FTPS becoming

wholly owned subsidiary of Fifth Third As result FTPS would

be consolidated and would subject Fifth Third to the risks

inherent in integrating business Additionally such change in

the
accounting treatment for FTPS may adversely impact Fifth

Thirds capital

Weather related events or other natural disasters may have

an effect on the performance of Fifth Thirds loan portfolios

especially in its coastal markets thereby adversely impacting

its results of operations

Fifth Thirds footprint stretches from the upper Midwestern to

lower Southeastern regions of the United States This area has

experienced weather events including hurricanes and other natural

disasters The nature and level of these events and the
impact

of

global climate change upon their frequency and severity cannot be

predicted If large scale events occur they may significantly impact

its loan portfolios by damaging properties pledged as collateral as

well as impairing its borrowers
ability

to repay their loans

RISKS RELATED TO THE LEGAL AND REGULATORY
ENVIRONMENT

As regulated entity Fifth Third must maintain certain

capital requirements that may limit its operations and

potential growth

Fifth Third is bank holding company and financial holding

company As such Fifth Third is subject to the comprehensive

consolidated supervision and regulation of the FRB including

risk-based and leverage capital requirements Fifth Third must

maintain certain risk-based and leverage capital ratios as required

by its banking regulators and which can change depending upon

general economic conditions and Fifth Thirds particular

condition risk profile and growth plans Compliance with the

capital requirements including leverage ratios may limit

operations that require the intensive use of capital and could

adversely affect Fifth Thirds ability to expand or maintain present

business levels

Fifth Thirds subsidiary bank must remain well-capitalized

well-managed and maintain at least Satisfactory CRA rating

for Fifth Third to retain its status as financial holding company
Failure to meet these requirements could result in the FRB placing

limitations or conditions on Fifth Thirds activities and the

commencement of new activities and could ultimately result in
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the loss of financial holding company status In addition failure

by Fifth Thitds hank subsidiary to meet applicable capital

guidelines could subject the bank to variety
of enfotcement

temedies avadable to the federal regulatory authorities These

include limitations on the
ability

to pay dividends the issuance by

the regulatory authority of capital directive to increase capital

and the termination of deposit insurance by the FDIC

Fifth Thirds business financial condition and results of

operations could be adversely affected by new or changed

regulations and by the manner in which such regulations are

applied by regulatory authorities

Current economic conditions particularly
in the financial markets

have resulted in government regulatory agencies placing increased

focus on and scrutiny of the financial services industry The U.S

Government has intervened on an unprecedented scale

responding to what has been commonly referred to as the

financial crisis In addition to the Bancorps participation
in U.S

Treasurys CPP and Capital Assistance Program the U.S

Government has taken steps
that include enhancing the liquidity

support available to financial institutions establishing

commercial paper funding facility temporarily guaranteeing

money market funds and certain types
of debt issuanees and

increasing insured deposits These programs subject the Baneorp

and other financial institutions who have participated in these

programs to additional restrictions oversight and/or costs that

may have an impact on the Bancorps business financial

condition results of operations or the price of its common stock

Compliance with such regulation and scrutiny may

significantly increase the Bancorps costs impede the efficiency of

its internal business processes require it to increase its regulatory

capital and limit its ability to pursue
business opportunities

in an

efficient manner The Baneorp also may be required to pay

signifieantiy higher FDIC premiums because market

developments have significantly depleted the insurance fund of

the FDIC and reduced the ratio of reserves to insured deposits

The increased costs associated with anticipated regulatory
and

political scrutiny could adversely impact the Bancorps results of

operations

New proposals for legislation continue to be introduced in

the U.S Congress that could further substantially increase

regulation of the financial services industry The Bancorp cannot

predict whether any pending or future legislation will be adopted

or the substance and impact of any such new legislation on the

Bancorp Additional regulation could affect the Baneorp in

substantial way and could have an adverse effect on its business

financial condition and results of operations

Fifth Third is subject to various regulatory requirements that

limit its operations and potential growth

Under federal and state laws and regulations pertaining to the

safety and soundness of insured depository institutions and their

holding companies the FRB and the Ohio Division of Financial

Institutions have the authority to compel or resttiet certain actions

by Fifth Third and its subsidiary bank Fifth Third and its

subsidiary bank are subject to such supervisory authotity and

more generally must in certain instances obtain prior regulatory

approval before engaging
in certain activities or corporate

decisions There can be no assurance that such approvals if

required
would be forthcoming or that such approvals would be

granted in timely manner Failure to receive any such approval if

required could limit or impair Fifth Thirds operations
restrict its

growth and/or affect its dividend policy
Such actions and

activities subject to ptior approval include but are nor limited to

increasing dividends paid by Fifth Third or its subsidiary bank

purchasing or redeeming any shares of its stock entering into

merger or acquisition transaction acquiring or establishing new

branches and entering into new businesses

In addition Fifth Third as well as other financial institutions

more generally have recently been subjected to increased scrutiny

from regulatory aurhotioes stemming from broader systemic

regulatory concerns including with respect to stress testing

capital levels asset quality provisioning and other prudential

matters arising as result of the recent financial ensis and efforts

to ensure that financial institutions take steps to improve their risk

management and prevent
future crises

In some cases regulatory agencies may take supervisory

actions that are considered to be confidential supervisory

information which may not be publicly disclosed Finally as part

of Fifth Thirds regular examination process
Fifth Thirds and its

subsidiary banks respective regulators may advise it and its

subsidiary bank to operate under vanous restrictions as

prudential matter Such supervisory actions or restrictions if and

in whatever manner imposed could have material adverse effect

on Fifth Thirds business and results of operations

Fifth Third and/or its affiliates are or may become involved

from time to time in information-gathering requests

investirations and proceedings by government and self

regula tory agencies which may lead to adverse

consequences

Fifth Third and/or irs affiliates are or may become involved from

time to time in information-gathering requests reviews

investigations and proceedings both formal and informal by

government
and self-regulatory agencies including the SEC

regarding their respective businesses Such matters may result in

material adverse consequences including without limitation

adverse judgments settlements fines penalties injunctions or

other actions amendments and/or restatements of Fifth Thirds

SEC
filings and/or financial statements as applicable and/or

determinations of material weaknesses in its disclosure controls

and procedures The SEC is investigating
and has made several

requests
for information including by subpoena concerning

issues which Fifth Third understands relate to accounting
and

reporting matters involving certain of its commercial loans This

could lead to an enforcement proceeding by the SEC which in

turn may result in one or more such material adverse

consequences

Deposit insurance premiums levied against Fifth Third may
increase if the number of bank failures do not subside or the

cost of resolving failed banks increases

The FDIC maintains DIF to resolve the cost of bank failures

The DIF is funded by fees assessed on insured depository

institutions including Fifth Third The magnitude and cost of

resolving an increased number of bank failures have reduced the

DIF In 2009 the FDIC collected special assessment to

replenish the DIF In addition prepayment of an estimated

amount of future deposit insurance premiums was made on

December 30 2009 Future deposit premiums paid by Fifth Third

depend on the level of the DIF and the magnitude
and cost of

future bank failures

Legislative or regulatory compliance changes or actions or

s%nificant litig-a don could adversely impact the Bancorp or

the businesses in which the Bancorp is engaged

The Baneorp is subject to extensive state and federal regulation

supervision and legislation that govern almost all aspects of its

operations and limit the businesses in which the Baneorp may

engage
These laws and regulations may change ftom rime to time

and are primarily
intended for the protection

of consumers

depositors and the deposit insurance funds The impact of any

changes to laws and regulations or other actions by regulatory

agencies may negatively impact the Bancorp or its ability to
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increase the value of its business Additionally actions by

regulatory agencies or significant litigation against the Baneorp

could cause it to devote significant rime and resources to

defending itself and may lead to penalties that materially affect the

Baneorp and its shareholders Future changes in the laws

including tax laws or as participant in the CPP under the

EESA the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder or the

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 or regulations

or their interpretations or enforcement may also be materially

adverse to the Baneorp and its shareholders or may require the

Bancorp to expend significant time and resources to comply with

such requirements

On July 21 2010 the President of the United States signed

into law the Dodd-Frank Act The Dodd-Frank Act will have

material implications for Fifth Third and the entire financial

services industry Among other things it wdl or potentially could

Result in Fifth Third being subject to enhanced oversight

and scrutiny as result of being bank holding company
with $50 billion or more in consolidated assets

Result in the appointment of the FDIC as receiver of Fifth

Third in an orderly liquidation proceeding if the Secretary

of the U.S Treasury upon recommendation of two-thirds

of the FRB and the FDIC and in consultation with the

President of the United States finds Fifth Third to be in

default or danger of default

Affect the levels of capital and liquidity with which Fifth

Third must operate and how it plans capital and liquidity

levels including phased-in elimination of Fifth Thirds

existing trust preferred securities as Tier capital

Subject Fifth Third to new and/or higher fees paid to

various regulatory entities including but not limited to

deposit insurance fees to the FDIC

Impact Fifth Thirds ability to invest in certain types of

ennties or engage in certain activities

Impact number of Fifth Thirds business and risk

management strategies

Restrict the revenue that Fifth Third
generates from

certain businesses including interchange fee revenue

generated by Fifth Thirds credit card business

Subject Fifth Third to new Consumer Financial

Protection Bureau which will have very broad rule-making

and enforcement authorities and

Subject Fifth Third to oversight and regulation by new

and different litigation and regulatory regime

As the Dodd-Frank Act requires that many studies be conducted

and that hundreds of regulations be written in order to fully

implement it the full impact of this legislation on Fifth Third its

business strategies and financial performance cannot be known at

this time and may nor be known for number of years However

these impacts are expected to be substantial and some of them are

likely to adversely affect Fifth Third and its financial performance

The extent to which Fifth Third can adjust its strategies to offset

such adverse impacts also is not known at this time

Fifth Third and other financial institutions have been the

subject of increased liti-a don which could result in legal

liability and damage to its reputation

Fifth Third and certain of its directors and officers have been

named from time to time as defendants in various class actions

and other litigation relating to Fifth Thirds business and activities

Past present and future litigation have included or could include

claims for substantial
compensatory and/or punitive damages or

claims for indeterminate amounts of damages Fifth Third is also

involved ftom time to time in other reviews investigations and

proceedings both formal and informal by governmental and self-

regulatory agencies regarding its business These matters also

could result in adverse judgments settlements fines penalties

injunctions or other relief Like other large financial institutions

and companies Fifth Third is also subject to risk from potential

employee misconduct including non-compliance with policies and

improper use or disclosure of confidential information

Substantial legal liability or significant regulatory action against

Fifth Third could materially adversely affect its business financial

condition or results of
operations and/or cause significant

reputanonal harm to its business

Fifth Thirds ability to pay or increase dividends on its

common stock or to repurchase its capital stock is restricted

Fifth Thirds ability to pay dividends or repurchase stock is subject

tti regulatory requirements
and the need to meet regulatory

expectations
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME ANALYSIS

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the interest earned on debt securines loans

and leases including yield-related fees and other interest-earning

assets less the interest paid for core deposits includes transaction

deposits and other time deposits and wholesale funding includes

certificates $100000 and over other deposits federal funds

purchased short-term borrowings and long-term debt The net

interest margin is calculated by dividing net interest income by

average interest-earning assets Net interest tate spread is the

difference between the
average tate earned on interest-earning

assets and the average rate paid on interest-bearing iabtbties Net

interest margin is typically greater than net interest rate spread due

to the interest income earned on those assets that are funded by

non-interest-bearing babilioes or free-funding such as demand

deposits or shareholders equity

Table presents the components of net interest income net

interest margin and net interest spread for 2010 2009 and 2008

Nonaccrual loans and leases and loans held for sale have been

included in the
average

loan and lease balances Average

outstanding securities balances ate based on amortized cost with

any
unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities

included in other assets Table provides the relative impact of

changes in the balance sheet and changes in interest rates on net

interest income

Net interest income was $3.6 biffion for the year ended

December 31 2010 compared to $3.4 billion in 2009 Net interest

income was affected by the amortization and accretion of

premiums and discounts on acquired loans and deposits primarily

from the acquisition of First Charter that increased net interest

income by $68 miffion during 2010 compared to an increase of

$136 million during 2009 Excluding this impact net interest

income increased $317 miffion or 1O% in 2010 compared to

2009 The purchase accounting accretion reflects the high

discount rate in the market at the time of the acquisinon the total

loan discounts are being aecteted into net interest income over the

remaining period to maturity of the loans acquired Based upon

the remaining period to maturity and excluding the impact of

prepayments the Bancorp anticipates recognizing approximately

$41 million in additional net interest income during 2011 as

result of the amortization and acerenon of premiums and

discounts on acquired loans and deposits

For the year ended December 31 2010 net interest income

was positively impacted by decrease of $5.6 billion in average

interest-bearing liabilities as well as mix shift to lower cost core

deposits from 2009 This was primarily result of runoff of higher

priced term deposits as well as the benefit of lower rates offered

TABLE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the years ended December 31 in miffions except per share data

Interest income VFE
Interest expense

Net interest income ETE
Provision fnr loan and lease losses

Net interest income loss after provision fot loan and lease losses FTE
Noninterest income

Noninterest expense

Income loss before income taxes and eumulanve effect FTE
Fully taxable equivalent adjustment

Applicable income tax expense benefit

Income loss before eumulaove effect

Cumulative effect of change in aeeounnng prineinle net of tax

Net income loss

Less Net income attributable to noneontrolling interest

Net income loss atttibutable to Baneorp

Dividends on preferred stock

Net income loss available to common shareholders

Earnings per share

Earnings per diluted share

Cash dividends declared per common share

on new term deposits In addition 2010 benefitted from $3.2

billion increase in the free funding position
This benefit was

partially offset by $2.6 billion decrease in average interest

earning assets from 2009 The shifr in funding posinon as well as

improved pricing on commercial loans led to 39 lip increase in

the net interest rate spread to 3395/ in 2010 compared to 2009

Net interest margin was 3.665/s in 2010 compared to 3.325/s

in 2009 For 2010 and 2009 the aecrenon of the discounts on

acquired loans and deposits increased the net interest margin by

bp and 14 bp respectively Excluding the accretion of discounts

on acquired loans and deposits net interest margin was up 41 bp

from 2009 driven by improved ptiesng on new commercial loan

originations the shifr in funding eomposinon to lower cost core

deposits an increase in free-funding balances and decrease in

the average rates paid on interest bearing liabilities

Average interest-earning assets decreased three percent from

2009 Average commercial loans decreased $3.9 billion due to

decreases across all commercial loan categories
and average

consumer loans decreased $239 million due primarily to decreases

in average residential mortgage
home equity and other consumer

loans and leases partially offset by an increase in average

automobile loans In addition average
investment securities

decreased $729 miffion or four percent compared to 2009 The

declines in average loans and investment securities were partially

offset by $2.3 billion increase in average
other short-term

investments which includes interest bearing cash held at the

Federal Reserve For further discussion on the Baneorps loan and

lease and investment seeurioes portfolios see the Loan and Lease

and Investment Securities sections respectively of MDA
Interest income from loans and leases decreased $112 million

compared to 2009 Excluding the accretion of discounts on

acquired loans in 2010 and 2009 interest income from loans and

leases decreased $46 milbon or one percent compared to the

prior year The year-over-year
decrease in interest income from

loans and leases is result of five percent
decline in

average

balances partially offset by an 11 bp increase in the average yield

Interest income from investment securities decreased nine percent

compared to 2009 due to 68 lip decrease in the \veighted

average yield and four
percent

decline in average balances

Average interest-bearing core deposits increased $4.0 billion

or eight percent compared to 2009 primarily due to increased

interest checking savings money market and foreign office

deposits partially offset by decline in other time deposits The

cost of interest-bearing core deposits was 0.83% in 2010

decrease of 45 lip from 2009 The decrease is result of mix

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

$4507 4687 5630 6051 5981

885 1314 2094 3018 3il82

3622 3373 3536 3033 2899

1538 3543 4560 628 343

2084 170 1024 2405 2556

2729 4782 2946 2467 2012

3855 3826 4564 3311 2915

958 786 2642 1561 1653

18 19 22 24 26

187 30 551 461 443

753 737 2113 1076 1184

753 737 2113 1076 1188

753 737 2113 1076 1188

250 226 67

$503 511 2180 1075 1188

$0.63 0.73 3.91 1.99 2.13

0.63 0.67 3.91 1.98 2.12

0.04 0.04 0.75 1.70 1.58
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shift to lower cost core deposits and decrease in rates on average

time deposits of 71 bp compared to 2009

Interest
expense on wholesale funding decreased 35/s

compared to the prior year due to 34% decrease in average

balances and 45 bp decrease in average rates In 2010 wholesale

funding represented 25% of interest-bearing liabilities
down from

35% in 2009 Impacting this change was decrease of $4.8 billion

in average other short term borrowings due to the repayment of

Term Auction Facility funds and FHLB advances which had an

average balance of $3.7 billion and $1.2 billion respectively in

2009 in addition average certificates of deposit over $100000

decreased $4.3 biffion from 2009 due to maturities throughout

2010 The decreased reliance on wholesale funding in 2010 was

result of the growth of core deposits and decline in average

interest earning assets For more information on the Bancorps

interest rate risk management including estimated earnings

sensitivity to changes in market interest rates see the Market Risk

Management section of MDA

TABLE CONSOLIDATED AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS AND ANALYSIS OF NET INTEREST INCOME

For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Average Revenue Average Average Revenue/ Average Average Revenue/ Average

in millions Balance Cost Yield/Rate Balance Cost Yield/Rate Balance Cost Yield/Rate

Assets

1nterestearning assets

Loans and leases

Commercial and industrial loans $26334 $1238 4.70% $27556 $1162 4.22 S28426 51520 5.35 0/

Commercial mortgage 11585 476 4.11 12511 545 4.35 12776 866 6.78

Commercial construction 3066 93 3.01 4638 134 2.90 5846 342 5.85

Commercial leases 3343 147 4.40 3543 150 4.24 3680 18 0.49

Subtotal commercial 44328 1954 4.41 48248 1991 4.13 50728 2746 5.41

Residential mortgage 9868 478 4.84 10886 602 5.53 10993 705 6.41

Home equity 11996 479 4.00 12534 520 4.15 12269 701 5.71

Automobile loans 10427 608 5.83 8807 556 6.31 8925 566 6.34

Credit card 1870 201 10.73 1907 193 10.10 1708 167 9.77

Other consumer loans and leases 743 116 15.58 1009 86 8.49 1212 64 5.28

Subtotal consumer 34904 1882 5.39 35143 1957 5.57 35107 2203 6.27

Total loans and leases 79232 3836 4.84 83391 3948 4.73 85835 4949 5.77

Securities

Taxable 16054 650 4.05 16861 721 4.28 13082 643 4.91

Exempt from income taxes 317 13 3.92 239 17 7.19 342 25 7.35

Other_short-term_investments 3328 0.25 1035 0.14 621 13 2.15

Total interest-earning assets 98931 4507 4.56 101526 4687 4.62 99880 5630 5.64

Cash and due from banks 2245 2329 2490

Other assets 14841 14266 13411

Allowance for loan and lease losses 3583 3265 1485
Total assets $112434 $114856 $114296

Liabilities and Equity

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing core deposits

Interest checking $18218 $52 0.29% $15070 $40 0.26 0/0 $14191 $128 0.91

Savings 19612 107 0.55 16875 127 0.75 16192 224 1.38

Moncymarket 4808 19 0.40 4320 26 0.60 6127 118 1.92

Foreign office deposits 3355 12 0.35 2108 10 0.45 2153 34 1.60

Other time deposits 10526 276 2.62 14103 470 3.33 11135 411 3.69

Total interest-beating core deposits 56519 466 0.83 52476 673 1.28 49798 915 1.84

Certificates $100000 and over 6083 125 2.06 10367 280 2.70 9531 324 3.40

Other foreign office deposits 0.13 157 0.20 2067 50 2.42

Federal funds purchased 291 0.17 517 0.20 2975 70 2.34

Other short-term borrowings 1635 0.21 6463 42 0.64 7785 178 2.29

Long-term debt 10902 290 2.65 11035 318 2.89 13903 557 4.01

Total interest-beating liabilities 75436 885 1.17 81015 1314 1.62 86059 2094 2.43

Demand deposits 19669 16862 14017
Other liabilities 3580 3926 4182

Total liabilities 98685 101803 104258

Equity 13749 13053 10038

Total liabilities and equity $112434 $114856 $114296

Net interest income $3622 $3373 $3536

Net interest margin 3.66 3.32 I/o 3.54 I/o

Net interest rate spread 3.39 3.00 3.21

Interest-bearing liabilities to interest-earning assets 76.25 79.80 86.16

The HE
adjustments

included in the above table are $1 819 and 822 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 reipectively
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Provision for Loan and Lease Losses

The Baneorp provides as an expense an amount for probable loan

and lease losses within the loan and lease portfolio that is based

on factors previously discussed in the Critical Accounting Policies

section The provision
is recorded to bring the ALLL to level

deemed appropriate by the Bancorp to cover losses inherent in

the portfolio
Actual credit losses on loans and leases are charged

against the ALLL The amount of loans actually removed from

the Consolidated Balance Sheets is referred to as charge-offs Net

charge-offs include current period charge-offs less recoveries on

previously charged-off loans and leases

The provision for loan and lease losses decreased to $1.5

billion in 2010 compared to $3.5 billion in 2009 The decrease in

provision expense
from the prior year was due to decreases in

nonperforming assets and delinquencies in commercial and

consumer loans In addition to these trends signs of moderation

in general economic conditions during 2010 further contributed to

decrease in expected loss rates As of December 31 2010 the

ALLL as percent
of loans and leases decreased to 3.88% from

4.88% at December 31 2009

Refer to the Credit Risk Management section for more

detailed information on the provision for loan and lease losses

including an analysis of the loan portfolio composition non-

performing assets net charge-offs and other factors considered

by the Baneorp in assessing the credit quality
of the loan portfolio

and the ALLL

TABLE CHANGES IN NET INTEREST INCOME ATTRIBUTED TO VOLUME AND YIELD/RATE

For the
years

ended December 31 2010 Compared io 2009 2009 Compared to 2008

in millions
Volume Yield/Raie Total Volume Yield/Rate Total

Assets

Increase decrease in interest income

Loaos and leases

Commercial and indosttial loans $53 129 76 $45 313 358

Commercial mortgage 39 30 69 17 304 321

Commercial construction 46 41 60 148 208

Commercial leases
133 132

Subtotal commercial 146 109 37 123 632 755

Residential mortgage 53 71 124 96 103

Home equity 22 19 41 15 196 181

Automobile loans 97 45 52 10

Credit card 12 20 26

Other consumer loans and leases 27 57 30 12 34 22

Subtotal consumer 66 75 255 246

Total loans and leases 155 43 112 114 887 1001

Seeurines

Taxable 34 37 71 169 91 78

Exempt from income taxes 10
Other short-term investments 17

Total interest-earning assets 178 180 53 996 943

Cash and due from banks

Other assets

Allowance for loan and lease losses

Total change in interest income $178 180 $53 996 943

Liabilities and Equity

Increase decrease in interest expense

Interest-bearing core deposits

Interest checking $8 12 $8 96 88

Savings
18 38 20 106 97

Money market 28 64 92

Foreign office deposits
23 24

Other time deposits 105 89 194 102 43 59

Total interest-beating core deposits 73 134 207 90 332 242

Certificates $100000 and over 98 57 155 27 71 44

Other foreign office deposits
25 25 50

Federal funds purchased
33 36 69

Other short-term borrowings 21 18 39 26 110 136

Long-term debt 25 28 101 138

Total interest-beating babilities 195 234 429 68 712 780

Demand deposits

Other babibties

Total change in interest expense 195 234 429 68 712 780

Equity

Total babibties and equity

Total change in net interest income $17 232 249 $121 284 163

Changes in interest nst ss/e/y
due ts rs/ume srjield/rate are al/seated in prspsmsn ts the absslate amsunt sf change in rs/ame srjield/

rate
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TABLE NONINTEREST INCOME
For the

years ended December 31 in millions 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Mortgage banking net revenue $647 553 199 133 155

Service charges on deposits 574 632 641 579 517

Corporate banking revenue 364 372 431 367 318

Investment advisory rcvenue 361 326 366 382 367

Card and processing revenue 316 615 912 826 717

Gain on sale of
processing business 1758

Other noninterest income 406 479 363 153 299

Securities gains losses net 47 10 86 21 364
Securities

gains net non-qualifying hedges on mortgage servicing rights 14 57 120

Total noninrerest income $2729 4782 2946 2467 2012

Nonin wrest Income

Total noninterest income decreased $2.1 billion or 435/a in 2010

compared to 2009 due primarily to the Processing Business Sale

in the second
quarter of 2009 as well as decreases in service

charges on deposits corporate banking revenue and card and

processing revenue partially offset by strong growth in mortgage

banking net revenue and investment advisory revenue The

components of noninterest income are shown in Table

Mortgage banking net revenue increased to $647 million in

2010 from $553 million in 2009 The components of
mortgage

banking net revenue for the years ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 are shown in Table

TABLE COMPONENTS OF MORTGAGE BANKING NET
REVENUE
For the years ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Onginanon fees and gains on loan sales $490 485 260

Servicing revenoe

Servicing fees 221 197 164

Servicing tights amortization 137 146 107
Net valuauon adjustments on servicing

rights and free-standing derivatives

entered into to economically hedge

MSR 73 17 118
Net servicing revenue expense 157 68 61
Mortgage lianking net revenue $647 553 199

Origination fees and gains on loan sales increased $5 million

compared to 2009 as higher margins on loans sold were largely

offset by decline in mortgage originations due to the homebuyer
tax credit expiring in the second quarter of 2010 as well as tighter

underwriting standards and declining home values Mortgage

originations were $20.3 billion in 2010 compared to $21.7 billion

in 2009

Mortgage net servicing revenue increased $89 million

compared to 2009 Net servicing revenue is comprised of gross

servicing fees and related servicing rights amortization as well as

valuation adjustments on mortgage servicing rights and mark-to-

market adjustments on both settied and outstanding free-standing

derivative financial instruments The increase in net servicing

revenue was driven by an increase of $24 million in servicing fees

due to an increase in residential mortgage loans serviced and $9

million decrease in servicing rights amortization due to decline

in prepayments The Baneorps total residential mortgage loans

serviced at December 31 2010 and 2009 was $63.2 billion and

$58.5 billion respectively with $54.2 billion and $48.6 billion

respectively of residential mortgage loans serviced ftr others

Also impacting the increase in net servicing revenue were

improvements in net valuation adjustments on MSRs and MSR
derivatives as gains on the

Baneorps free-standing MSR
derivatives exceeded impairment losses recorded against the

hedged MSRs This was result of widening spread between

swap rates and primary and secondary market mortgage rates as

swap rates declined more than primary and secondary market

mortgage rates over the year as well as positive carry
in the net

MSR hedge posinon These factors led to net gain of $73 million

on the net valuation adjustments on MSRs compared to net

gain of $17 miffion in 2009

Servicing rights are deemed temporarily impaired when

borrowers loan rate is distinctly higher than prevailing rates

Temporarv impairment on servicing rights is reversed when the

prevailing rates return to level commensurate with the

borrowers loan rate Further information on the valuation of

MSRs can be found in Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements The Baneorp maintains non-qualifying

hedging strategy to manage portion of the risk associated with

changes in the valuation on the MSR portfolio See Note 14 of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information

on the free-standing derivatives used to hedge the MSR portfolio

The Baneorp recognized gain from MSR derivatives of

$109 million offset by temporary impairment of $36 million

resulting in net gain of $73 million for the year ended December

31 2010 For the year ended December 31 2009 the Baneorp

recognized gain from MSR derivatives of $41 million offset by

temporary impairment of $24 million resulting in net gain of

$17 million In addition to the denvative positions used to

economically hedge the MSR portfolio the Bancorp acquires

various secunties as component of its non-qualifying hedging

strategy gain on these non-qualifying hedges on mortgage

servicing rights of $14 million and $57 million in 2010 and 2009

respectively was included in noninterest income within the

Consolidated Statements of Income but is shown
separate from

mortgage banking net revenue

Service charges on deposits decreased $58 million or nine

percent to $574 million in 2010 compared to 2009 Consumer

deposit revenue decreased $56 million from 2009 as the impact of

Regulation and new overdraft policies resulted in decrease in

overdraft occurrences Regulation is Federal Reserve Board

rule that prohibits financial institutions from charging customers

fees for paying overdrafrs on ATMs and one-time debit card

transactions unless customer consents to the overdraft service

for those types of transactions Regulation became effective on

July 2010 for new accounts and August 15 2010 for existing

accounts

Commercial deposit revenue was fiat compared to 2009 as

two percent increase in service fees for treasury management
services was largely offset by an increase in earnings credits paid

on customer balances Commercial customers receive earnings

credits to offset the fees charged for
banking services on their

deposit accounts such as account maintenance lockbox ACH
transactions wire transfers and other ancillary corporate treasury

management services Earning credits are based on the customers

average balance in qualifying deposits multiplied by the crediting

rate Qualifying deposits include demand deposits and interest-

bearing checking accounts The Bancorp has standard crediting

rate that is adjusted as necessary based on competitive market

conditions and changes in short-term interest rates
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Corporate banking revenue decreased $8 million or two

percent
in 2010 largely due to decreases in international income

and lease remarketing fees partially
offset by growth in

syndication and business lending fees Foreign exchange derivative

income of $63 million decreased l7% driven by volume declines

Loan syndication fees were $28 million in 2010 compared to $8

mdlion in 2009

Investment advisory revenue increased $35 million or ll%

from 2009 as the result of improved market performance and

sales production
that drove an increase in brokerage activity and

assets under care Brokerage fee income which includes Fifth

Third Securities income increased $23 million in 2010 as investors

migrated balances to stock and bond funds due to improved

market performance which increased commission-based

transactions As of December 31 2010 the Bancorp had $266

billion in assets under care and managed $25 bdlion in assets for

individuals corporations
and not-for-profit organizanons

On June 30 2009 the Bancorp completed the sale of

majority interest in its merchant acquiring and financial

institutions processing businesses The Processing Business Sale

generated pre-tax gain of $1.8 billion $1.1 billion after-tax As

part
of the transaction the Bancorp retained certain debit and

credit card interchange revenue and sold the financial institutions

anil merchant processing portions of the business which

historically comptised approximately 7O% of total card and

processing revenue As result of the sale card and processing

revenue decreased $299 million or 49% compared to 2009 Card

issuer interchange which was retained by the Bancorp increased

eight percent to $284 million compared to 2009 due to strong

growth in debit and credit card transaction volumes

Other noninrerest income decreased $73 million in 2010

compared to 2009 The components of other noninterest income

are shown in Table The decrease was primarily due $244

million gain relating to the sale of the Bancorps Visa Inc Class

shares in 2009 and $27 miffion decrease in revenue in 2010

related to the TSA entered into as part
of the Processing

Business

Sale partially offset by an increase of $196 million in BOLl

income The year ended December 31 2010 includes $152

million litigation settlement related to one of the Bancorps BOLl

policies
while 2009 includes $53 million in charges to record

reserve in connection with the intent to surrender one of the

Bancorps BOLl policies as well as losses related to market value

declines

Net securities gains totaled $47 million in 2010 compared to

$10 million of net securities losses during 2009

Noninterest Expense

Total noninrerest expense remained relatively flat in 2010

compared to 2009 as increases in salaries wages
and incentives

and the expense
for representation and warranties were largely

offset by decrease in the provision
for unfunded commitments

and letters of credit lower FDIC insurance and other taxes and

decrease in card and processing expense
The components

of

noninterest expense are shown in Table 10 Noninterest expense

in 2010 included $49 million of expenses related to the TSA and

$25 miffion in legal fees associated with the settiement of claims

TABLE COMPONENTS OF OTHER NONINTEREST

INCOME
For the years ended December 31

in millions
2010 2009 2008

BOLT income loss
194 156

Operating lease income 62 59 47

Gain loss on loan sales 51 38 11

TSA revenue 49 76

Insurance income 38 47 36

Cardholder fees
36 48 58

Consumer loan and lease fees 32 43 51

Banking center income 22 22 31

Loss on sale of OREO 78 70 60
Gain on sale/redempoon of Visa

Inc ownership interests 244 273

Litigation settlement 76

Other net 26 18

Total other noninterest income $406 $479 363

with the insurance carrier on one of the Bancorps BOLl policies

Noninterest expense
in 2009 included $76 million of expense

related to the TSA and $55 million FDIC special assessment

charge partially offset by $73 miffion reduction in the Visa

litigation reserve

Total personnel costs salaries wages and incentives plus

employee benefits increased $94 million or six percent in 2010

compared to 2009 due ptimarily to increased base variable and

incentive compensation partially offset by lower deferred

compensation
Base and incentive compensation increased due

primarily to investments in the sales force and expanded banking

center hours during 2010 As of December 31 2010 the Baneorp

employed 21613 employees
of which 6742 were officers and

2519 were part-time employees Full-time equivalent employees

totaled 20838 as of December 31 2010 compared to 20998 as of

December 31 2009 The decrease in full-time equivalent

employees is primarily due to the transfer of employees on

January 2010 from the Processing Business Sale partially offset

by an increase in the sales force in 2010

Card and processing expense
includes third-party processing

expenses
card management fees and other bankeard processing

expenses Card anil processing expense
decreased $85 million or

44t/ in 2010 compareil to 2009 due to the Processing Business

Sale inJune of 2009

Total other noninteresr expense
increased $23 miffion in

2010 compared to 2009 The components of other noninterest

expense are shown in Table 11 The increase from 2009 was

primarily due to increased charges to representation and warranty

reserves related to residential mortgage loans sold to third-parties

as well as higher impairment on affordable housing investments

higher marketing expense due to increased consumer marketing

campaigns anil an increase in professional services fees primarily

due to legal expenses
related to the settlement of one of the

Bancorps BOLl policies The increase in affordable housing

investment impairment was due to an increase in the volume of

investments These impacts were partially offset by decrease in

the provision
for unfunded commitments and letters of credit

lower FDIC insurance anil other taxes and decrease in intangible

asset amortization due to certain customer ileposit intangibles

TABLE 10 NONINTEREST EXPENSE

For the years ended December 31 in millions
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Salaties wages and incentives $1430 1339 1337 1239 1174

Employee benefits
314 311 278 278 292

Net occupancy expense
298 308 300 269 245

Technology and communications
189 181 191 169 141

Equipment expense
122 123 130 123 116

Card and processing expense
108 193 274 244 184

Goodwill impairment

965

Other noninterest expense
1394

Total noninterest expense
$3855 3826 4564 3311 2915

Efficiency ratit
60.7% 46.9 70.4 60.2 59.4
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from previous acquisitions being fully amortized Additionally the

Baneorp recorded $73 million reversal of the Visa litigation

reserve in 2009 The
expense for representation and warranties

which is included in losses and adjustments totaled $110 million

and $31 million in 2010 and 2009 respectively with the increase

resulting primarily from higher volume of repurchase demands

The decrease in the provision for unfunded commitments was

due to lower estimates of inherent losses resulting from decrease

in delinquent loans as general economic conditions began to show

signs of moderaoon in 2010

The Baneorp incurred $242 million of
expense for FDIC

insurance and other taxes in 2010 compared to $269 million in

2009 Effective June 30 2009 the FDIC imposed special

assessment on each insured depository institution calculated as

bp of total assets less Tier capital which resulted in the
Baneorp

incurring $55 mdlion special assessment charge in the second

quarter
of 2009 Due to the

passage
of the Dodd-Frank Act the

FDIC was required to redefine the deposit insurance assessment

base make changes to assessment rate methodology and

implement new DIF dividend provisions The FDIC adopted the

final rule on February 2011 that revises the risk-based

assessment system for all large insured depository institutions The

Baneorp anticipates decline in FDIC insurance for the year

ended December 31 2011 compared to levels incurred for the

year ended December 31 2010

The efficiency ratio noninrerest expense divided by the sum
of net interest income and noninterest income was 60.7% and

46.9% for 2010 and 2009 respectively The increase from 2009

was driven by the Processing Business Sale which resulted in

pre-rax gain of $1.8 billion in 2009 Excluding the gain from the

Processing Business Sale the efficiency ratio was 6O.O% for 2009

The Baneorp continues to focus on efficiency initiatives as part of

its core emphasis on operating leverage and on expense control

Applicable Income Taxes

The Baneorps income loss before income taxes applicable

income tax expense benefit and effective tax rate for each of the

periods indicated are shown in Table 12 Applicable income tax

expense for all periods includes the benefit from tax-exempt

TABLE 11 COMPONENTS OF OTHER NONINTEREST
EXPENSE
For the years ended December 31

Sin millions 2010 2009 2008

FDIC insurance and other taxes $242 269 73

Loan and lease 211 234 188

Lusses and adjustments 187 110 95

Affordable housing investments

impairment 100 83 67

Marketing 98 79 102

Prufessional services fees 77 63 102

Travel 51 41 54

Postal and courier 48 53 54

Intangilile asset amortization 43 57 56

Insurance expense 42 50 30

Operating lease 41 39 32

OREO 33 24 11

Recruitment and education 31 30 33

Supplies 24 25 31

Data processing 24 21 14

Visa
litigation reserve 73 99

Provision for unfunded commitments and

letters of credit 24 99 98

Other 166 167 148

Total other noninterest expense $1394 1371 1089

income tax-advantaged investments and general business tax

credits partially offset by the effect of nondeductible expenses
The effective tax rate for the tax year ended December 31 2010

was primarily impacted by $133 million in tax credits $26

million tax benefit resulting from the settlement of certain

uncertain tax positions \vith the IRS and $25 million of non-cash

charges relating to previously recognized tax benefits associated

with stock-based compensation that will not be realized The

effective tax rate for the tax year ended December 31 2009 was

primarily impacted by $112 million in tax credits $106 million

tax benefit related to the decision to surrender one of the

Bancorps BOLl pobeies and the determination that losses on the

policy recorded in prior periods are now tax deductible and $55

million reduction in income tax expense related to the Baneorps

leveraged lease litigation settlement with the IRS See Note 21 of

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further

information on income taxes

TABLE 12 APPLICABLE INCOME TAXES
For the years ended December 31 in millions 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Income loss before income taxes and cumulative effect $940 767 2664 1537 1627
Applicalile income tax expense benefit 187 30 551 461 443
Effective tax rate 19.8% 3.9 20.7 30.0 27.2
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW

At December 31 2010 the Bancorp reports on four business

segments Commercial Banking Branch Banking Consumer

Lending and Investment Advisors Additional detailed financial

information on each business segment is included in Note 31 of

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Results of the

Baneorps business segments are presented based on its

management structure and management accounting practices The

structure and accounting practices are specific to the Baneorp

therefore the financial results of the Bancorps business segments

are not necessarily comparable with similar information for other

financial institutions The Bancorp refines its methodologies from

time to time as management accounting practices are improved

and businesses change

On June 30 2009 the Bancorp completed the Processing

Business Sale which represented the sale of majority interest in

the Baneorps
merchant acquiring and financial institutions

processing
businesses Financial data for the merchant acquiring

and financial institutions processing businesses was originally

reported in the former Processing Solutions segment through

June 30 2009 As result of the sale the Baneorp no longer

presents Processing Solutions as segment
and therefore

historical financial information for the merchant acquiring and

financial institutions processing businesses has been reclassified

under General Corporate and Other for all periods presented

Interchange revenue previously
recorded in the Processing

Solutions segment
and associated with cards currentiy included in

Branch Banking is now included in the Branch Banking segment

for all petiods presented Additionally the Baneorp retained its

retail credit card and commercial multi-card service businesses

which were also otiginally reported in the former Processing

Solutions segment through June 30 2009 and are now included in

the Consumer Lending and Commercial Banking segments

respectively for all periods presented Revenue from the

remaining ownership interest in the Processing Business is

recorded in General Corporate
and Other as noninterest income

The Bancorp manages
interest rate risk centrally at the

corporate level by employing FTP methodology This

methodology insulates the business segments
from interest rate

volatility enabling them to focus on serving customers through

loan originations and deposit taking The FTP system assigns

charge rates and credit rates to classes of assets and llabilities

respectively based on expected duration and the LIBOR swap

curve Matching duration allocates interest income and interest

expense to each segment so its resulting net interest income is

insulated from interest rate nsk In rising rate environment the

Baneorp benefits from the widening spread between deposit costs

and wholesale funding costs However the Bancorps FTP system

credits this benefit to deposit-providing businesses such as

Branch Banking and Investment Advisors on duration-adjusted

basis The net impact of the FTP methodology is captured in

General Corporate and Other

The business segments are charged provision expense
based

on the actual net eharge-offs experienced by the loans owned by

each segment Provision expense attributable to loan growth and

changes in factors in the ALLL are captured in General Corporate

and Other The financial results of the business segments
include

allocations for shared services and headquarters expenses Even

with these allocations the financial results are not necessarily

indicative of the business segments financial condition and results

of operations as if they existed as independent entities

Additionally the business segments
form synergies by taking

advantage of cross-sell opportunities and when funding

operations by accessing the capital markets as collective unit

Net income loss by business segment
is summarized in the

following table

TABLE 13 BUSINESS SEGMENT NET INCOME LOSS
AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS

For the years
ended December 31

in millions
2010 2009 2008

Income Staiemeni Daia

Commercial Banking $165 120 733

Branch Banking
201 324 632

Consumer Lending 40 23 148

Investment Advisors 29 53 98

General Corporate and Other 398 457 962
Net income loss 753 737 2113
Less Net income attributable to

noneontroffing interest

Net income loss attributable to Baneorp 753 737 2113
Dividends on preferred stock 250 226 67

Net income loss available to common

shareholders $503 511 2180
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Commercial Banking

Commercial Banking offers banking cash management and

financial services to large and middle-market businesses and

government and professional customers In addition to the

traditional lending and depository offerings Commercial Banking

products and services include global cash management foreign

exchange and international trade finance derivatives and capital

markets services asset-based lending real estate finance public

finance commercial leasing and syndicated finance The
following

table contains selected financial data for the Commercial Banking

segment

TABLE 14 COMMERCIAL BANKING
For the years ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Income Statement Data

Net interest income FTC $1545 1383 1567
Provision for man and lease

losses 1159 1360 1864
Nomnterest income

Corporate banking revenue 346 353 401

Service charges on deposits 199 196 186

Other nomnterest income 90 60 91

Nomnterest
expense

Salaries incentives and

benefits 254 221 243

Goodwill impairment 750

Other noninterest expense 736 768 675

Income loss before taxes 31 357 1287
Apphcable income tax benefit 134 237 554
Net income loss $165 120 733

Average Balance Sheet Data

Commercial loans $38304 41341 43198
Demand

deposits 10872 8581 6206

Interest checking 8432 6018 4632

Savings sod money market 2823 2457 4046
Certificates 5100000 and over and

other time 3014 4376 2293

Foreign office deposits 2017 1275 1835

al Includes lIE afiusirnents of $14/br 2010 73
far 2009 and /5fsr 2008

Comparison of 2010 with 2009

Commercial Banking realized net income of $165 million in 2010

compared to net loss of $120 million in 2009 This improvement

was primarily due to an increase in net interest income and

decrease in provision for loan and lease losses partially offset by

growth in salaries incentives and benefits Net interest income

increased $162 million or 12% primarily due to mix shift from

higher cost term deposits to lower cost deposit products which

resulted in decrease to interest expense of 345/a during 2010

This improvement was partially offset by the negative impact to

net interest income of decrease in average commercial loans

during 2010 and decrease of $35 million in the accretion of

discounts on loans associated with the acquisition of First Charter

in 2008

Provision for loan and lease losses decreased $201 million or

IS% from 2009 Net eharge-offs as percent of average loans

and leases decreased from 329 bp in 2009 to 302 bp in 2010

These decreases are primarily due to aenons taken by the Baneorp

to address problem loans which resulted in significant net charge
offs recorded in 2008 and 2009 as well as the impact of loss

mitigation activities such as suspending home builder and

developer lending and non-owner occupied commercial real estate

lending in 2007 and 2008 respectively and tighter underwtiting

standards across commercial loan product offerings

Noninterest income increased $26 million or four percent
from 2009

ptimarily as result of $24 million increase in gains on

ptivate equity investments included in other noninterest income
and $5 million increase in card and processing revenue due to an

increase in commercial credit card activity partially offset by $7

million decrease in
corporate banking revenue Corporate banking

revenue decreased from the pnor year ptimatily as result of $6

million decrease in fees on letters of credit

Noninterest expense was flat compared to 2009 due to an

increase in salaries incentives and benefits offset by decrease in

other noninterest expense Salaries incentives and benefits

increased $33 million or I5/ due to compensation related to

improved performance in the segment and an increase in

headcount dunng 2010 Loan and lease
expense decreased $32

million or four
percent as result of lower loan demand duting

2010 decrease in collection related expenses and decrease in

FDIC expenses due to special assessment in the second quarter

of 2009

Average commercial loans and leases decreased $3.0 billion

or seven percent compared to the ptior year due to decreases

across all commercial loan eategones Commercial construction

loans decreased $1.5 billion commercial and industtial loans

decreased $655 million commercial
mortgage loans decreased

$631 million and commercial leases decreased $209 million These

decreases were the result of lower customer demand for new

onginations lower utilization rates on corporate lines and tighter

underwriting standards applied to both new commercial loan

originations and renewals These impacts were partially offset by

the consolidation of $724 million of commercial and industtial

loans on January 2010 which had remaining balance of $372

million at December 31 2010

Average core deposits increased $5.8 billion or 32%
compared to 2009 due to the migration of higher priced

certificates of deposit into transaction accounts as well as the

impact of historically low interest rates and excess customer

liquidity

Comparison of 2009 with 2008

Commercial Banking reported net loss of $120 million in 2009

compared to net loss of $733 million in 2008 This improvement

was due to $750 million goodwill impairment charge taken in

2008 and $504 million decrease in the provision for loan and

lease losses in 2009 partially offset by decrease in net interest

income of $184 million The decrease in net interest income

compared to 2008 was ptimarily due to decrease in the accretion

of loan discounts on acquired loans and deposits which

eontnbuted $204 million to net interest income in 2008 compared

to $60 million in 2009 Average commercial loans and leases

decreased $1.9 billion or four
percent due to lower utilization

rates on corporate lines net charge-offs and tighter lending

standards implemented in the second half of 2008 and continued

throughout 2009

Provision expense decreased from $1.9 billion in 2008 to $1.4

billion in 2009 Net charge-offs as percent of average loans and

leases decreased to 329 bp from 432 bp in 2008 due primatily to

$800 million in net charge-offs in 2008
resulting from the sale or

transfer to held-for-sale of $1.3 billion in commercial and

industrial loans and commercial mortgage loans in the fiurth

quarter of 2008

Noninrerest income decreased $69 million compared to 2008

due to decrease in corporate banking revenue of $48 million and

$31 million decline in other noninteresr income partially offset

by $10 million increase in service charges on deposits

Noninterest
expense decreased $679 million compared to

2008
primarily due to goodwill impairment of $750 million in

2008 Excluding the goodwill impairment charge noninteresr

expense increased $71 million due to increases in FDIC and loan

and leases expenses

36 Fifth Third Ban corp



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Branch Banking

Branch Banking providcs full
range

of dcposit and loan and

lease products to individuals and small husincsscs through 1312

full-service banking centers Branch Banking offers depository

and loan products such as checking and savings accounts home

equity loans and lines of credit credit cards and loans for

automobiles and other personal financing needs as well as

products designed to meet the specific needs of small businesses

including cash management services The following table contains

selected financial data for the Branch Banking segment

TABLE 15 BRANCH BANKING

For the years ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Net interest income $1501 1559 1714

Provision for loan and lease

losses 542 585 352

Noninterest income

Service charges on deposits 369 428 447

Card and processing revenue 303 264 246

Investment advisory revenue 106 84 84

Other noninrerest income 115 122 130

Noninterest expense

Salaries incentives and

benefits 552 502 517

Net occupancy and eqnipment

expense 223 217 203

Card and processing expense
102 68 45

Other nomnterest expense 664 585 528

Income before taxes 311 500 976

Applicable income tax expense 110 176 344

Net income $201 324 632

Average Balance Sheet Data

Consomer loans $12944 13096 12665

Commercial loans 4815 5335 5600

Demand deposits 6936 6363 6008

Interest checking 7332 7395 7845

Savings and money market 19963 17010 16184

Other time 12712 16995 13749

Comparison of 2010 with 2009

Net income decreased $123 million or 38% compared to 2009

driven by an increase in noninterest
expense

and decrease in net

interest income partially offset by decrease in provision for loan

and lease losses Net interest income decreased $58 million or

four percent compared to 2009 as the impact of lower loan

balances more than offset favorable shift in the segments

deposit mix towards lower cost transaction deposits

Provision for loan and lease losses decreased $43 million or

seven percent
from 2009 Net charge-offs as percent of average

loans and leases decreased from 317 bp in 2009 to 305 bp in 2010

as result of 36 bp decrease in consumer net charge-offs as

percent
of

average consumer loans partially offset by 52 bp

increase in commercial net charge-offs as percent
of average

commercial loans The decrease in consumer net charge-offs was

primarily the result of decrease in delinquencies tighter

underwriting standards and signs of improvement in economic

conditions during 2010 The increase in commercial net charge

offs was primarily due to $24 miffion of charge-offs taken on $60

million of commercial loans which were sold or moved to held for

sale during the third
quarter

of 2010

Noninterest income decreased $5 million or one percent

from 2009 as decreases in service charges on depossts and other

noninterest income were partially offset by increases in card and

processing revenue and investment advisory revenue Service

charges on deposits
decreased $59 miffion or l4% compared to

2009 as result of new regulations in 2010 that decreased income

on overdrafts Card and processing revenue increased $39 million

or 15% from 2009 primarily
due to an increase in debit and credit

card transactions that resulted in 13% increase in both credit and

debit card interchange revenue Investment advisory revenue

increased $22 million or 26% compared to 2009 primarily due to

an increase in retail brokerage transactions Other noninterest

income decreased $7 million or six percent primarily clue to the

CARD Act of 2009 which resulted in the reduction of certain

credit card fees

Noninterest expense increased $169 million or 12% from

2009 due to increases in each category Salaries incentives and

benefits increased $50 million or lO% from the prior year due

ptimarily to additional branch personnel related to expanded

branch hours of operation and greater incennve accruals

attributable to success in opening new deposit and brokerage

accounts Net occupancy
and

equipment expense
increased $6

million or three
percent as result of increases to rent expenses

during 2010 Card and processing expense
increased $34 million

or 50% from 2009 due to increased costs associated with an

increase in credit and debit card transacnon volumes during 2010

Other noninterest expense increased $79 million or 14% due to

increases in loan and lease
expense markenng expense and other

allocated shared service expenses

Average consumer loans decreased $152 million or one

percent and average commercial loans decreased $520 million or

lO% The decrease in average consumer loans was the result of

$311 million decrease in home equity loans due to decrease in

demand and tighter underwriting standards that limited allowable

loan to value ratios partially offset by $254 million increase in

residential mortgage loans due to managements decision to retain

certain residential mortgage loans in portfolio upon otiginaoon

The decrease in average commercial loans was due to lower

customer demand for new originations lower utilization rates on

corporate
lines and tighter underwriting standards applied to both

new commercial loan originations
and renewals

Average core deposits were flat compared to 2009 as runoff

of higher priced consumer certificates of deposit included in

other time deposits was replaced with growth in transactican

accounts due to excess customer liquidity and low interest rates

Comparison of 2009 with 2008

Net income decreased $308 million or 49% in 2009 compared to

2008 driven by decreases in net interest income and service fees

combined with higher provision
for loan and lease losses Net

interest income decreased nine percent compared to 2008 due to

$27 million decline in the accretion of discounts on acquired loans

and deposits combined with an increase in interest expense
due to

higher average
balances in other rime deposits

Net charge-offs as percent of average
loan and leases

increased to 317 bp in 2009 from 194
lip

in 2008 Net charge-offs

increased compared to 2008 as the segment experienced higher

charge-offs on home equity lines and loans commercial loans and

credit cards reflecting borrower stress and decrease in home

values primarily within the Bancorps footprint

Noninteresr income was relatively flat compared to 2008 as

decreases in deposit fees and retail service fees included in other

noninterest income were offset by an increase in card and

processing revenue

Noninterest expense
increased $80 million or six percent

compared to 2008 primarily due to an increase in EDIC related

expenses of $86 million as result of special assessment charged

in 2009 coupled with an increase in assessment rates

Average loans and leases increased one percent compared to

2008 as three percent growth in consumer loans was partially

offset by five
percent

decrease in commercial loans In addition

credit card balances grew $211 million or 14% Average core

deposits were up eight percent compared to 2008 pnmarily due to

growth in short term consumer certificates
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Consumer Lending

Consumer Lending includes the Bancorps mortgage home

equity automobile and other indirect lending activities Mortgage

and home equity lending activities include the origination

retention and servicing of mortgage and home equity loans or

lines of credit sales and securitizations of those loans or pools of

loans or lines of credit and all associated hedging activitics Other

indirect lending activities include loans to consumers through

mortgage brokers and automobile dealers

contains selected financial data for the

segment

TABLE 16 CONSUMER LENDING

1-or the years ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Income Statement Data

Net interest income $418 494 481

Provision for loan and lease losses 582 574 441

Noninterest income

Mortgage banking net revenue 619 526 184

Other norunterest income 43 101 167

Nonsnterest expense

Salaries incentives and benefits 200 187 137

Coodmill impairment 215

Other noninterest expense 359 324 268

Income loss before taxes 61 36 229

Applicable income tax expense

benefit 21 13

Net income loss $40 $23 148

Average Balance Sheet Data

Residential mortgage loans $9384 10650 10698

Flume equity 851 995 1142

Automobile loans 9713 8024 7984

Consumer leases 384 629 797

Comparison of 2010 with 2009

Consumer Lending reported net loss of $40 million in 2010

compared to net income of $23 million in 2009 due to decrease

in net interest income and an increase in noninterest
expense

partially offset by an increase in noninterest income Net interest

income decreased $76 million or lS% from 2009 primarily due to

decrease in yields on average interest earning assets which

includes the impact of $21 million decrease in the accretion of

discounts on loans associated with the acquisition of First Charter

in 2008 partially offset by decrease in funding costs during 2010

Provision for loan and lease losses increased $8 million or

one percent
from 2009 Net charge-offs as percent

of
average

loans and leases decreased from 313 bp in 2009 to 309 bp in 2010

The increase in provision foe loan and lease losses from the prior

year was the result of 235/s increase in net eharge-offs on

residential mortgage loans primarily due to $123 million in charge

offs taken on $228 mdbon of portfolio loans which were sold

dunng the third quarter of 2010 Automobile loan net charge-offs

decreased $44 million compared to 2009 as result of tighter

underwriting standards implemented in 2008 maturation of the

automobile portfolio and higher resale values on automobiles sold

at auction Home equity net charge-offs decreased $24 miffion

from 2009 due to run off of brokered home equity loans the

origination of which were discontinued in 2007

Noninterest income increased $35 million or six percent as

the result of an increase in mortgage banking net revenue partially

offset by decrease in other noninterest income Mortgage

banking net revenue increased $93 million or l8/s from 2009

primarily due to an $89 million increase in net servicing revenue

The increase in net servicing revenue was driven by $56 million

increase in net valuation adjustments on MSRs and MSR
derivatives and $24 million increase in servicing fees Residential

mortgage
loans serviced for others at December 31 2010 and

2009 were $54.2 billion and $48.6 biffion respectively Other

noninterest income decreased $58 million or 575/s pnmarily due

to decreases in securities gains related to mortgage servicing rights

hedging acnvines and an increase in bankeard rewards program

costs recognized within fee income

Noninterest expense increased $48 million or nine percent

due to increases in salaries incentives and benefits and other

noninterest
expense Salaries incentives and benefits increased

$13 million or seven percent from 2009 due to the continued

high levels of mortgage loan originations in 2010 Other

noninterest
expense

increased $35 million or 11% from 2009

primarily as result of $48 million increase in the reptesentation

and
warranty reserve partially offset by $13 million decrease in

loan and lease
expense

Average consumer loans were flat compared to 2009 as

$1.7 billion increase in automobile loans was offset by decreases in

all other consumer loan and lease products Average residential

mortgage loans decreased $1.3 billion from 2009 due to decrease

in origination activity during the first half of 2010 Average home

equity
loans decreased $144 million from 2009 due to the

previously mentioned run off of brokered home equity loans The

increase in automobile loans was due to change in U.S GAAP
that required the Bancorp to consolidate certain automobile loans

on January 2010 and strategic focus to increase automobile

lending dunng 2010 through consistent and competitive pricing

enhanced customer service with our dealership network and

disciplined sales executton The automobile loans consolidated

due to the change in U.S CAAP had an average balance of $920

million during 2010 Average consumer leases decreased $245

million due to run off of consumer leases which were

discontinued in the fourth quarter of 2008

Comparison of 2009 with 2008

Consumer Lending reported net income of $23 million in 2009

compared to net loss of $148 million in 2008 primarily due to

goodwill impairment charge of $215 million taken in 2008 In

addition increases in net interest income and mortgage banking

net revenue in 2009 more than offset the growth in provision for

loan and lease losses

Net interest income increased $13 million in 2009 primarily

due to decrease in funding costs driven by low interest rates

throughout 2009 partially tiffset by decrease of $17 million on

the accretion of discounts on loans and deposits associated with

the acquisition of First Charter in 2008

Mortgage banking net revenue increased $342 miffion due to

an increase in residential mortgage originations from $11.2 billion

in 2008 to $20.7 billion in 2009 due to lower interest rates and

government incentive programs offered to home buyers as well as

higher sales margins on sold loans The decrease in other

noninterest income to $101 million in 2009 is attributable to

decreases in securities gains related to mortgage servicing tights

hedging activities

The increase in salaries incentives and benefits compared to

2008 was driven by employee costs that were necessary to manage

the increase in residential mortgage originations The $56 million

increase in other noninterest expense compared to 2008 is

attributed to $20 million increase in loan processing costs as

result of increased mortgage originations and $36 million in other

credit related
expenses and an increase in FDIC insurance

expenses

Average residential
mortgage loans and average automobile

loans remained relatively flat compared to 2008 Net charge-offs

as percent of average loan and leases increased from 223 bp in

2008 to 313 bp in 2009

The following table

Consumer Lending
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Investment Advisors

Investment Advisors provides full range of investment

alternatives for individuals companies and not-for-profit

organizations Investment Advisors is made
up

of four main

businesses FTS an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Bancorp FTAM an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Bancorp Fifth Third Private Bank and Fifth Third Institutional

Services FTS offers full service retail brokerage services to

individual clients and broker dealer services to the institutional

marketplace Fifth Third Asset Management Inc provides asset

management services and also advises the Bancorps proprietary

family of mutual funds Fifth Third Private Banking offers holistic

strategies to affluent clients in wealth planning investing

insurance and wealth protection Fifth Third Institutional Services

provide advisory services for institutional clients including states

and municipalities The following table contains selected financial

data for the Investment Advisors segment

TABLE 17 INVESTMENT ADVISORS

For the years ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Income Statement Data

Net interest income $138 157 191

Provision for loan and lease losses 44 57 49

Noninterest income

Investment advisory revenue 346 315 354

Other noninterest income 10 21 32

Nomntcrcst expense

Salaries incentives and benefits 156 140 159

Other noninterest expense 249 214 217

Income before taxes 45 82 152

Applicable income tax expense
16 29 54

Net income $29 $53 98

Average Balance Sheet Data

Loans and leases $2574 3112 3527

Core deposits 5897 4939 4666

Comparison of 2010 with 2009

Net income decreased $24 million or 45% compared to 2009 as

decrease in net interest income and an increase in noninterest

expense were partially offset by decrease in provision for loan

and lease losses and an increase in investment advisory revenue

Net interest income decreased $19 million or l2% from 2009

due to decrease in average loans and leases partially offset by an

increase in the yield on interest earning assets

Provision for loan and lease losses decreased $13 million or

23/s from 2009 Net charge-offs as percent
of average loans

and leases decreased from 183 bp in 2009 to 171 bp in 2010

reflecting moderation of general economic conditions during

2010

Noninterest income increased $20 million or six percent

compared to 2009 due to an increase in investment advisory

revenue partially offset by decrease in other noninterest income

Investment advisory revenue increased $31 million or lO%

compared to 2009 due to increases in securities and broker

income ptivate
client service income and institutional income

Securities and broker income increased $18 million or 175/o from

2009 due to continued expansion of the sales force and effective

sales management resulting in strong net asset and account

growth Private client service income increased $11 million or

eight percent
and institutional income increased $5 million or

seven percent
from 2009 due to increases in the market value of

managed assets and an increase in transaction activity Assets

under care increased from $182 billion at December 31 2009 to

$266 billion at December 31 2010 and managed assets increased

from $24 billion at December 31 2009 to $25 billion at December

31 2010

Noninterest expense increased $51 million or l4%

compared to 2009 due to an increase sn salaties incenoves and

benefits and other noninterest expense Salaries incentives and

benefits increased $16 million or l% primarily due to the

expansion of the sales force and compensation related to

improved performance in investment advisory revenue related

fees Other noninterest expense
increased $35 million or l6%

primarily due to an increase in
expenses

associated with the

revenue sharing agreement
between Investment Advisors and

Branch Banking

Average loans and leases decreased $538 million or l7%

from 2009 primarily
due to $418 million decrease in commercial

loans as result of decrease in demand and decrease in line

utilization rates among the Bancorps high net worth customers

due to excess hquidity Average core deposits increased $958

million or 9% compared to 2009 primarily due to growth in

interest checking and foreign deposits as customers have opted to

maintain excess funds in liquid transaction accounts as rates

remained near historic lows

Comparison of 2009 with 2008

Net income decreased $45 million in 2009 or 46% compared to

2008 as decreases in net interest income and investment advisory

revenue were only partially offset by lower salaries and benefit

expenses

Noninterest income decreased $50 million in 2009 compared

to 2008 as investment advisory revenue decreased $39 million

with private client services income declining $14 miffion and

institutional income declining $13 million driven by lower asset

values on assets managed compared to 2008 Also included within

investment advisory revenue is securities and brokerage income

which declined $10 million or nine percent compared to 2008

reflecting decline in transaction-based revenue as well as the

continued shift in assets from equity products to lower yielding

money market funds due to market volatility through much of

2009
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General Corporate and Other

General Corporate and Other includes the unallocated portion of

the investment securities portfolio securities gains and losses

certain non-core deposit funding unassigned equity provision

expense in excess of net charge-offs or income from the reduction

of ALLL the payment of preferred stock dividends historical

financial information for the merchant acquiring and financial

institutions
processing

businesses and certain
support activities

and other items not attributed to the business
segments

Comparison of 2010 with 2009

The results for 2010 were impacted by $789 miffion in income due

to reduction in the ALLL duting 2010 compared to $967 million

of
provision expense

recorded in excess of net eharge-offs duting

2009 The decrease in provision expense was due to decrease in

nonperforming assets and improvement in credit trends as general

economic conditions began to show signs of moderation The

2010 results were also impacted by $152 million of noninterest

income recognized from the settlement of litigation associated

with one of the Bancorps BOLl policies and $25 million of

noninrerest expense from related legal fees associated with the

settlement The results for 2009 were primarily impacted by $1.8

billion pre-tax gain $1.1 bsffion after tax resulting from the

Processing Business Sale in the second quarter of 2009 Results

for 2009 also included $244 million gain on the sale of the

Baneorps Visa Inc Class shares and $73 million benefit from

the reversal of the Visa litigation reserve an $18 million benefit in

noninterest income due to mark-to-market adjustments on

warrants and put options related to the Processing Business Sale

and $106 million tax benefit as result of the Baneorps decision

to surrender one of its BOLl pobeies These benefits were

partially offset by $54 million BOLl charge reflecting reserves

recorded in the connection with the intent to surrender the policy

Additionally the Baneorp recorded dividends on preferred stock

of $226 million duting 2009 compared to $250 million duting

2010

Comparison of 2009 with 2008

The results for 2009 were primarily impacted by the previously

mentioned Processing Business Sale gain on the sale of the

Baneorps Visa Inc Class shares and benefit from the reversal

of the Visa litigation reserve mark-to-market adjustments on

warrants and put options related to the Processing Business Sale

and the tax benefit as result of the Baneorps decision to

surrender one of its BOLT policies partially offset by charges

reflecting reserves recorded in the connection with the intent to

surrender the policy The results for 2008 were impacted by $273

mdlion in income related to the redemption of portion of Fifth

Thirds ownership interest in Visa $99 million in net reductions to

noninterest expense to reflect the reversal of portion of the

litigation reserve related to the Baneorps indemnification of Visa

$229 million after-tax impact of charges relating to certain

leveraged leases and $215 million in charges related to reduction

in the cash surrender value of one of the Baneorps BOLl policies

Provision expense in excess of net charge-tiffs decreased from

$1.9 billion in 2008 to $967 million in 2009 Dividends on

preferred stock increased from $67 million in 2008 to $226 million

in 2009
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FOURTH QUARTER REVIEW
The Bancorps 2010 fourth quarter net income available to

common shareholders was $270 million or $0.33 per dduted

share compared to net income available to common shareholders

of $175 million or $0.22 per
diluted share for the third quarter of

2010 and net loss available to common shareholders of $160

million or $0.20 per diluted share for the fourth quarter of 2009

Fourth quarter 2010 earnings included the impact of $17 million

charge related to the early extinguishment of $1.0 billion in FHLB

borrowings as well as $21 million in net investment securities

gains Third quarter 2010 results included $127 million benefit

net of expenses from the settlement of litigation associated with

one of the Bancorps BOLl policies Fourth quarter 2009 earnings

were impacted by the benefit of $20 million
pre-tax

mark-to-

market adjustment on warrants related to the Processing Business

Sale offset by $22 million pre-tax litigation reserve for litigation

associated with bank card association membership Provision

expense was $166 million in the fourth quarter of 2010 down

from $457 million in the third quarter of 2010 and $776 million in

the fourth quarter of 2009 Both the sequential decrease and the

decline from the fourth
quarter

of 2009 reflect improved credit

trends as evidenced by decrease in net charge-offs and

improvements in nonperforming assets and delinquent loans The

allowance to loan and lease ratio was 3.88% as of December 31

2010 compared to 4.20% as of September 30 2010 and 4.88/s as

of December 31 2009

Fourth quarter 2010 net interest income of $919 million

increased $3 million from the third quarter of 2010 and increased

$37 million from the same period year ago Net interest income

was affected by the loan and deposit discount accretion related to

the acquisition of First Charter in the second
quarter

of 2008

which resulted in increases to net interest income of $15 miffion in

the fourth quarter 2010 $14 million in the third quarter 2010 and

$23 million in the fourth quarter
of 2009 Excluding these

benefits net interest income increased $2 million from the third

quarter
of 2010 and increased $45 miffion from the fourth

quarter

of 2009 The increase from the fourth quarter of 2009 was driven

by 20 lip increase in the net interest margin largely the result of

mix shift from higher cost term deposits to lower cost deposit

products throughout 2010

Noninterest income decreased $171 mdlion compared to the

third quarter of 2010 and increased $5 million compared to the

fourth quarter of 2009 The sequential decline was driven by

$152 million benefit from the settlement of litigation related to

one of the Bancorps BOLT policies in the third quarter
of 2010

ai well as 36% decrease in mortgage banking net revenue

partially offset by an increase in corporate banking revenue

Compared to the fourth quarter of 2009 increases in corporate

banking revenue mortgage banking net revenue investment

advisory revenue and card and processing revenue were largely

offset by decrease in service charges on deposits and $28

million decline in TSA revenue related to the Processing Business

Sale The fourth quarter of 2010 included benefit of $3 million

in mark-to-market adjustments on warrants and put options

related to the Processing Business Sale compared to negative $5

million adjustment in the third quarter of 2010 and $20 miffion

benefit in the fourth quarter of 2009

Mortgage banking net revenue was $149 million in the fourth

quarter
of 2010 compared to $232 million in the third quarter of

2010 and $132 million in the fourth quarter of 2009 Fourth

quarter originations were $7.4 billion compared to $5.6 billion in

the previous quarter
and $4.8 billion in the same quarter last year

These originations resulted in gains on mortgage
loan sales activity

of $158 million in the fourth quarter
of 2010 compared to $173

million in the third quarter
of 2010 and $97 million in the fourth

quarter
of 2009 Gain on sale margins declined compared to

record levels in the third
quarter

of 2010 due to rising mortgage

interest rates in the fourth
quarter

of 2010 but increased

compared to the fourth quarter of 2009 due to declining tnortgage

interest rates in the fourth quarter
of 2010 compared with the

fourth quarter
of 2009 Also impacong mortgage banking net

revenue was net valuation adjustments on MSRs and MSR
derivatives In the fourth quarter of 2010 losses on the Baneorps

free-standing
MSR derivatives exceeded impairment reversal

recorded against the hedged MSRs By comparison in both the

third quarter of 2010 and the fourth quarter of 2009 gains on the

MSR derivatives exceeded impairment losses recogmzed against

the hedged MSRi These factors led to net loss of $20 million on

the net valuation adjustments on MSRs in the fourth
quarter

of

2010 compared to net gains of $46 million and $9 mdlion in the

third quarter
of 2010 and the fourth quarter of 2009 respectively

net gain on non-qualifying hedges on mortgage servicing rights

of $14 mdlion in the fourth
quarter

of 2010 was included in

noninteresr income within the Consolidated Statements of

Income but shown separate from mortgage banking net revenue

Net gains on non-qualifying hedges on mortgage servicing rights

were immaterial in both the third quarter of 2010 and the fourth

quarter of 2009

Service charges on deposits of $140 million decreased three

percent sequentially and decreased l2% compared to the fourth

quarter of 2009 Retail service charges declined nine percent from

the third quarter of 2010 and 265/s from year ago largely dnven

by the impact of Regulation Commercial service charges

increased three percent sequentially and two percent from the

same quarter
last year due to an increase in fees for

treasury

management services

Corporate banking revenue of $103 million increased $17

million or 21% from the previous quarter and increased $14

million or l6% from the fourth quarter
of 2009 The sequenoal

increase was driven primarily by higher loan syndication fee

revenue and lease remarketing fees as well as growth in business

lending fees and foreign exchange revenue due ptimarily to higher

loan volumes Compared to the fourth quarter of 2009 increased

loan syndication and lease remarketing fees as well as revenue

from interest rate derivative sales and business lending fees more

than offset decline in institutional sales

Investment advisory revenue of $93 mdlion increased four

percent sequentially and eight percent
from the fourth quarter of

2009 The sequential growth was driven by higher pnvate client

service revenue institutional trust revenue and brokerage fees due

to market value increases and improved sales production resulting

in improved net asset and account growth Including the

previously mentioned impacts the increase from the fourth

quarter of 2009 also reflected an overall inereaie in equity and

bond market values

Card and processing revenue of $81 million increased five

percent compared to the third
quarter

of 2010 and increased

seven percent
from the fourth quarter of 2009 Both increases

were driven by higher transaction volumes

The net gain on investment securities was $21 million in the

fourth quarter of 2010 compared to net gain of $4 million in the

third quarter of 2010 and net gain of $2 million in tie fourth

quarter of 2009

Noninterest
expense

of $987 million increased $8 million

sequentially and increased $20 million from the fourth quarter
of

2009 Fourth quarter 2010 results included $17 million of

expenses
related to the early termination of $1.0 billion in FHLB

borrowings as well as $11 mdlion of expenses related to the TSA

Third quarter 2010 results included $25 million in legal expenses

aisociated with the sertiement of litigation associated with one of

the Baneorps BOLT policies and $13 million of expenses related

to the TSA while fourth quarter
2009 included $22 miffion

reserve established for litigaoon associated with bank card
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memberships and $39 million of expenses related to the TSA

Exeloding these items noninterest expense increased $16 million

seqoentially and $25 million from the foorth qoarter of 2009

driven by higher compensation expense doe to sales force

expansion partially offset by lower credit-related
expenses

Expenses incurred related to problem assets totaled $53 million in

the foorth qoarter of 2010 compared to $67 million in the third

qoarter of 2010 and $73 million in the foorth qoarter of 2009

Net charge-offs totaled $356 million in the foorth qoarter of

2010 compared to $956 million in the third
quarter of 2010 and

$708 miliion in the fourth quarter of 2009 Third quarter 2010 net

charge-offs included $510 million related to the sale or transfer of

loans to held-for-sale Excluding these losses net charge-offs

declined $90 million from the third quarter of 2010 The decreases

in net charge-offs from both periods reflects continued

improvement in the credit quality of portfolio loans Commercial

net charge-offs were $173 million in the fourth
quarter of 2010

compared to $627 million in the third quarter of 2010 and $468

million in the fourth
quarter

of 2009 Third quarter 2010 net

charge-offs include $387 million from the transfer of commercial

loans to held-for-sale Excluding these losses commercial net

charge-offs declined $67 million from the third quarter of 2010

Consumer net charge-offs were $183 million in the fourth
quarter

of 2010 compared to $329 million in the third quarter of 2010

and $240 mdlion in the fourth
quarter

of 2009 Third quarter 2010

net charge-offs include $123 million in net charge-offs on the sale

of portfolio residential
mortgage loans during the quarter

Excluding these losses consumer net charge-offs decreased $23

million from the third quarter of 2010 The provision for loan and

lease losses totaled $166 million in the fourth quarter of 2010

compared to $457 million in the third quarter of 2010 and $776

million in the fourth quarter of 2009 The decrease from each

quarter was primarily due to decline in delinquent loans and net

charge-offs

COMPARISON OF THE YEAR ENDED 2009 WITH 2008

Net income available to common shareholders for the
year

ended

2009 was $511 million or $0.67 per diluted share compared to

net loss available to common shareholders of $2.2 billion or $3.91

per diluted share in 2008 Overall $1.8 billion pre-tax gain on

the Processing Business Sale and $244 million of nuninterest

income on the sale of the Bancorps Visa Inc Class shares as

well as an increase in mortgage banking net revenue and

decrease sn the provision for loan and lease losses of $1.0 billion

compared to 2008 were parnally offset by decreases in net interest

income and card and processing revenue In addition the Bancorp

recorded $965 million goudwili impairment charge in 2008

While the Bancorp continued to be affected by tising

unemployment rates weakened housing markets particularly in

the upper Midwest and Florida and challenging credit

environment credit trends began to show signs of stabilization in

late 2009 which led to the decrease in provision expense The

2008 goodwill impairment charge reflected decline in estimated

fair values of two of the Bancorps business reporting units below

their carrying values and the determination that the implied fair

values of the reporting units were less than their
carrying values

Net interest income decreased five
percent compared to

2008 This was primarily due to 21 bp decline in the net interest

rate spread as well as decrease in the benefit from the accretion

of purchase accounting adjustments related to the 2008

acquisition of First Charter which added $136 million to net

interest income in 2009 compared to $358 million in 2008 Net

interest margin decreased to 3.32% in 2009 from 3.54% in 2008

Noninterest income increased 62% compared to 2008 This

was dnven primarily by the Processing Business Sale in the second

quarter of 2009 which resulted in pre-tax gain of $1.8 billion as

well as $244 million gain related to the sale of the Bancorps
Visa Inc Class shares Mortgage banking net revenue increased

$354 million as result of
strong growth in originations which

were up 89% to $21.7 billion in 2009 Card and processing

revenue decreased 335/a compared to 2008 due to the Processing

Business Sale in the second
quarter of 2009 Corporate banking

revenue decreased lO% largely due to lower volume of interest

rate derivatives sales and foreign exchange revenue partially offset

by growth in institutional sales and business lending fees

Noninterest
expense

decreased $738 million or l6%

compared to 2008 Noninterest expense in 2008 included the

previously mentsoned goodwill impairment charge of $965

million Excluding this charge nuninterest expense increased $227

million due ptimarily to an increase of $196 million of FDIC
insurance and other taxes as the result of an increase in deposit

insurance and parucipaoon in the TLGP as well as increased loan

related
expenses from higher mortgage otigination volume and

expenses incurred from the management of problem assets

In 2009 net charge-offs as percent
of

average loans and

leases remained relatively steady at 320 bp compared to 323
lip

in

2008 This was impacted by decrease of $446 million in

commercial loan net charge-offs due primarily to net charge-offs

of $800 million on $1.3 billion on loans moved to held-for-sale or

sold in the fourth
quarter of 2008 These actions were taken to

address areas of the loan portfolio exhibiting the most significant

credit deterioraoon In addition residential mortgage net charge

offs increased to $357 million in 2009 compared to $243 million

in 2008 reflecnng increased foreclosure rates in the Bancorps key

lending markets At December 31 2009 nonperforming assets as

percent of loans and leases increased to 4.22% from 2.385/s at

December 31 2008 The Bancorp increased its allowance fur loan

and lease losses as percent of loans and leases from 3.3l/s as of

December 31 2008 to 4.88% as of December 31 2009

The Baneorp took number of aenons to strengthen its

capital position in 2009 On June 2009 the Baneurp completed

an at-the-market offenng resulting in the sale of $1 billion of its

common shares at an average share price of $6.33 In addition on

June 17 2009 the Baneorp completed its offer to exchange shares

of its common stock and cash for shares of its Series

convertible preferred stock As result the Baneorp recognized

an increase in net income available to common shareholders of

$35 million based upon the difference in carrying value of the

Series preferred shares and the fair value of the common shares

and cash issued See the Capital Management section of MDA
for further information on the Bancorps capital transactions
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Loans and Leases

The Baneorp classifies its loans and leases based upon the primary

purpose
of the loan Table 18 summarizes end of persod loans and

leases including loans held for sale and Table 19 summarizes

average total loans and leases including loans held for sale

At December 31 2010 total loans and leases including loans

held for sale increased $861 million or one percent compared to

December 31 2009 The increase consisted of $2.1 billion

increase in consumer loans partially offset by $1.3 billion

decrease in commercial loans In accordance with change in U.S

GAAP on January 2010 the Baneorp consolidated certain

commercial and industrial automobile and home equity loans with

remaining outstanding balances of $372 million $648 million and

$241 miffion respectively at December 31 2010 Excluding the

impact of this change in U.S GAAP total loans and leases were

relatively flat compared to December 31 2009 For further

discussion on this change in U.S GAAP refer to Note of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Total commercial loans and leases decreased $1.3 billion or

three percent compared to December 31 2009 primarily as the

result of decreases in commercial construction loans and

commercial mortgage loans partially offset by an increase in

commercial and industrial loans Commercial construction loans

decreased $1.8 biffion or 45% from December 31 2009 primarily

due to managements strategy to suspend new lending on

commercial non-owner occupied real estate beginning
in 2008 and

the outflow of completed construction projects that were

transitioned to commercial mortgage
loans Despite the transition

of commercial construction loans commercial mortgage
loans

decreased $944 million or eight percent
from December 31 2009

due to tighter underwriting standards on commercial real estate

loans in an overall effort to bmit exposure to commercial real

estate Commercial and industrial loans increased $1.6 billion or

six percent compared to December 31 2009 as result of the

previously
mentioned change in U.S GAAP and an increase in

new loan originations activity primarily due to an increase in

customer demand with continued growth in the manufacturing

and healthcare industries This increase was partially
offset by an

$856 million decrease in loans originally
issued to FTPS in

conjunction with the Processing Business Sale FTPS refinanced

the original $1.25 billion in loans into larger syndicated loan

structure in connection with an acquisition

Total consumer loans and leases increased $2.1 billion or six

percent
from December 31 2009 This increase was primarily the

result of increases in automobile loans and residential mortgage

loans partially offset by decrease in home equity loans

Automobile loans increased $2.0 biffion or 22% compared to

December 31 2009 ptimarily as result of the previously

mentioned impact on automobile loans due to the change in U.S

GAAP and strategic focus to increase automobile lending during

2010 through consistent and compentive pricing
enhanced

customer service with our dealership network and disciplined sales

execution Residential mortgage loans increased $1.0 billion or

IO% from December 31 2009 as result of 5l/o increase in

origination activity for the fourth quarter of 2010 compared to the

fourth quarter of 2009 and managements decision in the third

quarter of 2010 to retain eeriain mortgage loans primarily

otiginated through the Baneorps retail branches Home equity

loans decreased $660 million or five percent
from December 31

2009 as tighter underwtiting standards and decrease in customer

demand were partially offset by the previously
mentioned impact

on home equity loans due to the change in U.S GAAP Credit

card loans decreased $94 miffion or five percent as result of

decrease in new account origination activity throughout 2010

Other consumer loans and leases primarily made up
of student

loans designated as held for sale and automobile leases decreased

$110 million or l4% due to decline in new otiginations dtiven

by tighter underwtiting standards

Average commercial loans and leases decreased $3.9 billion

or eight percent compared to 2009 The decrease in average

commercial loans consisted of decrease of $1.6 billion or 34/o

in average commercial construction loans $1.2 billion or four

percent in average
commercial and industrial loans and $926

million or seven percent in average
commercial mortgage loans

These decreases were driven by lower customer line utilization

rates lower demand for new loans and tighter underwtiting

standards on commercial real estate loans to manage risk partially

offset by the impact of the previously discussed change in U.S

GAAP Commercial and industrial loans experienced an increase

in origination activity ptimarily during the fourth quarter
of 2010

which led to higher petiod end balance at December 31 2010

compared to December 31 2009

Average consumer loans and leases were relatively flat

compared to 2009 An increase in average automobile loans of

$1.6 billion or l8/s was offset by decreases in average residential

mortgage
loans of $1.0 billion or nine percent and average home

equity loans of $538 million or four percent The impact
of the

previously mentioned consolidation of automobile and home

equity loans was largely offset by decrease in customer demand

and tighter underwtiting standards Residential mortgage

originations in 2009 were higher than in 2010 resulting in lower

annual average however volume of new originations during the

fourth quarter
of 2010 were greater than the fourth quarter of

2009 resulting in higher period end balance at December 31

2010 compared to December 31 2009

TABLE 18 COMPONENTS OF TOTAL LOANS AND LEASES INCLUDES HELD FOR SALE

As of December 31 in millions
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Cnmmercial

Commercial and industrial loans $27275 25687 29220 26079 20831

Cnmmercial mortgage
10992 11936 12731 11967 10405

Commercial cnnstruetion 2111 3871 5335 5561 6168

Commercial leases 3378 3535 3666 3737 3841

Subtotal cnmmereial 43756 45029 50952 47344 41245

Consumer

Residential mortgage
loans 10857 9846 10292 11433 9905

Home equity
11513 12174 12752 11874 12154

Automobile lnans 10983 8995 8594 11183 10028

Credit card 1896 1990 1811 1591 1004

Other consumer loans and leases
702 812 1194 1157 1167

Subintal consumer 35951 33817 34643 37238 34258

Tntal loans and leases
$79707 78846 85595 84582 75503

Total loans and leases excludes held for sale $77491 76779 84143 80253 74353
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TABLE 19 COMPONENTS OF AVERAGE TOTAL LOANS AND LEASES INCLUDES HELD FOR SALE
As of December 31 in millions 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

omiercial

Commercial and industrial loans $26334 27556 28426 22351 20504
Commercial mortgage 11585 12511 12776 11078 9797
Commercial consrmetion 3066 4638 5846 5661 6015
Commercial leases 3343 3543 3680 3683 3730

Subtotal commercial_____________ 44328 48248 50728 42773 40046
Consumer

Residential morrgage loans 9868 10886 10993 10489 954
Home

equits 11996 12534 12269 11887 12070
Automobile loans 10427 8807 8925 10704 9570
Credit card 1870 1907 1708 1276 838

Other consumer loans and leases 743 1009 1212 1219 1395
Subtotal consumer 34904 35143 35107 35575 33447

Total aserage loans and leases $79232 83391 85835 78348 73493
Total average portfolio loans and leases excludes held for sale $77045 80681 83895 76033 72447

Investment Securities securities on January 2010 Further impacting the available-for

The Baneorp uses investment securities as means of managing sale securities were approximately $1.1 billion in sales and

interest rate risk providing liquidity support and providing paydowns on agency mortgage-backed securities primarily related

collateral for pledging purposes As of December 31 2010 total to the FNMA and FHLMC delinquent loan buy back
programs in

investment secunnes were $16.1 billion compared to $18.9 billion the second
quarter of 2010 and managements decision not to

at December 31 2009 See Note of the Notes to Consobdated
fully

reinvest cash flows in securities due to the low market rate

Financial Statements for the Bancorps methodology for both environment In addition sales of $579 milbon of FNMA and

classifying investment securities and managements evaluation of FHLMC
agency debentures $151 mdlion of commercial

securities in an unreallzed loss position for OTT
mortgage-backed securities and commercial mortgage obligations

At December 31 2010 the Bancorps investment portfolio and $103 million of trust preferred securities as well as $150

ptimatily consisted of AAA-rated
agency mortgage-backed million in paydowns on other asset-backed secutities further drove

securities In 2010 the Bancorp recognized $3 million of 0111 the decline from December 31 2009

on its investment securities portfolio During the year ended At December 31 2010 available-for-sale securities decreased

December 31 2009 0111 was immaterial to the Consolidated to 15s of interest-earning assets compared to 18 at December
Financial Statements In 2008 the Bancorp recognized 0111 31 2009 This was due to 17 decrease in the available-for-sale

charges of $67 million on FHLMC and FNMA preferred stock portfolio as discussed above partially offset by the impact of

and $37 million on certain trust preferred securities Upon four
percent

decline in average interest earning assets The

change in U.S GAAP in 2009 the Bancorp concluded that the estimated weighted-average life of the debt securities in the

0111 charges on these trust preferred securities were due to non- available-for-sale portfolio was 4.4 years at December 31 2010

credtt related factors and therefore recognized an increase of $37 and 2009 At December 31 2010 the fixed-rate securities within

million to the investment balance and related unrealized losses the available-for-sale securities portfolio had weighted-average
The Bancorp did not hold asset backed securities backed by yield of 4.24 compared to 4.48 at December 31 2009

subprimc mortgage loans in its investment portfolio as of or for Information presented in Table 21 is on weighted-average
the

years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 Additionally there life basis anticipating future
prepayments Yield information is

was approximately $137 million of secutities classified as below presented on an FTE basis and is computed using historical cost

investment grade as of December 31 2010 compared to $178 balances Maturity and yield calculations for the total available-for-

million as of December 31 2009 sale portfolio exclude equity secutities that have no stated yield or

As of December 31 2010 available-for-sale securities on an matutity Market rates dedllned from 2009 which led to net

amortized cost basis decreased $3.0 billion from December 31 unreabzed gains on agency mortgage-backed securities of $403

2009 The decrease included the impact of change in U.S million compared to $323 milbon as of December 31 2009 Total

GAAP that required the Bancorp to consolldate certain VIEs net unrealized gains on the available-for-sale secutities portfolio

resulting in the elimination of $805 million in commercial paper were $495 million at December 31 2010 compared to $334
and $236 million of residual interests classified as available-for-sale million at December 31 2009

TABLE 20 COMPONENTS OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES

As of December 31 in miffions 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Available-for-sale and other amortized cost basis

U.S Treason and Government agencies $225 $464 186 1396
U.S Government sponsored agencies 1564 2143 1651 160 100

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 170 240 323 490 603

Agency mortgage-backed securities 10570 11074 8529 8738 7999
Other bonds notes and debcnmres 1338 2541 613 385 172

Other securities
1052 1417 1248 1045 966

Total available-for-sale and other $14919 17879 12550 10821 11236

Held-to-mamriry amortized cost basis

Obligations of states and
political

subdivisions $348 350 355 351 345

Other bonds notes and debentures
11

Total held-to maruritv $353 355 360 355 356

Trading fair value

Variable rate demand notes $106 235 1140
Other securities 188 120 51 171 187

Total trading $294 355 1191 171 187
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Trading securities decreased from $355 million at December

31 2009 to $294 million at December 31 2010 The decrease was

driven by the sale of VRDNs which were held by the Bancorp in

its trading securities portfoho These securities were purchased

from the market during 2008 and 2009 through FTS who was also

the remarkcting agent During the fourth
quarter

of 2009 and into

2010 the rates on these securities began to decline substantially

and as result the Bancorp sold majority of its VRDNs and

replaced them with higher-yielding agency mortgage-backed

securities classified as available-for-sale The Bancorp continued

to sell the \TRDNs throughout 2010 resulting in the decrease

from December 31 2009 For more information on the VRDNs

see Note 18 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Included in trading securities as of December 31 2010 were $6

million of auction rate securities which had an unrealized loss of

$1 million The Bancorp held $13 million of auction rate securities

in its trading portfolio at December 31 2009 which had an

unrealized loss of $4 million

TABLE 21 CHARACTERISTICS OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE AND OTHER SECURITIES

Weighted-

Average Life @n Weighted-

As of December 31 2010 in millions Amortized Cost Fair Value years Average Yield

U.S Treasury and Government agencies

Average life of one year or less $25 $25 0.3 0.91/o

Average life years
100 101 1.4 1.20

Average life 10 years
100 104 8.9 3.57

Average life greater than 10 years
--

Total 225 230 4.6 2.22

U.S Government sponsored agencies

Average life of one year or less 80 81 0.2 3.35

Average life years
51 51 1.7 1.54

Average life 10 years 1433 1513 5.9 3.75

Average life greater than 10 years
--

Total 1564 1645 5.5 3.66

Obligations of states and poliocal subdivisions

Average life of one year or less 126 126 0.1 4.20

Average life years
2.8 8.21

Average life 10 years
9.4 6.27

Average life greater than 10 years
32 32 11.0 5.98

Total 170 172 2.7 4.73

Agency mortgage-backed secunocs

Average life of one year or less 264 270 0.7 4.85

Average life years 8579 8956 3.8 4.40

Average life 10 years 1668 1689 6.8 4.30

Average life greater than 10 years
59 58 10.3 4.09

Total 10570 10973 4.2 4.40

Other bonds notes and debentures Is

Average life of one year or less 131 131 0.5 1.11

Average life years
801 812 2.6 4.37

Average life 10 years
337 330 6.0 3.60

Average life greater than 10 years
69 69 23.0 7.21

Total 1338 1342 4.3 4.00

Other securities 1052 1052

Total available-for-sale and other securities $14919 $15414 4.4 4.24%

Taxable-equivalent jield adjustments
included in the above table are 1.45% 2.83% 16% 2.06% and 1.63% far securities ivith an arerage 111 of one jear sr less l-5jears lOjears

greater
than

jears
and in totaI respectively

Other honds notes and debentures consist of non-agency mortgage
hacked securities certain other asset hacked securities primarify automobile and commercial loan hacked securities and

corporate
bond securities

Other securities consist of F1-ILB and FR/I restricted stock holdings that are carried at par FHLMC and FNMA prejirred stock certain mutual fund holdings and equi5 security

holdings
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TABLE 23 AVERAGE DEPOSITS

As of December 31 in millions

Demand

Inrercst checking

Savings

Money market

Foreign office
____________________________

Transaction deposits

Other time
__________________ ____________

Core deposits

Certificates 5100000 and over

Other

Total average deposits

Deposits

Deposit balances represent an important source of funding and

revenue growth opportunity The Bancorp continues to focus on

core deposit growth in its retail and commercial franchises by

improving customer satisfaction building complete relationships

and offering compeotive rates At December 31 2010 core

deposits represented O% of the Bancorps asset funding base

compared to fl8% at December 31 2009

Core deposits increased $765 million or one percent

compared to 2009 due primarily to increases of $3.0 billion in

savings and $2.0 biffion in demand deposits which was primarily

the result of excess customer liquidity In addition foreign office

deposits increased $1.3 billion due to an increase in commercial

customer deposits due to excess customer liquidity and those

customers opting to sweep additional funds into these accounts

for the higher interest rates These increases were partially offset

by the continued run-off of higher priced certificates included in

other time deposits which declined $4.7 biffion or 38%
compared to Decemlier 31 2009 as well as decline in interest

2009 2008 2007 2006

16862 14017 13261 13741

15070 14191 14820 16650

16875 16192 14836 12189

4320 6127 6308 6366

2108 2153 1762 732

55235 52680 50987 49678

14103 11135 10778 10500

69338 63815 61765 60178

10367 9531 6466 5795

157 2067 1393 2979

79862 75413 69624 68952

due primarily to rate management actions on single

product public funds accounts in the second half of 2010

Included in core deposits are foreign office deposits which

are Eurodoliar sweep accounts for the Bancorps commercial

customers These accounts bear interest at rates slightly higher

than money market accounts but the Bancorp does not have to

pay FDIC insurance nor pledge collateral The Bancorp uses these

deposits as well as certificates of deposit $100000 and over as

method to fund earning asset growth Certificates $100000 and

over at December 31 2010 decreased $3.4 biffion compared to

December 31 2009 as customers opted to maintain their balances

in liquid accounts due to historicaliy low interest rates

On an average basis core deposits increased $6.9 billion or

lO% due to increases in interest checking of $3.1 billion demand

deposits of $2.8 billion savings deposits of $2.7 billion and

foreign office deposits of $1.2 billion partially offset by decrease

in other time deposits of $3.6 billion This activity was the result

of the migration of higher priced certificates included in other

ome deposits into transaction accounts as well as the impact of

historically low rates and excess customer liquidity

TABLE 22 DEPOSITS

As of December31 in millions 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Demand $21413 19411 15287 14404 14331
Interest checking 18560 19935 14222 15254 15993

Savings 20903 17898 16063 15635 13181

Money market 5035 4431 4689 6521 6584

Foreign office 3721 2454 2144 2572 1353
Transacnon deposits 69632 64129 52405 54386 51442

Other time 7728 12466 14350 11440 10987
Core deposits 77360 76595 66755 65826 62429

Certificates 5100000 and over 4287 7700 11851 6738 6628
Other 10 2881 323

Total deposits $81648 84305 78613 75445 69380

2010

$19669

18218

19612

4808

3355

65662

10526

76188

6083

$82277

checking
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Borrowings

Total borrowings declined $693 million from December 31 2009

as the result of decrease in long-term debt partially offset by an

increase in federal funds purchased and other short-term

borrowings

Long-term debt at December 31 2010 decreased $949

million or nine percent compared to December 31 2009

primarily as the result of the repayment of $1.0 billion in FHLB

advances during the fourth quarter of 2010 and the maturity of

$800 million of long-term debt in the first quarter
of 2010 These

declines were partially offset by the impact of change in U.S

GAAP which required the Bancorp to consolidate long-term debt

on January 2010 that had an outstanding balance of $692

million as of December 31 2010

Average borrowings declined $5.2 billion from 2009

primarily as result of
repayment

of term auction facility funds

and FHLB advances throughout 2009 which contributed $3.7

billion and $1.2 billion respectively to average balances in 2009

These repayments were made possible by decrease in loan

demand combined with growth in deposits during 2009 See the

Capital Management Section for additional information

Information on the average rates paid on borrowings is

included within the Statements of Income Analysis Additionally

refer to the Liquidity Risk Management section for discussion

on the role of borrowings in the Bancorps liquidity management

On January 25 2011 the Baneorp issued $1.0 billion of

senior notes to third party investors bearing fixed rate of

interest of 3.625% per annum The notes are unsecured senior

obligations of the Baneorp and mature on January 25 2016 See

Note 32 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for

further information on the debt issuance

TABLE 24 BORROWINGS

As of December31 in millions 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Federal funds purchased
$279 182 287 4427 1421

Other short-term borrowings 1574 1415 9959 4747 2796

Long-term debt 9558 10507 13585 12857 12558

Total borrowings $11411 12104 23831 22031 16775

TABLE 25 AVERAGE BORROWINGS

As of December31 in millions
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Federal funds purchased $291 517 2975 3646 4148

Other short-term borrowings 1635 6463 7785 3244 8670

Long-term debt 10902 11035 13903 12505 14247

Total borrowings $12828 18015 24663 19395 27065
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Managing risk is an essential component of successfully operating

financial services company The Bancorps risk management

approach includes processes for identifying assessing managing

monitoring and reporting risks The ERM division led by the

Baneorps Chief Risk Officer ensures the consistency and

adequacy of the Baneorps risk management approach within the

structure of the Bancorps affiliate operating model In addition

the Internal Audit division provides an independent assessment of

the Bancorps internal control structure and related systems and

processes

The assumption of risk requires robust and active risk

management practices that comprise an integrated and

comprehensive set of activities measures and strategies that apply

to the entire organization The Baneorp has established Risk

Appetite Framework that provides the foundations of corporate

risk capacity risk appetite and risk tolerances The Baneorps risk

capacity is represented by its available financial resources Risk

capacity sets an absolute limit on risk-assumption in the Baneorps

annual and strategic plans The Baneorps policy currently

discounts its risk capacity by five percent to provide buffer as

result the Baneorps risk appetite is limited by policy to 95% of its

risk
capacity

Economic capital is the amount of unencumbered financial

resources necessary to support the Bancorps risks The Baneorp

measures economic capital under the
assumption

that it expects to

maintain debt ranngs at strong investment grade levels over time

The Bancorps capital policies require that the economic capital

necessary in its business not exceed its risk capacity less the

aforementioned buffer

Risk appetite is the aggregate amount of risk the Bancorp is

willing to accept in pursuit of its strategic and financial objectives

By establishing boundaries around risk taking and business

decisions and by incorpotating the needs and goals of its

shareholders regulators rating agencies and customers the

Baneorps risk appetite is aligned with its priorities and goals Risk

tolerance is the maximum amount of risk applicable to each of the

eight specific risk categories included in its Enterprise Risk

Management Framework This is expressed pnmardy in qualitative

terms The Baneorps risk appetite and risk tolerances are

supported by risk
targets

and risk limits Those limits are used to

monitor the amount of risk assumed at granular level

The risks faced by the Bancorp include but are not limited to

credit matket liquidity operational regulatory compliance legal

reputaoonal and strategic Each of these risks is managed through

the Baneorps risk program ERM includes the foliowing key

functions

Enterprise Risk Management Programs is responsible

for developing and overseeing the implementation of risk

programs and reporting that facilitate broad integrated

view of risk The department also leads the ongoing

development of
strong

risk management culture and the

framework policies and committees that support effective

risk
governance

Commercial Credit Risk Management provides safety

and soundness within an independent portfolio

management framework that
supports

the Baneorps

commercial loan growth strategies and underwriting

practices ensuring portfolio optimization and appropriate

risk controls

Risk Strategies and Reporting is responsible for

quantitative analysis needed to support the commercial

dual grading system
ALLL methodology and analytics

needed to assess credit risk and develop mitigation

strategies related to that risk The department also

provides oversight reporting anti monitoring of

commercial underwriting and credit administration

processes The Risk Strategies and Repornng department

is also responsible for the economic capital program

Consumer Credit Risk Management provides safety and

soundness within an independent management framework

that
supports

the Baneorps consumer loan growth

strategies ensuring portfolio optimization appropriate

risk controls and oversight reporong and monitoring of

underwriting and credit administranon
processes

Operational Risk Management works with affiliates and

lines of business to maintain processes to monitor and

manage all
aspects

of operational risk including ensuring

consistency in application of operational risk
programs

and Sarbanes-Oxley compliance

Bank Protection oversees and manages fraud

prevention
and detection and provides investigative and

recovery services for the Baneorp

Capital Markets Risk Management is responsible for

instituting monitoring and reporting appropriate trading

linuts monitoring liquidity interest rate risk and risk

tolerances within Treasury Mortgage and Capital Markers

groups and utilizing value at risk model for Bancorp

market risk
exposure

Regulatory Compliance Risk Management ensures that

processes are in place to monitor and comply with federal

and state banking regulations including fiduciary

compliance processes The function also has the

responsibility fbr maintenance of an enterprise-wide

compliance framework and

The ERM division creates and maintains other

functions committees or processes as are necessary to

effeenvely manage risk throughout the Bancorp

Risk management oversight and governance is provided by

the Risk and Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors

and through multiple management etimmittecs whose

membership includes broad cross-section of line of business

affiliate and
support representatives The Risk and Compliance

Committee of the Board of Directors consists of five outside

directors and has the responsibility for the oversight of risk

management for the Bancorp as well as for the Bancorps overall

aggregate risk profile The Risk and Compliance Committee of the

Board of Directors has approved the formation of key

management governance committees that are responsible for

evaluating risks and controls The primary committee responsible

for the oversight of risk management is the ERMC Committees

accountable to the ERMC which
support

the core risk
programs

are the Corporate Credit Committee the Operational Risk

Committee the Management Compliance Committee the

Executive Asset Liability Management Committee and the

Enterprise Markenng Committee Other committees accountable

to the ERMC oversee the ALLL capital and community

reinvestment act/fair lending functions There are also new

products and initiatives processes applicable to every line of

business to ensure an appropriate standard readiness assessment is

performed before launching new product or initiative

Significant risk policies approved by the management governance

committees are also reviewed and approved by the Risk and

Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors

Finally Credit Risk Review is an independent function

responsible for evaluating the sufficiency of underwriting

documentation and approval processes for consumer and

commercial credits the accuracy of risk grades assigned to
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commercial credit exposure appropriate accounting for charge

offs and non-accrual status and specific reserves Credit Risk

Review reports directly to the Risk and Compliance Committee of

the Board of Directors and administratively to the Director of

Internal Audit

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT
The olijective of the Bancorps credit risk management strategy is

to quantify and manage credit risk on an aggregate portfolio basis

as well as to limit the risk of loss resulting from an individual

customer default The Baneorps credit risk management strategy

is based on three core principles conservatism diversification and

monitoting The Bancorp believes that effective credit risk

management liegins with conservative lending practices These

practices include conservative exposure and counterparty
limits

and conservative underwriting documentation and collection

standards The Baneorps credit risk management strategy also

emphasizes diversification on geographic industry and customer

level as well as regular credit examinations and monthly

management reviews of large credit exposures
and credits

experiencing detetioration of credit quality Lending officers with

the authority to extend credit are delegated specific authority

amounts the utilization of which is closely monitored

Underwriting activities are centrally managed and ERM manages

the policy and the authority delegation process direedy The Credit

Risk Review function which reports to the Risk and Compliance

Committee of the Board of Directors provides objective

assessments of the quality of underwtiting and documentation the

accuracy of risk grades and the eharge-off nonacerual and reserve

analysis process
The Baneorps credit review process and overall

assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses is

based on quarterly assessments of the probable estimated losses

inherent in the loan and lease portfolio The Baneorp uses these

assessments to promptiy identify potential problem loans or leases

within the portfolio maintain an adequate reserve and take
any

necessary charge-offs
In addition to the individual review of

larger commercial loans that exhibit probable or observed credit

weaknesses the commercial credit review process includes the use

of two risk grading systems
The risk grading system currently

utilized for reserve analysis purposes encompasses ten eategoties

The Baneorp also maintains dual nsk rating system that provides

for thirteen probabilities of default grade categories and an

additional six grade categories for estimating losses given an event

of default The probability of default and loss given default

evaluations are not separated in the ten-grade
risk rating system

The Baneorp has completed significant
validation and testing of

the dual tisk rating system Scoring systems vatioui analytical

tools and delinquency monitoring are used to assess the credit risk

in the Baneorps homogenoos consumer and small business loan

portfolios

Overview

General economic conditions remained weak throughout most of

2009 but showed some signs of moderation duting 2010 These

conditions negatively impacted the 2009 performance
of

majotity of the Baneorps loan and lease products Geographically

the Baneorp continues to experience the most stress in Michigan

and Florida doe to the decline in real estate values Real estate

value detetioration as measured by the Home Price Index was

most prevalent in Flotida due to past real estate ptiee appreciation

and related over-development
and in Michigan doe in part

to

cutbacks in automobile manufacturing and the states economic

downturn Among commercial portfolios the homebuilder and

developer and the remaining non-owner occupied commercial real

estate portfolios remained under stress throughout 2009 and 2010

Among consumer portfolios residential mortgage
and brokered

home equity portfolios exhibited the most stress Management

suspended homebuilder and developer lending in the fourth

quarter of 2007 and new commercial non-owner occupied real

estate lending in the second quarter
of 2008 discontinued the

origination of brokered home equity products at the end of 2007

and tightened underwriting standards across both the commercial

and consumer loan product offerings Since the fourth quarter of

2008 in an effort to reduce loan exposure to the real estate and

construction industries the Baneorp has sold certain consumer

loans and sold or transferred to held for sale certain commercial

loans Throughout 2009 and 2010 the Baneorp continued to

aggressively engage
in other lois mitigation strategies such as

reducing credit commitments restructuring certain commercial

and consumer loans tightening underwriting standards on

commercial loans and across the consumer loan portfolio as well

as utilizing expanded commercial and consumer loan workout

teams In the financial services industry there has been

heightened
focus on foreclosure activity

and
processes

in recent

months due to issues concerning documentation supporting

foreclosures Fifth Third actively works with borrowers

experiencing difficulties and has modified or provided forbearance

to borrowers on approximately $1.8 billion of its own mortgages

during the past
several years where workable solution could be

found Foreclosure is last resort and the Bancorp undertakes

foreclosures only when it believes they are necessary
and

approptiate and are careful to ensure that customer and loan data

are accurate The Baneorp conducted reviews of its foreclosure

processes
and procedures

in the third quarter of 2010 which did

not reveal any maretial deficiencies and has continued to expand

and extend these reviews and improve its processes as additional

aspects
of the industrys foreclosure practices

have come under

intensified scrutiny and criticism These reviews are ongoing and

the Baneorp may determine to amend its processes
and

procedures as result of these reviews While any impact to the

Bancorp that ultimately results from continued reviews cannot yet

be determined management currently believes that such impact

will not materialiy adversely affect the Bancorps results of

operations liquidity or capital resources

Commercial Portfolio

The Baneorps credit risk management strategy
includes

minimizing concentrations of risk through diversification The

Bancorp has commercial loan concentration limits based on

industry lines of business within the commercial segment
and

credit product type

The risk within the commercial loan and lease portfolio is

managed and monitored through an underwriting process utilizing

detailed otigination policies
continuous loan level reviews the

monitoring of industry concentration and product type limits and

continuous portfolio risk management reporting The origination

policies for commercial real estate outline the risks and

underwriting requirements for owner occupied non-owner

occupied and construction lending Included in the policies are

maturity and amortization terms maximum LTV minimum debt

service coverage ratios construction loan monitoring procedures

appraisal requirements pre-leasing requirements as applicable

and sensitivity and pro-forma analysis reqrnrements The Baneorp

requires an appraisal of collateral be performed at origination and

on an as-needed basis in conformity with market conditions and

regulatory requirements It is the Baneorps policy to obtidn an as

is value appraisal annually on all criticized assets Independent

reviews are performed on appraisals to ensure the appraiser is

qualified and consistency in the evaluation process exists
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Table 26 provides detail on total commercial loan and leases excluding held-for-sale by major industry classification as defined by the North

American Industry Classification System by loan size and by state illustrating the diversity and granularity of the Bancorps commercial loans

and leases

TABLE 26 COMMERCIAL LOAN AND LEASE PORTFOLIO EXPOSURE

2010 2009

As of December 31 in millions Outstanding Exposure Nonaccrual Outstanding Exposure Nonaccrual

By industry

Real estate $8295 9532 378 10091 11622 915

Manufacturing 7202 14979 149 6289 13093 204

Financial services and insurance 3830 8184 78 4354 8702 40

Healthcare
3402 5421 35 3004 4921 67

Business services 3314 5379 50 2643 4595 49

Wholesale trade 2926 5689 18 2248 4632 48

Construction
2789 4124 242 3759 5281 700

Retail trade 2548 5377 48 2678 5552 104

Transportation and warehousing 2074 2566 15 2503 3003 51

Other services 1062 1473 35 1127 1558 33

Communicaoon and information 1004 1668 792 1346
Accommodation and food 953 1476 26 1019 1505 58

Mining 851 1443 19 765 1182 16

Entertainment and recreation 788 1012 740 949 15

Individuals 690 830 10 737 905 19

Public administration 616 848 681 877

Utilities 595 1600 473 1310

Agribusiness 483 621 85 585 742 59

Other 40 119 317 679

Total $43462 72341 1214 44805 72454 2392

By loan size

Less than $200000

$200000 to $1 million 10 25 12 18

$1 million to $5 million 21 17 34 26 20 39

$5 million to $10 million 13 11 13 11 18

$10 million to $25 million 25 25 19 24 26 17

Greater than $25 million 28 37 22 32

Total 100 100 100 100 100 100

By state

Ohio 25 29 17 28 31 15

Michigan 15 13 22 16 14 18

Illinois

Florida 17 26

Indiana

Kentucky

North Carolina

Tennessee

Pennsylvania

All other states 25 25 18 21 21 17

Total 100 100 100 100 100 100

The Bancorp has identified certain categories of commercial loans Tables 27 30 provide analysis of each of the categories of

which it believes represent higher level of risk as compared to commercial loans excluding loans held for sale as of and for the

the rest of the Bancorps commercial loan portfolio due to years ended December 31 2010 and 2009
economic or market conditions in the Bancorps key lending areas

TABLE 27 NON-OWNER OCCUPIED COMMERCIALREAL ESTATE

For the Year Ended
As of December 31 2010 in millions _________ December 31 2010

90 Days
By State Outstanding Exposure Past Due Nonaecrual Net Charge-offs
Ohio

$2332 2565 90 119

Michigan 1695 1809 85 123

Florida 935 1022 120 180

Illinois 568 654 39 65

North Carolina 392 438 37 58

Indiana 387 419 19 32

All other states 751 823 39 48

Total $7060 7730 429 625
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TABLE 28 NON-OWNER OCCUPIED COMMERCIALREAL ESTATE
For the Year Ended

As of December 31 2009 in imilions
December 31 2009

90 Days

By State Outstanding Exposure Past Due Nonaccrual Net Charge-offs

Ohio $2917 3250 14 204 111

Michigan 2003 2193 16 173 153

Florida 1517 1611 384 229

Illinois 820 935 109 48

North Carolina 716 768 146 54

Indiana 531 553 49 27

All other states 1037 1345 154 99

Total $9541 10655 47 1219 721

TABLE 29 HOME BUILDER AND DEVELOPER
For the Year Ended

As of December 31 2010 in millions
December 31 2010

90 Days

By State Outstanding Exposure Past Due Nonacerual Net Charge-offs

Ohio $202 331 35 39

Michigan
151 212 23 65

Florida 103 117 44 81

North Carolina 68 80 10 33

Indiana 67 85 13

All other states
108 159 20 43

Total $699 984 140 274

Home Builder and Developer loans exclusive
of

commercial and industrial loans with an outstanding
balance of $134 and total exposure of $319 are also included in Table 27 Non-Owner

Occupied Commercial Real Estate

TABLE 30 HOME BUILDER AND DEVELOPER
For the Year Ended

As of December 31 2009 in millions
December 31 2009

90 Days

By State Outstanding Exposure Past Due Nonaccrual Net Charg-offs

Ohio $346 542 73 34

Michigan
278 351 63 77

Florida 318 336 136 98

North Carolina 229 260 95 49

Indiana 108 133 12

All other states
284 383 94 91

Total $1563 2005 19 473 358

Home Builder and
Developer loans exclusive of commercial and industrial loans with an outstandin4 balance of $200 and total

exposure of $461 are also included in Table 28 Non-Owner

Occupied Commercial Real Estate

Consumer Portfolio

The Baneorps consumer portfolio is materially comprised
of

three categories of loans residential mortgage
home equity and

automobile loans The Bancorp has identified certain categories

within these loan types
which it believes represent higher level

of risk compared to the rest of the consumer loan portfolio due to

high loan amount to collateral value

Residential Mortgage Portfolio

The Baneorp manages credit risk in the mortgage portfolio

through conservative underwriting and documentation standards

and geographic and product diversification The Bancorp may also

package and sell loans in the portfolio or may purchase mortgage

insurance for the loans sold in order to mitigate credit risk

The Baneorp does not originate mortgage loans that permit

customers to defer principal payments or make payments
that are

less than the accruing interest The Bancorp originates both fixed

and adjustable rate residential mortgage loans Resets of rates on

adjustable rate mortgages are not expected to have material

impact on credit costs in the current interest rate environment as

approximately $1.3 billion of adjustable rate residential mortgage

loans will have rate resets in 2011 with less than one Percent of

those resets expected to experience an increase in monthly

payments

Certain residential mortgage products
have contractual

features that may increase credit exposure to the Bancorp in the

event of decline in housing prices These types of mortgage

products offered by the Bancorp include loans with high LTV

ratios multiple loans on the same collateral that when combined

result in an LTV greater than 8O% 80/20 loans and interest-only

loans The Baneorp monitors residential mortgages
loans with

greater
than 80% LTV ratio and no mortgage

insurance as it

believes these loans represent higher level of risk Tables 31 and

32 provide analysis of the residential mortgage loans outstanding

with greater than SO% LTV ratio and no mortgage insurance as

of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively
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TABLE 31 RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE LOANS OUTSTANDING LTV GREATER THAN 80% NO MORTGAGE INSURANCE
For the Year Ended

As of December 31 2010 in millions December 31 2010

90 Days
By State

Outstanding Past Due Nonaccrual Net Charge-offs
Ohio $569 24 22

Michigan 294 20 21

Florida 294 31 56

North Carolina 131 12

Indiana
iii

Kentucky 78

Illinois 67

All other states 122

Total
$1666 15 95 131

TABLE 32 RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE LOANS OUTSTANDING LTV GREATER THAN 80% NO MORTGAGE INSURANCE
For the Year Ended

As of December 31 2009 in millions Dec 31 2009

90 Days
By State

Outstanding Past Due Nonacerual Net Charge-offs
Ohio $673 25 18

Michigan 350 13 21

Florida 388 50 68

North Carolina 169

Indiana 145

Kentucky 92

Illinois 62

All other states 141

Total
$2020 26 121 128

Home Equity Portfolio

The home equity portfolio is managed in two categories loans The Bancorp actively manages lines of credit and makes

outstanding with LTV
greater than 8O% and those loans with reductions in lending limits when it believes it is necessary based

LTV of less than SO% The carrying value of the greater than 8O/s on HCO score deterioration and
property devaluation The

TV home equity loans and less than 8O% LTV home equity Bancorp believes that home equity loans with
greater than 80%

loans were $4.6 billion and $6.9 billion respectively as of LTV ratio present higher level of risk The following tables

December 31 2010 Of the total $11.5 billion of outstanding provide analysis of these loans as of December 31 2010 and 2009
home equity loans 82% reside within the Bancorps Midwest

footprint of Ohio Michigan Kentucky Indiana and Illinois The

portfolio has an average HCO score at loan origination of 734 at

December 31 2010 compared to 730 at December 31 2009

TABLE 33 HOME EQUITY LOANS OUTSTANDING WITH LTV GREATER THAN 80%

For the Year Ended
As of December 31 2010 in millions December 31 2010

90 Days

Outstanding Exposure Past Due Nonaccrual Ncç5gy-pffs
Ohio

$1576 2288 35

Michigan 998 1317 50

Illinois 482 662 22

Indiana 451 638 10

Kentucky 421 614

Florida 172 218 21

All other states 466 568 28

Total
$4566 6305 45 27 175

TABLE 34 HOME EQUITY LOANS OUTSTANDING WITH LTV GREATER THAN 80%

For the Year Ended
As of December 31 2009 in million December 31 2009

90 Days
By State

Outstanding Exposure Past Due Nonacerual Net Charge-offs

Ohio 81727 2465 13 43

Michigan 1091 1417 14 61

Illinois 505 689 32

Indiana 499 691 13

Kentucky 471 672 12

Florida 198 248 35

All other states 523 618 37

Total $5014 6800 58 27 233
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Automobile Portfolio

The automobile portfolio is characterized by direct aod iodirect

lending products to consumers As of Dccember 31 2010 the

automobile loan portfobo was comprised of approximately 48%

in new automobile loans It is common practice to advance on

automobile loans an amount in excess of the automobile value

due to the inclusion of taxes title and other fees paid at closing

The Bancorp monitors its exposure to these higher nsk accounts

The following tables provide analysis of the Bancorps automobile

loans with LTV at origination greater than lOO/s as of

December 31 2010 and 2009

TABLE 35 AUTOMOBILE LOANS OUTSTANDING WITH LTV GREATER THAN 100%

For the Year Ended

As of December 31 2010 in millions
December 31 2010

90 Days

By State Outstanding Past Due Nonaccmal Nct Charge-offs

Ohio $447

Illinois 375

Michigan 269

Indiana 208

Florida 199

Kentucky
181

All other states 2451 33

Total $4130 58

TABLE 36 AUTOMOBILE LOANS OUTSTANDING WITH LTV GREATER THAN 100%

For the Year Ended

As of December 31 2009 in millions
December 31 2009

90 Days

By State Outstanding Past Due Nonaccrual Net Chaçggffs

Ohio $422

Illinois 357

Michigan
252

Indiana 215

Florida 193 II

Kentucky
177

All other states 2067 46

Total $3683 10 90

Analysis ofNonperforming Assets

summary of nonperforming assets is included in Table 37

Nonpcrforming assets include nonaccrual loans and leases for

which ultimate coilectabdity of the full amount of the principal

and/or interest is uncertain restructured consumer loans which

are 90 days past due based on the restructured terms and credit

card loans immediately upon restructuring restructured

commercial loans which have not yet met the requirements to be

classified as performing asset and other assets including OREO

and repossessed equipment Typically commercial loans home

equity automobile and other consumer loans and leases are

reported on nonaccrual status if principal or interest has been in

default for 90 days or more unless the loan is both well-secured

and in the process of collection Residential mortgage loans are

typically placed on nonaccrual status when principal and interest

payments
have become past due 150 days unless such loans are

both well secured and in the process of collection When loan is

placed on nonaccrual status the accrual of interest amortization

of loan premiums accretion of loan discounts and amortization or

accretion of deferred net loan fees or costs are discontinued and

previously accrued but unpaid interest is reversed Commercial

loans on nonaccrual status are reviewed for level of impairment at

least quarterly If the principal or portion of the principal is

deemed loss the loss amount is charged off to the ALLL

Total nonperforming assets were $2.5 billion at December

31 2010 compared to $3.5 bdbon at December 31 2009 At

December 31 2010 $294 million of nonaccrual commercial loans

were held-for-sale significant portion of which were real estate

secured loans in Islichigan and Florida Nonperforming assets as

percentage of total loans leases and other assets including OREO

and nonaccrual loans held for sale was 3.08% and 4.38% as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Excluding the held-

for-sale nonaccrual loans nonperforming assets as percentage
of

total loans leases and other assets including OREO as of

December 31 2010 was 2.79% compared to 4.22% as of

December 31 2009 The composition
of nonaccrual loans and

leases continues to be concentrated in real estate as 66% of

nonaccrual loans were secured by real estate as of December 31

2010 compared to approximately 77% as of December 31 2009

Commercial nonperforming loans and leases decreased to

$1.6 billion at December 31 2010 from $2.6 biffion at December

31 2009 due to the impact of previous loss mitigation actions and

moderation in general economic conditions Excluding

nonperforming loans held-for-sale commercial nonpcrfornMng

loans and leases decreased from $2.3 biffion at December 31 2009

to $1.3 billion as of December 31 2010 These decreases were due

to the previously discussed factors and the impact of commercial

nonperforming loans transferred to held fot sale during the third

quarter
of 2010 The Bancorp transferred commercial loans with

carrying value prior to transfer of $961 mdlion to held for sale

during the third
quarter

of which $694 million were

nonperfotming Of those loans transferred in the third quarter of

2010 S2% were secured by non-owner occupied real estate

including 22% secured by developed and undeveloped land

Approximately 40% of those transferred loans were in Florida or

Michigan The remaining balance of the loans transferred during

the third quarter of 2010 was $223 million at December 31 2010

Consumer nonperforming loans and leases decreased to $466

million as of December 31 2010 compared to $555 million at

December 31 2009 driven primarily by $144 tmllion decrease in

residential mortgage loans on nonaccrual partially offset by an

$84 million increase in other consumer loans The decrease in

residential mortgage
loans was primardy the result of $205 million

of nonperforming residential mortgage
loans sold during the third

quarter of 2010 The increase in other consumer loans was the
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result of the Bancorps foreclosure during the fourth quarter of

2010 on commercial loan collateralized by individual consumer

loans with carrying value of $78 million that were classified as

nonaccrual loans at December 31 2010 Consumer restructured

loans on accrual status totaled $1.6 billion and $1.4 biffion as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively driven by an increased

volume of restructured loans As of December 31 2010 redefault

rates on restructured residential
mortgage

home equity loans and

credit card loans were 27% 8% and 20% respectively

Repossessed personal property and OREO increased from

$297 million at December 31 2009 to $494 million at December

31 2010 driven by higher levels of foreclosures on commercial

mortgage loans At December 31 2010 OREO totaled $467

million and included $351 million of commercial assets and $116

million of consumer assets Properoes in Michigan and Florida

accounted for 49% of foreclosed real estate at December 31

2010

Tn 2010 and 2009 approximately $10 million and $20 million

respectively of interest income was recognized on cash basis for

loans on nonaccrual In 2010 and 2009 additional interest income

of approximately $206 million and $236 million respectively

would have been recorded if the nonaccrual and renegotiated

loans and leases on nonaccrual status had been current in

accordance with the original terms Although this value helps

demonstrate the costs of carrying nonaecrual credits the Bancorp

does not expect to recover the full amount of interest

Analysis ofNet Loan harge-offs

Net charge-offs were 302
lip

of
average

loans and leases for 2010

compared to 320 lip for 2009 Table 39 provides summary of

credit loss expenence and net eliarge-offs as percentage of

average loans and leases outstanding by loan category

The ratio of commercial loan net eharge-offs to average

commercial loans outstanding decreased to 3.10% in 2010

compared to 3.27% in 2009 This improvement was ptimarily due

to actions taken by the Baneorp to address problem loans

reflected by significant net eharge-offs recorded in 2008 and 2009

and the impact of loss mitigation activities such as suspending

home builder and developer lending and non-owner occupied

commercial real estate lending in 2007 and 2008 respectively and

tighter underwriting standards implemented on commercial loan

products over the past three years Net eliarge-offs for 2010

included $625 miffion related to non-owner occupied commercial

real-estate decrease from $721 million in 2009 Cliarge-offs on

these loans represented 465/s of all commercial net eharge-offs in

2010 and 2009 Florida and Michigan continued to expetience the

most stress accounting for approximately 485/s of the total net

charge-offs in the commercial loan product portfolio in 2010

compared to 44% in 2009

The ratio of consumer loan net charge-offs to average

consumer loans outstanding decreased to 2.925/s in 2010

compared to 3.IO% in 2009 Compared to 2009 total consumer

net eharge-offs decreased $54 million to $964 million in 2010

Residential mortgage loan net eharge-offs increased $82 million to

$439 million duting 2010 The ratio of residential mortgage net

charge-offs to average residential mortgage loans increased from

4.15% in 2009 to 5.49/b in 2010 These increases were ptimatily

due to $123 million in charge-offs taken on $228 million of

portfolio residential
mortgage loans sold during the third quarter

of 2010 The Baneorps Flotida and Michigan markets continue to

experience the most stress as residential mortgage loan cliarge-offs

in these states accounted for 725/s of residential mortgage net

eharge-offs duting 2010

Home equity net eliarge-offs decreased $58 million to $264

million dunng 2010 The ratio of home equity net eharge-offs to

average home equity loans decreased from 2.S7% in 2009 to

2.20% in 2010 These decreases are primarily due to $33 million

decrease in net eharge-offs on the brokered home equity portfolio

and $20 million decrease in net eliarge-offs in the Flotida and

Michigan markets on home equity products otiginated by the

Bancorp Management responded to the performance of tlie

brokered home equity portfolio by eliminating this channel of

origination at the end of 2007 In addition management actively

manages
lines of credit and makes reductions in lending limits

when it believes it is necessary based on FICO score deterioration

and property devaluation

Automobile loan net charge offs decreased $60 million to $88

million in 2010 The ratio of automobile loan net charge-offs to

average automobile loans was .8S% for 2010 decrease of 83
lip

compared to 2009 These decreases are the result of

improvements in delinquencies and loss severity as well as

improvements made in underwriting over the past three years

Credit card net eharge-offs decreased $15 million to $155

million in 2010 The net charge-off ratio on credit card balances

decreased from 8.87% in 2009 to 8.28% in 2010 The decreases

from the prior year are primarily due to the Baneorp actively

managing open credit card balances and decrease in delinquency

trends throughout 2010 as general economic conditions began to

show signs of improvement Management expects trends in the

charge-off ratio on credit card balances to be consistent with

general economic trends such as unemployment and personal

bankruptcy filings The Baneorp employs risk-adjusted pricing

merliodology to help ensure adequate compensation is received

for those products that have higher credit costs
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TABLE 37 SUMMARY OF NONPERFORMING ASSETS AND DELINQUENT LOANS

As of December31 in millions
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Nonaccrual loans and leases

Commercial and industrial loans $473 734 541 175 127

Commercial mortgage loans 407 898 482 243 84

Commercial construction loans 182 646 362 249 54

Commercial leases 11 67 21

Residential mortgage loans 152 275 259 92 38

Home equity
23 21 26 45 40

Automobile loans

Other consumer loans and leases 84

Restructured loans and leases

Commercial and industrial loans 95 35

Commercial mortgage loans 28

Commercial construction loans 10

Commercial leases

Residential mortgage loans 7s
116 137 20 27

Home equity rb
33 33 29 11

Automobile loans

Credit card 55 87 30

Total nonperforming loans and leases 1680 2947 1776 856 352

Repossessed personal property and other real estate owned 494 297 230 171 103

Total nonperforming assets 2174 3244 2006 1027 455

Nonaccrual loans held for sale 294 224 473

Total nonperforming assets including loans held for sale $2468 3468 2479 1027 455

Commercial and industrial loans $16 118 76 44 38

Commercial mortgage loans 11 59 136 73 17

Commercial construction loans 17 74 67

Commercial leases

Residential mortgage loansd
100 189 198 186 68

Home equity 89 99 96 72 51

Automobile loans 13 17 21 13 11

Credit card 42 64 56 31 16

Other consumer loans and leases

Total 90 days past due loans and leases $274 567 662 491 210

Nonperforming assets as percent of total loans leases and other assets

including other real estate owned 2.79 4.22 2.38 1.25 .61

Allowance for loan and lease losses as percent of nonperforniing assets 138 116 139 93 170

Nonaccrual loans and leases ry/lect reclass/fication of 84 million in nonpeforming loans from commercial and industrial loans to other consumer loans and leases which occurred
after

the

Bancoip Form 8-K was filed on January 19 2011 This reclass//ication was primarily
result

of
the determination that consumer loans obtained in the foreclosure 5/a commercial loan were

more appropriate/y categori7ed as other consumer loans and leases in accordance with regulatory guidance

During 2009 the Bancorp modfied its consumer nonaccrualpoliry to exclude TDR loans that were less than 90 dqys past
due because they were pe5/orming in accordance with the restructured

terms For comparahil/lypurposes prior periods were adjhsted
to

r5/ect
this reclass/fication

Excludes nonaccrual loans held for
sale

Information for allperiods presented excludes advances made pursuant to servicing agreements to GNiVIA
mortgage pools

whose
repajments

are insured by
the Federal Housing Administration or

guaranteed 5/ the Department of
Veterans

Affairs
As ofDecember3i 2O16 2009 2008 2007 and 2006 these advances were $27i8 8130 840 825 and $14 respective/y

Troubled Debt Restructurings

If borrower is experiencing financial difficulty the Bancorp may

consider in certain circumstances modifying the terms of their

loan to maximize collection of amounts due Typically these

modifications reduce the loan interest rate extend the loan term

or in limited circumstances reduce the principal balance of the

loan These modifications are classified as TDRs

At the time of modification the Bancorp maintains certain

consumer loan TDRs including residential mortgage loans home

equity loans and other consumer loans on accrual status

provided there is reasonable assurance of repayment and

performance according to the modified terms based upon

current well-documented credit evaluation Commercial loan

TDRs and credit card TDRs are classified as nonaccrual loans and

are typically returned to accrual status upon six month period of

sustained performance under the restructured terms These

approaches are consistent with

regulatory agencies The following

loan type and delinquency Status

published guidance from

table summarizes TDRs by

TABLE 38 PERFORMING AND NONPERFORMING TDRs

Performing

30-89 Days Past 90 Days or More

As of December 31 2010 in millions Current Due Past Due Nonaccrual Total

Commercial $227 141 $369

Residential mortgagesa
950 67 49 116 1182

Home equity
364 47 33 444

Credit card 46 55 101

Other consumer 32 37

Total $1619 117 50 347 $2133

Information
includes advances made pursuant to servicing agreements

to GNItIA mortgage pools
whose

repqyments are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed bj the

Department of
Veterans Afidirs As of December 31 2010 these advances represented $44 of current loans 817 of

30-89 dqys past
due loans and $22 sf90 days or more past

due loans

Fifth Third Bancorp 55



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

TABLE 39 SUMMARY OF CREDIT LOSS EXPERIENCE

For the
years

ended December 31 in millions 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Losses charged offi

Commercial and indostrial loans $631 768 667 121 131
Commercial mortgage loans 541 436 618 46 27
Commcrcial constroction loans 265 420 750 29
Commercial leases 11
Residential mortgage loans 441 359 243 43 23
Home equity 276 330 212 106 65
Automobile lcsans 132 89 168 117 87
Credit card 164 178 101 54 36
Othcr consomer loans and leases 28 28 32 27 28

Total losses 2485 2719 2791 544 408
Recoveries of losses previoosly charged off

Commercial and industrial loans 45 50 18 12 24

Commercial mortgage loans 17 14

Commercial construction loans 13

Commercial leases

Rcsidenoal mortgage loans

Home equity 12

Aotomobile loans 44 41 34 32 30

Credit card

Other consomer loans and leases 10 18 16

Total rccovcncs 157 138 81 82 92

Net losses charged off

Ccsmmcrcial and indos trial loans 586 718 649 109 107
Commercial mortgage loans 524 422 613 44 24
Commercial constroction loans 252 416 748 29
Commercial leases

Residential mortgage loans 439 357 243 43 23
Home cqoitv 264 322 205 97 56
Automobdc loans 88 148 134 85 57
Credit card 155 170 94 46 31
Other consumer loans and leases 18 21 25

Total net losses charged off $2328 2581 2710 462 316
Net chargc-offs as percent of

average
loans and leases cxcloding held for sale

Commercial and indostrial loans 2.23 2.61 2.31 .49 .53

Commercial mortgage loans 4.58 3.43 4.80 .40 .25

Commercial construction loans 8.48 9.24 12.80 .51 .11

Commercial leases 0.05 122 .02 331 .03
Total commercial loans and leases 3.10 3.27 3.99 .43 .34

Residential mortgage Icans 5.49 4.15 2.47 .48 .27

Home cqoity 2.20 2.57 1.67 .82 .46

Aotomobdc loans 0.85 1.68 1.56 .83 .60

Credit card 8.28 8.87 5.51 3.55 3.65

Other consumer loans and leases 2.58 2.14 2.10 .83 .91

Total consomcr loans and leases 2.92 3.10 2.08 .84 .55

Total net losses charged off 3.02 3.20 3.23 .61 .44

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses is comprised of the ALLL and the

reserve for uofunded commitments The ALLL provides coverage

for probable and estimable losses in the loan and lease portfolio

The Bancorp evaluates the ALLL each quarter to determine its

adequacy to cover inherent losses Several factors are taken into

consideranon in the determination of the overall ALLL including

an unallocated component These factors include but are not

limited to the overall risk profile of the loan and lease portfolios

net charge-off experience the extent of impaired loans and leases

the level of nonaccrual loans and leases the level of 90 days past

due loans and leases and the overall percentage level of the ALLL
The Bancorp also considers overall asset quality trends credit

administraoon and portfolio management practices risk

idcntificauon practices credit policy and underwriting practices

overall portfolio growth portfolio concentrations and current

national and local economic conditions See the Critical

Accounong Policies section for more information

In 2010 the Bancorp did not substantively change any

material aspect of its overall approach in the determination of the

ALLL and there have been no material changes in assumptions or

estimanon techniques as compared to prior periods that impacted

the determinanon of the current period allowance In addition to

the ALLL the Bancorp maintains reserve for unfunded

commitments recorded in other liabilities in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets The methodology used to determine the adequacy

of this reserve is similar to the Bancorps methodology for

determining the ALLL The provision for unfunded commitments

is included in other noninterest expense in the Consolidated

Statements of Income

Certain inherent but unconfirmed losses are probable within

the loan and lease portfolio The Bancorps current methodology

for determining the level of losses is based on historical loss rates

current credit grades specific allocation on loans modified in

TDR and impaired commercial credits above specified thresholds

and other qualitative adjustments Due to the heavy reliance on

realized historical losses and the credit grade rating process
the

model derived required reserves tend to slightly lag the

deterioration in the portfolio in stable or deteriorating credit

environment and tend not to be as responsive
when improved

conditions have presented themselves Given these model

limitations the qualitative adjustment factors may lie incremental

or decremental to the quantitative model results An unallocated

component to the ALLI is maintained to recognize the

imprecision in estimating and measuting loss The unallocated

allowance as percent of total portfolio loans and leases for the
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year ended December 31 2010 was .19% or five percent of the

total ALLL compared to .25% or five percent of the total ALLL
as of December 31 2009 The unallocated allowance was held

consistent to the total ALLL due to many of the impacts of recent

economic events being more
fully incorporated into the historical

loss rates within the portfolio specific models and stabilization in

general economic factors including real estate values in certain of

the Bancorps lending markets

The ALLL as percent
of the total loan and lease portfolio

decreased to 3.88% at December 31 2010 compared to 4.88% at

December 31 2009 Total ALLL was $3.0 billion and $3.7 billion

as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively This decrease is

reflective of number of factors including decreases in net charge

offs and delinquencies and signs of moderation in general

economic conditions during 2010

The Bancorps determination of the allowance for

commercial loans is sensitive to the risk grades it assigns to these

loans In the event that lO% of commercial loans in each tisk

category would experience downgrade of one risk category the

allowance for commercial loans would increase by approximately

$156 million at December 31 2010 In addition the Baneorps

determination of the allowance for residential mortgage loans and

consumer loans is sensitive to changes in estimated loss rates In

the event that estimated loss rates would increase 0% the

allowance for residential mortgage loans and consumer loans

TABLE 40 CHANGES IN ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

For the years ended December 31 in miffionil

Balance beginning of period

Impact of change in accounting principle

Net losses charged off

Provision for loan and lease losses

Balance end of year

Reserve for unfunded commitments

Balance beginning of period

Impact of change in accounting principle

Provision for unfunded commitments

Balance end of year

would increase approximately $31 million and $56 million

respectively at December 31 2010 As several qualitative and

quanutative
factors are considered in determining the ALLL these

sensitivity analyses do not necessarily reflect the nature ind extent

of future changes in the ALLL They are intended to provide

insights into the impact of adverse changes to risk grades and

estimated loss rates and do not imply any expectation of future

deterioration in the risk ratings or loss rates Given current

processes employed by the Bancorp management believes the risk

grades and estimated loss rates currentiy assigned are appropriate

Total impaired loans consist of loans and leases that are

restructured in troubled debt restructuring and larger commercial

loans included with aggregate
borrower relationship lialances

exceeding $1 million that exhibit probable or observed credit

weaknesses Impaired loans are subject to individual review and

decreased from $3.3 billion as of December 31 2009 to $2.9

billion as of December 31 2010

The Bancorp continually reviews its credit administtation and

loan and lease portfolio and makes changes based on the

performance of its products Management discontinued the

origination of brokered home equity products at the end of 2007

suspended homebuilder lending in the fourth quarter of 2007 and

new commercial non-owner occupied real estate lending in 2008

and raised underwriting standards across both the commercial and

consumer loan product offerings

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

$3749 2787 937 771 744

45

2328 2581 2710 462 316

1538 3543 4560 628 343

$3004 3749 2787 937 771

294 195 95 76 70

43
24 99 100 19

$227 294 195 95 76

TABLE 41 ATTRIBUTION OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES TO PORTFOLIO LOANS AND LEASES

As of December 31 in millions 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Allowance attributed to

Commercial and industrial loans $1123 1282 824 271 252

Commercial mortgage loans 597 734 363 135 95

Commercial construction loans 158 380 252 98 49

Commercial leases 111 121 61 27 24

Residential mortgage loans 310 375 388 67 51

Consumer loans 554 660 611 287 247

Consumer leases

Unallocated 150 193 279 47 48

Total ALLL $3004 3749 2787 937 771

Portfolio loans and leases

Commercial and industrial loans $27191 25683 29197 24813 20831

Commercial mortgage loans 10845 11803 12502 11862 10405

Commercial construction loans 2048 3784 5114 5561 6168

Commercial leases 3378 3535 3666 3737 3842

Residential mortgage loans 8956 8035 9385 10540 8830

Consumer loans 24801 23439 23509 22943 23204

Consumer leases 272 500 770 797 1073

Total portfolio loans and leases $77491 76779 84143 80253 74353

Attributed allowance as percent of respeenve portfolio loans

Commercial and industrial loans 4.13 4.99 2.82 1.09 1.21

Commercial mortgage loans 5.50 6.22 2.90 1.14 .91

Commercial construction loans 7.71 10.04 4.93 1.77 .80

Commercial leases 3.29 3.42 1.66 .72 .62

Residential mortgage loans 3.35 4.67 4.13 .63 .58

Consumer loans 2.23 2.81 2.60 1.25 1.06

Consumer leases .37 .80 1.17 .63 .47

Unallocated as percent of total portfolio loans and leases .19 .25 .33 .06 .06

Total portfolio loans and leases 3.88 4.88 3.31 1.17 1.04
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MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT
Market risk arises from the potential for market fluctuations in

interest rates foreign exchange rates and equity prices
that may

result in potential reductions in net income Interest rate risk

component of market risk is the exposure to adverse changes in

net interest income or financial position
due to changes in interest

rates Management considers interest rate risk prominent market

risk in terms of its potential impact on earnings Interest tate risk

can occur for any one or mote of the following reasons

Assets and liabilities may mature or reprice at different times

Short-term and long-term market interest rates may change

by different amounts or

The expected maturity of various assets or liabilities may

shorten or lengthen as interest rates change

In addition to the direct impact of interest rate changes on net

interest income interest rates can indirectly impact earnings

through their effect on loan demand credit losses mortgage

otiginations the value of servicing rights and other sources of the

Baneorps earnings Stability of the Baneorps net income is largely

dependent upon the effective management of interest rate risk

Management continually reviews the Bancorps balance sheet

composition and earnings flows and models the interest rate risk

and possible actions to reduce this risk given numerous possible

future interest rate scenarios

Net Interest Income Simulation Model

The Baneorp employs variety of measurement techniques to

identify and manage its interest rate risk including the use of an

NIT simulation model to analyze the sensitivity of net interest

income to changing interest rates The model is based on

contractual and assumed cash flows and repticing characteristics

for all of the Bancotps financial instruments and incorporates

market-based
assumpnons regarding the effect of changing

interest rates on the prepayment rates of certain assets and

liabilities The model also includes senior management projections

of the future volume and pricing of each of the product lines

offered by the Bancorp as well as other pertinent assumptions

Actual results may differ from these simulated results due to

timing magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes as well

as changes in market conditions and management strategies

The Baneorps Executive ALCO which includes senior

management representatives and is accountable to the Enterprise

Risk Management Committee monitors and
manages

interest rate

tisk within Board approved policy limits In addition to the nsk

management activities of ALCO the Bancorp has Market Risk

Management function as part
of ERM that provides independent

oversight of market tisk activities The Bancorps interest rate nsk

exposure is currently evaluated by measuring
the anticipated

change in net interest income over 12-month and 24-month

hotizons assuming 100 bp parallel ramped increase and 200 bp

parallel ramped increase in interest rates The Fed Funds interest

tate targeted by the Federal Reserve at range
of O% to O.25% is

currently set at level that would be negative in parallel ramped

decrease scenarios therefore those scenatios were omitted from

the interest rate risk analyses for December 31 2010 In

accordance with the current policy the rate movements are

assumed to occur over one year
and are sustained thereafter

At December 31 2010 the Baneorps simulated exposure to

change in interest rates as described above reflects moderate

asset sensitivity in year one with increased asset sensitivity in
year

two Table 42 shows the Baneorps estimated net interest income

sensitivity profile and ALCO policy limits as of December 31

2010

TABLE 42 ESTIMATED Nil SENSITIVITY PROFILE

Percent Change in Nil

________
ALCO Policy Limits

Change in

Interest 12 13 to 24 12 13 to 24

Rates
clip

Months Months Months Months

200 1.02/o 4.99 5.00 7.00

100 0.49 2.73

Economic Value ofEquity

The Baneotp employs EVE as measurement tool in managing

interest rate tisk Whereas the earnings simulation highlights

exposures over relatively short time horizon the EVE analysis

incorporates all cash flows over the estimated remaining life of all

balance sheet and derivative positions The EVE of the balance

sheet at point in time is defined as the discounted present
value

of asset and detivative cash flows less the discounted value of

liability
cash flows The sensitivity of EVE to changes in the level

of interest rates is measure of longer-term interest rate tisk EVE

values only the current balance sheet and does not incorporate the

growth assumptions used in the earnings simulation model As

with the earnings simulation model assumptions about the timing

and vatiability of balance sheet cash flows are etitical in the EVE

analysis Particularly important are the assumptions driving

prepayments and the expected changes in balances and ptieing of

the transaction deposit portfolios The following table shows the

Baneorps EVE sensitivity profile as of December 31 2010

TABLE 43 ESTIMATED EVE SENSITIVITY PROFILE

Change in

Interest Rates lip Change in EVE ALCO Policy Limits

200 1.62/o 15.0

100 0.50

25 0.09

-25 0.13

This EVE profde suggests that the Baneorp would

experience slight adverse effect from an initial increase in rates

and that the adverse impact would become greater as rates

continue to rise While an instantaneous shift in interest rates is

used in this analysis to ptovide an estimate of exposure the

Baneorp believes that gradual shift in interest rates would have

much more modest impact Since EVE measures the discounted

present
value of cash flows over the estimated lives of

instruments the change in EVE does not directly correlate to the

degree that earnings would be impacted over shorter nme

hotizon e.g the current fiscal year Further EVE does not take

into account factors such as future balance sheet growth changes

in product mix changes in yield curve relationships and changing

product spreads that could mitigate the adverse impact of changes

in interest rates The NIT simulation and EVE analyses do not

neeessardy include certain actions that management may

undertake to manage this risk in response to anticipated changes

in interest rates

The Baneorp regularly evaluates its exposures to LIBOR and

Ptime basis risks nonparallel shifts in the yield curve and

embedded options risk In addition the impact on NIl and EVE

of extreme changes in interest rates is modeled wherein the

Baneorp employs the use of yield curve shocks and environment-

specific scenarios

Use ofDerivatives to Manage Interest Rate Risk

An integral component of the Baneorps interest rate risk

management strategy is its use of derivative instruments to

minimize significant fluctuations in earnings caused by changes in

market interest rates Examples of derivanve instruments that the

Baneorp may use as part of its interest rate tisk management
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strategy
include interest rate swaps inrerest rate floors interest

rate caps
forward contracts principal only swaps options and

swaptiOns

As part of its overall risk management strategy relative to its

mortgage banking activity the Bancorp enters into forward

contracts accounted fur as free-standing derivatives to

economically hedge interest rate lock commitments that are also

considered free-standing derivatives Additionally the Bancurp

economically hedges its exposure to mortgage loans held fur sale

The Baneurp also establishes derivative contracts with major

financial institutions to ecunomically hedge significant exposures

assumed in commercial customer accommodation derivative

contracts Generally these contracts have similar terms in order to

protect the Bancorp from market volatility Credit risk arises from

the possible inability of cuunterparties to meet the terms of their

contracts which the Baneorp minimizes through collateral

arrangements approvals
limits and monitoring procedures See

Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements fur

further information on these derivatives

Portfolio Loans and Leases and Interest Rate Risk

Although the Baneorps portfolio loans and leases contain both

fixed and floating/adjustable rate products
the rates of interest

earned by the Bancurp on the outstanding balances are generally

establlshed fur period of time The interest rate sensitivity of

loans and leases is direetiy related to the length
of time the rate

earned is established Table 44 displays the expected principal
cash

flows of the Baneorps portfolio loans and leases as of December

31 2010 Table 45 displays summary of expected principal cash

flows occurring after one year as of December 31 2010

repaid loans The Bancurp maintains nun-qualifying hedging

strategy relative to its mortgage banking activity in order to

manage portion of the risk associated with changes in the value

of its MSR portfolio as result of changing interest rates

Mortgage rates declined duting 2010 and 2009 The decrease

in rates caused prepayment assumptions to increase and 1cc1 to $36

million in temporary impairment
of servicing rights during the

year
ended December 31 2010 compared to $24 million in

temporary impairment in 2009 Servicing rights are deemed

temporarily impaired when borrowers loan rate is distinedy

higher than prevailing rates Temporary impairment on servicing

rights is reversed when the prevailing rates return to level

commensurate with the borrowers loan rate Offsetting the

murtgage servicing tights valuation the Baneurp recognized net

gains of $123 million and $98 million on its nun-qualifying

hedging strategy
fur the years

ended December 31 2010 and

2009 respectively The net gains from the Bancurps non-

qualifying hedging strategy fur 2010 and 2009 include $14 million

and $57 million respectively
of net gains on the sale of securities

See Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

fur further discussion on servicing tights

Foreig-n Currency Risk

The Baneurp enters into foreign exchange derivative contracts to

econumically hedge certain foreign denominated loans The

derivatives are classified as free-standing instruments with the

revaluation gain or loss being recorded in other nuninterest

income in the Consolidated Statements uf Income The balance of

the Bancorps foreign denominated loans at December 31 2010

and 2009 was appruximately $283 million and $272 million

respectively
The Bancurp also enters into foreign exchange

contracts fur the benefit of cummercial customers involved in

international trade to hedge their exposure to fureign currency

fluctuations The Baneurp has internal controls in place to help

ensure excessive risk is nut being taken in providing this service to

eustumers These controls include an independent
determination

of currency volatility and credit equivalent exposure un these

contracts counterparty credit approvals and country limits

Residential Mortgage Servicing Rights and Interest Rate Risk

The net carrying amount of the residential MSR portfolio was

$822 million and $699 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively
The value of servicing rights can fluctuate sharply

depending un changes in interest rates and other factors

Generally as interest rates decline and loans are prepaid to take

advantage uf refinancing the total value of existing servicing

tights declines because no further servicing fees are collected on

TABLE 44 PORTFOLIO LOAN AND LEASE PRINCIPAL CASH FLOWS

As of December 31 2010 in millions
Less than year

1-5 years
Over years

Total

Commercial and indusinal loans $9755 14794 2642 27191

Commercial mortgage loans 5414 4390 1041 10845

Commercial eonstnietiun loans 1146 655 247 2048

522 1365 1491 3378
Commercial leases

Subtotalcommercial 16837 21204 5421 43462

Residendal mortgage
loans 1437 3544 3975 8956

1656 4241 5616 11513
Home equity

4324 6399 260 10983
Automobile loans

191 1705 1896
Credit card

681

Other consumer loans

Subtotal consumer

Total
$24962 37253 15276 77491

TABLE 45 PORTFOLIO LOAN AND LEASE PRINCIPAL CASH FLOWS OCCURRING AFTER ONE YEAR
Interest Rate

Fixed Floauna or Adiustable

14086
As of December 31 2010 in millions

Commercial and indusmal loans
$3350

Commercial mortgage loans
1934 349

Commercial eunstmenon loans
259 643

Commercial leases
2856

Subtotal commercial
8399 8226

Residential mortgage
loans

5127 2392

Home equity
1472 8385

Automobile loans
6601

58

Credit card
770 935

other consumer loans and leases

Subtotal consumer 09880L
ota
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TABLE 46 AGENCY RATINGS
As of February 28 2011

Moodys Standard and Poors Fitch DBRS
Fifth Third Bancorp

Short-term
P-2 A-2 Fl R-1J

Senior debt
Baal BBB A- AL

Subordinated debt
Baa2 BBB- BBB BBBH

Fifth Third Bank

Short-term
P-2 A-2 Fl R-1L

Long-term deposit A3 No rating
Senior debt A3 BBB A-
Subordinated debt

Baal BBB BBB low

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT
The goal of liquidity management is to provide adequate funds to

meet changes in loan and lease demand unexpected deposit

withdrawals and other contractual obligations Mitigating bquidity

risk is accomplished by maintaining liquid assets in the form of

investment securities maintaining sufficient unused borrowing

capacity in the debt markets and debvering consistent growth in

core deposits summary of certain
obligations and commitments

to make future
payments under contracts is included in Note 18

of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Bancorp maintains
contingency funding plan that

assesses the liquidity needs under various scenarios of market

conditions asset growth and credit rating downgrades The plan

includes liquidity stress testing which measures various sources

and uses of funds under the different scenarios The contingency

plan provides for ongoing monitoring of unused
borrowing

capacity and available sources of contingent liquidity to prepare
for

unexpected liquidity needs and to cover unanticipated events

that could affect liquidity

The Bancorp has approximately $6.8 billion of unsecured

long-term debt outstanding as of December 31 2010 Long-term
debt with

pnncipal balance of $15 million and
carrying value

of $14 million will mature during 2011

Sources of Funds

The Bancorps primary sources of funds relate to cash flows from
loan and lease repayments payments from securities related to

sales and maturities the sale or sceuritization of loans and leases

and funds generated by core deposits in addition to the use of

public and private debt offerings

Projected contractual maturities from loan and lease

repayments arc included in Table 44 of the Market Risk

Management section Of the $15.4 billion of securities in the

available-for-sale portfolio at December 31 2010 $4.0 billion in

principal and interest is expected to be received in the next 12

months and an additional $2.5 biffion is expected to be received in

the next 13 to 24 months For further information on the

Bancorps available-for-sale securities portfolio see the

Investment Securities section of the MDA
Asset-driven liquidity is provided by the Bancorps ability

to

sell or securitize loan and lease assets In order to reduce the

exposure to interest rate fluctuations and to manage liquidity the

Baneorp has developed securitization and sale procedures for

several types of interest-sensitive assets majority of the long-

term fixed-rate single-family residential
mortgage loans

underwritten
according to FHLMC or FNMA guidelines are sold

for cash upon ongination Additional assets such as jumbo fixed-

rate residential mortgages certain commercial loans home equity

lines and loans automobile loans and other consumer loans arc

also capable of being sceuritized or sold For the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 loans totaling $18.2 billion and

$21.8 billion respectively were sold securitized or transferred

off-balance sheet For further information on the transfer of
financial assets sec Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

Core deposits have historically provided the Bancorp with

sizeable source of
relatively stable and low cost funds The

Bancorps average core deposits and shareholders equity funded

80% of its
average total assets during 2010 compared to 72%

during 2009 In addition to core deposit funding the Bancorp also

accesses variety of other short-term and long-term funding

sources which include the use of the FHLB system Certificates

of deposit carrying balance of $100000 or more and deposits in

the Bancorps foreign branch located in the Cayman Islands are

wholesale funding tools utilized to fund asset growth
Management does not rely on any one source of liquidity and

manages availability in response to changing balance sheet needs

The Bancorp previously participated in the FDICs TAG
program that was adopted on November 21 2008 under EESA
The TAG

program provides insurance to any funds held in

qualifying noninterest-beanng transaction accounts without limit

On April 13 2010 the FDIC adopted an interim final rule

extending the TAG program for six months through December

31 2010 with the
possibility of extending the program an

additional twelve months without further rulemaking As

participant in the TAG program the
Bancorp was required to

decide whether to opt out of the program on or before Aptil 30
2010 The

Bancorp opted out of the TAG program effective July

2010 After this date customer accounts that qualified under
the TAG program arc no longer guaranteed in full but are insured

up to $250000 under the FDICs general deposit insurance rules

The Bancorp has shelf registration in place with the SEC
permitting ready access to the public debt markets and qualifies as

well-known seasoned issuer under SEC rules As of December

31 2010 $8.8 billion of debt or other securities were available for

issuance from this shelf
registration under the current Bancorps

Board of Directors authorizations however access to these

markets may depend on market conditions The Bancorp also has

$19.0 billion of funding available for issuance
through private

offerings of debt securities
pursuant to its bank note program and

corrcntiy has
approximately $25.3 billion of borrowing capacity

available through secured
btirrowing sources including the FHLB

and FRE
On January 25 2011 the Bancorp raised $1.7 billion in new

common equity through the issuance of 121428572 shares of

common stock in an underwriting offering at an initial price of

$14.00 per share
Additionally on January 25 2011 the Bancorp

sold $1.0 biffion in
aggregate principal amount of 3.625% Senior

Notes due January 25 2016 Note 32 tif the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements provides additional

information regarding the common equity and senior notes

offerings

Credit
Ratings

The cost and availability of financing to the Bancorp are impacted
by its credit

ratings downgrade to the Bancorps credit ratings

could affect its ability to access the credit markets and increase its

borrowing costs thereby adversely impacting the Bancorps
financial condition and liquidity Key factors in maintaining high

credit ratings include stable and diverse earnings stream strong
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credit quality strong capital ratios and diverse funding sources in

addition to disciplined liquidity monitoring procedures

The Bancorps senior debt credit ratings are summarized in

Table 46 The ratings reflect the ratings agencies view on the

Bancorps capacity to mcet financial commstments Addinonal

information on senior debt credit ratings is as follows

Moodys Baal rating is considered medium-grade

obligations and is the fourth highest ranking within its

overall classification system

Standard Poors BBB rating indicates the obligors

capacity to meet its financial commitment is adequate

and is the fourth highest ranking within its overall

classification system

Fitch Ratings A- rating is considered high credit

quality and is the third highest ranking within its overall

classification system and

DBRS Ltd.s low rating is considered satisfactory

credit quality and is the third highest ranking within its

overall classification system

Additionally the Baneorps subsidiary bank Fifth Third Bank

also receives independent credit ratings On November 2010

Moodys downgraded ten large regional banks including Fifth

Third Bank due to the passage of the Dodd-Frank Act The Act

signaled the governments intent to limit support for individual

banks thus reducing Moodys support assumptions for these

banks Fifth Third Banks credit ratings
for Short-Term Long-

Term Deposit Senior Debt and Subordinated Debt were

downgraded to P-2 A3 A3 and Baal respectively
from P-i A2

A2 and A3 respectively Additionally Moodys changed Fifth

Third Baneorp and Fifth Third Banks outlook from negative to

stable During 2010 DBRS Investors Service downgraded the

long-term debt rating and deposit ratings for the Bancorps

subsidiary to from AH
As an investor you

should be aware that security rating is not

recommendation to buy sell or hold securities that it may be

subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning

rating organization and that each rating should be evaluated

independently of any other rating

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Management including the Bancorps Board of Directors

regularly reviews the Bancorps capital position to help ensure it is

appropriately positioned under various operating environments

2009 CapitaiActions

On May 2009 the Baneorp announced its SCAP results which

indicated that the Baneorps Tier common equity would be

required to be augmented to maintain capital buffer above the

newly required four percent threshold of the Tier common

equity ratio under the more adverse scenario of the assessment

The total amount required prior to considering activities by the

Bancorp since the end of the fourth quarter
of 2008 was $2.6

biffion

After considering such activities primarily the Processing

Business Sale the indicated additional net Tier common equity

required was $1.1 biffion To address the SCAP results the

Baneorp undertook number of capital actions during the second

quarter of 2009 The Baneorp completed $1 billion common

stock offering and issued approximately
158 million shares at an

average price of $6.33 In addition the Baneorp completed an

exchange of portion of its Series preferred stock for

2158.8272 shares of its common stock no par value and $8250

in cash for each set of 250 validly tendered and accepted

depositary shares The Baneorp issued approximately
60 million

shares of common stock and paid $230 million in cash in

exchange for million depositary shares After settiement of the

exchange offer 4112750 depositary shares representing 16451

shares of Series preferred stock remained outstanding As

result of this exchange the Bancorp increased its common equity

by $441 miffion The Bancorp also sold its Visa Inc Class

common shares resulting in an additional $187 million benefit to

equity

2011 Capital Actions

On January 25 2011 the Bancorp raised $1.7 billion in new

common equity through the issuance of 121428572 shares of

common stock in an underwriting offering at an ininal price of

$14.00 per share On January 24 2011 the underwriters exercised

their option to purchase an additional 12142857 shares at the

offering price of $14.00 per
share In connection \vith this

exercise the Bancorp elected that all such additional shares be

sold and the Bancorp entered into forward sale agreement which

resulted in final net payment
of 959821 shares on February

2011

On February 2011 the Bancorp redeemed all 136320

shares of its Series Preferred Stock held by the U.S Treasury

totaling $3.4 billion The Baneorp used the net proceeds from the

common stock and senior notes offerings previously described

and other funds to redeem the Series Preferred Stock

In connection with the redemption of the Series Preferred

Stock the Bancorp accelerated the accretion of the remaining

issuance discount on the Series Preferred Stock and recorded

corresponding reduction in retained earnings of $153 million

Dividends of $15 million were paid on February 2011

when the Seties Preferred Stock was redeemed The Baneorp

notified the U.S Treasury on February 17 2011 of its intention to

negotiate for the purchase of the warrants issued to the U.S

Treasury in connection with the CPP preferred stock investment

These transactions will be reflected in the Bancorps

consolidated financial statements for the
quarter

ended March 31

2011 Note 32 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

provides additional information regarding the redemption of the

Series Preferred Stock and the January 2011 common stock

offering

TABLE 47 CAPITAL RATIOS

As of December 31 in millions
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Average equity as percent of average assets 12.22 11.36 8.78 9.35 9.32

Tangible equity as percent of tangible assets 10.42 9.71 7.86 6.14 7.95

Tangible common equity as percent of tangible assets 7.04 6.45 4.23 6.14 7.95

Tier capital
$13965 13428 11924 8924 8625

Total risk-based capital
18173 17648 16646 11733 11385

Risk-weighted assets 100193 100933 112622 115529 102823

Regulatory capital rauus

Tier
capital

13.94 13.30 10.59 7.72 8.39

Total risk-based capital
18.14 17.48 14.78 10.16 11.07

Tier leverage
12.79 12.34 10.27 8.50 8.44

Tier common equity
7.50 6.99 4.37 5.72 8.22
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capita Ratios

The Federal Reserve Board established quantitative measures thar

assign risk weightings to assets and off-balance sheet items and
also define and set minimum regulatory capital requirements risk-

based capital ratios Additionally the guidelines define well-

capitalized ratios for Tier and total risk-based capital as 6% and

lO% respectively The
Bancorp exceeded these

well-capitalized
ratios for all periods presented Additionally although the assessed

companies under SCAP were only required to demonstrate that

they met the 4% Tier common equity ratio requirement for the

petiod evaluated in the SCAP it is reasonable to assume the

supervisory agencies expect the 19 large bank holding companies
assessed under the SCAP stress tests to maintain their Tier

common equity ratio above 4% although no formal requirement

exists

On November 17 2010 the Federal Reserve issued revised

temporary addendum to Supervision and Regulation letter 09-4

Dividend Increases and Other Capital Distributions for the 19

Supervisory Capital Assessment Program Firms This letter

requires the 19 financial institutions including the Bancorp to

undergo review of their capital planning processes and plans

regarding capiral redistribution and absorption activity As
part

of

this review the Bancorp was required to submit comprehensive

capital plan by January 2011 that demonstrated its ability to

withstand losses under adverse economic conditions over the

next two years The
Bancorp submitted all of its documents

according to the regulatory timeinc The results of this assessment

process are not expected to be made public

Current provisions of the recentiy enacted Dodd-Frank Act

will phase out the inclusion of certain trust preferred securities as

component of Tier capital beginning January 2013 At

December 31 2010 the Bancorps Tier capital included $2.8

billion of trust preferred securities representing approximately 276

bp of risk-weighted assets

The Bancorp manages the adequacy of its capital including

Tier common equity by conducting ongoing internal stress tests

and ensuting the results are properly considered in capital

planning It is the intent of the Bancorps capital planning process
to ensure that the Bancorps capital positions remain in excess of

well-capitalized minimums as defined
by the 1oatd of iovetnots

of the Federal Reserve System in the Capital Adequacy
Guidelines for Bank Holding Companies and

any other

regulatory requirements The Bancorps Tier common equity

ratio was 7.50% as of December 31 2010

Dividend Policy and Stock Repurchase Program
The Bancorps common stock dividend policy and stock

repurchase program reflect its earnings outlook desired payout
ratios the need to maintain adequate capital levels alternative

investment opportunities and the need to comply with safe and

sound banking practices as well as meet regulatory expectations
In each of the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 the

Bancorp paid dividends per common share of $0.04

The Bancorp issued $3.4 billion in senior preferred stock

Series and related warrants to the U.S Treasury as part of the

CPP Upon issuance the Bancorp agreed to limit dividends to

common stock holders to the quarterly dividend rate paid ptior to

October 14 2008 which was $0.15 This restriction was in effect

until the earlier of December 31 2011 or the date upon which the

Seties senior preferred shares were redeemed in whole or

transferred to an unaffihated third
parry On February 2011 the

Bancorp repurchased all $3.4 billion of its Seties Preferred Stock

held by the U.S Treasury

The
Bancorps repurchase of common stock is shown in

Table 48 The
Bancorps Board of Directors had previously

authorized management to purchase 30 million shares of the

Bancorps common stock through the open marker or in
any

private transaction The authorization does not include specific

ptice targets or an expiration date Under the
agreement with the

U.S Treasury as part of the CPP the
Bancorp is restticted in its

repurchases of its common stock This resttiction was in effect

until the earlier of December 31 2011 or the date upon which the

Seties senior preferred shares were redeemed in whole or

transferred to an unaffiliated third party On February 2011 the

Bancorp repurchased all $3.4 billion of its Seties Preferred Stock

held by the U.S Treasury

TABLE 48 SHARE REPURCHASES
For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 2008
Shares authonzed for repurchase at January 19201518 19201518 19201518
Addinonal authonzanons

Shares repurchases

Shares authotized for repurchase at December31 19201518 19201518 19201518
Average ptiee paid per share N/A N/A N/A

Excludes 333806 265802 and 63270 shares
repurchased during 20114 2009 and 2008 reFectiteLy in cennectien with varisus employee cempensatien plans These repurchases are nst

included in the
calculateenfer average price paid and ds net ceunt against the maximum number

ef shares that may yet he
repurchased under the Beard ef Directers

authereyateen
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
In the ordinary course of business the Bancorp enters into

financial transactions to extend credit and various forms of

commitments and guarantees
that may be considered off-balance

sheet arrangements These transactions involve varying elements

of market credit and liquidity risk

Residential Mortgage Loan Sales

Conforming residential mortgage
loans sold to unrelated third

parties are generally sold with representation and warranty

recourse provisions Such provisions include the loans

compliance with applicable loan criteria including certain

documentation standards per agreements
with the unrelated third

parties Additional reasons for the Bancorp having to repurchase

the loans include appraisal standards with the collateral fraud

related to the loan application and the rescission of mortgage

insurance Under these provisions the Bancorp is required to

repurchase any previously sold loan for which the representation

or warranty of the Bancorp proves to be inaccurate incomplete or

misleading As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp

maintained reserves related to these loans sold with the

representation and warranty recourse provisions totaling $85

million and $37 million respectively

For the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 the

Bancorp paid $47 million and $19 million respectively
in the

form of make whole payments
and repurchased approximately

$83 million and $61 million respectively of loans to satisfy third

party representation and warranty claims Total repurchase

demand requests during 2010 were $365 million compared to

$210 mdlion during 2009 Total outstanding repurchase demand

inventory was $162 million at December 31 2010 compared to

$119 million at December 31 2009

The Bancorp previously sold certain residential mortgage

loans in the secondary market with credit recourse In the event of

any customer default pursuant to the credit recourse provided

the Bancorp is required to reimburse the third party The

maximum amount of credit risk in the event of nonperformance

by the underlying borrowers is equivalent to the total outstanding

balance In the event of nonperformance the Bancorp has rights

to the underlying collateral value securing the loan At December

31 2010 and 2009 the outstanding balances on these loans sold

with credit recourse were approximately $916 miffion and $1.1

billion respectively At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp

maintained an estimated credit loss reserve on these loans sold

with credit recourse of approximately $16 million and $21 miffion

respectively recorded in other liabilities in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets To determine the credit loss reserve the Bancorp

used an approach that is consistent with its overall approach in

estimating credit losses for various categoties of residential

mortgage loans held in its loan portfobo For further information

on residential mortgage loans sold with recourse see Note 18 of

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Private Mortgage Insurance

For certain mortgage loans otiginated by the Bancorp borrowers

may be required to obtain PMI provided by third-parry insurers

In some instances these insurers cede portion of the PMI

premiums to the Bancorp and the Bancorp provides reinsurance

coverage within specified range
of the total PMI coverage The

Bancorps reinsurance coverage typically ranges from 5% to O%

of the total PMI coverage During the second
quarter

of 2009 the

Bancorp suspended the practice of providing reinsurance of

private mortgage
insurance for newly originated mortgage

loans

The Bancorps maximum exposure
in the event of

nonperformance by the underlying borrowers is equivalent to the

Bancorps total outstanding reinsurance coverage
which was $122

million and $182 million respectively at December 31 2010 and

2009 As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp

maintained reserve of $42 million and $44 million respectively

related to exposures
within the reinsurance portfolio The reserve

was flat
year over year as increases to the reserve resulting from

estimated losses outpacing paid claims were offset by decrease

relating to reinsurance agreement termination In the third

quarter of 2010 the Bancorp allowed one of its third-parry

insurers to terminate its reinsurance agreement
with the Baneorp

This resulted in the Bancorp releasing collateral to the insurer in

the form of investment secutities and other assets with carrying

value of $19 million and the insurer assuming the Bancorps

obligations under the reinsurance agreement resulting in

decrease to the Bancorps reserve liability
of $20 million and

decrease to the Bancorps maximum exposure of $53 million

Loan Securitizations

The Bancorp utilizes securitizaoon trusts formed by independent

third parties to facilitate the securitixation process
of residential

mortgage loans certain automobile loans and other consumer

loans During 2008 the Bancorp sold $2.7 billion of automobile

loans in three separate
transactions Each transaction isolated the

related loans through the use of secutitization trust or conduit

formed as QSPEs to facilitate the secutitization process in

accordance with U.S GAAP The QSPEs issued asset-backed

secutities with varying levels of credit subordination and payment

priority The investors in these securities have no credit recourse

to the Bancorps other assets for failure of debtors to pay when

due During 2008 and 2009 required repurehases of previously

transferred automobile loans from the QSPE were immaterial to

the Bancorps Consolidated Financial Statements For further

information on these automobile securitizations see Note 12 of

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Upon adoption on January 2010 of the FASB guidance on

the accounting for QSPEs and VIEs the Bancorp determined it

was the primary beneficiary and therefore consolidator of these

QSPEs Refer to Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for further derails regarding the guidance and the

related impact of adoption by the Bancorp

Commercial Loan Sales to QSPE
Through 2008 the Bancorp had transferred at par subject to

credit recourse certain primardy floating-tate
short-term

investment grade commereiai loans to VIE which prior to

January 2010 was an unconsolidated QSPE that was wholly

owned by an independent third-party Generally the loans

transferred to the VIE provided lower yield due to their

investment grade nature and therefore transfetring these loans

allowed the Bancorp to reduce its interest rate exposure to these

lower yielding loan assets while maintaining the customer

relationships The outstanding balance of these loans at December

31 2009 was $771 million These loans may have been transferred

back to the Bancorp upon the occurrence of certain specified

events These events included borrower default on the loans

transferred ineligible loans transferred by the Bancorp to the VIE
the inabdity of the VIE to issue commercial paper

and in certain

circumstances bankruptcy preferences initiated against underlying

borrowers The maximum amount of credit risk in the event of

nonperformanee by the underlying borrowers was approximately

equivalent to the total outstanding balance At December 31

2009 the Bancorps loss reserve related to the credit enhancement

provided to the VIE was $45 million and was recorded in other

liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets During the year
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ended December 31 2009 the VIE did not transfer any loans

back to the Bancorp as result of credit event

The VIE issued commercial
paper

and used the proceeds to

fund the acquisition of commercial loans transferred to it by the

Bancorp The
ability

of the VIE to issue commercial paper was

function of general market conditions and the credit rating of the

liquidity provider In the event the VIE was unable to issue

commercial paper the Bancorp agreed to provide liquidity

support
in the form of line of credit to the VIE and the

repurchase of assets from the VIE As of December 31 2009 the

LAPA was $1.4 billion In addition to the liquidity support

options discussed above the Bancorp also purchased commercial

paper issued by the VIE Beginning in 2008 and continuing

through the year ended December 31 2009 dislocation in the

short-term funding market caused the VIE difficulty in obtaining

sufficient funding through the issuance of commercial paper As

result the Bancorp purchased commercial paper throughout 2009

As of December 31 2009 the Bancorp held $805 million of asset-

backed commercial paper issued by the VIE representing 87% of

the total commetcial paper issued by the VIE

Effective January 2010 with the adoption of guidance

amending the accounting for QSPEs and the consolidation of

VIEs the Bancorp determined it was the primary beneficiary and

therefore consolidator of this VIE Refer to Note of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements for further details regarding

the guidance and the related
impact

of adoption by the Bancorp
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
The Bancorp has certain obligations and commitments to make ultimately paid as well as the timing of such payments all uncertain

future payments under contracts The aggregate contractual tax liabilities that have not been paid have been excluded from the

obligations and commitments at December 31 2010 are shown in Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments table For

Table 49 As of December 31 2010 the Bancorp has unrecognized further detail on the impact of income taxes see Note 21 of the

tax benefits that if recognized would impact the effective tax rate Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

in future periods Due to the uncertainty of the amounts to be

TABLE 49 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
Less than Greater than

As of December 31 2010 in millions year 1-3 years 3-5 years years Total

Contractually obligated payments due by period

Deposits without stated maturity $69632 69632

Time deposits 7831 308 74 3803 12016

Long-term debt 14 2519 599 6426 9558

Forward contracts to sell mortgage loans 6389 6389

Short-term borrowings 1853 1853

Noncancelable lease obligations 91 170 154 454 869

Partnership investment commitments 154 88 24 20 286

Pension obligations 19 37 33 70 159

Purchase obligations
66 29 17 112

Capital lease obligations 14 17 32

Total contractually obligated payments due by period $86063 3168 901 10774 100906

Other commitments by expiration period

Commitments to extend credit $28442 11190 4195 43 43870

Letters of credit 2367 2704 229 216 5516

Total other commitments by expiration period $30809 13894 4424 259 49386

Includes demand interest checking savings mony market and foreign office deposits
For additional

iqformation
see the Deposits discussion in the Balance Sheet Anaysis section

of

MDA
Includes other time and

certificates 100000 and over For additional
information see the

Deposits
discussion in the Balance Sheet nalysis section ofMD.4

In the banking industy interest-bearing obligations are princzfaly
used to fund interest-earning assets As such interest

chaiges on contractual
obligations

were excluded from

reported amounts as the
potential

cash
outflows

would have corresponding
cash

inflows from interest-earning assets See Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Iinancial Statements

for additional information on these debt instruments

See Note 14
of

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on forward contracts to sell residential mortgage loans

Includes federal funds purchased and
borrowings

with an original maturity qf less than one year For additional information see Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements

69 Includes rental commitments

Includes low-income housing historh tax investments and market tax credits

See Note 22 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on pension obligations

Represents agreements
to purchase goods or services and includes commitments to various

general
contractors for work related to banking center construction

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend typicaliy having fixed expiration
dates or other termination clauses that maj require payment of afee Many 5f the commitments

to extend credit may expire
without

being
drawn upon The total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash flow requirements For additional information see

Note 18 the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to
guarantee

the peiformance of customer to third party For additional information see Note 18
of

the \rotes to Consolidated

Financial Statements
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The Bancorp conducted an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of the Bancorps management including the

Bancorps Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Bancorps disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e under the Securities Exchange Act Based on the foregoing as of the

end of the period covered by this report the Bancorps Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Bancorps

disclosure controls and procedures were effective in all material respects to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the
reports

the

Bancorp files and submits under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported as and when required and informaoon is

accumulated and communicated to management on timely basis

The management of Fifth Third Bancorp is responsible for estabbshing and
maintaining adequate internal control designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ametica The Bancorps management assessed the

effectiveness of the Bancorps internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31 2010 Managements assessment is based on the

ctiteria established in the Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoting Organizations of the Treadway

Commission and was designed to provide reasonable assurance that the Bancorp maintained effective internal control over financial reporting

as of December 31 2010 Based on this assessment management beheves that the Bancorp maintained effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2010 The Bancorps independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Bancorps consolidated

financial statements included in this annual report has issued an audit report on our internal control over financial reporong as of December

31 2010 This
report appears on page

67 of the annual
report

The Bancorps management also conducted an evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to determine whether any changes

occurred during the year covered by this report that have materially affected or are reasonably hkely to materially affect the Bancorps internal

control over financial reporting Based on this evaluation there has been no such change duting the year covered by this report

Kevin Kabat Daniel Poston

President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 28 2011 February 28 2011
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REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders aod Board of Directors of Fifth Third Bancorp

We have aodited the interoal control over financial reporting
of Fifth Third Bancorp aod subsidiaries rhe Bancorp as of December 31 2010

based on criteria established io Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Spoosoriog Organizations of the Treadway

Commissioo The Bancorps management is responsible for maiotainiog effective internal control over fioaocial reporting aod for its assessment

of the effectiveness of interoal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Assessment as to the Effectiveness

of Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bancorps internal control over financial

reporting
based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial

reporting was maintained in all matetial respects
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial

repornng

assessing the tisk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal conrrol based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe thar our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision
nf the companys principal

executive and principal financial officers or persons performing
simdar functions and effected by the companys board of directors

management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the

reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary

to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of

the company are being made only in accordance with authotizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposinnn of rhe companys assets that could have

matetial effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of collusion or improper

management override of controls marerial misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on timely basis Also

projections
of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the tisk that the

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of cnmpllance with the policies or procedures may

detetinrate

In our opinion
the Bancnrp maintained in all matetial respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010

based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Unired States the

consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31 2010 of the Bancorp and our report
dated February 28 2011

expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements

LL
Cincinnati Ohio

February 28 2011

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Fifth Third Bancnrp

We have audited the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets of Fifth Third Bancnrp and subsidiaries the Bancorp as of December 31

2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of income equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2010 These consolidated financial statements are the respnnsibility of the Bancorps management Our responsibility is to express

an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matetial

misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit

also includes assessing the accounting ptinciples used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion
such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects

the financial position of Fifth Third Bancnrp

and subsidiaries at December 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the petiod

ended December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting ptinciples generally accepted in the United States of America

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board United States the Bancnrps

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on the ctiteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report
dated February 28 2011 expressed an unqualified

opinion on the Bancorps internal control over financial reporting

LL
Cincinnati Ohio

February 28 2011
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31 in miffions except share data 2010 2009

Assets

Cash and due from banks
$2159 2318

Available-for-sale and other securities
15414 18213

Held-to-maturity securities 353 355

Trading securities 294 355

Other short-term investmenrs
1515 3369

Loans held for sale dj 2216 2067
Portfolio loans and leases

Commercial and industrial loans
27191 25683

Commercial mortgage loans
10845 11803

Commercial construction loans 2048 3784
Commercial leases 3378 3535
Residential mortgage loans

8956 8035
Home equity 11513 12174
Automobile loans

10983 8995
Credit card

1896 1990
Other consumer loans and leases 681 780

Portfolio loans and leases
77491 76779

Allowance for loan and lease losses 3004 3749
Portfolio loans and leases net

74487 73030
Bank premises and equipment 2389 2400

Operating lease equipment 479 499
Goodwill

2417 2417
Intangible assets 62 106

Servicing rights 822 700
Other assets

8400 7551
Total Assets

$111007 113380
Liabilities

Deposits

Demand
$21413 19411

Interest checking 18560 19935

Savings 20903 17898

Money market
5035 4431

Other time
7728 12466

Certificates $100000 and over 4287 7700

Foreign office and other 3722 2464
Total deposits 81648 84305
Federal funds purchased 279 182

Other short-term borrowings 1574 1415
Accrued taxes interest and expenses 889 773
Other liabilities 2979 2701
Long-term debt

9558 10507
Total Liabilities

96927 99883

Equity

Common stock
60 1779 1779

Preferred stock
3654 3609

Capital surplus
1715 1743

Retained earnings 6719 6326
Accumulated other comprehensive income 314 241

Treasury stock
130 201

Total Bancorp shareholders equity 14051 13497
Noncontrolling interest

29

Total Equity
14080 13497

Total Liabilities and Equity $111007 113380
At December 31 2010 $52 of cash $7 of other short-term investments $29 of commercial mortgage loans $241 of home

equity loans $648 of automobile loans $14 of allowance
or loan and lease losses $7 of other assets $12 of other liabilities and $692 of long-term debt from consolidated VIEs are included in iheir respective Balance Sheet

captions above
See Note 12

Amortized cost of$14919 and $17879 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Fair value of $353 and $355 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respective/v

Includes $1892 and $1470 of residential mortgage loans heldfor sale measured at/air value at December 31 2010 and 2009 respective/v

Includes $46 and $26 of residential mortgage loans measured a/fair value at December 2010 and 2009 respectively

Common shares Stated value $2.22 per share authorized 2000000000 outstanding at December 31 2010 796272522 excludes 5231666 freasuly shares and December 31
2009- 795068164 excludes 6436.024 treasury shares

317680 shares of undesignated no par value preferred stock are authorized of which none had been issued 5.0% cumulatise Series perpetual preferred stock with $25000
liquidation preference 136320 issued and outstanding at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 8.5% non-cumulative Series convertible into 159.82 72 common shares
perpetual preferred stock with $25000 liquidalion preference 46000 authorized 16451 issued and outstanding at December 31 2010 and December31 2009
Includes ten-year warrants initial/v valued at $239 to purchase up to 43617747 shares of common stock no par value related to Series preferred stock at an initial exercise price
of$11 72 per share

See Note 32 for additional information on capital actions taken bv the Bancorp subsequent/a December 31 2010

See .T\TOteS to Consohc/ated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the years ended December 31 in millions except per
share data

2010 2009 2008

Interest Income

Interest and fees on loans and leases $3823 3934 4935

Interest on securities
658 733 660

Interest on other short-term investments 13

Total interest income 4489 4668 5608

Interest Expense

Interest on deposits
591 953 1289

Interest on other short-term borrowings
43 248

Interest on long-term debt 290 318 557

Total interest expense
885 1314 2094

Net Interest Income 3604 3354 3514

Provision for loan and lease losses 1538 3543 4560

Net Interest Income Loss After Provision for Loan and Lease Losses 2066 189 1046

Noninterest Income

Mortgage banking net revenue
647 553 199

Service charges on deposits
574 632 641

Corporate banking revenue 364 372 431

Investment advisory revenue 361 326 366

Card and processing revenue 316 615 912

Gain on sale of processing business 1758

Other noninterest income 406 479 363

Securities gains losses net 47 10 86

Securities gains non-qualifying hedges on mortgage servicing rights
14 57 120

Total noninterest income 2729 4782 2946

Noninterest Expense

Salaries wages and incentives 1430 1339 1337

Employee benefits 314 311 278

Net occupancy expense
298 308 300

Technology and communications 189 181 191

Equipment expense
122 123 130

Card and processing expense
108 193 274

Goodwill impairment
965

Other noninterest expense
1394 1371 1089

Total noninterest expense
3855 3826 4564

Income Loss Before Income Taxes 940 767 2664

Applicable income tax expense benefit
187 30

Net Income Loss 753 737 2113

Less Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income loss attributable to Bancorp
753 737 2113

Dividends on preferred stock 250 226 67

Net Income Loss Available to Common Shareholders $503 511 2180

Earnings Per Share $0.63 0.73 3.91

Earnings Per Diluted Share $0.63 0.67 3.91

See Notes to consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Bancorp Shareholders Equity

Accumulated Total

Other Bancorp Non-

Common Preferred Capital Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders controlling Total

in millions except per share data Stock Stock Surplus Earnings Income Loss Stock Equity Interest Equity

Balance at December 31 2007 $1295 1779 8413 126 2209 9161 9161

Net loss 2113 2113 2113
Other comprehensive income

________________________
224 224 224

Comprehensive loss 1889 1889
Cash dividends declared

Common stock at $0.75 pet share 413 413 413
Preferred stock 48 48 48

Dividends on redemption of preferred

shares 19 19 19
Issuance of preferred shares Series 1072 1072 1072

Issuance of preferred shares Series 3169 239 3408 3408

Shares issued in business combinations 1071 1841 770 770

Retirement of preferred shares Series 91

Stock-based compensation expense 56 57 57

Restricted stock grants 136 136

Stock-based awards exercised including

treasury shares issued

Loans repaid related to the exercise of stock-

based awards net

Change in corporate tax benefit related

to stock-based compensation 16 161 164_
Balance at December 31 2008 1295 4241 848 5824 98 229 12077 12077
Net income 737 737 737

Other comprehensive income 143 143 143

Comprehensive income 880 880

Cash dividends declared

Common stock at $0.04 pet share 29 29 29
Preferred stock 220 220 220

Accretion of preferred dividends Series 41 41
Issuance of common shares 351 635 986 986

Dividends on exchange of preferred shares

Series 35 35 35

Exchange of preferred shares Series 133 674 272 269 269
Stock-based compensation expense 46 45 45

Restricted stock grants 27 27 --

Stock-based awards exercised including

treasury shares issued

Change in corporate tax benefit related to

stock-based compensation 29 29 29
Reversal of OTTI 24 24 24

Other

Balance at December 31 2009 1779 3609 1743 6326 241 201 13497 13497
Net income 753 753 753

Other comprehensive income 73 73 73

Comprehensive income 826 826

Cash dividends declared

Common stock at $0.04 per share 32 32 32
Preferred stock 205 205 205

Accretion of preferred dividends Series 45 45
Stock-based compensation expense 45 44 44

Restricted stock grants 62 62

Stock-based awards exercised including

treasury shares issued 10
Loans repaid related to the exercise of stock-

based awards net

Impact of cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle 77 77 77
Noncontrolling interest 29 29

Other

Balance at December 31 2010 $1779 3654 1715 6719 314 130 14051 29 14080

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the
years

ended December 31 in millions
2010 2009 2008

Operating Activities

Net income loss attributable to Bancorp
$753 737 2113

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss attributable to Bancorp to net cash provided by operating activities

Provision for loan and lease losses
1538 3543 4560

Depreciation amortization and accretion
457 341

Stock-based compensation expense
64 45 57

Provision benefit for deferred income taxes
176 184 1140

Realized securities gains
60 27 41

Realized securities gains non-qualifying hedges on mortgage servicing rights
14 64 120

Realized securities losses
13 37 127

Realized securities losses non-qualifying hedges on mortgage servicing tights

Provision for mortgage servicing rights

36 24 207

Net losses gains on sales of loans and fair value adjustments on loans held for sale
114 116 47

Capitalized mortgage servicing rights
297 373 195

Loss on recalculation of the timing of tax benefits on leveraged leases
130

Impairment charges on goodwill
965

Loans originated
for sale net of repayments

18231 22252 11527

Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale
18634 21504 11273

Dividends representing return on equity method investments
31 22 13

Excess tax benefit related to stock-based compensation

Gain on sale of processing business net of tax
1057

Net change in

Trading securities
67 1000 134

Other assets

826 478

Accrued taxes interest and expenses
63 1200 925

Other liabilities

82 376 355

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3305 3794 3093

Investing Activities

Sales

Available-for-sale securities
2578 3750 7226

Loans
538 331 5216

Disposal of bank premises
and equipment

10 20 34

Repayments maturities

Available-for-sale securities
4620 117901 67883

Held-to-maturity securities

Purchases

Available-for-sale securities
5218 126942 76317

Held-to-maturity securities
11

Bank premises and equipment
224 173 410

Restricted cash from the initial consolidation of variable interest entities
63

Dividends representing return of equity
method investments

11

Proceeds from sale of processing busmess
562

Net cash paid acquired in business combinations
16 66

Net change in

Other short-term investments
1861 209 2910

Loans and leases
2507 5497 6553

Operating lease equipment
21 75 __4

Net Cash Provided by Used In Investing Activities 1708 1076

Financing Activities

Net change in

Core deposits

784 9550 2820

Certificates $100000 and over including other foreign
office 3429 4159 1927

Federal funds purchased
97 104 4352

Other short-term borrowings
38 8544 4478

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
14 527 2157

Repayment of long-term debt 2473 3065 2272

Issuance of common shares
986

Issuance of preferred shares Series
4480

Exchange of preferred shares Series
269

Dividends on exchange of preferred shares Series
35

Dividends paid on common shares
32 27 639

Dividends paid on preferred shares
205 220 48

Retirement of preferred shares Series

Dividends on redemption of preferred shares Series
19

Capital
contribution from noncontroffing interest

30

Other net

Net Cash Used In Provided by Financing Activities 5172 5291 2890

Decrease Increase in Cash and Due from Banks 159 421 79

Cash and Due from Banks at Beginning of Year 2318 2739 2660

Cash and Due from Banks at End of Year $2159 $2318 2739

Cash Payments

Interest
$920 1416 2053

Income taxes

79 109 416

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Note contains noncash investing
and financing activities
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING POLICIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Operations
-__________________

Fifth Third Bancorp an Ohio corporation conducts its principal

lending deposit gathering transaction processing and service

advisory activities through its banking and non-banking
subsidiarics from banking centers located throughout the

Midwestern and Southeastern regions of the United States

Basis of Presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of

the Bancorp and its majority-owned subsidiaries and variable

interest entities in which the Baneorp has been determined to be

the primary beneficiary Other entities including certain joint

ventures in which the Baneorp has the
ability to exercise

significant influence over operating and financial policies of the

investee but upon \vhich the Bancorp does not possess control

are accounted for by the equity method and not consolidated

Those entities in which the Baneorp does not have the ability to

exercise significant influence are generally carried at the lower of

cost or fair value Intercompany transactions and balances have

been eliminated Certain prior period data has been reclassified to

conform to current period presentation

Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S

GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

accompanying notes Actual results could differ from those

estimates

Cash and Due From Banks

Cash and due from banks consist of
currency and coin cash items

in the
process of collection and due from banks Currency and

coin includes both U.S and foreign currency owned and held at

Fifth Third offices and that is in-transit to the FRB Cash items in

the process of collection include cheeks and drafts that are drawn

on another depository institution or the FRB that are payable

immediately upon presentation in the U.S Balances due from

banks include non-interest bearing balances that are funds on

deposit at other depository institutions or the FRB

Securities

Secunnes are classified as held-to-maturity available-for-sale or

trading on the dare of purchase Only those securities which

management has the intent and
ability

to hold to maturity are

classified as held-ro-matunty and reported at amortized cost

Securities are classified as available-for-sale when in

managements judgment they may be sold in response to or in

anticipation of changes in market conditions Securities are

classified as trading when bought and held principally for the

purpose of selling them in the near term Available-for-sale and

trading securities are reported at fair value with unrealized gains

and losses net of related deferred income taxes included in other

comprehensive income and noninterest income respectively The

fair value of security is determined based on quoted market

prices If quoted market prices are not avadable fair value is

determined based on quoted pnees of simdar instruments or

discounted cash flow models that
incorporate market inputs and

assumptions including discount rates prepayment speeds and loss

rates Realized securities gains or losses are reported within

noninrerest income in the Consolidated Statements of Income

The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification

method

Available-for-sale and
held-to-maturity securities with

unrealized losses are reviewed quarterly for possible 0111 For

debt secunties if the Bancorp intends to sell the debt security or

will more likely
than not be required to sell the debt security

before
recovery of the entire amortized cost basis then an 0111

has occurred However even if the Bancorp does not intend to

sell the debt security and will not likely be required to sell the debt

security before recovery of its entire amortized cost basis the

Baneorp must evaluate expected cash flows to be received and

determine if credit loss has occurred In the event of credit

loss the credit component of the impairment is recognized within

noninterest income and the non-credit component is recognized

through other comprehensive income For equity securities the

Baneorps management evaluates the securities in an unrealized

loss position in the available-for-sale porrfolio for 0111 on the

basis of the duration of the decline in value of the security and

severity of that decline as well as the Bancorps intent and
ability

to hold these securities for period of time sufficient to allow for

any anticipated recovery in the market value If it is determined

that the impairment on an equity security is other than temporary

an impairment loss equal to the difference between the carrying

value of the secunty and its fair value is recognized within

noninterest income

Portfolio Loans and Leases

Basis ojAccounting

Portfolio loans and leases are generally reported at the principal

amount outstanding net of unearned income deferred loan fees

and costs and any direct principal eharge-offs Direct loan

origination fees and costs are deferred and the net amount is

amortized over the estimated life of the related loans as yield

adjustment Interest income is recognized based on the principal

balance outstanding computed using the effective interest method

Purchased loans are evaluated for evidence of credit

deterioration at acquisition and recorded at their initial fair value

For loans acquired with no evidence of credit deterioration the

fair value discount or premium is amortized over the contractual

life of the loan as an adiustment to yield For loans acquired with

evidence of credit deterioration the Bancorp determines at the

acquisition date the excess of the loans
contractually required

payments over all cash flows expected to be collected as an

amount that should not be aecreted into interest income

nonaceretable difference The remaining amount representing

the difference in the expected cash flows of acquired loans and

the initial investment in the acquired loans is acereted into interest

income over the remaining life of the loan or pool of loans

aecrerable yield Subsequent to the purchase date increases in

expected cash flows over those expected at the purchase date are

recognized prospectively as interest income over the remaining
life of the loan The

present value of any decreases in expected

cash flows after the purchase date is recognized by recording an

ALIl or direct
charge-off Subsequent to the purchase date the

methods utilized to estimate the required ALLL is similar to

originated loans Loans carried at fair value mortgage loans held

for sale and loans under revolving credit
agreements are excluded

from the scope of this guidance on loans acquired with

deteriorated credit quality

The Baneorps lease portfolio consists of both direct

financing and leveraged leases Direct financing leases are carried

at the aggregate of lease payments plus estimated residual value of

the leased
property less unearned income Interest income on

direct financing leases is recognized over the term of the lease to

achieve constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding

investment Leveraged leases are carried at the aggregate of lease

payments less nonrecourse debt payments plus estimated

residual value of the leased property less unearned income
Interest income on leveraged leases is recognized over the term of

the lease to achieve constant rate of return on the outstanding
investment in the lease net of the related deferred income tax

liability in the years in which the net investment is positive
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nonaccrual Loans

When loan is placed on nonaccrual status the accrual of interest

is discontinued and all previously accrued and unpaid interest is

charged against income Commercial loans are placed on

nonaccrual status when there is clear indication that the

borrowers cash flow may not be sufficient to meet payments as

they become due Such loans are also placed on nonaccrual status

when the principal or interest is past due ninety days or more

unless the loan is both well secured and in the
process

of

collection Residential mortgage loans that have principal and

interest payments that have become pasr due 150 days are placed

on nonaccrual status unless such loans are both well secured and

in the process of collection Home equity automobile and other

consumer loans and leases that have principal and snterest

payments that have become past
due ninety days are placed on

nonaccrual sratus unless the loan is horh well secured and in the

process of collection Nonaccrual commercial loans other than

loans modified in TDR are accounted for on the cost recovery

method Nonaccrual residential mortgage loans and nonaccrual

consumer loans are accounted for on the cash basis method

Nonaccrual loans may be returned to accrual status when all

delinquent interest and principal payments become current in

accordance with the loan agreement or when the loan is both well-

secured and in the process of collection

Commercial loans on nonaccrual status as well as

commercial loans above specified threshold are subject to an

individual review to idenofy charge-offs Residential mortgage

loans and credit card loans that have principal and interest

payments that have become past due 180 days are charged off to

the ALLL unless such loans are both well-secured and in the

process of collection Home equity automobile and other

consumer loans and leases that have principal and interest

payments
that have become past due one hundred and twenty

days are charged off to the ALLL unless such loans are both well-

secured and in the process of collection

Restructured Loans

loan is accounted for as TDR if the Bancorp for economic or

legal reasons related to the borrowers financial difficulties grants

concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise consider

TDR typically involves modification of terms such as

reduction of the stated interest rate or face amount of the loan

reduction of accrued interest or an extension of the maturity

dates at stated interest rate lower than the current market rate

for new loan with similar risk The Bancorp measures the

impairment loss of TDR based on the difference between the

original loans carrying amount and the present
value of expected

future cash flows discounted at the original effective yield of the

loan Beginning with the first quarter of 2009 based on publlshed

guidance with respect to TDRs from certain banking regulators

and to conform to general practices within the banking industry

the Baneorp determined it was appropriate to maintain consumer

loans modified as part of TDR on accrual status provided there

is reasonable assurance of repayment and of performance

according to the modified terms based upon current well-

documented credit evaluation Management believes this policy is

reflective of regulatory guidance and provides better comparability

to other financial institutions TDRs on commercial loans remain

on nonacerual status until six-month payment history is

sustained During the nonaccrual period TDRs on commercial

loans are accounted for using the cash basis method for income

recognition provided that full repayment
of principal under the

modified terms of the loan is reasonably assured

Impaired Loans

loan is considered to be impaired when based on current

information and events it is probable that the Bancorp will be

unable to collect all amounts due including both pnneipal and

interest according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement

For loans modified in TDR the contractual terms of the loan

agreement refer to the terms specified in the original loan

agreement
loan restructured in TDR is no longer considered

impaired in years after the restruetuting if the restruetunng

agreement specifies rate equal to or greater
than the rate the

Bancorp was willing to accept at the time of the restructuring for

new loan with comparable tisk and the loan is not impasred based

on the terms specified by the restructuring agreement Refer to

the ALLL section for discussion regarding the Bancorps

methodology for identifying impaired loans and determination of

the need for loss accrual

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale
represent conforming fixed rate residential

mortgage loan originations intended to be sold in the secondary

market commercial loans and other loans that management has

an active plan to sell Loans held for sale may be carried at the

lower of cost or fair value or carried at fair value where the

Bancorp has elected the fair value option of accounting under

U.S GAAP The Bancorp has elected to measure residential

mortgage
loans originated as held for sale under the fair value

option For loans in which the Bancorp has not elected the fair

value option the lower of cost or fair value is determined at the

individual loan level

Managements intent to sell residential mortgage loans

classified as held for sale may change over ome due to such

factors as changes in the overall llquidity in markets or changes in

characteristics specific to certain loans held for sale Consequently

these loans may be reclassified to loans held for investment and

thereafter reported within the Bancorps residenoal mortgages

class of portfolio loans and leases In such cases the residential

mortgage loans will continue to be measured at fair value The fair

value of residential mortgage
loans is estimated based upon

mortgage-backed securities prices and spreads to those prices or

for certain ARM loans discounted cash flow models that may

incorporate the anticipated portfolio composition credit spreads

of asset-backed securities with similar collateral and market

conditions The anticipated portfolio composition includes the

effects of interest rate spreads and discount rates due to loan

charactetistics such as the state in which the loan was originated

the loan amount and the ARM margin These fair value marks are

recorded as component of noninterest income in
mortgage

banking net revenue The Baneorp generally has commitments to

sell residential mortgage loans held for sale in the secondary

market Gains or losses on sales are recognized in
mortgage

banking net revenue upon delivery

Loans held for sale are placed on nonacerual status consistent

with the Bancorps nonaceruai policy for portfoho loans and

leases

Other Real Estate Owned

ORFO which is included in other assets represents property

acquired through foreclosure or other proceedings
and is carried

at the lower of cost or fair value less costs to sell All OREO

property is petiodically evaluated and decreases in carrying value

are recognized as reductions in other noninterest income in the

Consolldared Statements of Income

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The Bancorp disaggregates its portfolio loans and leases into

portfolio segments for purposes of determining the ALLL The

Bancorps portfolio segments
include commercial residential

mortgage
and consumer The Bancorp further disaggregates its

portfolio segments into classes for purposes
of monitoring and

assessing credit quality based on certain risk characteristics

Classes within the commercial portfolio segment include

Fifth Third Ban corp 73



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

commercial industrial commercial
mortgage owner-occupied

commercial mortgage nonowner-occupied commercial

construction aod commercial leasing The residential mortgage

portfolio segment
is also considered class Classes within the

consumer segment include home equity automobile credit card

and other consumer loans and leases For an analysis of the

Bancorps ALLL by portfolio segment
and credit quality

information by class see Note

The Baneorp maintains the ALLL to absorb probable loan

and lease losses inherent in its portfolio segments
The ALLL is

maintained at level the Bancorp considers to be adequate and is

based on ongoing quarterly assessments and evaluations of the

collectibilitv and historical loss experience of loans and leases

Credit losses are charged and recoveries are credited to the ALLL
Provisions for loan and lease losses are based on the Bancorps

review of the historical credit loss experience and such factors

that in managements judgment deserve consideration under

existing economic conditions in estimating probable credit losses

In determining the appropriate level of the ALLL the Baneorp

estimates losses using range detived from base and

conservative estimates The Baneorps strategy for credit risk

management includes combination of conservative
exposure

limits significantly below legal lending limits and conservative

underwriting documentation and collections standards The

strategy also emphasizes diversification on geographic industry

and customer level regular credit examinations and quarterly

management reviews of large credit exposures
and loans

experiencing deterioration of credit quality

The Bancorps current methodology for determining the

ALLL is based on histoneal loss rates current credit grades

specific allocation on loans modified in TDR and impaired

commercial credits above specified thresholds and other

qualitative adjustments Allowances on individual commercial

loans TDRs and historical loss rates are reviewed quarterly and

adjusted as necessary based on changing borrower and/or

collateral conditions and actual collection and charge-off

experience An unallocated allowance is maintained to recognize

the imprecision in estimating and measuring losses when

evaluating aliowances for individual loans or pools of loans

Larger commercial loans included wirhm aggregate borrower

relationship balances exceeding $1 mdlion that exhibit probable or

observed credit weaknesses as well as loans that have been

modified in TDR are subject to individual review for

impairment The Bancorp considers the current value of collateral

credit quality of any guarantees the guarantors liquidity and

willingness to cooperate
the loan structure and other factors

when evaluating whether an individual loan is impaired Other

factors may include the industry and geographic region of the

borrower size and financial condition of the borrower cash flow

leverage of the borrower and the Bancorps evaluation of the

borrowers management When individual loans are impaired

allowances are determined based on managements estimate of the

borrowers
ability

to repay the loan given the avadabiliry of

collateral other sources of cash flow as well as evaluation of legal

options available to the Bancorp Allowances for impaired loans

are measured based on the present value of expected future cash

flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate fair value of

the underlying collateral or readdy observable secondary market

values The Bancorp evaluates the coliectibiliry of both principal

and interest when assessing the need for loss accrual

Historical credit loss rates are applied to commercial loans

that are not impaired or are impaired but smaller than the

established threshold of $1 million and thus not subject to specific

allowance allocations The loss rates are denved from migration

analysis which tracks the historical net charge-off experience

sustained on loans according to their internal tisk grade The risk

grading system currently utilized for allowance analysis purposes

encompasses ten categoes

Homogenous loans and leases in the residential mortgage
and

consumer portfolio segments are not individually tisk graded

Rather standard credit scoring systems and delinquency

monitoring are used to assess credit risks and allowances are

established based on the expected net charge-offs Loss rates are

based on the average net charge-off history by loan category

Historical loss rates may be adjusted for significant factors that in

managements judgment are necessary to reflect losses inherent in

the portfolio Factors that management considers in the analysis

include the effects of the national and local economies trends in

the nature and volume of delinquencies charge-offs and

nonacerual loans changes in loan mix credit score migration

comparisons asset quality trends tisk management and loan

administration changes in the internal lending policies and credit

standards collection practices and examination results from hank

regulatory agencies and the Bancorps internal credit examiners

The Bancorps ptimary market areas for lending are the

Midwestern and Southeastern regions of the Unites States When

evaluating the adequacy of allowances consideration is given to

these regional geographic concentrations and the closely

associated effect changing economic conditions have on the

Bancorps customers

In the current year the Bancorp has not substantively

changed any material aspect to its overall approach to determining

its ALLL for any of its portfolio segments There have been no

material changes in criteria or estimation techniques as compared

to prior periods that impacted the determination of the current

petiod ALLL for any of the Bancorps portfolio segments

Reserve for Unfunded Commitments

The reserve for unfunded commitments is maintained at level

believed by management to be sufficient to absorb estimated

probable losses related to unfunded credit facilities and is included

in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets The

determination of the adequacy of the reserve is based upon an

evaluation of the unfunded credit facilities including an

assessment of historical commitment utilization
experience

credit

tisk grading and credit grade migration This
process

takes into

consideration the same risk elements that are analyzed in the

determination of the adequacy of the Bancorps ALLL as

discussed above Net adjustments to the reserve for unfunded

commitments are included in other noninterest expense in the

Consolidated Statements of Income

Loan Sales and Securitizations

When the Bancorp sells loans through either securitizations or

individual loan sales in accordance with its investment policies it

is required to assess whether the
entity holding the sold or

secutitized loans is VIE and whether the Bancorp is the ptimary

beneficiary and therefore consolidator of that VIE If the

Bancorp holds the power to direct activities most significant to

the economic performance of the VIE and has the obligation to

absorb losses or right to receive benefits that could potentially be

significant to the VIE then the Bancorp will generally be deemed

the ptimary beneficiary of the VIE When the Bancorp previously

sold loans into isolated trusts or conduits it obtained one or more

subordinated tranches or other residual interests in these trusts or

conduits as well as the servicing rights to the underlying loans As

result effective with the January 2010 adoption of the VIE

consolidation guidance further discussed in the Accounting and

Reporting Developments section below the Bancorp was required

to consolidate these VIEs and accordingly the underlying loans

and other assets and liabilities of these VIEs are included in the

Bancorps Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31 2010

Pnor to the January 2010 adoption of the VIE

consolidation guidance referenced above the subordinated

tranches and other residual interests in the trusts and conduits
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referenced above were carried at fair value and included in

available-for-sale securities The fair value of such interests were

based on quoted
marker prices if available If quoted prices were

not available fair value was based on the present
value of future

expected cash flows using managements best estimates for the

key assumptions including credit losses prepayment speeds

forward yield curves and discount rates commensurate with the

risks involved Gains or losses recognized on the sale or

securitizarion of such loans prior to January 2010 were reported

as component of noninterest income in the Consolidated

Statements of Income and were based on the previous carrying

amount of the loans sold or securitized as well as the fair value of

the servicing rights and other interests obtained by the Bancorp at

the date of sale or securitization Adjustments to the fair value of

such interests prior to January 2010 were included in

accumulated other comprehensive
income in the Consobdated

Balance Sheets or in noninterest income in the Consolidated

Statements of Income if the fair value had decbned below the

carrying amount and such decline was determined to be other-

than-temporary

Servicing rights resulting from residential mortgage and

commercial loan sales are initialiy
recorded at fair value and

subsequentiy amortized in proportion to and over the period of

estimated net servicing revenues and are reported as component

of mortgage banking net revenue and corporate banking revenue

respectively in the Consolidated Statements of Income Servicing

rights are assessed for impairment monthly based on fair value

with temporary impairment recognized through valuation

allowance and permanent impairment recognized through write

off of the servicing asset and related valuation allowance Key

economic assumptions used in measuring any potennal

impairment of the servicing rights include the prepayment speeds

of the undetiying loans the weighted-average life the discount

rate the weighted-average coupon and the weighted-average

default rate as applicable The primary risk of material changes to

the value of the servicing rights resides in the potential volatility in

the economic assumptions used particularly the prepayment

speeds The Bancotp
monitors risk and adjusts its valuation

allowance as necessary to adequately reserve for impairment in the

servicing portfolio For purposes of measuring impairment
the

mortgage servicing rights are stratified into classes based on the

financial asset type fixed-rate vs adjustable-tate and interest

rates Fees received for servicing loans owned by investors ate

based on percentage of the outstanding monthly principal

balance of such loans and are included in noninterest income in

the Consobdated Statements of Income as loan payments are

received Costs of servicing loans are charged to expense as

incurred

Bank Premises and Eqinjpment

Bank premises
and equipment including leasehold improvements

are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortizaoon

Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method based on

estimated useful lives of the assets for book purposes
while

accelerated depreciation
is used for income tax purposes

Amortization of leasehold improvements
is computed using the

straight-line method over the lives of the related leases or useful

lives of the related assets whichever is shorter The Bancorp tests

its long-lived assets for impairment through both probability-

weighted and primary-asset approach whenever events or changes

in circumstances dictate Maintenance repairs and minor

improvements are charged to noninterest expense
in the

Consolidated Statements of Income as incurred

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Bancorp accounts for its derivatives as either assets or

liabilities measured at fair value through adjustments to

accumulated other comprehensive income and/or current

earnings as appropriate On the date the Bancoip enters into

detivative contract the Bancorp designates the derivative

instrument as either fair value hedge cash flow hedge or as

free-standing derivative instrument For fair value hedge

changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument and changes

in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability ot of an

unrecognized firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk are

recorded in current period net income For cash flow hedge

changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument to the extent

that it is effective are recorded in accumulated other

comprehensive income and subsequentiy reclassified to net

income in the same periods that the hedged transaction impacts

net income For free-standing derivative instruments changes in

fair values are reported in current period net income

Prior to enteting into hedge transaction the Bancorp

formally documents the relationship between hedging instruments

and hedged items as well as the risk management objective and

strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions This

process

includes linking ali derivative instruments that are designated as

fair value or cash flow hedges to specific assets or liabilities on the

balance sheet or to specific forecasted transactions along with

formal assessment at both inception
of the hedge and on an

ongoing basis as to the effectiveness of the derivative instrument

in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged

item If it is determined that the derivative instrument is not

highly effective as hedge hedge accounting is discontinued and

the adjustment to fair value of the derivative instrument is

recorded in net income

Income Taxes

The Bancorp estimates income tax expense
based on amounts

expected to be owed to the various tax jurisdictions
in which the

Bancorp conducts business On quarterly basis management

assesses the reasonableness of its effective tax rate based upon its

current estimate of the amount and components
of net income

tax credits and the applicable statutory tax rates expected
for the

full year The estimated income tax expense is recorded in the

Consolidated Statements of Income

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined

using the balance sheet method and are reported in other assets

and accrued taxes interest and expenses respectively in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets Under this method the net deferred

tax asset or liability
is based on the tax effects of the differences

between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities
and

reflects enacted changes in tax rates and laws Deferred tax assets

are recognized to the extent they exist and are subject to

valuation aliowance based on managements judgment that

realization is more-likely-than-not
This analysis is performed on

quarterly basis and includes an evaluation of all positive and

negative evidence to determine whether realization is more-likely-

than-not

Accrued taxes represent the net estimated amount due to

taxing jurisdictions and are reported
in accrued taxes interest and

expenses
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets The Bancorp

evaluates and assesses the relative risks and appropriate tax

treatment of transactions and fifing positions after considering

statutes regulations judicial precedent and other information and

maintains tax accruals consistent with its evaluation of these

relative risks and merits Changes to the estimate of accrued taxes

occur periodicaliy due to changes in tax rates interpretaoons of

tax laws the status of examinations being conducted by taxing

authorities and changes to statutory judicial
and regulatory

guidance that impact the relative risks of tax positions These

changes when they occur can affect deferred taxes and accrued

taxes as well as the current periods income tax expense
and can

be significant to the operating results of the Bancorp For

additional information on income taxes see Note 21
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Earnings Per Share

in accordance with U.S GAAP basic earnings per share is

compoted by dividing net income available to common
shareholders by the

weighted-average number of shares of

common stock outstanding during the period Earnings per
diluted share is computed by dividing adjusted net income

available to common shareholders by the weighted-average

number of shares of common stock and common stock

equivalents outstanding during the period Dilutive common stock

equivalents represent the assumed conversion of dilutive

convertible preferred stock and the exercise of dilutive stock-

based awards and warrants

The Baneorp calculates
earmngs per share pursuant to the

two-class method The two-class method is an earnings allocation

formula that determines earnings per share separately for common
stock and participating securities according to dividends declared

and participation rights in undistributed
earnings For purposes of

calculating earnings per share under the two-class method
restricted shares that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends are

considered participating securities until vested While the

dividends declared per share on such restricted shares are the

same as dividends declared
per common share outstanding the

dividends recognized on such restricted shares may be less

because dividends paid on restricted shares that are expected to be

forfeited are reclassified to compensation expense during the

period when forfeiture is expected

Goodwill

Business combinations entered into by the Bancorp typically

include the acquisition of goodwill U.S GAAP requires goodwill

to be tested for impairment at the Baneorps reporting unit level

on an annual basis which for the Baneorp is September 30 and

more frequentiy if events or circumstances indicate that there may
be impairment The Bancorp has determined that its segments

quabfy as reporting units under U.S GAAP Impairment exists

when reporting units
carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its

impbed fair value which is determined through two-step

impairment test The first
step Step compares the fair value of

reporting unit with its carrying amount including goodwill If

the
carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value

the second
step Step of the goodwill impairment test is

performed to measure the impairment loss amount if any
The fair value of reporting unit is the price that would be

received to sell the unit as whole in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date Since none

of the Bancorps reporting units are publlcly traded individual

reporting unit fair value determinations cannot be directly

correlated to the Bancorps stock price To determine the fair

value of
reporting unit the Bancorp employs an income-based

approach utilizing the reporting units forecasted cash flows

including terminal value approach to estimate cash flows

beyond the final
year of the forecast and the reporting units

estimated cost of equity as the discount rate Additionally the

Baneorp determines its market capitalization based on the average
of the closing price of the Baneorps stock during the month

including the measurement date incorporating an additional

control premium and allocates this market-based fair value

measurement to the Bancorps reporting units in order to

corroborate the results of the income approach

When required to perform Step the Bancorp compares
the

implied fair value of reporting units goodwill with the carrying

amount of that goodwill If the carrying amount exceeds the

implied fair value an impairment loss equal to that excess amount

is recognized An impairment loss recognized cannot exceed the

carrying amount of that goodwill and cannot be reversed even if

the fair value of the reporting unit recovers

During Step the Bancorp determines the implied fair value

of goodwill for
reporting unit by assigning the fair value of the

reporting unit to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit

including any unrecognized intangible assets as if the reporting

unit had been acquired in business combination The excess of

the fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to

its assets and liabdities is the implied fair value of goodwill This

assignment process is only performed for
purposes

of testing

goodwill for impairment The Baneorp does not adjust the

carrying values of recognized assets or liabilities other than

goodwill if appropnate nor recognize previously unrecognized

intangible assets in the Consolidated Financial Statements as

result of this assignment process Refer to Note 10 for further

information
regarding the Baneorps goodwill

Other

Securities and other property held by Fifth Third Investment

Advisors division of the Bancorps banking subsidiary in

fiduciary or agency capacity are not included in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets because such items are not assets of the

subsidiaries Investment advisory revenue in the Consolidated

Statements of Income is recognized on the accrual basis

Investment advisory service revenues are recognized monthly
based on fee charged per transaction processed and/or fee

charged on the market value of average account balances

associated with individual contracts

The Baneorp recognizes revenue from its card and

processing services on an accrual basis as such services are

performed recording revenues net of certain costs primarily

interchange fees charged by credit card associations not

controlled by the Baneorp

The Baneorp purchases life insurance policies on the lives of

certain directors officers and employees and is the owner and

beneficiary of the policies The Baneorp invests in these policies

known as BOLl to provide an efficient form of funding for long-

term retirement and other employee benefits costs The Baneorp
records these BOLl policies within other assets in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets at each policys respective cash

surrender value with changes recorded in other noninterest

income in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Other intangible assets consist of core deposit intangibles

customer lists non-competition agreements and cardholder

relationships Other intangibles are amortized on either straight-

line or an accelerated basis over their useful lives The Baneorp

reviews other intangible assets for impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amounts may not

be recoverable

Securities sold under repurchase agreements are accounted

for as collateralized financing transactions and included in other

short-term borrowings in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at the

amounts which the securities were sold plus accrued interest

Acquisitions of
treasury stock are carried at cost Reissuanee

of shares in treasury for acquisitions exercises of stock-based

awards or other corporate purposes is recorded based on the

specific identification method

Advertising costs are generally expensed as incurred

Accounting and Reporting Developments

Tranjit-s of Financia/Assets

in June 2009 the FASB issued guidance amending the accounting
for the transfers of financial assets This amended guidance

removed the concept of QSPE changed the requirements for

derecognizing financial assets and measuring gains or losses on

the sale of financial assets and
required additional disclosures

about transfers of financial assets and transferors continuing
involvement in transferred financial assets The amended guidance

was adopted by the Bancorp on January 2010 on prospective

basis and may impact the Bancorps structuring of securitizations

and other transfers of financial assets including guaranteed
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mortgage securitizations in order to meet the amended sale

treatment criteria onder the amended goidance In addition see

the discossion below regarding amended guidance on the

consolidation of VIEs and the impact on the Bancorps

Consolidated Financial Statements for assets previously

transferred to QSPEs

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009 the FASB issued guidance amending the accoonting

for the consolidation of VIEs This guidance adopted by the

Bancorp on January 2010 amends the methodology for

determining the primary beneficiary and therefore consolidator

of VIE and requires such assessment to be performed on an

ongoing basis Under this new guidance the primary beneficiary

of VIE is defined as the enterprise that has both the power

to direct activities of the VIE that most significantly impact
the

VIEs economic performance and the obligation to absorb

losses or right to receive benefits from the VIE that could

potentially lie significant to the VIE Due to the concurrent

issuance and effective date of the previously discussed amended

guidance for the transfers of financial assets and the removal of

the QSPE concept the Bancorp was required to assess all VIEs

including those formed as QSPEs in transfers that occurred prior

to January 2010 to determine whether the Bancorp was the

primary beneficiary of the VIE under the amended guidance The

Bancorp is also required under the amended guidance to provide

additional disclosures aboot its involvement with both

consolidated and non-consolidated VIEs any significant changes

in risk exposure due to that involvement and how that

involvement affects the Bancorps Consolidated Financial

Statements See Note 12 for further discussion

In accordance with the transition guidance for the initial

consolidation of VIEs resulting from the adoption of the

amended guidance the Bancorp initially
measured the assets and

liabilities of newly consolidated VIEs at their carrying amounts

defined as the amounts at which the assets and liabilities would

have been cartied in the Bancorps Consolidated Financial

Statements if the amended guidance had been effective when the

Bancorp first met the conditions to be the primary beneficiary

under the amended guidance The difference between the

amounts added to the Bancorps Consolidated Balance Sheets and

the amounts of previously recognized interests in the newly

consolidated VIEs was recognized as cumulative effect

adjustment to retained earnings The consolidation of these VIEs

on January 2010 resulted in an increase in total assets of

approximately $1.3 billion negative adjustment of $1 miffion to

accumulated other comprehensive income and negative

cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings of $77 miffion

The impact of consolidating these VIEs did not have matetial

effect on the Bancorps regulatory capital ratios

In February 2010 the FASB issued guidance deferting the above

amendments to the consolidation of VIEs for reporting entitys

interest in registered money market funds In addition the deferral

also applies to reporting entitys interest in entities meeting either of

the following two criteria the entity has all the attributes of an

investment company as specified in ASC Topic 946 Financial

Services Investment Companies or it is an entity for which it is

acceptable based on industry practice to apply measurement

ptinciples that are consistent with those in ASC Topic 946 including

recognizing changes in fair value currently in the statement of

operations for financial reporting purposes The deferral does not

apply to those entities in situations in which reporting entity has the

explicit or implicit obligation to fund losses of an entity that could

potentially be significant to the entity As result of this deferral the

Bancorp has determined that its interests in private equity funds

mutual funds and money market funds are not subject to the above

amended guidance for the consolidation of VIEs For entities that

meet the deferral criteria the primary beneficiary of the VIE is the

enterprise that will absorb majotity of the VIEs expected losses or

receive majotity of the VIEs expected residual returns

Disclosures abont Fair Value Measnrements

In January 2010 the FASB issued new guidance clatifying current

fair value disclosure requirements and also requiring certain

additional disclosures about fair value measurements The

disclosure requirements under this new guidance were

implemented by the Bancorp during the first quarter of 2010 and

are included in Note 28

Embedded Credit Derivatives

In March 2010 the FASB issued guidance clatifying the
type

of

embedded credit detivative that is exempt from bifurcation

requirements Under the guidance the only form of embedded

credit derivative that qualifies for the exemption is one that is

related only to the subordination of one financial instrument to

another The adoption of this guidance on July 2010 did not

have material impact on the Bancorps Consolidated Financial

Statements

Modjication of Loan Included in PoolAccountedfor as Single Asset

In April 2010 the FASB issued guidance clarifying that

modifications of loans that are accounted for within pool under

ASC Subtopic 10-30 do not result in the removal of those loans

from the pool even if the modification of those loans would

otherwise be considered TDR Under the new guidance an

entity will continue to be required to consider whether the pooi of

assets in which the loan is included is impaired if expected cash

flows for the pool change The adoption of this guidance on July

2010 did not have matetial impact on the Bancorps

Consolidated Financial Statements

Disclosures about the Credit Qualiy of Financing Receivables and the

Allowance for Credit Losses

In July 2010 the FASB issued guidance that requires the Bancorp

to disclose greater level of disaggregated information about the

credit quality of its loans and leases and the ALLL The new

guidance defines two levels of disaggregationportfolio segment

and class portfolio segment is defined as the level at which the

Bancorp develops and documents systematic method for

determining its ALLL Classes generally represent further

disaggregation of portfolio segment based on certain risk

characteristics The new disclosures relating to information as of

the end of reporting petiod are effective for interim and annual

reporting petiods ending on or afrer December 15 2010 and have

been included in Note The new disclosures about activity that

occurs during reporting petiod are effective for interim and

annual reporting petiods beginning on or afrer December 15

2010

In January 2011 the FASB issued guidance that temporarily

delayed the effective date of the disclosures about TDRs that are

included in this July 2010 guidance on disclosures about credit

quality and the ALLL The TDR disclosure guidance will be

coordinated with the FASBs proposed guidance for determinmg

what constitutes TDR and is currently anticipated to be effective

for intetim and annual petiods ending afterJune 15 2011
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Noncash investing and financing activities are presented in the following table for the
years

ended December 31

in miffions 2010 2009 2008

Transfers

Portfolio loans to held for sale loans $650 $45 $532

Held for sale loans to portfolio loans 160 47 1692

Portfolio loans to available-for-sale secunoes 430

Portfolio loans to trading securities 92

Held for sale loans to trading secunoes 136 268

Portfolio loans to OREO 662 377 303

Held for sale loans to OREO 68 36

Acquisitions

Fair value of tangible assets acquired 4368

Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets acquired 13 1194

Connngenr consideration

Liabilities assumed 4858
Common stock issued 770
Impact of change in accounting principle

Decrease in available-for-sale secutities net 941

Increase in portfolio loans 2217

Decrease in demand deposits 18

Increase in other short-term borrowings 122

Increase in long-term debt 1344

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND ASSET ACQUISITIONS
First Charter Corporation

On June 2008 the Bancorp acquired 100% of the outstanding

stock of First Charter full service financial institution

headquartered in Charlotte North Carolina First Charter

operated 57 branches in North Carolina and two in suburban

Atianta Georgia The acquisition of First Charter expanded the

Bancorps footprint into the Charlotte North Carolina market and

strengthened the Bancorps presence in Georgia

Under the terms of the transaction the Bancorp paid $31.00

per First Charter share or $1.1 billion Consideration was paid in

the form of approximately 7O% Fifth Third common stock and

3O/s cash First Charter common stock shareholders who received

shares of Fifth Third common stock in the
merger

received

1.7412 shares of Fifth Third common stock for each share of First

Charter common stock resulting in the issuance of 42.9 million

shares of Fifth Third common stock The common stock issued

to affect the transaction was valued at $17.80 per share the

average closing price of the Bancorps common stock on the five

previous trading days ending on the trading day immediately prior

to the closing date

The assets and liabilities of First Charter were recorded on

the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their respective fair values as

of the closing date The results of First Charters operations were

included in the Bancorps Consolidated Statements of Income

from the date of acquisition In addition the Bancorp realized

charges against its earnings for acquisioon-related expenses of $17

million during 2008 The acquisition-related expenses consisted

pnmarily of consulting marketing travel and relocation and other

costs associated with system conversions

The transaction resulted in total intangible assets of $1.2

billion based upon the purchase price the fair values of the

acquired assets and assumed liabilities and applicable purchase

accounting adjustments Of this total intangibles amount $56

million was allocated to core deposit intangibles $9 million was

allocated to customer lists and $2 million was allocated to lease

intangibles The remaining $1.1 billion of intangible assets was

recorded as goodwill which is non-deductible for tax purposes

The pro forma effect and the financial results of First Charter

included in the results of operations subsequent to the date of

acquisition were immaterial to the Baneorps financial condition

or the operating results for the penods presented

Other

On October 31 2008 banking regulators declared Bradenton

Florida-based Freedom Bank insolvent and the FDIC was named

receiver The FDIC approved the assumption of all deposits by

the Baneorp which approximated $257 million The FDIC
retained substantially all of Freedom Banks loan portfolio for

later disposition As part of the asset acquisition the Bancorp

recorded core deposit intangible of $3 million

On May 2008 the Bancorp completed its purchase of nine

branches located in Atlanta Georgia from First Horizon National

Corporation First Horizon Under terms of the deal the

Bancorp acquired the nine branches and assumed the related

deposits of $114 million First Horizon retained all loans held at

the branches As part of the asset acquisition the Bancorp

recorded core deposit intangible of $1 million
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RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DIVIDENDS

The FRB requires that banks hold cash in reserve against deposit

liabilities known as the reserve requsrement
The amount of the

reserve requirement is currently calculated based on net

transaction account deposits
and is saosfied with vault cash

When vault cash alone is not sufficient to meet the reserve

requirement the remaining amount must be satisfied with funds

held at the FRB At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorps

reserve requirements were satisfied with vault cash The dividends

paid by the Bancorps state chartered bank and nonbank

subsidiaries are subject to regulations and limitations prescribed

by the appropriate state authority The Bancorps state chartered

bank paid the Bancorp $1.4 billion in dividends during the year

ended December 31 2010 and did not pay dividend during the

year ended December 31 2009 Based on retained earnings at

December 31 2010 and 2009 the dividend limitation of the

Bancorps nonbank subsidiaries under these provisions was $150

million and $87 million respectively

On December 31 2008 the Bancorp sold $3.4 billion in

senior preferred stock and related warrants to the U.S Treasury

under the terms of the CPP The terms include restrictions on

common stock dividends which require
the U.S Treasurys

consent to increase common stock dividends for period of three

years from the date of investment unless the preferred shares are

redeemed in whole or the U.S Treasury has transferred all of the

preferred shares to third party For the Bancorp approval from

the U.S Treasury will be required for common stock dividends in

excess of $0.15 per share of common stock Also no dividends

can be declared or paid on the Bancorps common stock unless all

accrued and unpaid dividends have been paid on the preferred

shares and certain other outstanding securities Additionally the

Bancorps ability
to pay dividends on its common stock is limited

by its need to maintain adequate capital levels comply with safe

and sound banking practices and meet regulatory expectations

On February 2011 the Bancorp redeemed all 136320

shares of its Series preferred stock held by the U.S Treasury

under the CPP totaling $3.4 billion See Note 32 for further

information on the redemption of the preferred shares

SECURITIES

The following table provides the amortized cost fair value and unrealized gains and losses for the major categories of the available-for-sale and

held-to-maturity securities portfolio as of December 31

2010 2009

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Amorozed Unrealized Unrealized Fair

in millions Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value

Available-for-sale and other

U.S Treasury and Government

agencies $225 230 464 458

U.S Government sponsored

agencies 1564 81 1645 2143 32 33 2142

Obligations of states and

political
subdivisions 170 172 240 243

Agency mortgage-backed

securities 10570 435 32 10973 11074 315 11382

Other bonds notes and

debentures 1338 19 15 1342 2541 57 29 2569

Other securitiesa 1052 1052 1417 1419

Total $14919 542 47 15414 17879 411 77 18213

Held-to-maturity

Obligations of states and

political
subdivisions $348 348 350 350

Other debt securities

Total $353
353 355 355

Other securities consist
of

FHLB and FEB restricted stock holdings of $524 and $344 at December 3Z 2Oi6 respectevefy
and $551 and $342 at December31 2009 respecteiey that are

carried at cos4 and certain mntualfnnd holdings
and

eqn4y secuny holdings

The following table presents
realized gains and losses recognized in income from available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31

in millions

Realized gains

Realized losses

Net realized gains

Trading securities totaled $294 million as of December 31 2010

compared to $355 million at December 31 2009 Gross realized

gains and gross
realized losses on trading securities were $1 million

each for the year ended December 31 2010 Gross unrealized gains

and gross unrealized losses on trading securities were $8 miffion

each for the year
ended December 31 2010 Gross realized gains

and losses on trading securities were $1 million and $2 million

respectively for the year ended December 31 2009 Gross

unrealized losses on trading secunties were $8 million and gross

2010 2009 2008

$69 91 161

13 34 130

$56 57 31

unrealized gains were immaterial to the Bancorp for the year ended

December 31 2009 Gross realized gains on trading securities for

the year ended December 31 2008 were $3 million while gross

realized losses as well as gross
unreabzed gains

and losses were

immaterial to the Bancorp

At December 31 2010 and 2009 secunties with fair value of

$11.3 billion and $14.2 billion respectively were pledged to secure

borrowings public deposits trust funds derivative contracts and

for other purposes as required or permitted by law
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The amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities at December 31 2010 by contractual maturity are

shown in the following table

Available-for-Sale Other Held-to-Maturity

Amortized Amortized
in millions Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Debt securities

Under year $626 633 21 21

1-5 years 9535 9925 190 190

5-10 years 3546 3645 116 116

Over 10 years 160 159 26 26

Other securities
1052 1052

Total
$14919 15414 353 353

Actual maturities may df/irfrom contractual maturities when there cAsts
ight

to call or prepay shliyatious with or without call
orprepayment penalties

The following table provides the fair value and gross unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities in an unreabzed loss position aggregated

by investment category and length of time the individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position as of December 31

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

in millions Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

2010

U.S Treasury and Government agencies

U.S Government sponsored agencies

Obligations of states and politicai subdivisions 11 15

Agency mortgage-backed securities 1555 32 1555 32
Other bonds notes and debentures 563 10 47 610 15
Other securities

Total
$2129 42 52 2181 47

2009

U.S Treasury and Government agencies $288 289
U.S Government sponsored agencies 1024 15 347 18 1371 33
Obligations of states and political subdivisions

Agency mortgage-backed securities 1583 1583
Other bonds notes and debentures 782 15 108 14 890 29
Other securities

Total $3683 45 459 32 4142 77

Other-Titan-Temporary Impairments OTTI
If the fair value of an available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security

is less than its amortized cost basis the Bancorp must determine

whether an 0111 has occurred Under U.S GAAP the

recognition and measurement requirements related to 0111 differ

for debt and equity securities See Note for further information

on the Baneorps accounting for 0111

During the year ended December 31 2010 the Bancorp

recognized $3 million in 0111 on its available-for-sale debt

securities however no 0111 was recognized on held-to-maturity

debt secunties During the year ended December 31 2009 0111

recognized on available-for-sale and held-to-maturity debt

securities was immaterial to the Bancorps consolidated financial

statements In addition for the years ended December 31 2010
2009 and 2008 0111 recognized on available-for-sale equity

securities was immaterial to the Bancorps consolidated financial

statements At December 31 2010 less than one percent of

unrealized losses in the available-for-sale securities portfolio were

represented by non-rated securities compared to two percent at

December 31 2009

During 2008 the Baneorp recognized pre-tax 0111 charge
of $67 million on FHLMC and FNMA preferred stock included in

other securities as well as pre-tax 0111 charge of $37 million on

certain bank trust-preferred debt securities classified as available

for-saie Upon change in U.S GAAP and adoption by the

Bancorp in the second quarter of 2009 the Baneorp concluded

that the 0111 charges on the trust preferred securities were due to

non-credit related factors Therefore the
Bancorp recognized an

increase of $37 million to the investment balance and related

unrealized losses during the
year ended December 31 2009
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The Bancorp periodically reviews residual values associated with

its leasing portfolio
Declines in residual values that are deemed to

be other-than-temporary are recognized as loss Residual value

write-downs related to consumer automobile leases for the year

ended December 31 2010 were immaterial to the Consolidated

Financial Statements The Bancorp recognized $1 miffion and $3

million in residual value write-downs related to consumer

automobile leases for the years
ended December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively The Bancorp recognized an immaterial amount

of residual value write-downs related to commercial leases in 2010

and 2008 and $4 million for the year ended December 31 2009

At December 31 2010 the minimum future lease payments

receivable for each of the years 2011 through 2015 was $860

million $686 million $492 million $457 million and $251 million

respectively

LOANS AND LEASES

The following table provides summary of the total loans and leases classified by primary purpose as of December 31

in millions
2010 2009

Luans and leasca held for sale

Commercial and induattial loans $83

Commercial mortgage loans 147 134

Commercial construction loans 63 87

Residential mortgage loans 1901 1811

Other consumer loans and leases
22 31

Total loans and leases held for sale $2216 2067

Portfolio loans and leases

Commercial and industrial loans $27191 $25683

Commercial mortgage loans 10845 11803

Commercial construction loans 2048 3784

Commercial leases 3378 3535

Total commercial loans and leases
43462 44805

Residential mortgage loans 8956 8035

Home equity
11513 12174

Automobile loans 10983 8995

Credit card 1896 1990

Other consumer loans and leases
681 780

Total consumer loans and leases 34029 31974

Total portfolio loans and leases
$77491 76779

Total portfolio loans and leases were recorded net of unearned acceptable interest rate and credit risk levels and changes are made

income which totaled $1.0 billion and $1.2 billion as of December to underwtiting policies and procedures as needed The Bancorp

31 2010 and 2009 respectively Additionally unamortized maintains an allowance to absorb loan and lease losses inherent in

premiums and discounts deferred loan fees and costs and fair the portfolio For further information on credit quality and the

value adjustments associated with acquired
loans or loans ALLL see Note

designated as fair value upon origination totaled net discount The Baneorp engages in commercial and consumer lease

of $19 million and $106 million as of December 31 2010 and products primarily
related to the financing of commercial

2009 respectively equipment
and automobiles The Bancorp had $3.0 billion of

The Bancorp diversifies its loan and lease portfolio by direct financing leases and $1.7 biffion of leveraged leases at

offering vatiety of loan and lease products with various payment
December 31 2010 compared to $3.2 biffion and $2.0 billion

terms and rate structures Lending activities are concentrated respectively at December 31 2009

within those states in which the Bancorp has banking centers and Pre-tax income from leveraged leases for 2010 was $49

are primarily located in the Midwestern and Southeastern regions million compared to pre-tax income in 2009 of $57 million and

of the United States The Bancorps commercial loan portfolio pre-tax loss in 2008 of $97 million The tax effect of this income

consists of lending to various industry types Management was an expense
of $10 million in each of the years ended 2010 and

periodically reviews the performance of its loan and lease 2009 and tax benefit of $37 million in 2008

products to evaluate whether they are performing within

The components of the investment in lease financing at December 31

in millions
2010 2009

Rentals receivable net of ptincipal and interest on nonrecourse debt $3775 4174

Estimated residual value of leased assets 900 1028

Initial direct cost net of amorozation
16 19

Gross investment in lease financing
4691 5221

Unearned income 1040 1186

Net investment in lease financing
$3651 4035

The accumulated allawance far uncallectible minimum lease payments was $112 andl 125 at December31 2010 and 2009 ropectevqy
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CREDIT QUALITY AND THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES

Effective December 31 2010 the Bancorp adopted new represent the level of dissagregation at which the Bancorp

disclosure requirements that require disaggregation of disclosures monitors the credit quality and risk characteristics of the portfolio

related to the ALLL by portfolio segment and disclosures related segments The new disclosure requirements do not apply to

to credit quality of loans and leases by class The Bancorps periods ending before December 15 2010 Therefore certain

portfolio segments represent the level of disaggrcgation at which disclosures are presented on comparative basis in aggregate and

the Bancorp determines the ALLL The Bancorps classes then on disaggregared basis as of December 31 2010

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The following table summanzcs transactions in the ALLL for the years ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Balance at January $3749 $2787 $937

Impact of change in accounting principle 45

Losses charged off 2485 2719 2791
Recoveries of losses previously charged off 157 138 81

Provision for loan and lease losses 1538 3f4 4560
Balance at December 31 $3004 $3749 $2787

The following table provides summary of the ALLL and related loans and leases classified by portfolio segment as of December 31 2010

Residential

in millions Commercial Mortgage Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance for loan and lease losses

Individually evaluated for impairment $209 119 107 $435

Colleenvely evaluated for impairment 1779 189 448 2416
Loans acquired with detetiorated credit quality

Unallocated 150 150

Total allowance for loan and lease losses $1989 310 555 150 $3004

Loans and leases

Individually evaluated for impairment $1076 1180 651 $2907

Collectively evaluated for impairment 42382 7718 24414 74514

Loans acquired with detenorated credit quality 12 24

Total portfolio loans and leases $43462 8910 25073 $77445

Includes $15 related to leveraged leases

Excludes $46 of
residential

mortgage
loans measured at/air value and includes $1039 of leveraged leases net of unearned income

Credit Risk Profile

For purposes of monitoring the credit quality and risk

eharactenstics of its commercial portfolio segment the Bancorp

disaggregates the segment into the following classes commercial

and industrial commercial mortgage owner-occupied commercial

mortgage nonowner-occupied commercial construction and

commercial leasing

To facilitate the monitoring of credit quality within the

commercial portfolio segment and for purposes of analyzing

histotical loss rates used in the determination of the ALLL for the

commercial portfolio segment the Bancorp utilizes the following

categories of credit grades pass special mention substandard

doubtful or loss The five categoties which are derived from

standard regulatory rating definitions are assigned upon initial

approval of credit to borrowers and updated periodically

thereafter Pass ratings which are assigned to those liorrowers that

do not have identified potential or well defined weaknesses and

for which there is high likelihood of orderly repayment are

updated periodically based on the size and credit characteristics of

the borrower All other categories are updated on quarterly basis

during the month
preceding the end of the calendar quarter

The Bancorp assigns special mention rating to loans and

leases that have potential weaknesses that deserve managements
close attention If left uncorrected these potential weaknesses

may at some future date result in the deterioration of the

repayment prospects for the loan or lease or the Bancorps credit

position

The Bancorp assigns substandard rating to loans and

leases that are inadequately protected by the current sound worth

and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged

Substandard loans and leases have well defined weaknesses or

weaknesses that could jeopardize the orderly repayment of the

debt Loans and leases in this grade also are charactetized by the

distinct possibility that the Bancorp will sustain some loss if the

deficiencies noted are not addressed and corrected

The Bancorp assigns doubtful rating to loans and leases

that have all the attributes of substandard rating with the added

characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation

in full on the basis of currendy existing facts conditions and

values highly questionable and improbable The possibility of

loss is extremely high but because of certain important and

reasonable specific pending factors that may work to the

advantage of and strengthen the credit quality of the loan or

lease its classification as an estimated loss is deferred until its

more exact status may be determined Pending factors may
include proposed merger or acquisition liquidation proceeding

capital injection perfecting liens on additional collateral or

refinancing plans

Loans and leases classified as loss are considered

uncollectible and are charged off in the petiod in which they are

determined uncollectilile Because loans and leases in this

category are fully charged down they are not included in the

following tables
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For purposes
of monitoring the credit quality and risk

characteristics of its consumer portfolio segment the Bancorp

disaggregates the segment
into the following classes home equity

automobile loans credit card and other consumer loans and

leases The Bancorps residential mortgage portfolio segment
is

also separate class

The Bancorp considers repayment performance as the best

indicator of credit quality
for residential mortgage and consumer

loans Residential mortgage
loans that have principal and interest

payments that have become past due one hundred
fifty days are

classified as nonperforming
unless such loans are both well

secured and in the process
of collection Home equity

automobile and other consumer loans and leases that have

principal
and interest payments that have become past due ninety

days are classified as nonperforming unless the loan is both well

Impaired Loans and Leases

Larger commercial loans included within aggregate
borrower

relationship balances exceeding $1 million that exhibit probable

or observed credit weaknesses are subject to individual review

The Bancorp also performs an individual review on loans that are

restructured in troubled debt restructuring
The Bancorp

considers the current value of collateral credit quality of any

secured and in the process
of collection Credit card loans that

have been modified in TDR are classified as nonperforming

unless such loans have sustalned repayment performance of six

months or greater and are reasonably assured of repayment
in

accordance with the restructured terms All other loans and leases

are classified as performing
Well secured loans are collateralized

by perfected security interests in real and/or personal property
for

which the Baneorp estimates proceeds from sale would be

sufficient to recover the outstanding principal and accrued interest

balance of the loan and pay
all costs to sell the collateral The

Bancorp considers loan in the process of collection if collection

efforts or legal action is proceeding and the Baneorp expects to

collect funds sufficient to bting the loan current or recover the

entire outstanding principal and accrued interest balance

guarantees
the loan structure and other factors when evaluating

whether an individual loan is impaired Other factors may include

the geography and industry of the borrower size and financial

condition of the borrower cash flow and leverage
of the

borrower and the Bancorps evaluation of the borrowers

management

The following table summarizes the credit risk profile of the Baneorps commercial portfolio segment by class as of December 31 2010

Commercial Commercial

Commercial Mortgage Loans Mortgage Loans Commercial Commercial

Credit Grade in millions Industtial Loans Owner-Occupied Nonowner-Oceupied Construction Leases

Pass $23147 4034 3620 1034 3269

Special Mention 1406 430 647 416 60

Substandard 2541 854 1174 540 48

Doubtful 97 22 64 58

Total $27191 5340 5505 2048 3378

The following table summatizes the credit tisk profile of the Bancorps residential mortgage and consumer portfolio segments by class as

of December 31 2010

Residential Automobile Credit Other Consumer

in millions Mortgage Loansa Home Equity Loans Card Loans and Leases

Performing
$8642 11457 10980 1841 597

Nonperforming
268 56 55 84

Total $8910 11513 10983 1896 681

Excludes $46 of
loans measured at fair

value

Age Analysis of Past Due Loans and Leases

The following table summatizes the Bancorps recorded investment in portfolio loans and leases by age
and class as of December 31 2010

90 Days Current 90 Days Past

30-89 Days and Total Past Loans and Total Loans Due and Still

Portfolio Loans and Leases in millions Past Due Greater Due Leases and Leases Accruing

Commercial

Commercial and industrial loans $201 303 504 26687 $27191 $16

Commercial mortgage owner-occupied
50 139 189 5151 5340

Commercial mortgage nonowner-oeeupied 38 215 253 5252 5505

Commercial construction 72 145 217 1831 2048

Commercial leasing
10 17 3361 3378

Residential mortgage
loans 138 368 506 8404 8910 100

Consumer

Home equity loans 148 145 293 11220 11513 89

Automobile loans 96 15 111 10872 10983 13

Credit card loans 35 90 125 1771 1896 42

Other consumer loans and leases 672 681

Total portfolio loans and leases $791 1433 2224 75221 $77445 $274

Excludes $46 of loans measured at fair
value

Includes accrual and nouaccrual loans and leases
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The following table summarizes the Baneorps teeorded investment in impaired loans and leases and related allowance as of December 31

2010 2ll09

Recorded Recorded

in millions Investment Allowanec Investment Allowance

With related allowance recorded

Commercial $695 210 $1468 Sill

Residential mortgage 1071 121 960 108

Consumer 607 107 519 36

Total with related allowance recorded $2373 438 $2947 654

With no related allowance recorded

Commercial $385 $214
Residenoal

mortgage 121 68

Consumer 52 59

Total with no related allowance recorded 558 341

Total impaired loans and leases $2931 $3288

The
average balance of impaired loans during 2010 2009 and 2008 was $3.2 billion $2.9 billion and $1.5 bilion respectively Interest income

recognized on impaired loans during 2010 2009 and 2008 was $74 million $54 mdllon and $12 miffion respectively

The following table summarizes the Bancorps recorded investment in impaired loans and related allowance by class as of December 31 2010

Recorded Unpaid Principal

in millions Investment Balance Allowance

With related allowance recorded

Commercial

Commercial and industrial loans $291 404 128

Commercial
mortgage loans owner-occupied 37 49

Commercial
mortgage loans nonowner-oceupied 202 386 40

Commercial construction loans 150 240 31

Commercial leasing 15 15

Restructured residential mortgage loans
1071 1126 121

Restructured consumer loans

Home equity $397 400 53

Automobile 32 33

Credit card
loll 100 18

Other 78 78 31

Total impaired loans with related allowance
$2373 2831 438

With no related allowance recorded

Commercial

Commercial and industrial loans
$153 194

Commercial mortgage loans owner-occupied 99 13

Commercial mortgage loans
nonowocr-oeeupied 108 126

Commercial construction loans 24
Commercial leasing 17 17

Restructured residential
mortgage loans 121 146

Restructured consumer loans

Home equity $46 48

Automobile

Total impaired loans with no related allowance $558 674

Nonperforining Assets

The following table summarizes the total nonperforming and delinquent loans and leases as of December 31

in millions 2010 2009
Nonaccrual loans and leases

$1333 $2642
Restructured nonacerual loans and leases 347 305
Total nonperforming loans and leases

1680 2947
OREO and other repossessed personal property 494 297
Total nonperforming assets

$2174 $3244
Total loans and leases 90 days past due and still accruing $274 $567

Excludes $38 and $15 of OREO related
togsvernenent insured loans at December31 2010 and 2009 rcgectzve/y

Excludes $294 and $224 of nonaccrual loans held Jbr sale at December31 2010 and 2009 re.ective/y
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Interest income recognized on cash basis for loans on nonaccrual status during 2010 2009 and 2008 was $25 million $20 million and $10

milhon respectively

The Bancorp has acquired certain loans for which there was

evidence of deterioration of credit quality since origination and for

which it was probable at acquisition that all contractually

required payments would not be collected These loans were

evaluated either individually or segregated into pools based on

common risk characteristics and accounted for under U.S GAAP

guidance for loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality U.S

GAAP requires acquired loans to be recorded at their initial fair

value and prohibits carrying over valuation allowances when

applying purchase accounting Loans carried at fair value

mortgage loans held for sale and loans under revolving credit

agreements are excluded from the scope of this guidance on loans

acquired with detetiorated credit quallty During the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the Bancorp recorded

provision expense
for loans acquired with detenorated credit

quality of $6 million $21 mfflion and $35 million respectively in

the Consolldated Statements of Income In addition as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp maintained an

allowance for loan and lease losses of $3 million and $21 million

respectively on these loans

The following table reflects the outstanding balance of all

contractually required payments
and carrying amounts of loans

acquired with deteriorated credit quality at December 31

in millions
2010 2009

Commercial $15 158

Consumer 58 58

Outstanding balance $73 216

Carrying amount $24 71

At the acquisition date the Bancorp determines the excess of the

loans contractually required payments over all cash flows

expected to be collected as an amount that should not be accreted

into interest income nonaceretable difference The remaining

amount representing the difference in the expected cash flows of

acquired loans and the initial investment in the acquired loans is

accreted into interest income over the remaining llfe of the loan or

pool of loans accretable yield summary of activity is provided

Aceretable

in millions Yield

Balance as of December 31 2007 $6

Additions 24

Accretion 15
Disposals

Reclassifications from to nonaccretable difference

net 13

Balance as of December 31 2008 $28

Additions

Accretion

Disposals

Reclassifications from to nonaccretable difference

net 13
Balance as of December 31 2009 $9

Additions

Accretion

Disposals

Reclassifications from to nonaccretable difference

net

Balance as of December 31 2010 $2

The following table reflects loans that were acquired with

deteriorated credit quallty during the years ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Contractually required payments receivable

at acquisition

Commercial 182

Consumer 23 34

Total $23 216

Cash flows expected to be collected at

acquisition $8 90

Fair value of acquired loans at

acquisition 66

The following table summatizes the Bancorps nonperforming loans and leases by class as of December 31 2010

Nonperforming

Loans Leases$in milllons

Commercial

Commercial and industrial loans $568

Commercial mortgage loans owner-occupied
168

Commercial mortgage loans nonowncr-occupied
267

Commercial construction 192

Commercial leasing
19

Total Commercial $1214

Residential mortgage loans $268

Consumer

Home equity
56

Automobile loans

Credit card 55

Other consumer loans and leases 84

Total Consumer $198

Total nonperfnrming loans and leases $1680

Exc/ndes $294 and $224 qfnonaccrna/ loans heldfsr sale at December3Z 2010 and 2009 respectevey

LOANS WITH DETERIORATED CREDIT QUALITY ACQUIRED IN TRANSFER
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The following is summary of bank premises and equipment at December 31

in millions Estimated Useful Life 2010 2009

Land and improvements $797 748

Buildings to 50 yrs 1593 1539

Equipmcnt to 20 yts 1296 1354

Leasehold improvements to 40 yrs 393 401

Construction in progress 92 105

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 1782 1747
Total $2389 2400

Depreciation and amortization expense related to bank premises The Bancorps subsidiaries have entered into number of

and equipment was $225 million in 2010 $227 miffion in 2009 and noncancelable and capital lease agreements with respect to bank

$218 million in 2008 premises and equipment The following table provides the annual

Gross
occupancy expense

for cancelable and noncancelable future minimum payments under capital leases and noncancelable

leases was $98 million in 2010 $102 million in 2009 and $98 operating leases at December 31 2010

million in 2008 which is reduced by rental income from leased

premises of $19 million in 2010 $16 million in 2009 and $13

million in 2008

in millions Operating Leases Capital Leases

Year ended December 31
2011 $91 12

2012 87 13

2013 83

2014 79

2015 75

Thereafter 454

Total minimum lease payments $869 29

Amounts representinc interest

Present value of net minimum lease payments 32

10 GOODWILL
Business combinations entered into by the Bancorp typically carrying amounts cxcceded their associated imphed fair values by

include the acquisition of goodwill Acquisition activity includes $750 miffion and $215 million respectively The resulting $965

acquisitions in the respective period in addition to purchase million goodwill impairment charge was recorded in the fourth

accounting adjustments related to previous acquisitions During quarter
of 2008 and represents the total amount of accumulated

the fourth quarter of 2008 the Bancorp determined that the impairment losses as of December 31 2010

Commercial Banking and Consumer Lending segments goodwill

Changes in the net carrying amount of goodwill by reporting segment for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 wcre as follows

Commercial Branch Consumer Investment Processing

in millions Banking Banking Lending Advisors Solutions Total

Balance as of December 31 2008 $614 1657 148 205 2624

Acquisition activity

Sale of Processing Buoincsi 212 212
Balance as of December 31 2009 613 1656 148 2417

Acquisinon acovity -_
Balance as of December 31 2010 $613 1656 148 2417

As result
qf

the
Processing

Business Sale on June 30 2009 Processing Solutions is no longer segment of the Baneorp

The Bancorp conducts its evaluation of goodwill impairment as of

September 30th each year and more frequently if events or

circumstances indicate that there may be impairment The

Bancorp completed its annual goodwill impairment test as of

September 30 2010 and determined that no impairment existed

The Bancorp evaluates goodwill for impairment at the segment

level

In Step of the goodwill impairment test the Bancorp

compared the fair value of each segment to its carrying amount

including goodwill To determine the fair value of segment the

Bancotp employed an income-based approach utillzing the

segments forecasted cash flows including terminal value

approach to estimate cash flows beyond the final year of the

forecast and the segments estimated cost of equity as the

discount rate The Bancorp believes that this DCL method using

management projections for the respective segments and an

appropriate risk adjusted discount rate is most reflective of

market participants view of fair values given current market

conditions Under the DCL method the forecasted cash flows

were developed for each
segment by considering several key

business drivers such as new business initiatives client retention

standards market share changes anticipated loan and deposit

growth forward interest rates histotical performance recent and

anticipated regulatory changes and industry and economic trends

among other considerations

The long-term growth rate used in determining the terminal

value of each segment was esomated at three percent based on the

Bancorps assessment of the long-term expected growth tate of

each segment as well as broadet economic considerations such as

long-term expectations for gross domestic product and inflation

The cash flow growth tate required to avoid fading Step was

determined to be negative 0.5%
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The discount rates used in the goodwill impairment test as of

September 30 2010 to develop the estimated fair value of the

segments were as follows

Discount

Rate

Commercial Banking
6.7%

Branch Banking
16.0%

Investment Advisors 17.4%

Discount rates were estimated based on capital asset pricing

model which considers the risk-free interest rate an estimated

equity risk premium an estimated beta for the Bancorps common

stock and size premium adjustments specific to each particular

segment

Based on the results of the Step test the Bancorp

determined that the fair value of the Commercial Banking Branch

Banking and Investment Advisors segments exceeded their

respective carrying values and consequentiy no further testing

was required

The Step analysis prepared for the Bancorps Branch

Banking segment resulted in the units fair value exceeding its

carrying value including goodwill by 7% The key assumptions

used in estimating the fair value for the segment include deposit

and loan growth rates forecasted changes in the absolute and

relative levels of interest rates and the impact
of recent and

anticipated regulatory changes affecting retail banking The

Bancorp forecasts its deposit growth based on an assessment of

its expected funding needs which includes an analysis of expected

growth
in loan and investment balances as well as availability and

expected use of alternative funding sources over that period The

Bancorp looks at forward interest rate curves to forecast the

future expected interest rate levels which impact the revenue

from the spread earned on loan balances as well as the funding

benefit generated by the deposit base The sensitivity of the

Bancorps deposit rates to changes in LIBOR is also key factor

considered in this analysis The Bancorp also considered the

potential impact of recent and anticipated regulatory changes that

may impact overdraft revenue debit interchange revenue and

credit card revenue in 2011 and beyond Changes in these key

assumptions could negatively impact the fair value of the Branch

Banking segment
in future periods These changes woultl include

unanticipated regulatory changes movements in interest rates and

economic trends affecting the Branch Banking segments

profitability

11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of servicing rights core deposit Bancorp reviews intangible assets for possible impairment

intangibles customer lists non-compete agreements
and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that

cardholder relationships Intangible assets excluding servicing carrying amounts may not be recoverable For more information

rights are amortized on either straight-line or an accelerated on servicing rights see Note 13 The details of the Bancorps

basis over their estimated useful lives and have an estimated intangible assets are shown in the following table

weighted-average life at December 31 2010 of 3.5 years
The

Gross Carrying Accumulated Valuation Net Carrying

in millions
Amount Amortizanon Allowance Amount

As of December31 2010

Mortgage servicing tights $2284 1146 316 822

Core deposit intangibles
439 389 50

Other 44 32 12

Total intangible assets $2767 1567 316 884

As of December 31 2009

Mortgage servicing tights
$1987 1008 280 699

Core deposit intangibles
487 397 90

Other consumer and commercial servicing tights
12 11

Other 53 37 16

Total intangible assets $2539 1453 280 806

As of December 31 2010 all of the Bancorps intangible assets were being amortized Amortization expense recognized on intangible assets

including servicing rights for the
years ending December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 was $181 million $204 million and $164 million

respectively Estimated amortization expense including servicing rights for the years ending December 31 2011 through 2015 is as follows

Mortgage
Other Intangible

in millions
Servicing Rights Assets Total

2011
$201 22 $223

2012
163 13 176

2013
133 141

2014
109 113

2015
90 92
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12 VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

The Bancorp in the normal course of business engages
in

variety of activities that involve VIEs which are legal entities that

lack sufficient equity to finance thcir activities or the equity

investors of the entities as group lack any of the characteristics

of controlling interest Unless the VIE qualifies for the deferral

of the amended VIE consolidation guidance discussed in Note

the primary beneficiary of VIE is the enterprise that has both

the power to direct the acovities most significant to the economic

performance of the VIE and the obligation to absorb losses or

right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the

VIE The Bancorp evaluates its interest in cettain entitics to

determine if these entities meet the definition of VIE and

whether the Bancorp is the ptimary beneficiary and should

consolidate the entity based on the variable interests it held both

Home Bquiy and Automobile L.oan
Securititations

The Bancorp previously sold $903 mdhion of home equity lines of

credit to an isolated trust Additionally the Bancorp previously

sold $2.7 biffion of automobde loans to an isolated trust and

conduits in three separate transactions Each of these transactions

isolated the relatcd loans through the use of VIE that under

accounting guidance effective prior to January 2010 was not

consolidated by the Baneorp The VIEs were funded through

loans from large multi-seller asset-backed commercial
paper

conduits sponsored by third
party agents asset-hacked securities

issued with varying levels of credit subordination and
payment

priority and residual interests The Bancorp retained residual

interests in these entities and therefore has an obligation to

absorb losses and right to receive benefits from the VIEs that

could potentially be significant to the VIEs In addition the

Baneorp retained servicing rights for the underlying loans and

therefore holds the power to direct the activities of the VIEs that

most significantly impact the economic performance of the VIEs

As result the Baneorp determined it is the primary beneficiary

of these VIEs and effective January 2010 these VIEs have

been consolidated in the Bancorps Consolidated Financial

Statements The assets of each VIE are resttieted to the

settiement of the long-term debt and other liabilities of the

respecove entity Third-party holders of this debt do not have

recourse to the general assets of the Baneorp
The economic performance of the VIEs is most significantly

impacted by the performance of the underlying loans The

principle risks to which the entities are exposed include credit risk

and interest rate risk Credit risk is managed through credit

enhancement in the form of reserve accounts

overcollateralizaoon excess interest on the loans the

subordination of certain classes of asset-backed securities to other

classes and in the ease of the home equity transaction an

at ineepoon and when there is change in circumstances that

require reconsideration If the Baneorp is determined to be the

ptimary beneficiary of VIE it must account for the VIE as

consolidated subsidiary If the Baneorp is determined not to be

the primary beneficiary of VIE but holds vatiable interest in

the entity such variable interests are accounted for under the

equity method of accounting or other accounting standards as

appropriate

Consolidated VIEs

The following table provides summary of the classifications of

consolidated VIE assets liabilities and noneontroffing interest

included in the Baneorps Consolidated Balance Sheets as of

December 31 2010

insurance policy with third party guaranteeing payment of

accrued and unpaid interest and principal on the seeutities

Interest rate tisk is managed by interest rate swaps between the

VIEs and third parties

CDC Investment

CDC wholly owned subsidiary of the Baneorp was created to

invest in projects to create affordable housing revitalize business

and residential areas and preserve histotic landmarks CDC
generally co-invests with other unrelated companies and/or

individuals and typically makes investments in separate legal

entity that owns the property under development The entities are

usually formed as limited partnerships and LLCs and CDC
typically invests as limited partner/investor member in the form

of
equity eonrtibutions The economic performance of the VIEs

is dtiven by the performance of their undetiying investment

projects as well as the VIEs ability to operate in compliance with

the rules and regulations necessary for the qualification of tax

credits generated by equity investments Typically the general

partner or managing member will be the parry that has the tight

to make decisions that will most significantly impact the

economic performance of the entity The Baneorp serves as the

managing member of one LLC invested in liusiness

revitalization project The
Baneorp has provided an

indemnification
guarantee to the investor member of this LLC

related to the qualification of tax credits generated by investor

members investment Accordingly the Baneorp concluded that it

is the primary beneficiary and therefore has consolidated this

VIE As result the VIE is presented as noncontrolling interest

in the Baneorps Consolidated Financial Statements This

presentation includes reporting separately the equity atttibutable

to the
noneontrolling interest in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

and Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity Additionally

Home Equity Automobile Loan CDC
in millions Seeunrization Secutitizations Investment Total

Assets

Cash and due from banks $7 45 $52
Other short-term investments

Commercial
mortgage loans 29 29

Home equity 241 241

Automobile loans 648 648

Allowance for loan and lease losses 14
Other assets

Total assets $244 697 29 970

Liabilities

Other liabilities 12 $12

Long-term debt 133 559 692
Total liabilities $133 571 $704

Noneontroffing interest
$29 $29
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the net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest is

teported separately in the Consolidated Statements of Income

The Bancorps maximum exposure related to this indemnification

at December 31 2010 is $9 million which is based on an amount

required to meet the investor members defined target rate of

return

Non-consolidated VIEs

The following table provides summary of assets and liabilities

carried on the Bancorps Consolidated Balance Sheet as of

December 31 2010 related to non-consolidated VIEs for which

the Baneorp holds variable interest but is not the primary

beneficiary to the VIE as well as the Bancorps maximum

exposure to losses associated with its interests in the cntiues

Total Total Maximum

in millions
Assets Liabilities Exposure

CDC investments $1241 $286 $1241

Private equity investments
129 322

Money market funds
148 158

Loans provided to VIEs 1175 1908

Restructured loans
12 13

CDC Investments

As noted previously CDC typically invests in VIEs as limited

partner or invesror member in the form of equity contributions

The Bancorp has determined that it is not the primary beneficiary

of these VIEs because it lacks the power to direct the activities that

most significantly impact the economic performance of the

underlying project or the VIEs
ability

to operate in compliance

with the rules and regulations necessary for the qualification of tax

credits generated by equity investments This power is held by the

general partners/managing members who exercise full and

exclusive control of the operations of the VIEs Accordingly the

Bancorp accounts for these investments under the equity
method

of accounting

The Bancorps funding requirements are limited to its invested

capital and any additional unfunded commitments for future equity

contributions The Baneorps maximum exposure to loss as result

of its involvement with the VIEs is limited to the carrying amounts

of the investments including the unfunded commitments As of

December 31 2010 and 2009 the carrying amounts of these

investments which are included in other assets in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets were $1.2 billion and $1.1 billion respectively

Also as of December 31 2010 and 2009 the liabilities related to

the unfunded commitments which are included in other liabilities

in the Consolidated Balance Sheets were $286 million and $235

million respectively
The Bancorp has no other liquidity

arrangements or obligations to purchase assets of the VIEs that

would expose
the Bancorp to loss In certain arrangements

the

general partner/managing member of the VIE has guaranteed

level of projected tax credits to be received by the limited

partners/investor members thereby minimizsng portion of the

Bancorps risk

Private Eqniy Investments

The Bancorp invests as limited partner in private equity funds

which provide the Bancorp with an opportunity to obtain higher

rates of return on invested capital while also creating cross-selling

opportunities for the Bancorps
commercial products

Each of the

limited partnerships
has an unrelated third-party general partner

responsible
for appointing the fund manager The Bancorp has not

been appointed fund manager for any of these private equity
funds

The funds finance primarily
all of their activities from the partners

capital contributions and investment returns The private equity

funds qualify for the deferral of the amended VIE consolidation

guidance discussed in Note However under the VIE

consolidation guidance still applicable to the funds the Bancorp

has determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of the funds

because it does not absorb majotity of the funds expected losses

or receive majority of the funds expected residual returns

Therefore the Bancorp accounts for its investments in these

limited partnerships under the equity method of accounting

The Bancorp is exposed to losses arising from negative

performance
of the underlying investments in the private equity

funds As limited pattner
the Bancorps maximum exposure to

loss is limited to the carrying amounts of the investments plus

unfunded commitments As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the

carrying amounts of these investments which are included in other

assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets were $129 million and

$98 million respectively
Also as of December 31 2010 and 2009

the unfunded commitment amounts to the funds were $193 million

and $90 million respectively
The Bancorp made capital

contributions of $34 million to ptivate equity funds during the year

ended December 31 2010

Money Market Fands

Under U.S GAAP money market funds are generally not

considered VIEs because they are generally deemed to have

sufficient equity at risk to finance their activities without additional

subordinated financial support
and the fund shareholders do not

lack the characteristics of controlling interest However when

situation arises where an investment manager provides credit

support to fund even when not contractually required to do so

the investment manager is deemed under U.S GAAP to have

provided an implicit guarantee of the funds performance to the

funds shareholders Such an implicit guarantee
would

require
the

investment manager and other variable interest holders to

reconsider the VIE status of the fund as well as all other similar

funds where such an implicit guarantee is now deemed to exist

In the fourth quarter
of 2010 the Bancorp voluntarily

provided credit support
of less than $1 million to money market

fund managed by ETAM Accordingly the Bancorp was tequired

to analyze the money market funds and similar funds managed by

ETAM under the VIE consolidation guidance still applicable to

these funds in order to determine the primary beneficiary of each

fund In analyzing these funds the Bancorp determined that

interest rate risk and credit risk are the two main risks to which the

funds are exposed After analyzing the interest tate risk variability

and credit risk variability associated with these funds the Bancorp

determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of these funds

because it does not absorb majority of the funds expected losses

or receive majority of the funds expected residual returns

Therefore the Bancorps investments in these funds arc included

as other securities in the Bancorps Consolidated Balance Sheets

Lsasns Provided to VIEs

The Bancorp has provided funding to certain unconsolidated VIEs

sponsored by third parties
These VIEs are generally

established to

finance certain consumer and small business loans originated by

third parties The entities are primarily funded through the issuance
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of loan from the Bancorp or syndication through which the

Bancorp is involved The sponsor/administrator of the entities is

responsible for servicing the underlying assets in the VIEs Because

the sponsor/administrator not the Bancorp holds the servicing

responsibilities which include the establishment and employment
of default mitigation policies and procedures the Bancorp does not

hold the power to direct the activities most significant to the

economic performance of the entity and therefore is not the

primary beneficiary

The principle risk to which these entities are exposed is credit

risk related to the underlying assets The Bancorps maximum

exposure to loss is equal to the carrying amounts of the loans and

unfunded commitments to the VIEs As of December 31 2010

and 2009 the Bancorp had outstanding loans to these VIEs of $1.2

billion included in commercial loans in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets Also as of December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorps

unfunded commitments to these entities were $733 million and

$539 million respectively The loans and unfunded commitments

to these VIEs are included in the Bancorps overall analysis of the

allowance for loan and lease losses and reserve for unfunded

commitments respectively The Bancorp does not provide any

implicit or explicit liquidity guarantees or principal value guarantees

to these VIEs

Restructured Loans

As part of loan restructuring efforts in 2009 and 2010 the Bancorp

received equity capital from certain borrowers to facilitate the

restructuring of the borrowers debt These borrowers meet the

definition of VIE because the
Bancorp was involved in their

refinancing and because their equity capital is insufficient to fund

ongoing operations These
restructurings were intended to provide

the VIEs with serviceable debt levels while providing the Bancorp

13 SALES OF RECEIVABLES AND SERVICING RIGHTS
Residential Mortgage Loan Sales

The Bancorp sold fixed and adjustable rate residential
mortgage

loans during 2010 2009 and 2008 In those sales the Bancorp

obtained servicing responsibilities and the investors have no

recourse to the Bancorps other assets for failure of debtors to pay
when due The Bancorp receives annual servicing fees based on

percentage of the outstanding balance The Baneorp identifies

classes of servicing assets based on financial asset type and interest

rates

in millions

Residential
mortgage loan sales

an opportunity to maximize the
recovery of the loans The VIEs

finance their operations from earned income capital contributions

and through restructured debt agreements Assets of the VIEs are

used to settle their specific obligations including loan payments

due to the Baneorp The Bancorp continues to maintain its

relationship with these VIEs as lender and minority shareholder

however it is not involved in management decisions and does not

have sufficient voting rights to control the membership of the

respective boards Therefore the Bancorp accounts for its equity

investments in these VIEs under the equity method or cost

method based on its percentage
of ownership and ability to

exercise significant influence

The Baneorps maximum exposure to loss as result of its

involvement with these VIEs is limited to the equity investments

the principal and accrued interest on the outstanding loans and
any

unfunded commitments Due to the VIEs short-term cash deficit

projections at the restructuring dates the Bancorp determined that

the fair value of its equity investments in these VIEs was zero As

of December 31 2010 the
Bancorps carrying value of these equity

investments was zero Additionally as of December 31 2010 and

2009 the Baneorp had outstanding loans to these VIEs of $12

million and $23 million respectively included in commercial loans

in the Consolidated Balance Sheets The Bancorps unfunded loan

commitments to these VIEs were $1 million as of December 31
2010 and 2009 The loans and unfunded commitments to these

VIEs are included in the Bancorps overall analysis of the

allowance for loan and lease losses and reserve for unfunded

commitments respectively The Bancorp does not provide any

implicit or explicit liquidity guarantees or principal value guarantees

to these VIEs

2010 2009 2008

$17861 20605 11529

Otigination fees and gains on loan sales 490 485 260

Servicing fees 221 197 164

Servicing Assets

The following table
presents changes in the servicing assets related to residential

mortgage loans for the years ended

in millions 2010 2009

Carrying amount as of the beginning of period $979 752

Servicing obligations that result from transfer of residential mortgage loans 297 373

Amortization
____________________________ 138 146

Carrying amount before valuation allowance
1138 979

Valuation allowance for servicing assets

Beginning balance 280 256
Servicing impairment 36 24

ppgjalanee
___________________________________ 316 280

Carrying amount as of the end of the period $822 699

Information related to residential mortgage loan sales and the

Baneorps mortgage banking activity which is included in mortgage

banking net revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Income for

the years ended December 31 is as follows
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Temporary impairment or impairment recovery
effected through

change in the MSR valuation allowance is captured as

component of mortgage banking net revenue in the Consolidated

Statements of Income The Bancorp maintains non-qualifying

hedging strategy to manage portion of the risk associated with

changes in value of the MSR portfolio This strategy
includes the

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with

caution As the figures indicate changes in fair value based on

10% and 20% variation in assumptions typically cannot be

extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption

to the change in fair value may not be linear Also in the previous

table the effect of variation in particular assumption on the fair

value of the interests that continue to be held by the Bancorp is

calculated without changing any other assumption in reality

changes in one factor may result in changes in another for

example increases in market interest rates may result in lower

purchase of free-standing derivatives and various available-for-sale

securities The interest income mark-to-market adjustments and

gain or loss from sale activities associated with these portfolios are

expected to economically hedge portion
of the change in value of

the MSR portfolio caused by fluctuating discount rates earnings

rates and prepayment speeds

prepayments
and increased credit losses which might magnify or

counteract the sensitivities

Automobile Loan Securitizations

During 2008 the Bancorp sold $2.7 billion of automobile loans in

three separate transactions recognizing gains of $15 million offset

by $26 million in losses on related hedges Each transaction

isolated the related loans through the use of securitization trust or

conduit formed as QSPEs to facilitate the securitization process

The QSPEs issued asset-backed securities with varying levels of

The fair value of the servicing asset is based on the present value of expected future cash flows The following table displays the beginning and

ending fair value for the years ended December 31

in miffions
2010 2009

Fixed rate residential mortgage loans

Fair value at beginning of period
$667 458

Fair value at end of period

791 667

Adjustable rate residential mortgage loans

Fair value at beginning of period
32 38

Fair value at end of period

31 32

The following table presents activity related to valuations of the MSR portfolio and the impact of the non-qualifying hedging strategy
which is

included in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31

in millions
2010 2009 2008

Securities gains net non-qualifying hedges on MSRs $14 57 120

Changes in fair value and settlement of free-standing derivatives purchased

to economically hedge the MSR portfolio Mortgage banking net revenue
109 41 89

Provision for MSR impairment Mortgage banking net revenue 36 24 207

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the key economic assumptions
transactions completed during the years ended December 31 2010

used in measuring the interests that continued to be held by the and 2009 were as follows

Bancorp at the date of sale or securitization resulting from

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Prepayment Discount Average Average Prepayment Discount Average

Life Speed Rate Default Ufe Speed Rate Iefault

Rate in years annual annual Rate in years annual annual Rate

Residential mortgage loans

Servicing assets Fixed 6.7 10.7% 10.3% N/A 6.6 12.0% 9.8% N/A

Servicing assets Adjustable 3.6 23.3 11.3 N/A 2.7 35.5 10.8 N/A

Based on historical credit experience expected credit losses for of residential mortgage loans for other investors The value of

residential mortgage
loan servicing assets have been deemed interests that continue to be held by the Bancorp is subject to

immaterial as the Bancorp sold the majority of the underlying credit prepayment
and interest rate risks on the sold financial

loans without recourse At December 31 2010 and 2009 the assets At December 31 2010 the sensitivity of the current fair

Bancorp was servicing $54.2 billion and $48.6 biffion respectively
value of residual cash flows to immediate lO% and 20% adverse

changes in those assumptions are as follows

Prepayment Speed Weighted-Average

Assumption Residual Servicing Cash Flows Default

Weighted- Impact of Adverse Impact of Adverse Impact of Adverse

Average Change on Fair Change on Fair Change on Fair

Fair Life in
Value Discount Value Value

in millions Rate Value years Rate 10% 20% Rate 10% 20% Rate 10% 20%

Residential mortgage loans

Servicing assets Fixed $791 5.9 13.0% $36 70 10.6% $30 58 5/

Servicing assets Adjustable 31 3.0 26.2 11.9
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credit subordination and
payment priority The investors in these

securities have no credit recourse to the Baneorps other assets for

failure of debtors to pay when due Duting 2008 and 2009

required repurchases of previously transferred automobile loans

from the QSPE were immaterial to the Baneorps Consolidated

Financial Statements

In each of these sales the Bancorp obtained servicing

responsibilities but no servicing asset or liability was recorded as

the market based servicing fee was considered adequate

compensation For the
years

ended December 31 2009 and 2008

the Bancorp recognized $8 million and $9 million respectively of

servicing fees on these automobile loans The servicing fees are

included in other noninrerest income in the Consolidated

Statements of Income

As of December 31 2009 the Baneorp held retained interests

in the QSPEs in the form of asset-backed securities totabng $63

million and residual interests totaling $98 million These retained

interests were included in available-for-sale securities in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets During the years ended December

31 2009 and 2008 the Bancorp received cash flows of $4 million

and $3 tnilhion respectively from the asset-backed securities and

$34 million and $37 miffion respectively from the residual

interests The asset-backed securities were measured at fair value

using quoted market prices ftir similar assets The residual interests

were measured at fair value based on the present value of future

expected cash flows using managements best estimates for the key

assumptions

Upon adoption on January 2010 of the FASB guidance on

the accounting for QSPEs and VIEs the Bancorp determined that

it is the primary beneficiary and therefore consolidator of these

QSPEs Refer to Note for further details

Commercial Loan Sales to QSFE
Through 2008 the Baneorp transferred subject to credit recourse

certain primarily floating-rate short-term investment grade

commercial loans to an unconsolidated QSPE that is wholiy owned

by an independent third-party The transfers of loans to the QSPE
were accounted for as sales The QSPE issued commercial

paper
and used the proceeds to fund the acquisition of commercial loans

transferred to it by the Baneorp The Bancorp did not transfer any

new loans to the QSPE during 2009

For the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 the

Baneorp collected $6 million and $13 million respectively in

servicing fees from the QSPE For the year ended December 31

2009 the Baneorp collected $334 million in net cash proceeds

from loan transfers to the QSPE
Upon adoption on January 2010 of the FASB guidance on

the accounting for QSPEs and VIEs the Baneorp determined that

it is the primary beneficiary and therefore consolidator of this

QSPE Refer to Note for further details

The following table provides summary of the total loans and leases managed by the Bancorp including loans securitized and loans in VIEs
that were not consolidated pnor to January 2010 as of and for the years ended December 31

Balance of Loans 90 Net Credit

Balance Days or More Past Due Losses

in millions 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Commercial and industrial loans $27275 26458 $16 118 $586 718

Commercial mortgage 10992 11936 11 59 524 422
Commercial construction loans 2111 3921 16 252 417

Commercial leases 3378 3535

Residential mortgage loans 10857 9795 100 189 439 355

Home equity loans 11513 12437 89 100 264 325

Automobile loans 10983 10226 13 18 88 156

Other consumer loans and leases 2598 2802 42 65 173 190

Total loans and leases managedp55eutizeda $79707 81110 $274 569 $2328 2591
Less

Automobile loans seeutitized 1230

Home equity loans seeutiozed 263

Commercial loans sold to unconsolidated QSPE 771

Loans held for sale 2216 2067

Tota1prytfolio loans and leases $77491 76779

Excluding securziti7ed assets that the
Bancorp continues to senice hut has no other

continuiig
into/cement
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14 DERIVATIVES

The Bancorp maintains an nverall risk management strategy that

mcnrporatcs the use nf derivative instruments tn reduce certain

risks related tn interest rate prepayment and fnreign currency

volatility Additionally the Bancnrp hnlds derivative instruments

fnr the benefit nf its commercial custnmers The Bancorp does nnt

enter intn unhedged speculative derivative pnsitinns

The Bancnrps interest rate risk management strategy involves

mndifying the repricing characteristics nf certain financial

instruments sn that changes in interest rates do not adversely affect

the Bancorps net interest margin and cash flows Derivative

instruments that the Bancorp may use as part of its interest rate

risk management strategy include interest rate swaps interest rate

floors interest rate caps forward contracts options and swaptions

Interest rate swap contracts are exchanges of interest payments

such as fixed-rate payments for floating-rate payments based on

common notional amount and maturity date Interest rate floors

protect against declining rates while interest rate caps protect

against rising interest rates Forward contracts are contracts in

which the buyer agrees to purchase and the seller agrees to make

delivery of specific financial instrument at predetermined price

or yield Options provide the purchaser with the right but not the

obligation to purchase or sell contracted item during specified

period at an agreed upon price Swaptions are financial instruments

granting the owner the right but not the obligation to enter into

or cancel swap

Prepayment volatility arises mostly from changes in fair value

of the largely fixed-rate MSR portfolio mortgage loans and

mortgage-backed securities The Bancorp may enter into various

free-standing derivatives principal-only swaps swaptions floors

options and interest rate swaps to economically hedge prepayment

volatility Principal-only swaps are total return swaps based on

changes in the value of the underlying mortgage principal-only

trust

Foreign currency volatility occurs as the Bancorp enters into

certain loans denominated in foreign currencies Derivative

instruments that the Bancorp may use to economically hedge these

foreign denominated loans include foreign exchange swaps and

forward contracts

The Bancorp also enters into derivative contracts including

foreign exchange contracts commodity contracts and interest rate

swaps floors and caps for the benefit of commercial customers

and other business
purposes

The Bancorp may economically

hedge significant exposures related to these free-standing

derivatives by entering into offsetting third-party contracts with

approved reputable counterparues with substantially matching

terms and currencies Credit risk arises from the possible inability

of counterparties to meet the terms of their contracts The

Bancorps exposure is limited to the replacement value of the

contracts rather than the notional principal or contract amounts

Credit risk is minimized through credit approvals limits

counterparty
collateral and monitoring procedures

The Bancorps derivative assets consist primarily of contracts

in which the Baocorp requires the counterparties to provide

collateral in the form of cash and securities to offset changes so the

fair value of the derivatives including changes in the fair value due

to credit risk of the couoterparty As of December 31 2010 and

2009 the balance of collateral held by the Bancorp for derivative

assets was $903 million and $548 million respectively Valuation

adjustments related to the credit risk associated with certain

couotcrparties of customer accommodation derivative contracts

negatively impacted the fair value of those contracts by $2 million

and $3 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

In measuring the fair value of derivative liabilities the

Baocorp considers its own credit risk taking into consideration

collateral maintenance requirements of certain derivative

couoterparties and the duranoo of instruments with couotcrparties

that do not require collateral maintenance The Bancorps

derivative liabilities consist primarily of contracts that require

collateral to be maintained in the form of cash and securities to

offset changes in fair value of the derivatives including changes in

fair value due to the Baocorps credit risk As of December 31

2010 and 2009 the balance of collateral posted by the Bancorp for

derivative liabilities was $680 million and $726 million respectively

The posting of collateral has been determined to remove the need

for consideration of credit risk As result the Baocorp

determined that the impact of the Baocorps credit risk to the

valuation of its derivative liabilities was immaterial to the

Baocorps Consolidated Financial Statements

The Baocorp holds certain derivative instruments thai qualify

for hedge accounting treatment and are designated as either fair

value hedges or cash flow hedges Derivative instruments that do

not qualify for hedge accounting treatment or for which hedge

accounting is not established are held as free-standing derivatives

and provide the Baocorp an economic hedge All customer

accommodation derivatives are held as free-standing derivatives

The fair value of derivative instruments is presented on

gross basis even when the derivative instruments are subject to

master netting arrangements Derivative instruments with

positive fair value are reported in other assets in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets while derivative instruments with negative fair

value are reported in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets Cash collateral payables and receivables associated with the

derivative instruments are not added to or netted against the fair

value amounts
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The following table reflects the notional amounts and fair values for all derivative instruments included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as

of December 31

2010 2009

Fair value Fair value

Notional Derivative Derivative Notional Derivative Derivative

in millions Amount Assets Liabilities Amount Assets Liabilities

Qualifying hedging instruments

Fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps related to long-term debt $4355 $442 $5155 $275

Interest rate swaps related to time deposits 771

Total fairvalue hedges 442 275

Cash flow hedges

Interest rate floors related to CI loans 1500 153 1500 162

Interest rate swaps related to CI loans 3000 3500 33

Interest rate caps related to long-term debt 1500 2750 44

Interest rate swaps related to long-term debt 1190 31

Total cash flow hedges 165 31 239

Total derivatives designated as qualifying hedging instruments 607 31 514

Derivatives not designated as qualifying hedging

instruments

Free-standing derivatives risk management and other

business purposes

Interest rate contracts related to MSRs 12477 141 81 8592 114 24

Forward contracts related to held for sale mortgage loans 6389 90 14 3633 33

Interest rate swaps
related to long-term debt 173 410

Foreign exchange contracts for trading purposes 2494

Put options associated with Processing Business Sale 769 667

Stock warrants associated with Processing Business Sale 175 79 152 75

Swap associated with the sale of Visa Inc Class shares 363 18 522 55

Total free-standing derivatives risk management and other

business purposes 317 126 226 92

Free-standing derivatives customer accommodation

Interest rate contracts for customers 26817 701 735 28628 719 753

Interest rate lock commitments 1772 1489

Commodity contracts 1878 99 92 805 63 58

Foreign exchange contracts 17998 339 319 10997 206 169

Derivative instruments related to equity linked CDs 70 113

Total free-standing derivatives customer accommodation 1150 1157 993 990

Total derivatives not designated as qualifying hedging

instruments 1467 1283 1219 1082

Total $2074 $1314 $1733 $1088

Fair Value Hedges

The Bancorp may enter into interest rate swaps to convert its

fixed-rate long-term debt or time deposits to floating-rate

Decisions to convert fixed-rate debt or time deposits to floating are

made primarily through consideration of the asset/liabsh mix of

the Bancorp the desired asset/liability sensitivity and interest rate

levels For the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 certain

interest rate swaps met the criteria required to qualify for the

shortcut method of accounting Based on this shortcut method of

accounting treatment no ineffectiveness is assumed For interest

rate swaps that do not meet the shortcut requirements an

assessment of hedge effectiveness was performed and such
swaps

were accounted for using the long-haul method The long-haul

method requires quarterly assessment of hedge effectiveness and

measurement of ineffectiveness For interest rate swaps
accounted

for as fair value hedge using the long-haul method

ineffectiveness is the difference between the changes in the fair

value of the interest rate swap and changes in fair value of the

long-term debt attributable to the risk being hedged The

ineffectiveness on interest rate swaps hedging long-term debt or

time deposits is reported within interest expense in the

Consolidated Statements of Income
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The following table reflects the change in fair value of interest rate contracts designated as fair value hedges as well as the change in fair value

of the related hedged items included in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Consolidated Statements of

For the year
ended December 31 in millions Income Caption 2010 2009 2008

Interest rate contracts

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps hedging long-term debt Interest on long-term debt $167 548 776

Change in fair value of hedged long-term debt Interest on long-term debt 168 538 765

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps hedging time deposits Interest on deposits 19

Change in fair value of hedged time deposits Interest on deposits 19

Cash FlowHedges Reclassified gains and losses on interest rate floors and

The Bancorp may enter into interest rate swaps to convert swaps
related to commercial loans and interest rate caps and

floating-rate assets and liabilities to fixed rates or to hedge certain swaps related to debt are recorded within interest income and

forecasted transactions The assets or liabilities are typically interest expense respectively As of December 31 2010 and

grouped and share the same risk exposure for which they are 2009 $67 million and $105 million respectively of deferred

being hedged The Bancorp may also enter into interest rate caps gains net of tax on cash flow hedges were recorded in

and floors to limit cash flow variability of floating rate assets and accumulated other comprehensive income As of December 31

liabilities As of December 31 2010 all hedges designated as cash 2010 $45 million in net deferred gains net of tax recorded in

flow hedges are assessed for effectiveness using regression accumulated other comprehensive income are expected to be

analysis Ineffectiveness is generally measured as the amount by reclassified into earnings during the next twelve months

which the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedging The following table presents the net gains recorded in the

instrument exceeds the present value of the cumulative change in Consolidated Statements of Income and accumulated other

the hedged items expected cash flows Ineffectiveness is reported comprehensive income relating to interest rate contracts

within other noninterest income in the Consolidated Statements designated as cash flow hedges Included in the ineffectiveness

of Income The effective portion of the gains or losses on cash for the year ended December 31 2010 are certain terminated

flow hedges are reported within accumulated other interest rate caps previously designated as cash flow hedges on

comprehensive income and are reclassified from accumulated debt In conjunction with these terminations the Bancorp

other comprehensive income to current period earnings when the reclassified $17 million of losses from accumulated other

forecasted transaction affects earnings As of December 31 2010 comprehensive income into earnings as it was determined that the

the maximum length of time over which the Bancorp is hedging original forecasted transaction was no longer probable of

its exposure to the variability in future cash flows related to the occurring by the end of the originally specified time period or

forecasted issuance of floating rate debt is 27 months within the additional period of time as defined by U.S GAAP

For the year ended December 31 in millions 2010 2009 2008

Amount of gain recognized in OCI $2 75 100

Amount of gain reclassified from OCI into net interest income 60 49

Amount of ineffectiveness recognized in other noninterest income

Free-Standing Derivative Instruments Risk Management
and Other Business Purposes

As part of its overall risk management strategy relative to its

mortgage banking activity the Bancorp may enter into various

free-standing derivatives principal-only swaps swaptions

floors options and interest rate swaps to economically hedge

changes in fair value of its largely fixed-rate MSR portfolio

Principal-only swaps hedge the mortgage-LIBOR spread

because these
swaps appreciate in value as result of tightening

spreads Principal-only swaps
also provide prepayment

protection by increasing in value when prepayment speeds

increase as opposed to MSRs that lose value in faster

prepayment environment Receive fixed/pay floating interest

rate swaps
and swaptions increase in value when interest rates

do not increase as quickly as expected

The Bancorp enters into forward contracts to

economically hedge the change in fair value of certain

residential mortgage loans held for sale due to changes in

interest rates The Bancorp may also enter into forward swaps

to economically hedge the change in fair value of certain

commercial mortgage loans held for sale due to changes in

interest rates Interest rate lock commitments issued on

residential mortgage
loan commitments that will be held for

sale are also considered free-standing derivative instruments

and the interest rate exposure on these commitments is

economically hedged primarily with forward contracts

Revaluation gains and losses from free-standing derivatives

related to mortgage banking activity are recorded as

component of mortgage banking net revenue in the

Consolidated Statements of Income

The Bancorp previously entered into foreign exchange

derivative contracts to economically hedge certain foreign

denominated loans Derivative instruments that the Bancorp

may use to economically hedge these foreign denominated

loans include foreign exchange swaps
and forward contracts

The Bancorp does not designate these instruments against the

foreign denominated loans and therefore does not obtain

hedge accounting treatment Revaluation gains and losses on

these foreign currency derivative contracts are recorded within

other noninterest income in the Consolidated Statements of

Income as are revaluation gains and losses on foreign

denominated loans

Additionally the Bancorp may enter into free-standing

derivative instruments options swaptions and interest rate

swaps in order to minimize significant
fluctuations in earnings

and cash flows caused by interest rate and prepayment

volatility The gains and losses on these derivative contracts are

recorded within other noninterest income in the Consolidated

Statements of Income

In conjunction with the Processing Business Sale in 2009

the Bancorp received warrants and issued put options which

are accounted for as free-standing derivatives Refer to Note 28

for further discussion of significant inputs and assumptions

used in the valuation of these instruments

In conjunction with the sale of Visa Inc Class shares in

2009 the Bancorp entered into total return swap in which
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the Bancorp will make or receive payments based on

subsequent changes in the conversion tate of the Class

shares into Class shares This total return swap
is accounted

for as free-standing derivative See Note 28 for further

discussion of significant inputs and assumptions used in the

valuation of this instrument

The Bancorp enters into certain derivatives forwards

futures and options related to its foreign exchange business

These derivative contracts are not designated against specific

assets or liabilities or to forecasted transactions Therefore

these instruments do not quabfy for hedge accounting The

Bancorp economically hedges the
exposures

related to these

derivative contracts by entering into offsetting contracts with

approved reputable independent counterparties with

substantially similar terms

The net gains losses recorded in the Consolidated

Statements of Income relating to free-standing derivative

instruments used for risk management and other business

purposes are summarized in the following table

Consolidated Statements of

For the year ended December 31 in millions Income Capoon 2010 2009 2008

Interest rate contracts

Interest rate contracts related to IvlSR portfolio Mortgage banking net revenue $109 41 89

Forward contracts related to commercial mortgage loans held for sale Corporate banking revenue

Forward contracts related to residential mortgage loans held for sale Mortgage banking net revenue 40 55 17
Interest rate swaps related to long-term debt Other nonintercst income

Foreign exchange contracts

Foreign exchange contracts for trading purposes Other noninterest income 10 29

Equity contracts

Warrants associated with Processing Business Sale Other noninterest income 13

Put options associated with Processing Business Sale Other nomnterest income

Swap associated with sale of Visa Inc Class shares Other noninterest income 19

Free-Standing Derivative Instruments Customer

Accommodation

The majority of the free-standing derivative instruments the

Bancorp enters into are for the benefit of its commercial

customers These derivative contracts are not designated against

specific assets or liabilities on the Bancorps Consolidated Balance

Sheets or to forecasted transactions and therefore do not qualify

for hedge accounting These instruments include foreign

exchange derivanve contracts entered into for the benefit of

commercial customers involved in international trade to hedge

their exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and commodity

contracts to hedge such items as natural
gas

and various other

derivative contracts The Bancorp may economicaliy hedge

significant exposures related to these derivative contracts entered

into for the benefit of customers by entering into offsetting

contracts with approved reputable independent counterparties

with substantially matching terms The Bancorp hedges its

interest rate exposure on commercial customer transactions by

executing offsetting swap agreements with primary dealers

Revaluation gains and losses on interest rate foreign exchange

commodity and other commercial customer derivative contracts

are recorded as component of corporate banking revenue in the

Consolidated Statements of Income

The Bancorp enters into risk participation agreements
under

which the Bancorp assumes credit exposure relating to certain

underlying interest rate derivative contracts The Baneorp only

enters into these risk participation agreements in instances in

which the Bancorp has participated in the loan that the

underlying interest rate derivative contract was designed to hedge

The Bancorp will make
payments

under these
agreements

if

customer defaults on its obligation to perform under the terms of

the underlying interest rate detivative contract As of December

31 2010 and 2009 the total notional amount of the risk

participation agreements was $851 million and $810 million

respectively and the fair valoe was liability of $1 million and $2

million respectively at December 31 2010 and 2009 which is

included in interest rate contracts for customers The Baneorps

maximum
exposure in the tisk participation agreements

is

contingent on the fair value of the underlying interest rate

derivative contracts in an asset position at the time of default The

Bancorp monitors the credit risk associated with the underlying

customers in the risk participation agreements through the same

tisk grading system currently utilized for establishing loss reserves

in its loan and lease portfolio Under this risk
rating system as of

December 31 2010 $744 million in notional amount of the tisk

participation agreements were classified pass $37 mdbon were

classified as special menuon $69 million were classified as

substandard and $1 million were classified as doubtful As of

December 31 2010 the tisk participation agreements had an

average life of 1.9 years

The Bancorp previously offered its customers an equity-linked

certificate of deposit that had return linked to equity indices

Under U.S GAAP certificate of deposit that
pays

interest

based on changes on an equity index is hybrid instrument that

requires separation into host contract the certificate of deposit

and an embedded derivative contract written equity
call option

The Baneorp entered into offsetting derivative contracts to

economically hedge the exposure taken through the issuance of

equity-linked certificates of deposit Both the embedded

derivative and the derivative contract entered into by the Bancorp

are recorded as free-standing derivatives and recorded at fair

value with offsetting gains and losses recognized within

noninterest income in the Consolidated Statements of Income
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The Bancorp incorporates the utilization of derivative instruments

as part of its overall risk management strategy to reduce certain

risks related to interest rate prepayment and foreign currency

volatility The Bancorp also holds derivatives instruments for the

benefit of its commercial customers For further information on

derivative instruments see Note 14

The Bancorp purchases life insurance policies on the lives of

certain directors officers and employees and is the owner and

beneficiary of the policies The Bancorp invests in these policies

known as BOLl to provide an efficient form of funding for long-

term retirement and other employee benefits costs Therefore the

Bancorps BOLT policies are intended to be long-term investments

to provide funding for future payment of long-term liabilities The

Bancorp records these BOLl policies within other assets in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets at each policys respective cash

surrender value with changes recognized in other noninterest

income in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Certain BOLT policies have stable value agreement through

either large well-rated bank or multi-national insurance carrier

that provides limited cash surrender value protection from declines

in the value of each policys underlying investments During 2008

and 2009 the value of the investments underlying one of the

Bancorps BOLl policies continued to decline due to disruptions in

the credit markets widening of credit spreads between U.S

treasuries/swaps versus municipal bonds and bank trust preferred

securities and
illiquidity

in the asset-backed securities market

These factors caused the cash surrender value to decline further

beyond the protection provided by the stable value agreement As

result of exceeding the cash surrender value protection the

Bancorp recorded charges totaling $10 million and $215 mdlion

during 2009 and 2008 respectively to reflect declines in the

policys cash surrender value The cash surrender value of this

BOLl policy was $237 million at December 31 2009

During 2009 the Bancorp notified the related insurance

carrier of its intent to surrender this BOLl policy Due to the fact

the Bancorp had not yet decided the manner in which it would

surrender the policy which may have impacted the cash surrender

value protection and because of ongoing developments in

litigation with the insurance carrier the Bancorp rccognized

charges of $43 million in 2009 to fuliy reserve for the potential loss

of the cash surrender value protection
associated with the policy

In addition the Bancorp recognized tax benefits of $106 million in

2009 related to losses recorded in pnor penods on this policy that

are now expected to be tax deductible

During 2010 an agreement to settle the claims with the

insurance carrier was reached among the parties to the litigation

As result of this settlement and the corresponding receipt of

settlement proceeds from the insurance carrier in the third quarter

of 2010 the Bancorp recorded $152 million in other nonintercst

income and $25 million associated with legal fees related to the

settlement in other noninterest expense
in the Bancorps

Consolidated Statements of Income

CDC partnership investment and wholiy owned subsidiary

of the Bancorp was created to invest in projects to create

affordable housing revitalize business and residential areas and

preserve
historic landmarks The Bancorp has determined that

these entities are VIEs and the Bancorps investments represent

variable interests See Note 12 for further information

On June 30 2009 the Bancorp sold an approximate 51%

interest in its Processing Business to Advent International The

resulting new company was named FTPS Holding LLC The

Bancorps remaining approximate 49% ownership in FTPS is

accounted for under the equity method of accounting

The net gains losses recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Income relating to free-standing derivative instruments used for customer

accommodation are summarized in the following table

Consolidated Statements of

For the
year

ended December 31 in miffions
Income Caption 2010 2009 2008

Interest rate contracis

Interest rate contracts for customers contract revenue Corporate banking revenue $26 21 50

Interest rate contracts for customers credit losses Other noninterest expense 22 33
Interest rate contracts for customers credit component of fair value

adjustment
Other noninterest expense 27

Interest rate lock commitments Mortgage banking net revenue 187 129 54

Commodity contracts

Commodity contracts for customers contract revenue Corporate banking revenue

Commodity contracts for customers credit component of fair value

adjustment Other noninterest expense

Foreign exchange contracts

Foreign exchange contracts for customers contract revenue Corporate banking revenue 63 76 106

Foreign exchange contracts for customers credit component
of fair

value adjustment
Other noninterest expense

15 OTHER ASSETS

The following table provides the components of other assets included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31

in millions
2010 2009

Derivative instruments $2074 1733

Bank owned life insurance 1715 1763

Partnership investments 1367 1179

Accounts receivable and drafts-in-process 1023 892

OREO and other repossessed personal property
532 312

Investment in FTPS Holding LLC 522 521

Accrued interest receivable 413 417

Prepaid expenses
133 282

Deferred tax asset 13 26

Income tax receivable 98

Other 607 328

Total $8400 7551
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16 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Borrowings with original maturities of one year or less are sold under repurchase agreements derivative collateral FHLB
classified as short term and include federal funds purchased and advances and other borrowings with original maturities of one

other short-term borrowings Federal funds purchased are excess year or less

balances in reserve accounts held at Federal Reserve Banks that summary of short-term borrowings and weighted-average

the Bancorp purchased from other member banks on an rates follows

overnight basis Other short-term borrowings include securities

2010 2009

in millions Amount Rate Amount Rate

As of December 31

Federal funds purchased $279 0.18% $182 0.1 1%

Other short-term borrowings 1574 0.14 1415 0.16

Average for the years ended December 31

Federal funds purchased $291 0.17% S517 0.20/o

Other short-term borrowings 1635 0.21 6463 0.64

Maximum month-end balance for the years ended December 31

Federal funds purchased $422 $1160

Other short-term borrowings 1975 11076
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Qua/æ as Tier capita/for regu/atoy capita/purposes
See Note 29forfurther injbrmation

ua45i as Tier 1/ capita/for regu/atog capita/purposes

Future periods of debt are floating

The Bancorp pays down long-term debt in accordance with

contractual terms over maturity periods
summarized in the above

table Contractually obligated payments
for long-term debt as of

December 31 2010 are due over the following periods $14

million in 2011 $15 miffion in 2012 $1.9 billion in 2013 $30

million in 2014 $1.0 billion in 2015 and $6.6 billion after 2015

At December 31 2010 the Bancorp had outstanding principal

balances of $9.1 billion discounts and premiums of negative $15

milllon and additions for mark-to-market adjustments on its

hedged debt of $439 million At December 31 2009 the Bancorp

had outstanding principal balances of $10.2 billion discounts and

premiums
of negative $15 million and additions for mark-to-

market adjustments on its hedged debt of $272 million The

Bancorp is in compliance with all debt covenants at December 31

2010

Under recent regulatory developments certain of the

Bancorps trust preferred securities are callable at par as of certain

dates or may become callable at par under certain circumstances

Parent Company Long- Term Borrowings

In April 2008 the Bancorp issued $750 million of senior notes to

third
parry

investors The senior notes bear fixed rate of interest

of ó.2S% per annum The Bancorp entered into interest rate

swaps to convert $675 million to floating rate and at December

31 2010 paid rate of 2.7O% The notes are unsecured senior

obligations of the Bancorp Payment of the full principal amount

of the notes will be due upon maturity on May 2013 The notes

are not subject to redemption at the Bancorps option at any
time

prior to maturity The subordinated floating-rate notes due in

2016 pay interest at three-month LIBOR plus 42 bp The Bancorp

has entered into interest rate swaps to convert its subordinated

fixed-rate notes due in 2017 and 2018 to floating-rate which pay

interest at three-month LIBOR plus 42 bp and 25 bp respectively

at December 31 2010 The rates paid on the swaps hedging the

subordinated floating-rate notes due in 2017 and 2018 were O.72%

and 0.55% respectively at December 31 2010 Of the $1.0 billion

in 8.25% subordinated fixed rate notes due in 2038 $705 million

were subsequcndy hedged to floating and paid rate of 3.3S% at

December 31 2010

The 6.50% junior subordinated notes due in 2067 pay fixed

rate of 6.SO% until 2017 then convert to floating rate at three-

month LIBOR plus 137 bp until 2047 Thereafter the notes pay

floating rate at one-month LIBOR plus 237 bp Junior

subordinated notes due in 2067 with carrying amount of $613

million and an outstanding principal balance of $575 million at

December 31 2010 pay
fixed rate of 7.25% until 2057 then

convert to floating rate at three-month LIBOR plus 257 lip The

Bancorp entered into interest rate swaps to convert $500 million

of the fixed-rate debt into floating rate At December 31 2010

the weighted-average rate paid on these
swaps was 1.01% Junior

subordinated notes due in 2067 with carrying amount of $907

million and an outstanding principal
balance of $863 million at

December 31 2010 pay fixed rate of 7.25% until 2057 then

convert to floating rate at three-month LIBOR plus 303 bp

thereafter The Bancorp entered into interest rate swaps to

convert $700 million of the fixed-rate debt into floating rate At

December 31 2010 the weighted-average rate paid on the swaps

was 1.44% The obligations were issued to Fifth Third Capital

Trusts IV and VI respectively
The Bancorp has

fully
and

unconditionally guaranteed all obligations under the trust

preferred securities issued by Fifth Third Capital Trusts IV and

VI In addition the Bancorp entered into replacement capital

covenants for the benefit of holders of long-term debt senior to

the junior subordinated notes that limits subject to certain

17 LONG-TERM DEBT
The following table is summary of the Bancorps long-term borrowings at December 31

in millions Maturity Interest Rate 2010 2009

Pareni Company

Senior

Fixed-rate notes 2013 6.25/s $797 785

Subordinated

Floating-rate notes 2016 0.72% 250 250

Fixed-rate notes 2017 5.45% 613 572

Fixed-rate notei 2018 4.50% 584 533

Fixed-rate notes 2038 8.25% 1034 1024

Junior subordinated

Fixed-rate notes 2067 6.50% 750 750

Fixed-rate notes 2067 7.25% 613 606

Fixed-rate notes 2067 7.25/s 907 886

Fixed-rate notes 2068 8.88% 400 389

Subsidiaries

Senior

Floating-rate bank notes 2013 0.39% 499 500

Fixed-rate bank notes 804

Subordinated

Fixed-rate bank notes 2015 4.75/s 561 544

Junior subordinated

Floating-rate bank notes 2032 2033 3.40% 4.15/s 51 52

Floating-rate debentures 2033 2034 3.09/s 3.20% 67 67

Floating-rate debentures 2035 1.72/s 1.99% 62 62

FHLB advances 2011 2040 0% 8.34% 1561 2564

Notes associated with consolidated VIEs

Automobile loan seeuritizations

Fixed-rate notes 2013 4.81/o 99

Floating-rate notes 2013 2015 0.76/s 2.26% 460

Home equity secuntization

Floating-rate notes 2023 0.51% 133

Other 2011 2039 Varies 117 119

Total $9558 10507
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restrictions the Bancorps ability to redeem the junior

subordinated notes prior to their scheduled maturity In

November 2010 the Bancorp amended the debt covenants to

remove requirement to issue replacement capital securities at

least 180 days prior to caffing the trust preferred securities

The 8.88% junior subordinated notes due in 2068 with

current carrying value and outstanding principal balance of $400

million at December 31 2010 pay fixed rate until 2058 then

convert to floating rate at three month LIBOR plus 500 bp The

Bancorp entered into an interest rate swap to convert $275 million

of the fixed rate debt into floating rate At December 31 2010

the rate paid on the
swap was 3545/ The obligations were issued

by Fifth Third Capital Trust WI The Bancorps obligations under

the transaction documents taken together have the effect of

providing full and unconditional guarantee by the Bancorp on

subordinated basis of the payment obligations under the trust

preferred securities The junior subordinated notes may be

redeemed at the option of the Bancorp on or after May 15 2013

or in certain other limited circumstances at redemption price of

IOO% of the ptincipal amount plus accrued but unpaid interest

All redemptions are subject to certain conditions and generally

require approval by the FRB
On January 25 2011 the Bancorp issued $1.0 billion of

senior notes to third
party

investors The senior notes bear fixed

rate of interest of 3.625% per annum The notes are unsecured

senior obligations of the Bancorp Payment of the full ptincipal

amount of the notes will be due upon maturity on January 25

2016 The notes will not be subject to the redemption at the

Bancorps option at any time prior to matutity See Note 32 for

further information

Subsidiary Long-Term Borrowings

Medium-term senior notes and subordinated bank notes with

matutities ranging from one year to 30 years can be issued by the

Bancorps subsidiary bank of which $1.0 billion was outstanding

at December 31 2010 with $19.0 billion available for future

issuance The senior floating-rate bank notes due in 2013 pay

floating rate at three-month LIBOR plus 11 bp For the

subordinated fixed-rate bank notes due in 2015 the Bancorp

entered into interest rate swaps to convert the fixed-rare debt into

floating rate At December 31 2010 the weighted-average rate

paid on the swaps was O.39%

The senior fixed-rate bank notes matured and were paid in

February of 201

The junior subordinated floating-rate bank notes due in 2032

and 2033 were assumed by subsidiary of the Bancorp as part of

the acquisition of RG Crown in November 2008 Two of the

notes due in 2032 and 2033
pay floating rates at three-month

LIBOR plus 325 and 310 lip respectively third note due in

2032 pays floating rate at six-month LIBOR plus 370 bp
The three-month LIBOR plus 290

lip
and the three-month

LIBOR plus 279
lip junior subordinated delientures due in 2033

and 2034 respectively were assumed by subsidiary of the

Bancorp in connection with the acquisition of First National Bank

in 2005 The obligations were issued to FNB Statutory Trusts

and II respectively

The junior subordinated floating-rate bank notes due in 2035

were assumed by subsidiary of the Bancorp as part
of the

acquisition of First Charter in May 2008 The obligations were

issued to First Charter Capital Trust and II respectively The

notes of First Charter Capital Trust and II pay floating at three-

month LIBOR plus 169 bp and 142 lip respectively The Bancorp

has
fully

and unconditionally guaranteed all obligations under the

acquired trust preferred securities issued by First Charter Capital

Trust and II

Ar December 31 2010 FHLB advances have rates ranging

from O% to 8.34% with interest payable monthly The advances

are secured by certain residential mortgage loans and securities

totaling $12.7 billion At December 31 2010 $500 million of

FHLB advances arc floating-rare The Bancorp entered into an

interest rate swap with notional value of $500 million to convert

the floating-rate advances to fixed rate of 2.635/o In November

2010 the Bancorp repaid floating-rate advance of $1.0 billion

due in 2012 and terminated the interest rate cap associated with

this advance The Bancorp recognized gain on this

extinguishment of debt of $1 million The $1.6 liilbon in advances

mature as follows $2 million in 2011 $500 million in 2013 $3

million in 2014 $5 million in 2015 and $1.1 billion thereafter

As previously discussed in Note 12 the Bancorp was

determined to be the primary beneficiary of VIEs associated with

certain automobile loan and home equity securitizations and

effective January 2010 these VIEs have been consolidated in

the Bancorps Consolidated Financial Statements As of

December 31 2010 the outstanding long-term debt associated

with the automobile loan sccutitizations and home equity

secutitization was $559 million and $133 million respectively

Third-party holders of this debt do not have recourse to the

general assets of the Bancorp
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The Bancorp in the normal course of business enters into

financial instruments and various agreements to meet the

financing needs of its customers The Bancorp also enters into

certain transactions and
agreements to manage its interest rate and

prepayment risks provide funding equipment and locations for

its operations and invest in its communities These instruments

and agreements involve to varying degrees elements of credit

risk counterparty risk and market risk in excess of the amounts

recognized in the Bancorps Consolidated Balance Sheets The

creditworthiness of counterparties
for all instruments and

agreements is evaluated on case-by-case basis in accordance with

the Bancorps credit policies The Bancorps significant

commitments contingent babilities and guarantees
in excess of

the amounts recognized
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets arc

discussed in further detail as follows

Commitments

The Bancorp has certain commitments to make future
payments

under contracts The following table reflects summary of

significant commitments as of December 31

in millions 2010 2009

Commitments to extend credit $43677 42591

Forward contracts to sell mortgage
loans 6389 3633

Letters of credit 5516 6657

Noncancelable lease obligations 869 906

Capital commitments for private equity

investments 193 90

Purchase obligations
64 25

Capital expenditures 48 27

Capital lease obligations 32 44

Commitments to extend credit

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend typically

having fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses that

may require payment
of fee Since many of the commitments to

extend credit may expire without being drawn upon the total

commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash

flow requirements The Bancorp is exposed to credit risk in the

event of nonperformance by the counterparty for the amount of

the contract Fixed-rate commitments are also subject to market

risk resulting from fluctuations in interest rates and the Bancorps

exposure is limited to the replacement value of those

commitments As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp

had reserve for unfunded commitments totaling $227 million

and $294 million respectively included in other liabilities in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Forward contracts to sell mortgage loans

The Bancorp enters into forward contracts to economically hedge

the change in fair value of certain residential mortgage
loans held

for sale due to changes in interest rates The outstanding notional

amounts of these forward contracts were $6.4 biffion and $3.6

billion as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Letters of credit

Standby and commercial letters of credit are conditional

commitments issued to guarantee
the performance of customer

to third
party

and as of December 31 2010 are summarized by

expiration in the following table

in miffions

Less than year $2367

1-5 years 2933

Over years
216

Total $5516

Indodes 367 of less than year
and 31 of 1-5jears issaed on behalf of

commercial

customers to facilitate
trade pajments in J..S dollars aodforezn cnrrencies

Standby letters of credit accounted fot 99/o of total letters of

credit at December 31 2010 and 2009 and are considered

guarantees in accordance with U.S GAAP Approximately 54%

and 58% of the total standby letters of credit were secured as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively In the event of

nonperformance by the customers the Bancorp has rights to the

underlying collateral which can include commercial real estate

physical plant and property inventory receivables cash and

marketable securities At December 31 2010 and 2009 the

reserve related to these standby letters of credit was $10 million

and $6 million respectively The Bancorp monitors the credit risk

associated with letters of credit using the same nsk
ranng system

utilized for establishing loss reserves within its loan and lease

portfolio Risk ratings as of December 31 2010 under this risk

rating system are summarized in the following table

in millions

Pass $4944

Special mention 193

Substandard 360

Doubtful 17

Loss

Total $5516

At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp had outstanding

letters of credit that were supporting certain securities issued as

VRDNs The Bancorp facditates financing for its commercial

customers which consist of companies and municipalities by

marketing the VRDNs to investors The VRDNs pay interest to

holders at rate of interest that fluctuates based upon market

demand The \TRDNs generally have long-term maturity dates

but can be tendered by the holder for purchase at par
value upon

proper advance notice When the VR.DNs are tendered

remarketing agent generally finds another investor to purchase the

VRDNs to keep the securities outstanding in the market As of

December 31 2010 and 2009 FTS acted as the remarketing agent

to issuers on $3.4 billion of VRDNs As remarketing agent
FTS is

responsible for finding purchasers for VRDNs that are put by

investors The Bancorp issues letters of credit as credit

enhancement to the VRDNs remarketed by FTS in addition to

$563 million and $936 million in VRDNs remarketed by third

parties at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively These letters

of credit are included in the total letters of credit balance provided

in the previous table At December 31 2010 and 2009 FTS held

$1 million and $47 million respecovely of these VRDNs in its

portfolio and classified them as trading securities At December

31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp held $105 million and $188

million respectively of VRDNs which were purchased from the

market through FTS and held in its trading securities portfolio

For the VRDNs remarketed by third parties in some eases the

remarketing agent
has failed to remarket the securities and has

instructed the indenture trustee to draw upon $11 million and $45

million of letters of credit issued by the Bancorp at December 31

2010 and 2009 respectively The Bancorp recorded these draws as

commercial loans in its Consolidated Balance Sheets
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Njoncancelahle lease
obligations

and other commitments

The Bancorps subsidiaries have entered into number of

noncancelable lease agreements The minimum rental

commitments under noncancelable lease agreements are shown in

the summary of commitments table The Bancorp or its

subsidiaries have also entered into limited number of agreements

for work related to banking center construction and to purchase

goods or services

Contingent Liabilities

Private mortgage reinsurance

For certain
mortgage

loans originated by the Bancorp borrowers

may be required to obtain PMI provided by third-party insurers

In some instances these insurers cede portion of the PMI

premiums to the Bancorp and the Bancorp provides reinsurance

coverage
within specified range

of the total PMI
coverage

The

Bancorps reinsurance coverage typically ranges from S% to 0%
of the total PMI coverage The Bancorps maximum exposure in

the event of nonperformance by the underlying borrowers is

equivalent to the Bancorps total outstanding reinsurance

coverage
which was $122 million and $182 miffion at December

31 2010 and 2009 respectively As of December 31 2010 and

2009 the Bancorp maintained reserve of $42 million and $44

mdlion respectively related to exposures within the reinsurance

portfolio During the second
quarter

of 2009 the Bancorp

suspended the practice of providing reinsurance of private

mortgage
insurance for newly originated mortgage loans In the

third quarter of 2010 the Bancorp allowed one of its third-party

insurers to terminate its reinsurance agreement with the Bancorp

resulting in the Bancorp releasing collateral to the insurer in the

form of investment securities and other assets with carrying

value of $19 miffion and the insurer assuming the Bancorps

obligations under the reinsurance agreement resulting in

decrease to the Bancorps reserve liability
of $20 million and

decrease in the Bancorps maximum exposure of $53 million

Legal claims

There are legal claims pending against the Bancorp and its

subsidiaries that have atisen in the normal course of business See

Note 19 for additional information regarding these proceedings

Guarantees

The Bancorp has performance obligations upon the occurrence of

certain events under financial guarantees provided in certain

contractual
arrangements as discussed in the following sections

Residential mortgage loans sold with credit reconrse

The Bancorp previously sold certain residential mortgage loans in

the secondary market with credit recourse In the event of
any

customer default pursuant to the credit recourse provided the

Bancorp is required to reimburse the third party The maximum

amount of credit risk in the event of nonperformance by the

underlying borrowers is equivalent to the total outstanding

balance In the event of nonperformance the Bancorp has rights

to the underlying collateral value securing the loan The

outstanding balances on these loans sold with credit recourse were

$916 million at December 31 2010 and $1.1 billion at December

31 2009 and the delinquency rates were approximately 8.7% and

8.1% respectively At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp

maintained an estimated credit loss reserve on these loans sold

with credit recourse of $16 million and $21 million respectively

recorded in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets To

determine the credit loss reserve the Bancorp used an approach

that is consistent with its overall approach in estimating credit

losses for residential mortgage loans held in its loan portfolio

Residential mortgage loans sold with
representation and warranty provisions

Conforming residential mortgage loans sold to unrelated third

parties are generally sold with representation and warranty

provisions contractual
liability

arises only in the event of

breach of these representations and warranties and in general

only when loss results from the breach The Bancorp may be

required to repurchase any previously sold loan or indemnify

make whole the investor or insurer for which the representation

or warranty of the Bancorp proves to be inaccurate incomplete or

misleading

The Bancorp establishes residential mortgage repurchase

reserve related to vatious representations and warranties that

reflect managements estimate of losses based on combination

of factors Such factors incorporate historical investor audit and

repurchase demand rates appeals success rates and historical loss

severity At the time of loan sale the Bancorp records

representation and
warranty reserve at the estimated fair value of

the Bancorps guarantee and continually updates the reserve

during the life of the loan as losses in excess of the reserve

become probable and reasonably estimable The provision for the

estimated fair value of the representation and warranty guarantee

atiuing from the loan sale is recorded as an adjustment to the gain

on sale which is included in other noninterest income at the time

of sale Updates to the reserve are recorded in other noninrerest

expense The majotity of repurchase demands occur within the

first 36 months following origination

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp maintained

reserves related to these loans sold with representation and

warranty provisions totaling $85 million and $37 million

respectively The following table summatizes activity in the

reserve for representation and warranty provisions for the years

ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009

Balance beginning of period $37 12

Net additions to the reserve 115 65

Losses charged against the reserve 67 40
Balance end of pctiod $85 37

Liqnidity support and credit enhancement
agreement

Through 2008 the Bancorp had transferred at par subject to

credit recourse certain primarily floating-rare short-term

investment grade commercial loans to VIE which ptior to

January 2010 was an unconsolidated special purpose entity

wholly-owned by an independent third party The VIE issued

asset-backed commercial
paper and used the proceeds to fund the

acquisition of commercial loans transferred to it by the Bancorp

Generally the loans transferred to the VIE provided lower yield

due to their investment grade nature and therefore transfcrting

these loans allowed the Bancorp to reduce its interest rate

exposure to these lower yielding loan assets while maintaining the

customer relationships The outstanding balance of these loans at

December 31 2009 was $771 million Ar December 31 2009 the

Bancorps loss reserve related to the credit enhancement provided

to the VIE was $45 million and was recorded in other liabditici in

the Consolidated Balance Sheets To determine the credit loss

reserve the Bancorp used an approach that was consistent with its

overall approach in estimating credit losses for various categories

of commercial loans held in its loan portfolio

In the event the VIE was unable to issue commercial
paper

the Bancorp agreed to provide liquidity support in the form of

line of credit and the repurchase of assets from the VIE As of

December 31 2009 the liquidity asset purchase agreement was

$1.4 billion In addition due to dislocation in the short-term

funding market which caused the VIE difficulty in obtaining

sufficient funding through the issuance of commercial
paper the

Bancorp purchased commercial paper from the VIE throughout

2008 and 2009 As of December 31 2009 the Bancorp held $805
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million of commercial paper issued by the VIE representing 87%

of the VIEs total commercial paper then outstanding Effective

January 2010 with the adoption of amended accounting

guidance regarding the consolidation of VIEs thc Baneorp was

required to consolidate the assets and liabilities of this VIE See

Note for further information on the amended accounting

guidance

Matgin accounts

ETS subsidiary of the Bancorp guarantees the collection of all

margin account balances held by its brokerage clearing agent
for

the benefit of its customers ETS is responsible for payment to its

brokerage clearing agent for any loss liability damage cost or

expense
incurred as result of customers failing to comply with

margin or margin maintenance calls on all margin accounts The

margin account balance held by the brokerage clearing agent was

$10 million and $8 million at December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively In the event of any customer default FTS has rights

to the underlying collateral provided Given the existence of the

underlying collateral provided and negligible historical credit

losses the Baneorp does not maintain loss reserve related to the

margin accounts

Long-term borrowing obligations

The Baneorp had
fully

and unconditionally guaranteed certain

long-term borrowing obligations issued by wholly-owned issuing

trust entities with carrying value of $2.9 billion and $2.8 biffion

as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively See Note 17 for

further information on these long-term borrowing obligations

Visa
litigatzon

The Baneorp as member bank of Visa ptior to Visas

reorganization and initial public offerings of its Class common

shares in 2008 had certain indemnification obligations pursuant to

Visas certificate of incorporation
and by-laws and in accordance

with their membership agreements
In accordance with Visas by

laws prior to the IPO the Baneorp could have been requited to

indemnify Visa for the Baneorps proportional share of losses

based on the pre-IPO membership interests As part of its

reorganization and IPO the Baneorps indemnification obligation

was modified to include only certain known litigation the

Covered Litigation as of the date of the restructuring This

modification triggered requirement to recognize $3 million

liability
for the year ended December 31 2007 equal to the fair

value of the indemnification obligation Additionally during 2007

the Baneorp recorded $169 million for its share of litigation

formally setiled by Visa and for probable future litigation

setilements In conjunction with the IPO the Baneorp received

10.1 million of Visas Class shares based on the Baneorps

membership percentage in Visa prior to the IPO The Class

shares are not transferable other than to another member bank

until the later of the third anniversary of the IPO closing or the

date which the Covered Litigation has been resolved therefore

the Bancorps Class shares were classified in other assets and

accounted for at their carryover basis of $0 Visa deposited $3

billion of the proceeds from the IPO into litigation escrow

account established for the purpose
of funding judgments in or

setilements of the Covered Litigation
If Visas litigation

committee determines that the escrow account is insufficient then

Visa will issue additional Class shares and deposit the proceeds

from the sale of the shares into the litigation escrow account

When Visa funds the litigation escrow account the Class shares

are subject to dilution through an adjustment in the conversion

rate of Class shares into Class shares During 2008 the

Baneorp recorded additional reserves of $71 million for probable

future settiements related to the Covered Litigation and recorded

its proportional share of $169 million of the Visa escrow account

net against the Bancorps litigation reserve

During 2009 Visa announced it had deposited an additional

$700 million into the litigation escrow account As result of this

funding the Baneorp recorded its proportional share of $29

million of these additional funds as reduction to its net Visa

litigation reserve liability and reduction to noninterest expense

Later in 2009 the Baneorp completed the sale of its Visa Inc

Class shares for proceeds of $300 million As
part

of this

transaction the Baneorp entered into total return swap in which

the Baneorp will make or receive payments based on subsequent

changes in the conversion rate of the Class shares into Class

shares The swap
terminates on the later of the third anniversary

of Visas IPO or the date on which the Covered Litigation is

finally
settied The Baneorp calculates the fair value of the swap

based on its estimate of the probability and timing of certain

Covered Litigation settiement scenarios and the resulting

payments
related to the swap The eounterparty to the

swap as

result of its ownership of the Class shares will be impacted by

dilutive adjustments to the conversion rate of the Class shares

into Class shares caused by any Covered Litigation losses in

excess of the litigation escrow account If actual judgments in or

settiements of the Covered Litigation significantly exceed current

expectations then additional funding by Visa of the litigation

escrow account and the resulting dilution of the Class shares

could result in scenario where the Baneorps ultimate exposure

associated with the Covered Litigation the Visa Litigation

Exposure exceeds the value of the Class shares owned by the

swap counterparty the Class Value In the event the

Baneorp concludes that it is probable that the Visa Litigation

Exposure
exceeds the Class Value the Baneorp would record

litigation reserve liability
and corresponding amount of other

noninterest expense for the amount of the excess Any such

litigation reserve liability
would be separate and distinct from the

fair value derivative liability associated with the total return swap

As of the date of the Baneorps sale of Visa Class shares

and through December 31 2010 the Baneorp has concluded that

it is not probable that the Visa Covered Litigation Exposure will

exceed the Class Value Based on this determination upon the

sale of Class shares the Baneorp reversed its net Visa litigation

reserve liability
and recognized free-standing derivative

liability

associated with the total return swap with an initial falr value of

$55 million The sale of the Class shares recognition of the

derivative liability
and reversal of the net litigation reserve liability

resulted in pre-tax benefit of $288 million $187 million afrer

tax recognized by the Baneorp for the year ended December 31

2009 In the second quarter of 2010 Visa funded an additional

$500 million into the escrow account which resulted in further

dilution in the conversion of Class shares into Class shares

and required the Baneorp to make $20 million cash payment

which reduced the swap liability to the swap eounterparty
in

accordance with the terms of the swap contract In the fourth

quarter of 2010 Visa funded an additional $800 million into the

litigation escrow account which resulted in further dilution in the

conversion of Class shares into Class shares and required the

Baneorp to make $35 million cash payment which reduced the

swap liability to the swap eounterparty in accordance with the

terms of the swap contract The fair value of the swap liability was

$18 million and $55 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively
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19 LEGAL AND REGULATORY PROCEEDINGS

During April 2006 the Baneorp was added as defendant in

consolidated antitrust class action lawsuit originally filed against

Vssa MasterCard and several other major financial institutions

in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of

New York The plaintiffs merchants operating commercial

businesses throughout the U.S and trade associations claim that

the interchange fees charged by card-issuing banks are

unreasonable and seek injunctive relief and unspecified damages

In addition to being named defendant the Bancorp is also

subject to possible indemnification obligation of Visa as

discussed in Note 18 and has also entered into with Visa

MasterCard and certain other named defendants judgement and

loss shanng agreements that
attempt to allocate financial

responsibility to the parties thereto in the event certain serdements

or judgments occur Accordingly prior to the sale of Class

shares during 2009 the Baneorp had recorded litigation reserve

of $243 miffion to account for its potential exposure in this and

related litigation Additionally the Baneorp had also recorded its

proportional share of $199 million of the Visa escrow account

funded with proceeds from the Visa IPO along with several

subsequent fundings Upon the Baneorps sale of Visa Inc Class

shares during 2009 and the recognition of the total return swap

that transfers conversion risk of the Class shares back to the

Baneorp the Baneorp reversed the remaining net litigation reserve

related to the Bancorps exposure through Visa Additionally the

Baneorp has remaining reserves related to this litigation of $30

million and $22 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively Refer to Note 18 for further information regarding

the Baneorps net litigation reserve and ownership interest in Visa

This antitrust litigation is still in the pre-trial phase

In September 2007 Ronald Katz Technology Licensing

L.P Katz filed suit in the United States District Court for the

Southern District of Ohio against the Baneorp and its Ohio

banking subsidiary In the suit Katz alleges that the Baneorp and

its Ohio bank are infringing on Katzs patents for interactive call

processing technology by offering certain automated telephone

banking and other services This lawsuit is one of many related

patent infringement suits brought by Katz in various courts

against numerous other defendants Katz is seeking unspecified

monetarv damages and penalties as well as injunctive relief in the

suit Management believes there are substantial defenses to these

claims and intends to defend them vigorously The impact of the

final disposition of this lawsuit cannot be assessed at this time

For the
year ended December 31 2008 five putative

securities class action complaints were filed against the Baneorp

and its Chief Executive Officer among other parties The five

eases have been consolidated and are currentiy pending in the

United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio

The lawsuits allege violations of federal securities laws related to

disclosures made by the Baneorp in press releases and
filings

with

the SEC regarding its quality and sufficiency of capital credit

losses and related matters and seeking unquantified damages on

behalf of putative classes of
persons who either purchased the

Baneorps securities or acquired the Baneorps securities pursuant

to the acquisition of First Charter Corporation These cases

20 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Baneorp maintains wntten policies and procedures covering

related
party transactions to principal shareholders directors and

executives of the Bancorp These procedures cover transactions

such as employee-stock purchase loans personal lines of credit

residential secured loans overdrafts letters of credit and increases

in indebtedness Such transactions are subject to the Bancorps

normal underwriting and approval procedures Ptior to the closing

of loan to related
parry Compliance Risk Management must

remain in the discovery stages of litigation The impact of the final

disposition of these lawsuits cannot be assessed at this time In

addition to the foregoing two eases were filed in the United States

District Court for the Southern District of Ohio against the

Baneorp and certain officers alleging violations of ERISA based

on allegations similar to those set forth in the securities class

action eases filed during the same period of time The two eases

alleging violations of ERISA were dismissed by the trial court and

are being appealed to the United States Sixth Circuit Court of

Appeals

On September 16 2010 Edward Zemprelli Zemprelli

filed lawsuit in the Hamilton County Ohio Court of Common
Pleas The lawsuit is purported derivative action brought by

shareholder of the Baneorp against certain of the Baneorps

officers and directors and which names the Bancorp as nominal

defendant In the lawsuit Zemprelli longs claims for breach of

fiduciary duty waste of
corporate assets and unjust enrichment

against the defendant officers and directors The alleged basis for

these claims is that the defendant officers and directors attempted

to disguise from the public die truth about the credit quality of the

Baneorps loan portfolio irs capital position and its need to raise

capital Zemprelli on behalf of the Baneorp is seeking

unspecified money damages allegedly sustained by the Baneorp as

result of the defendants conduct as well as injunctive relief The

ease is in the early stages of litigation The impact of the final

disposition of this lawsuit cannot be assessed at this time

The Baneorp and its subsidiaries are not parties to any other

material litigation However there are other litigation matters that

arise in the normal course of business While it is impossible to

ascertain the ultimate resolution or range of financial liability with

respect to these
contingent matters management believes any

resulting liability
from these other actions would nor have

material effect upon the Bancorps consolidated financial position

results of operations or cash flows

The Bancorp and/or its affiliates are or may become

involved from time to time in information-gatheting requests

reviews investigations and proceedings both formal and

informal by government and self-regulatory agencies including

the SEC regarding their respective businesses Such matters may
result in material adverse

consequences including without

limitation adverse judgments settlements fines penalties

injunctions or other actions amendments and/or restatements of

Fifrh Thirds SEC
filings and/or financial statements as

applicable and/or determinations of matetial weaknesses in our

disclosure controls and procedures The SEC is investigating and

has made several requests for information including by subpoena

concerning issues which Fifth Third understands relate to

accounting and reporting matters involving certain of its

commercial loans This could lead to an enforcement proceeding

by the SEC which in turn may result in one or more such

material adverse consequences

approve
and determine whether the transaction requires approval

from or post notification be sent to the Bancorps Board of

Directors At December 31 2010 and 2009 certain directors

executive officers principal holders of Baneorp common stock

associates of such persons and affiliated companies of such

persons were indebted including undrawn commitments to lend

to the Baneorps banking subsidiary

The following table summarizes the Baneorps activities with
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its principal shareholders dircctors and executives at Dcccmbcr 31

in millions 2010 2009

Commitments to lend nct of participations

Directors and their affiliated companies $157 143

Exccunvc officers

Total 160 149

Outstanding balance on loans net of

parneipanons and undtawn comimtmcnts 74 68

The commitments to lend are in the form of loans and

guarantees for various business and personal interests This

indebtedness was incurred in the ordinary course of business on

substantially the same terms including interest rates and collateral

as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with

unrelated parties This indebtedness does not involve more than

the normal risk of repayment or present other features unfavorable

to the Bancorp

On June 30 2009 the Baneorp completed the sale of

majority interest in irs Processing Businesses FTPS Advent

International acquired an approximate 51 interest in FTPS for

cash and warrants The Bancorp retained the remaining

approximate 49 interest in FTPS and as part of the sale FTPS

assumed loans totaling $1.25 billion owed to the Baneorp The

Baneorp recognized $26 million and $15 million respectively in

noninterest income as parr of irs equity method investment in

FTPS for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 and

received distributions totaling $25 million and $18 million

respectively during 2010 and 2009

21 INCOME TAXES

The Baneorp and FTPS have various agreements place

covering services relating to the operations of ETPS The services

provided by the Baneorp to FTPS were required to support
FTPS

as standalone entity during the deeonversion period These

services involve transition support including product development

risk management legal acetiunting and general business resources

FTPS paid the Baneorp $49 million and $76 million respectively

for these services for the years ended December 31 2010 and

2009 Other services provided to FTPS by the Baneorp wInch will

continue beyond the deconversion period include treasury

management clearing settiemenr sponsorship data center support

and office
space

FTPS paid the Baneorp $34 million and $14

million respectively for these services for the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 In addition to the previously

mentioned services the Baneorp entered into an agreement under

which FTPS will provide processing
services to the Bancorp The

total amount of fees relating to the processing services provided to

the Banetirp by FTPS totaled $64 million and $33 milhitin

respectively for the years
ended December 31 2010 and 2009

During the fourth
quarter

of 2010 FTPS refinanced its debt

into larger syndicated loan structure that included the Baneorp

As result loans to FTPS declined to $381 million as of December

31 2010 from $1.24 biffion at December 31 2009 The Baneorp

recognized $4 million in syndication fees in 2010 associated with

the refinanced loan to FTPS The amount of FTPS line of credit

with the Baneorp was also reduced to $50 million as of December

31 2010 from $125 million as of December 31 2009 FITS did

not draw upon its lines of credit during the
years

ended December

31 2010 or 2009 Interest income relating to the loans was $102

million and $60 million respectively for the years ended December

31 2010 and 2009 and is included in interest and fees on loans and

leases in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Tax-exempt income in the rate reconciliation table includes

interest on municipal bonds interest on tax-exempt lending

income/charges on life insurance policies held by the Bancorp

and certain gains on sales of leases that are exempt
from federal

taxation

During 2010 the Baneorp sertied its outstanding dispute with

the IRS relating to specific capital raising transaction This

favorable settlement reduced income tax expense including

interest by $19 million During 2009 the Baneorp settled its

outstanding dispute with the IRS relating to certain leveraged

The Baneorp and its subsidiaries fde consolidated federal income tax return The following is summary of applicable income taxes included in

the Consolidated Statements of Income for the
years

ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Current income tax benefit expense

U.S income taxes $5 157 560

State and local income taxes 16 25

Non-U.S income taxes
-__________________

Total current tax benefit expense
11 154 588

Deferred income tax expense benefit

U.S income taxes 165 190 1090
State and local income taxes 11 47
Non-U.S income taxes

Total deferred tax expense benefit 176 184 1139

Applicable income tax expense benefit $187 30 551

The following is reconciliation between the statutory U.S income tax rate and the Baneorps effective tax rate for the years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Statutory tax rate
35.0% 35.0 35.0

Increase decrease resulting from

State taxes net of federal benefit 1.8 .1 .5

Tax-exempt income 3.6 18.7 1.5

Credits 14.1 14.6 3.6

Goodwill 8.7 11.9

Interest to taxing authority net of tax 0.8 7.6 5.1

Other changes in unrecognized tax benefits 1.8

Unrealized stock-based compensation benefits 2.5 0.6

Other net 0.8 0.6 .1

Effective tax rate
19.8% 3.9 20.7
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lease transactions This favorable settlement reduced income

tax expense including interest by $6 million and $55 million

for 2010 and 2009 respectively The accrual of interest expense

for these items had an adverse impact on income tax expense

for 2008

During 2009 the Bancorp notified the carrier of one of the

Bancorps policies of its intent to surrender certain BOLT

policy and was therefore required to establish deferred tax

asset relating to the difference between its financial reporting

and tax basis of its investment As result income tax expense

for 2009 was favorably impacted by $106 million Income tax

expense was adversely impacted in 2008 by $78 million relating

to the same BOLl policy

The following table provides summary of the Bancorps unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31

in millions 2010 2009

Tax positions that would impact the effective tax rate if recognized $15 81

Tax positions where the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of the deduetior

Unrecognized tax benefits $16 82

The following table provides reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of the Baneorps unrecognized tax benefits

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Unrecognized tax benefits at January $82 959 469

Gross increases for tax positions taken during prior period 16 496

Gross decreases for tax positions taken during prior period 23 329
Gross increases for tax positions taken during current period

Settlements with taxing authorities 48 563
Lapse of applicable statute of limitations

Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 $16 82 959

The Bancorps unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 mentioned previously Similarly substantially all of the reduction

2010 relate largely to U.S state income tax exposures from taking of unrecognized tax benefits during 2009 related to the settlement

tax positions where the Bancorp believes it is
likely

that upon of certain leveraged lease transactions with the IRS

examination state will take position contrary to the position The Bancorp believes it is unlikely that its unrecognized tax

taken by the Bancorp benefits will change by material amount during the next 12

Substantially all of the reduction of unrecognized tax benefits months

during 2010 related to the settlement of the Bancorps dispute with

the IRS relating to the specific capital raising transaction

Deferred income taxes are comprised of the following items at December 31

in millions 2010 2009

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan lease losses $1051 1312

Impairment reserves 144 145

Deferred compensation 136 147

Reserve for unfunded commitments 79 103

State net operating losses 66 81

Other 273 224

Total deferred tax assets $1749 2012

Deferred tax liabilities

Lease financing $801 898

Investments in
joint ventures and partnership interests 481 481

MSRs 190 191

Other comprehensive income 169 130

Bank premises and equipment 69 88

State deferred taxes 53 60

Other 130 138

Total deferred tax liabilities $1893 1986

Total net deferred tax liability asset $144 26

Deferred tax assets are included as component of other assets in

the Consolidated Balance Sheets Deferred tax liabilities are

included as component of accrued taxes interest and
expenses in

the Consolidated Balance Sheets

At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp had recorded

deferred tax assets of $66 million and $81 million respectively

related to state net operating loss carryforwards The deferred tax

assets relating to state net operating losses are presented net of

specific valuation allowances primarily resulting from leasing

operations of $25 million and $15 miffion at December 31 2010

and 2009 respectively If these carry forwards are not utilized they

will expire in varying amounts through 2030 Additionally at

December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp had federal general
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business tax credit earryforwards of $45 million and $42 million

respectively If unused these credit carryforwards will expire in

2030

The Baneorp has determined that valuation allowance is not

needed against the remaining deferred tax assets as of December

31 2010 or 2009 The Bancorp considered all of the positive and

negative evidence available to determine whether it is more likely

than not that the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realized and

based upon that evidence the Bancorp believes it is more likely

than not that the deferred tax assets recorded at December 31

2010 and 2009 will ultimately be realized The Bancorp reached this

conclusion as the Baneorp has taxable income in the earryback

period and it is expected that the Bancorps remaining deferred tax
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assets will be realized through the reversal of its existing taxable

temporary
differences and its projected future taxable income

As required under U.S GAAP the Bancorp recognized

deferred tax asset for compensation expense recognized for

financial reporting that may be deductible for tax purposes in the

future for certain stock-based awards granted to its employees As

result of the Bancorps stock price as of December 31 2010 as

much as $24 million of deferred tax assets previously established

for these stock-based awards will not be realized within the next 12

months and will negatively impact the Bancorps income tax

expense
in 2011 The Bancorp cannot predict its stock price or

whether its employees will exercise other stock-based awards with

lower exercise
prices in the future therefore it is possible that the

impact to income tax expense will be greater than or less than $24

million in 2011

The IRS concluded its audit for 2006 and 2007 during the

third
quarter

of 2010 As result all issues have been resolved with

the IRS through 2007 The statute of hmitations for the Baneorps

federal income tax returns remains
open

for tax years 2007 through

2010 The IRS is currently auditing the Bancorps federal income

tax returns for 2008 and 2009 On occasion as vatious state and

local taxing jurisdictions examine the returns of the Bancorp and

its subsidiaties the Bancorp may agree to extend the statute of

limitations for short period of time Otherwise with the

exception of few states with insignificant uncertain tax positions

the statutes of limitations for state income tax returns remain open

only for tax years in accordance with each states statutes

Any interest and penalties incurred in connection wiih income

taxes are recorded as component of income tax expense in the

Consolidated Financial Statements During the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp recognized an interest

benefit of $8 million and interest expense of $3 miffion

respectively net of the related tax impact This $3 mdlion

recognized in 2009 is exclusive of the $55 milhon interest reduction

discussed previously At December 31 2010 and 2009 the

Bancorp had accrued interest liabilities net of the related tax

benefits of $1 million and $13 million respecovely No material

liabilities were recorded for penalties

Retained earnings at December 31 2010 and 2009 included

$157 million in allocations of earnings for bad debt deductions of

former thrift subsidiaries for which no income tax has been

provided Under current tax law if certain of the Bancorps

subsidiaries use these bad debt reserves for
purposes

other than to

absorb bad debt losses they will be subject to federal income tax at

the current corporate tax rate
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22 RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT PLANS
The Baneorp recognizes the overfunded and underfunded status

of its pension plans as an asset and
liability respectively The

overfunded and underfunded amounts recognized in other assets

and other liabilities respectively in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets were as follo\vs as of December 31

Sin miffions 2010 2009

Prepaid benefit cost $4

Accrued benefit
liability 34 35

Net underfunded status $30 35

The following tables summarize the defined benefit retirement

plans as of and for the years ended December 31

Plans with an Overfunded Status

in millions 2010 2009

Fair value of plan assets at January $182

Actual return on assets 31

Contributions

Settlement

Bane fits p5id 16
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $197

Projected benefit obligation at January $183

Service cost

Interest cost 10

Settlement

Actuarial loss 16

Benefjaid 16
Projected benefit obliganon at December 31 $193

Overfunded projected benefit obligation recognized

in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as an asset $4

The Bancssp Ic defined henifit plan had an sceg3nded status at December 31

2010 The plan was nndegiinded at December 31 2009 and Ic
rifiected

in the

Undeqainded Status table

Plans with an Underfunded Status

in millions 2010 2009

Fair value of plan assets at January 144

Actual return on assets 29

Contributions 39

Settlement 19
Benefits aid 11
Fair value of plan assets at December31 182

Projected benefit obliganon at January $34 228

Service cost

Interest cost 12

Settlement 19
Actuarial loss

Benefij aid

Projected benefit obligaoon at December 31 $34 217

Unfunded projected benefit obligaoon recognized

the Consolidated Balance Sheets as liability $34 35

The estimated net actuarial loss and prior service cost for the

defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from

accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic

benefit cost during 2011 are $11 million and $1 million

respectively

The following table summarizes net periodic benefit cost and

other changes in plan assets and benefit obliganons recognized in

other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Components of net penodic benefit cost

Service cost

Interest cost 12 12 13

Expected retorn on assets 14 12 18
Amortization of net actuarial loss 12 15

Amortizanon of net prior service cost

Scttiement 13 10

Net periodic benefit cost $11 29 13

Other changes in plan assets and benefit

obligations recognized in other

comprehensive income

Net actuarial loss gain

Net prior service cost

Amoruzanon of net actuarial loss

Amortization of prior service cost

Settlement

Total recognized in other comprehensive

income

Total recognized in net periodic benefit

cost and other comprehensive income

11 39 75

$- 10 88

Fair Value Measurements of Plan Assets

The following table summarizes plan assets measured at fair value

on recurring basis as of December 31

Fair Valoe Measorements Using

Total

Fair

2010 in millions Level Level Level Value

Equity securities

Equity securities Growth Is $58 $58

Equity seeutitics Value 53 53

Total equity securities 111 111

Mutual exchange traded funds

Money market funds

International funds 30 30

Commodity funds 11 11

Total mutual exchange

traded funds 47 47

Debt securities

U.S Treasury obligations

U.S Govt agencies

Agency mortgage backed 24 24

Non-agency mortgage

backed

Corporate bonds ii 1-
Total debt securities 32 39

Total plan assets $165 32 $197

Fair Value Measorements Using

Total

Fair

2009 in millions Level l.evel Level Value

Equity securities

Equity securities Growth $52 S52

Equity securities Value 49 49

Total equity securities 101 101

Mutual exchange traded funds

Money market funds

International funds 28 28

Commothty funds

Total mutual exchange

traded funds 43 43

Debt securities

U.S Treasury obbgaouns

U.S Govt agencies

Agency mortgage backed 27 27

Corporate bonds

Total debt securities 32 38

Total plan assets $150 32 S182

al Fsrficrther in/srmatisn en fair
caine hierarchy leccis see Lute 28

Includes hcldiggs in Bancuep cummun stuck

Includes debt secnriticc issued by LTS Gucernment .cpunscnd agensccs

Includes prieate label asset hacked securities

12

10 93

15

131 101
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The following is description of the valuation methodologies

used for instruments measured at fair value as well as the general

classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation

hierarchy

Equi securities

The plan measures common stock using quoted prices which are

available in an active market and classifies these investments

within Level of the valuation hierarchy

Mutual and exchange traded funds

All of the plans mutual and exchange traded funds are publicly

traded The plan measures the value of these investments using

the funds quoted prices that are available in an active market and

classifies these investments within Level of the valuation

hierarchy

Debt securities

For certain U.S Treasury and federal agency
and

non-agency

obligations the plan measures the fair value based on quoted

prices which are available in an active market and classifies these

investments within Level of the valuation hierarchy Where

quoted prices are not available the plan measures the fair value of

these investments based on matrix ptieing models that include the

bid price which factors in the yield curve and other characteristics

of the security including the interest rate prepayment speeds
and

length of maturity Therefore these investments are classified

within Level of the valuation hierarchy

Plan Assump dons

The plan assumptions are evaluated annually and are updated as

necessary
The discount rate assumption reflects the yield on

portfolio of high quality fixed-income instruments that have

similar duration to the plans liabilities The expected long-term

rate of return assumption reflects the average return expected on

the assets invested to provide for the plans liabilities In

determining the expected long-term rate of return the Baneorp

evaluated actuarial and economic inputs including long-term

inflation rate assumptions and broad equity and bond indices

long-term return projections as well as actual long-term historical

plan performance

The following table summarizes the plan assumptions for

the years ended December 31

Weighted-average assumptions 2010 2009 2008

For measuring benefit obligations

at year end

Discount rate 5.39% 5.88 6.11

Rate of compensation increase 5.00 5.00 5.00

Expected return on plan assets 8.25 8.50 8.53

For measuring net petiodie benefit cost

Discount rate 5.88 6.11 6.45

Rate of compensation increase 5.00 5.00 5.00

Expected return on plan assets 8.25 8.50 8.50

Lowering both the expected rate of return on the plan and the

discount rate by 0.2S% would have increased the 2010
pension

expense by approximately $1 miffion

Based on the aeruatial assumptions the Baneorp does not

expect to contribute to the plan in 2011 Estimated pension

benefit payments which reflect expected future service are $19

million in 2011 $20 million in 2012 $17 million in 2013 $17

million in 2014 and $16 million in 2015 The total estimated

payments for the years 2016 through 2020 is $70 million

In vestment Policies and Strategies

The Baneorps policy for the investment of plan assets is to

employ investment strategies that achieve range of weighted-

average target asset alloeanons relating to equity securities

including the Baneorps common stock fixed income securities

including federal agency obligations corporate
bonds anti notes

and cash

The following table provides the Baneorps targeted and

actual weighted-average asset allocations by asset category for

years ended December 31

Weighted-average asset Targeted

allocation range 2010 2009

Equity seeutities 72/ 71

Baneorp common stock

Total equity securities 70 80% 74 73

Total fixed income seeutities 20 25 23 24

Cash 0-5

Total 100/i 100

Includes mutual and exchange traded/tends

The risk tolerance for the plan is determined by management

to be moderate to aggressive recognizing that higher returns

involve some volatility and that periodic declines in the portfolios

value are tolerated in an effort to achieve real capital growth

There were no significant concentrations of risk associated with

the investments of the Baneorps benefit and retirement plans at

December 31 2010 and 2009

Permitted asset classes of the plan include cash and cash

equivalents fixed income domestic and non-U.S bonds equines

U.S non-U.S emerging markets and REITS equipment leasing

precious metals commodity transactions and mortgages The plan

utilizes detivative instruments including puts calls straddles or

other option strategies as approved by management

Prohibited asset classes of the plan include venture capital

short sales limited partnerships and leveraged transactions Per

ERISA the Baneorps common stock cannot exceed ten percent

of the fair value of plan assets

Fifth Third Bank as Trustee is expected to manage the plan

assets in manner consistent with the plan agreement and other

regulatory federal and state laws The Fifth Third Bank Pension

Profit Sharing and Medical Plan Committee the Committee is

the plan administrator The Trustee is required to provide to the

Committee monthly and quarterly reports covering
list of plan

assets portfolio performance transactions and asset allocation

The Trustee is also required to keep the Committee apptised of

any matetial changes in the Trustees oudook and recommended

investment policy

Other Information on Retirement and Benefit Plans

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit plans

was $227 million and $217 million at December 31 2010 and

2009 respectively Amounts relating to the Baneorps defined

benefit plans with assets exceeding benefit obligations were as

follows at December 31

in millions 2010 2009

Projected benefit obligation $193

Accumulated benefit obliganon 193

Fair value of plan assets 197

Amounts relating to the Baneorps defined benefit plans with

benefit obligations exceeding assets were as follows at December

31

in miffions 2010 2009

Projected benefit obligation $34 217

Accumulated benefit obligation 34 217

Fair value of plan assets 182

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 $172 million and $160

million respectively of plan assets were managed through mutual

funds by Fifth Third Bank subsidiary of the Bancorp Plan

assets included $5 miffion and $3 million of Bancorp common

stock as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Plan assets

are not expected to be returned to the Baneorp duting 2011
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The Bancorps qualified defined benefit plans benefits were

frozen in 1998 except
for grandfathered employees The

Bancorps other retirement plans consist of nonqualified

supplemental retirement plans which are funded on an as needed

basis majority of these plans were obtained in acquisitions from

prior years

The Bancorps profit sharing plan expense was $31 million

for 2010 $17 million for 2009 and $18 million for 2008 Expenses

recognized during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 for matching contributions to the Bancorps defined

contribution savings plans were $36 million $36 million and $37

million respectively

23 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The activity of the
components

of other comprehensive income and accumulated other comprehensive income was as follows for the years

ended December 31

Total Other Total Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income Comprehensive Income

Pretax Tax Net Beginning Net Ending

in millions Activity Effect Activity Balance Activity Balance

2010

Unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securities arising during

period $216 73 143

Reclassification adjustment for net gains included in net income 57 19 38
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities 159 54 105 216 105 321

Unrealized holding gains on cash flow hedge derivatives arising during

period

Reclassification adjustment for net gains on cash flow hedge

derivatives included in net income 60 21 39
Net unrealized gains on cash flow hedge derivatives 58 20 38 105 38 67

Defined benefit plans

Net prior service cost

Net actuarial loss 10

Defined benefit plans net 11 80 74
Total $112 39 73 241 73 314

2009

Unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securities arising during

period $248 86 162

Reclassification adjustment for net gains included in net income 57 20 37
Reclassification adjustment related to prior OTFI charges 37 13 24
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities 154 53 101 115 101 216

Unrealized holding gains on cash flow hedge derivatives arising during

period 75 26 49

Reelassificanon adjustment for net gains on cash flow hedge

derivatives included in net income 49 17 32
Net unrealized gains on cash flow hedge derivatives 26 17 88 17 105

Defined benefit plans

Net prior service cost

Net actuarial loss 39 14 25

Defined benefit plans net 39 14 25 25 80
Total $219 76 143 98 143 241

2008

Unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securities arising during

period $353 123 230

Reclassification adjustment for net gains included in net income 31 10 21
Net unrealized gains losses on available-for-sale securities 322 113 209 94 209 115

Unrealized holding gains on cash flow hedge derivatives arising during

period 100 35 65

Reclassification adjustment for net gains on cash flow hedge

derivatives included in net income

Net unrealized gains on cash flow hedge derivatives 97 34 63 25 63 88

Defined benefit plans

Net prior service cost

Net actuarial gain 74 26 48
Defined benefit plans net 74 26 48 57 48
Totai $345 121 224 126 224 98
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24 COMMON PREFERRED AND TREASURY STOCK

The following is summary of the share activity within common preferred and treasury stock for the years ended December 31

In 2008 8.S% non-cumulative Series convertible preferred

stock was issued in the second quarter The depository shares

represented shares of its convertible preferred stock and had

liquidation preference of $25000 per
share The preferred stock is

convertible at any time at the option of the shareholder into

2159.8272 shares of common stock representing conversion

price of approximately $11575 per
share of common stock As of

December 31 2010 Series preferred stock had 16451 shares

outstanding and 1700 shares reserved for issuance

On December 31 2008 the U.S Treasury purchased $3.4

billion or 136320 shares of the Bancorps Fixed Rate Cumulative

Perpetual Preferred Stock Series with liquidation preference

of $25000 per
share and related 10-year warrants in the amount

of lS% of the preferred stock investment The warrants allow the

U.S Treasury to purchase up to 43617747 shares of the

Bancorps common stock with an exercise price of $11.72 The

Series senior preferred stock was issued complying with the

terms established by the CPP Per the program terms the U.S

Treasurys investment consists of senior preferred stock with

five percent
dividend for each of the first five years of investment

and nine percent thereafter unless the shares are redeemed The

shares are callable by the Bancorp at par after three years and may

be repurchased at any time under certain circumstances The

terms also include restrictions on the repurchase of common

stock and an increase in common stock dividends which require

the U.S Treasurys consent for period of three
years

from the

date of investment unless the preferred shares are redeemed in

whole or the U.S Treasury has transferred all of the preferred

shares to third party

The proceeds
from issuance of the Series preferred stock

were allocated to the preferred stock and to the warrants based on

their relative fair values which resulted in an initial book value of

$3.2 biffion for the preferred
stock and $239 million for the

warrants The resulting discount to the preferred stock is being

accreted over five years through retained earnings as preferred

stock dividend resulting in an effective yield of 6.7% for the

Series preferred stock for the first five years The warrants will

remain in capital surplus at their initial book value until they are

exercised or expire

The CPP terms also required that preferred stock issued to

U.S Treasury rank senior to or pan passu with other preferred

stock In order to meet the U.S Treasurys standard terms in the

fourth quarter of 2008 the Bancorp repurchased its Series and

Series preferred stock The preferred stock was repurchased for

aggregate consideration in cash of $28 million in which $9 million

par value was accounted for as retirement of the Series and

Series preferred stock and the remaining $19 miffion was

recognized as dividends paid to the holders of the preferred stock

On May 2009 the Bancorp announced the SCAP results

While not required to raise additional overall capital the Bancorp

was required to augment
its existing capital base to maintain

capital buffer above the newly required four percent threshold of

the Tier common equity ratio As result the Bancorp initiated

number of capital actions including the offer to exchange Series

preferred shares and common stock offering

On June 2009 the Bancorp announced the successful

completion of $1 billion at-the-market offering of its common

shares Through this offering the Bancorp issued approximately

158 million shares at an average price of $6.33

On June 17 2009 the Bancorp completed its offer to

exchange 2158.8272 shares of its common stock no par value

and $8250 in cash for each set of 250 validly tendered and

accepted depositary shares The Bancorp issued approximately 60

million shares of common stock and paid $230 million in cash in

exchange for niiffion depositary shares Overall $69i million in

liquidation amount of the Bancorps depositary shares were validly

tendered not withdrawn and exchanged which represented 63%

of the aggregate liquidation amount of its depositary shares An

aggregate
of million depositary shares representing 27849 shares

of Series preferred stock were retired upon receipt At the time

of exchange the Bancorp recognized an increase to retained

earnings and net income available to common shareholders of $35

million calculated as the difference between the carrying amount

of the Series preferred stock exchanged and the sum of the fair

value of the common stock plus cash delivered After settlement

of the exchange offer and as of December 31 2010 4112750

depositary shares representing 16451 shares of Series preferred

stock remained outstanding As result of this exchange the

Bancorp increased its common equity by $441 million

During 2010 2009 and 2008 the Bancorp repurchased an

immaterial amount of common stock

On January 20 2011 the Bancorp announced it had priced

public offering of 121428572 shares of its common stock at

price of $14.00 per share or $1.7 billion in aggregate gross

Common Stock Preferred Stock Treasury Stock

in millions except share data
Value Shares Value Shares Value Shares

Shares at December 31 2007 $1295 583427104 $9 9250 $2209 51482500

Issuance of preferred shares Series 1072 44300

Issuance of preferred shares Series 3169 136320

Redemption of preferred shares Series 9250
Stock-based awards exercised including treasury shares issued

Restricted stock grants 136 2551432
Shares issued in business combinations 1841 42890576

Employee stock ownership through benefit plans

Shares at December 31 2008 $1295 583427104 $4241 180620 $229 6040492

Issuance of common shares 351 157955960

Exchange of preferred shares Series 133 60121124 674 27849
Accretion from dividends on preferred shares Series 41

Restricted stock forfeitures 819796

Restricted stock grants 32 751464

Other 327200

Shares at December 31 2009 $1779 801504188 $3609 152771 $201 6436024

Accretion from dividends on preferred shares Series 45

Stock-based awards exercised including treasury shares issued 16391

Restricted stock grants and forfeitures net 62 1334967

Employee stock ownership through benefit plans 114218

Shares at December 31 2010 $1779 801504188 $3654 152771 $130 5231666
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proceeds On January 24 2011 the underwriters exercised their

opnon to purchase an addinonal 12142857 shares at the offering

pnce
of $14.00 per

share In connecnon with this exercise the

Bancorp entered into forward sale agreement which resulted in

final net payment
of 959821 shares on February 2011 On

February 2011 the Bancorp used these proceeds along with

proceeds from senior debt offering and other available resources

to repurchase all 136320 Series preferred shares See Note 32

for further informanon

25 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
The Bancorp has historically emphasized employee stock awards and remaining shares available for future issuance under all

ownership The following table provides detail of the number of of the Bancorps equity compensation plans as of December 31

shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding stock-based 2010

Weighted- Shares Available

Number of Shares to Be Average Exercise for Future

Plan Category shares in thousands Issued Upon Exercise Pnee Issuance

Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders 9601a
SARs If

Restricted stock 5158 N/A
Stock options 10333 $57.02

Phantom stock units if N/A N/A
Performance units N/A
Performance-based restncted stock N/A

Emppy5e stock purchase plan 10434f

Total shares 15491 20035

Under the 2008 Incentive
Compensation Plan 33 million shares

of
stock were authoriyed/or

isinance as encenteje and
nonqualfied

stock
options

hA Es restricted stsck and restricted stock

anits pefirmance units and pefirmance restricted stock awarde

The numher
of

shares to he issued upon exerase will he determined at costing
hased on the

dfierence
hetween the

grant price
and the market

price at the date
c/exercise

Excludre 1.5 uallion
outctanding options

awarded nnder
plans

ascumed the
Bancoep

in connection with certain
meegers

and
acquisitions

he
Bancoep

has not made
any

awardc under these

plans
and nill make no additional awards under these

plans
The

weighted-average
exercise

price c/the outctanding options 818.09 per
share

fl Phantom stock units are settled in cash

el
The namher

c/shares
to he issued he

dependent upon the
Ihancoep achieving

certain
predejined performance teagets

and
ranges from yero

shares to approximately
400 thonsand shares

Representc remaining
sharre

n/ Hfth Third common stock nnder the
Bancoep

1993 Stock Purchase Plan as amended and restatee including an additional 1.5 milllon shares
approcsd by

shareholdeis on March 28 2007 and an additional 12 milllon shares app roved
by

shareholdeis on April21 2009

Stock-based awards arc eligible for issuance under the Bancorps

Incentive Compensanon Plan to key employees and directors of

the Baneorp and its subsidiaries The Incentive Compensation

Plan was approved by shareholders on April 15 2008 which

authorizes the issuance of up to 33 million shares as equity

compensation and provides for incentive and nonqualified stock

opnons stock appreciation rights restricted stock and restricted

stock units and performance share and restricted stock awards

Based on total stock-based awards outstanding including stock

options stock appreciation rights restricted stock and

performance units and shares remaining for future grants under

the 2008 Incentive Compensation Plan the Bancorps total

overhang is seven percent The overhang measurement represents

the potential dilution to which the Baneorps shareholders of

common stock are exposed due to the potennal that stock-based

compensanon will be awarded to executives directors or key

employees of the Baneorp SARs restricted stock stock options

and performance units outstanding represent six percent
of the

Bancorps issued shares at December 31 2010

During 2009 the Bancorps Board of Directors approved the

use of phantom stock units as part
of its compensanon for

execunves in connection with changes made in reaction to the

TARP compensanon rules The phantom stock units were issued

under the Baneorps 2008 Incentive Compensation Plan The

number of phantom stock units is determined each
pay petiod by

dividing the amount of salary to be paid in phantom stock units

for that
pay petiod by the reported closing price of the Baneorps

common stock on the
pay

date for such
pay period Phantom

stock is expensed based on the number of outstanding units

mulnphed by the closing price
of the Baneorps stock at period

end The phantom stock units do not include any rights to receive

dividends or dividend equivalents Phantom stock units issued on

or before June 12 2010 will be settled in cash upon the earher to

occur of June 15 2011 or the executives death Units issued

thereafter will be settied in cash with SO% being settled on June

15 2012 and 50% being settied on June 15 2013 The amount to

be paid on settiement of the phantom stock units will be equal to

the total amount of phantom stock units settled at the reported

closing price of the Bancorps common stock on the settlement

date

All of the Baneorps stock-based awards are to be settled

with stock with the exception of phantom stock units and

portion of the performance units that are to be settled in cash

The Baneorp has historically used treasury stock to settle stock-

based awards when available SARs issued at fair value based on

the closing price of the Baneorps common stock on the date of

grant have up to ten-year terms and vest and become exercisable

either ratably or fully over four year period of continued

employment The Bancorp does not grant
discounted SARs or

stock options re-ptiee previously granted SARs or stock options

or grant reload stock options Restricted stock grants vest either

after four
years or ratably after three four and five

years
of

continued employment and include dividend and voting tights

Stock options were previously issued at fair value based on the

closing price of the Baneorps common stock on the date of
grant

had up to ten-year terms and vested and became
fully

exercisable

ratably over three or four year petiod of continued employment
Performance unit awards have three-year cliff

vesnng terms with

performance or market condinons as defined by the plan

Under U.S GAAP the Baneorp recognizes compensanon

expense
for the grant-date fair value of stock-based

compensation

issued over its requisite service period The grant-date fair value of

SARs and stock options is measured using the Blaek-Seholes

opnon-pticing model Awards with graded vesting are expensed

on straight-line basis
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The Bancorp uses assumptions which are evaluated and

revised as necessary in estimating the grant-date fair value of each

SAR grant The weighted-average assumptions were as follows for

the
years

ended

2010 2009 2008

Expected llfe @n years

Expected volatility 38% 73% 30%

Expected dividend yield 2.0% 1.3% 8.7%

Risk-free interest rate 3.1% 2.2% 3.3%

The expected option llfe is detived from histoncal exercise

patterns and represents the amount of time that opnons granted

are expected to be outstanding The expected volatility is based on

combination of historical and implied volattlities of the

Bancorps common stock The expected dividend yield is based

on annual dividends divided by the Bancorps stock pnce Annual

dividends are based on projected dividends estimated using

historical long-term dividend
payout ratio over the estimated life

of the awards The risk-free interest rate for periods within the

contractual life of the
option is based on the U.S Treasury yield

curve in effect at the time of grant

Stock-based compensation expense was $64 million $51

million and $56 million for the years ended December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively and is included as compensation

expense
in the Consolidated Statements of Income The total

related income tax benefit recognized was $18 million S18 million

and $20 million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively

Stock Appreciation Rights SARs
The weighted-average grant-date fair value of SARs granted was

$5.10 $2.41 and $2.09 per
share for the years ended 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively The total grant-date fair value of SARs that

vested during 2010 2009 and 2008 was $25 million $26 million

and $61 million respectively

At December 31 2010 there was $37 miffion of stock-based

compensation expense related to nonvested SARs not yet

recognized The expense is expected to be recognized over

remaining weighted-average period of approximately 2.7 years

2010 2009 2008

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

SARs shares in thousands Shares Grant Price Shares Grant Ptice Shares Grant Price

Outstanding at January 28571 $26.82 22508 $35.43 17526 $41.81

Granted 5310 14.74 8398 4.05 6836 19.25

Exercised 319 3.96

Forfeited or expired 2410 30.87 2335 27.93 1854 36.03

Outstanding at December 31 31152 $24.67 28571 $26.82 22508 $35.43

Exercisable at December 31 16347 $34.94 12254 $40.38 8352 $44.46

The following table summarizes outstanding and exercisable SARs by grant price at December 31 2010

Outstanding SARs Exercisable SARi

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average

Number of Remaining Number of Remaining

SARs at Weighted- Conrraemal SARi at Weighted- Contractual

Year End Average Life Year End Average Life

Grant Price Per Share 000s Grant Price in years 000s Grant Price in years

Under $10.00 7136 $4.03 8.3 1300 $3.96 8.3

$10.01-$20.00 10412 17.04 8.3 2718 19.21 7.3

$20.01-$30.00 59 23.38 7.2 23 23.68 7.1

$30.01-$40.00 8580 38.74 5.4 7569 38.80 5.3

Over $40.00 4965 46.07 3.7 4737 46.35 3.5

All SARs 31152 $24.67 6.8 16347 $34.94 5.4

Restricted Stock Awards RSAs
The total grant-date fair value of RSAs that vested during 2010 stock not yet recognized The expense is expecied to be

2009 and 2008 was $30 million $36 million and $24 million recognized over remaining weighted-average penod of

respectively At December 31 2010 there was $50 million of approximately 2.4 years

stock-based compensation expense
related to nonvested restricted

2010 2009 2008

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Grant-Date Grant-Date Grant-Date

RSAs shares in thousands Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Nonvested arJanuary 4645 $23.85 5584 $29.04 3519 $40.80

Granted 1677 14.69 751 4.72 3157 19.27

Vested 817 36.96 870 40.84 486 48.62

Forfeited 347 22.39 820 23.86 606 30.72

Nonvested at December 31 5158 $18.89 4645 $23.85 5584 $29.04
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The following table summarizes unvested RSAs by grant-date
fair value at December 31 2010

Nonvested RSAs

Weighted-

Average

Remaining

Contractual Life

in years

Other stock-based compensation

Under the phantom stock program 488703 and 299681

respective phantom stock units were granted with weighted

average grant price of $12.80 and $9.88 during the
years

ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The phantom stock

units vest immediately however none were settled during 2010 or

2009

Performance units arc payable contingent upon the Bancorp

achieving certain predefined performance targets over the three-

year measurement period Awards granted during 2010 will be

entirely settled in stock During 2009 and 2008 the awards

granted are payable SO% in stock and 50% in cash The

performance targets are based on the Bancorps performance

relative to defined peer group During 2010 2009 and 2008

61320 1118958 and 186044 performance units respectively

were granted by the Bancorp These awards were granted at

weighted-average grant-date fair value of $13.76 $3.96 and $19.18

per unit during 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Performance-based restricted shares were previously issued

by the Bancorp and were payable in stock and contingent upon

the Bancorp achieving certain predefined performance targets

over the one-year measurement period These performance targets

were based on the Bancorps performance relative to defined

peer group If performance targets were met the shares were

vested over three-year period The Bancorp granted 179604

performance-based restricted shares during 2008 with weighted-

Number of

RSAs at Year

End 000sGrant-Date Fair Value Per Share

Under $10.00 604 1.2

$10.01 -$20.00 3641 1.6

$20.01 -$30.00 151 1.2

$30.01-$40.00 728 0.6

Over $40.00________________ 34 0.3

All RSAs 5158 1.4

Stock options Statements in 2009 Cash received from options exercised was $3

There were no stock options granted during 2010 Stock
options

million 2008 Tax benefits realized from exercised options were

granted during 2009 were immaterial to the Bancorps immaterial to the Consolidated Financial Statements during 2010

Consolidated Financial Statements The weighted-average grant-
2009 and 2008 All stock options were vested at December 31

date fair value of stock options granted for the year ended 2008 2008 therefore no stock options vested during 2010 or 2009 The

was $2.87 per share total grant-date fair value of stock options that vested during 2008

The total intrinsic value of options exercised was immaterial was immaterial to the Bancorps Consolidated Financial

to the Bancorps Consolidated Financial Statements in 2010 2009 Statements As of December 31 2010 the aggregate
intrinsic

and 2008 Cash received from options exercised during 2010 and value of both outstanding options and exercisable options was

2009 was immaterial to the Bancorps Consolidated Financial immaterial to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2010 2009 2008

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Stock Options shares in thousands Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at January 15504 $49.29 20564 $48.97 23645 $49.07

Granted 8.59 1133 11.57

Exercised 58 8.76 11 8.33 202 15.32

Forfeited or expired 3587 40.54 5050 48.06 4012 40.73

Outstanding at December 31 11859 $52.01 15504 $49.29 20564 $48.97

Exercisable at December 31 11859 $52.01 5504 $49.29 20564 $48.97

2008 Options granted include 1131 options assumed as part o/the First charter Coeporation acquisition completed on June 2008 These
options mere granted

under First

Charter
Corporation

P/an assumed by the Bancorp

The following table summarizes outstanding and exercisable stock options by exercise price at December 31 2010

Outstanding and Exercisable Stock Options

Weighted-

Average

Number of Weighted- Remaining

Options at Average Contractual

Year End Exercise Life

Exercise Price per Share 000s Price in years

Under $10.00 237 $9.43 0.8

$l0.0l-$20.00 894 13.64 3.0

$20.01 -$30.00 201 25.38 1.2

$30.01 -$40.00 140 36.23 3.3

Over $40.00_____ 10387 57.02 1.2

All stock options 11859 $52.01 1.4
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average grant-date fair value of $23.39 The performance

condition related to the performance-based restricted shares was

not achieved in 2008 There are no outstanding performance

based restricted shares at December 31 2010 and 2009

The Bancorp sponsors
stock purchase plan that allows

qualifying employees to purchase shares of the Bancorps

common stock with 15% match During the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 there were 749127 1343632

and 712338 shares respectively purchased by participants and

the Bancorp recognized stock-based compensation expense
of $1

miffion $1 million and $2 million respectively

26 OTHER NONINTEREST INCOME AND OTHER NONINTEREST EXPENSE
The following presents the major components of other noninterest income and other noninterest expense for the years ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Other noninterest income

BOLT income loss $194 156
Operating lease income 62 59 47

Gain loss on loan sales 51 38 11
TSA revenue 49 76

Insurance income 38 47 36

Cardholder fees 36 48 58

Consumer loan and lease fees 32 43 51

Banking center income 22 22 31

Loss on sale of OREO 78 70 60
Gain on sale/redemption of Visa Inc ownership interests 244 273

Litigation settlement 76

Other net 26 18

Total $406 479 363

Other noninterest expense

FDIC insurance and other taxes $242 269 73

Loan and lease 211 234 188

Losses and adjustments 187 110 95

Affordable housing investments impairment 100 83 67

Marketing 98 79 102

Professional services fees 77 63 102

Travel 51 41 54

Postal and courier 48 53 54

Intangible asset amortization 43 57 56

Insurance 42 50 30

Operating lease 41 39 32

OREO expense 33 24 11

Recruitment and education 31 30 33

Supplies 24 25 31

Data processing 24 21 14

Visa
litigation reserve 73 99

Provision for unfunded commitments and letters of credit 24 99 98

Other 166 167 148

Total $1394 1371 1089

FilTh Third Ban corp 115



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of earnings per share and the reeoneiliarinn of earnings per

share to earnings per diluted share for the years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Per

Average Share Average Per Share Average Per Share

in millions except per
share data Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount

Earnings per share

Net income loss attnbutablc to

Bancorp $753 $737 $2113
Dividends on preferred stock 250 226 67

Net income loss available to

common shareholders 503 511 2180

Income loss allocated to

participating sccunues 21
Net income loss allocated to

common shareholders $500 791 $0.63 $507 696 $0.73 $2159 553 $3.91

Earnings per diluted share

Net income loss available to

common shareholders $503 $511 $2180
Effect of dilutive secuntics

Stock based awards

Warrants related to Series

preferred stock

Series convertible preferred

stock 21 28 0.06

Net income loss available to

common shareholders plus

assumed conversions 503 490 2180
Income loss allocated to

lating securities

Ncr income loss allocated to

common shareholders $500 799 $0.63 $486 726 $0.67 $2159 553 $3.91

The additive
1/fret

ts inesmeJsm dividends sn esnvertihleprejirred stsekjir the
year

ended December 31 2009 included prfirred dividends sf314 jir Series prejirred shares

stftet by 335 rednetisn ts
pr1/irred

dividends due Is the esnversisn qf psetisn sf Series prejirred shares dnrig the seesnd
qaailer sf2009

The diluted earnings per
share computation for the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 excludes 23 million stock

appreciation rights 12 million and 17 million stock options

respectively that had not yet been exercised million and

million shares respectively of unvcsted restricted stock and 36

million shares related to the Bancorps Series preferred stock

that were not part
of the conversion of preferred shares in the

second quarter of 2009 The shares were excluded from the

computation of net income per
diluted share because their

inclusion would have been anti-dilutive to earnings per share

For the year ended December 31 2009 there were 44 million

shares under warrants related to the Bancorps Series preferred

stock from the CPP that were excluded from the computation of

net income
per

diluted share as their inclusion would have been

anti-dilutive to earnings per share due to the exercise price of the

shares being greater than the average market price of the common

shares The warrants have an initial exercise price of $11.72 per

share

Due to the net loss for the year
ended December 31 2008

the diluted earnings per
share calculation excluded all common

stock equivalents including 43 million stock options and stock

appreciation rights million shares of restricted stock 96 million

common shares from convertible preferred stock and 44 million

shares under warrants related to the CPP as their inclusion would

have been anti-dilutive to earnings per share
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The Baneorp measures certain financial assets and liabilities at fair

value in accordance with U.S GAAP which defines fair value as

the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at

the measurement date U.S GAAP also establishes fair value

hierarchy which prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques

used to measure fair value into three broad levels The fair value

hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted pnees in active

markets for identical assets or liabibties Level and the lowest

priority to unobservable inputs Level financial instruments

categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the

lowest level of input that is significant to the instruments fair

value measurement The three levels within the fair value

hierarchy are described as follows

Level Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for

identical assets or llabibties that the Baneorp has the
ability

to access at the measurement date

Level Inputs other than quoted prices included within

Level that are observable for the asset or liability
either

directly or indirectly Level inputs include quoted prices

for similar assets or babilities in active markets quoted prices

for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markeis that are

not active inputs other than quoted prices that are

observable for the asset or liabili and inputs that are

derived principally from or corroborated by observable

market data by correlation or other means

Level Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability for

which there is little if any market activity at the

measurement date Unobservable inputs reflect the

Bancorps own assumptions
about what market participants

would use to pnee the asset or liability
The inputs are

developed based on the best information available in the

circumstances which might include the Baneorps own

financial data such as internally developed pricing models

discounted cash flow methodologies as well as instruments

for which the fair value determination requires significant

management judgment

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on

Recurring Basis

The following tables summarize assets and liabilities measured at

fair value on recurring basis including financial instniments in

which the Baneorp has elected the fair value
option

Fair Value Measurements Usine

As of December 31 2010 in millions Level Level Level Total Fair Value

Assets

Available-for-sale securities

U.S Treasury and Government agencies $230 $230

U.S Government sponsored agencies 1645 1645

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 172 172

Agency mortgage-backed secutities 10973 10973

Other bonds notes and debentures 1342 1342

Other securities 180 184

Available-for-sale securities 410 14136 14546

Trading secunnes

U.S Treasury and Government agencies

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 20 21

Agency mortgage-backed secunties

Other bonds notes and debentures 115 120

Other securities 47 97 144

Trailing securities 48 240 294

Residential mortgage loans held for sale 1892 1892

Residenual mortgage loans 46 46

Derivative assets

Interest rate contracts 90 1448 13 1551

Foreign exchange contracts 343 343

Equity contracts 81 81

Commodity contracts 99 99

Derivative assets 90 1890 94 2074

Total assets $548 18158 146 $18852

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities

Interest rate contracts 14 846 11 871

Foreign exchange contracts 323 323

Equity contracts 28 28

Commodity contracts 92 92

Detivative liabilities 14 1261 39 1314

Short positions

Total liabilities $15 1262 39 $1316
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Fair Value Measurements Using

Level LevelAs of December 31 2009 in millions Level Total Fair Value

Assets

Available-for-sale securities

U.S Treasury and Government agencies $458 $458

U.S Government sponsored agencies 2142 2142

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 243 243

Agency mortgage-backed securities 11382 11382

Residual interests in seeurinzations 174 174

Other bonds notes and debentures 2395 2395

Other securities 517 526

Available-for-sale securities 975 16171 174 17320

Trading securities

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 56 57

Agency mortgage-backed securities 24 24

Othet bonds notes and debentures 201 205

Other secutities 61 69

Trading secutioes 61 281 13 355

Residential mortgage loans held for sale 1470 1470

Residential mottgage loans 26 26

Detivative_instruments
33 1616 84 1733

Total assets $1069 19538 297 $20904

Liabilities

Other liabilities $6 1013 75 $1094

Total liabilities $6 1013 75 $1094

Excludes FHLB and FRB restricted stack totaling $524 and $344 respectively at December 31 2010 and $551 and $342 respectively at December 31 2009

Includes residential mortgage loans originated as heldfor sale and subsequently transferred to held for investment

Includes derivative liabilities with negative fair value and short positions

The following is description of the valuation methodologies used

for significant instruments measured at fair value as wei as the

general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation

hierarchy There were no financial assets or liabilities transferred

between Level and Level of the fair value hierarchy for any of

the periods presented Residential mortgage loans held for sale that

are reclassified to held for investment are transferred from Level

to Level of the fair value hierarchy as described below It is the

Bancorps policy to value any transfers between levels of the fair

value hierarchy based on end of period fair values

Available-for-sale and trading securities

Where quoted prices are available in an active market securities

are classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy Level

securities include government bonds and exchange traded equities

If quoted market prices are not available then fair values are

estimated using pricing models quoted prices of securities with

similar characteristics or discounted cash flows Examples of such

instruments which are classified within Level of the valuation

hierarchy include agency and non-agency mortgage-backed

securities other asset-backed securities obligations of U.S

Government sponsored agencies
and corporate and municipal

bonds Agency mortgage-backed securities obligations of U.S

Government sponsored agencies and corporate
and municipal

bonds are generally valued using market approach based on

observable prices of seeunties with similar characteristics Non-

agency mortgage-backed securities and other asset-backed

securities are generally valued
using an income approach based on

discounted cash flows incorporating prepayment speeds

performance of underlying collateral and specific tranehe-level

attributes In certain eases where there is limited activity or less

transparency
around

inputs to the valuation securities are

classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy Trading

securities classified as Level consist of auction rate securities

Due to the illiquidity in the market for these
types

of securities at

December 31 2010 and 2009 the Baneorp measured fair value

using discount rate based on the assumed holding period

Residential mortgage loans heldfor sale and held Joy investment

For residential mortgage loans held for sale fair value is estimated

based upon mortgage-backed securities pnces and spreads to those

prices or for certain ARM loans DCF models that may

incorporate the anticipated portfolio composition credit spreads

of asset-backed securities with similar collateral and market

conditions The anticipated portfolio composition includes the

effect of interest rate spreads and discount rates due to loan

characteristics such as the state in which the loan was otiginated

the loan amount and the ARM margin Residential mortgage
loans

held for sale that are valued based on mortgage
backed securities

prices are classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy as the

valuation is based on external pneing for similar instruments

ARM loans classified as held for sale are also classified within

Level of the valuation hierarchy due to the use of observable

inputs in the DUF model These observable inputs include interest

rate spreads from agency mortgage-backed securities market rates

and observable discount rates For residential mortgage loans

reclassified from held for sale to held for investment the fair value

estimation is based primarily on the underlying collateral values

Therefore these loans are classified within Level of the valuaoon

hierarchy

Derivatives

Exchange-traded derivatives valued using quoted prices and

certain over-the-counter derivatives valued using active bids are

classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy Most derivative

contracts are valued using discounted cash flow or other models

that incorporate current market interest rates credit spreads

assigned to the derivative eounterparties and other market

parameters and therefore are classified within Level of the

valuation hierarchy Such derivatives include basic and structured
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interest rate swaps and opoons Derivatives that are valued based

upon models with significant unobservable market parameters are

classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy At December

31 2010 derivatives classified as Level which are valued using

an option-pricing model containing unobservable inputs consisted

primarily of warrants and put rights associated with the Processing

Business Sale and total return swap
associated with the

Bancorps sale of Visa Inc Class shares Level derivatives also

include interest rate lock commitments which utilize internally

generated loan closing rate assumptions as significant

Under the terms of the total return swap the Bancorp will make

or receive payments
based on subsequent changes in the

conversion rate of the Visa Class shares into Class shares The

fair value of the total return swap was calculated using DCF

model based on unobservable inputs consisting of managements

estimate of the probability of certain litigation scenarios timing of

litigation settlements and payments related to the swap

The net fair value of the interest rate lock commitments at

December 31 2010 was immaterial to the Bancorp At December

31 2010 immediate decreases in current interest rates of 25 bp

and 50 bp would result in increases in the fair value of the interest

rate lock commitments of $14 million and $27 million

unobservable input in the valuation process

In connection with the Processing Business Sale the Bancorp

provided Advent International with certain put options
that are

exercisable in the event of certain circumstances In addition the

warrants associated with the Processing Business Sale allow the

Baneorp to purchase an incremental IO% nonvoting interest in

FTPS under certain defined conditions involving change of

control The fair values of the warrants and put options are

calculated applying Black-Scholes option valuation models using

probability weighted scenatios

respectively Immediate increases of current interest rates of 25 bp

and 50 bp would result in decreases in the fair value of the interest

rate lock commitments of $16 miffion and $33 million

respectively at December 31 2010 The change in fair value of

interest rate lock commitments at December 31 2010 due to

immediate 10% and 2O% favorable and adverse changes in the

assumed loan closing rates would be immaterial to the Bancorp

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with

caution as changes in fair value based on variation in

assumptions typically cannot be extrapolated because the

relationship of the change in assumptions to the change in fair

value may not be linear

The following tables are reconciliation of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis using significant unobservable

inputs Level

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs Level

Residual Residential Interest Rate Equity

For the year ended December 31 2010 Interests in Trading Mortgage Derivatives Derivatives Total

in millions Sccuritizations Securities Loans Net Net Fair Value

Beginning balance $174 13 26 11 $222

Total gains or losses realized/unrealized

Included in earnings
187 14 176

Included in oilier comprehensive income

Purchases sales issuanees and settlements net 174b 10 183 56 317

Transfers in and/or out of Level cc 26 26

Ending balance 46 53 $107

The amount of total gains or losses for the period

included in earnings atrtibutable to the change in

unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held

at December 31 2010 60 14 $46

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs Level

Residual Residential

Interests in Trading Mortgage Derivatives Total

For the year ended December 31 2009 in millions Seeutinzations Securities Loans Net Fair Value

Beginning balance $146 24 $177

Total gains or losses realized/unrealized

Included in earnings
10 145 149

Included in other comprehensive income

Purchases sales issuanees and settlements net 15 17 160 136

Transfers in and/or out of Level 29 29

Ending balance $174 13 26 $222

The amount of total gains or losses for the period included in

earnings attributable to the change in unrealized gains or losses

relating to assets still held at December 31 2009 $6 16 $16

The assumptions utilized in the models are summarized in the following table as of December 31

2010 2009

Warrants Put Options Warrants Put Options

Expected term 8.5 18.5 years .5 3.0 years 9.5 19.5 years
.5 4.0

years

Expected volatility
36.0 37.0% 25.6- 44.6% 36.7 41.1% 31.3- 50.2%

Risk free rate 3.06 4.18% 0.23 1.05% 3.96 4.68% 0.27 2.23%

Expected dividend rate 0% 0% 0% 00/c

Based sn Isistsrica/ and
implied

volati/ities
sf csmparahle csmpanies assuming similar eapected terms
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Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs Level

Rcsidual

Interests in

Seeuririzatinns

$10

Total

Fair Value

$6

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Interest income 15

Mortgage banking net revenoe 187 127 53

Corporate banking revenue

Other noninterest income 15 15

Securities gains losses net 23
Other noninterest expense

Total gains $176 149 38

The total gains and losses included in earnings attributable to changes in onrealized gains and losses related to Level assets and liabilities still

held at year end were recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Income as follows

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Interest income 11

Mortgage banking net revenue 60 21

Corporate banking revenue

Other noninreresr income 15 20

Securities losses net 23
Other noninteresr expense

Total gains $46 16 11

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on Nonrecurring Basis

Certain assets and babihties are measored at fair value on nonrecurring basis These assets and liabilities are not measured at fair valoe on an

ongoing basis however they are sobjeet to fair value adjustments in certain esreomstanees such as when there is evidence of impairment the

following table
represents

those assets and habdatses rhar were subjeer ro fair value adjosrments doring the
years

ended December 31 2010

and 2009 and the related losses from soch fair value adjustments

_______________________________________
Total Losses

Year Ended

December 31 2010

$448

470

207
159

in millions Level Level Level Total

Commercial nonacerual loans held for sale $120 770 $890

Commercial and industrial loans 272 272

Commercial mortgage loans 234 234

Commercial construction loans 109 109

Residential mortgage loans

Other consumer loans 71 10 81 12
MSRs 822 822 36
OR/fropertv 527 264
Total $120 71 2747 $2938 $1602

For the year ended December 31 2008 in millions

Residential

Mortgage

Loans

Derivatives

Net

Beginning balance

Total gains or losses realized/unrealized

Included in earnings 15 54 38

Included in other comprehensive income

Purchases sales issoanees and settlements net 150 26 124

Transfers inand/oroutofLevel3by __________
Ending balance $146 24 $177

The amount of total gains or losses for the penod included in earnings attributable

to the change in unrealized gains or losses reladng to assets still held at December

312008d $15 27 $11

Net interest rate derivatives inclnde derivative assets and liabilities
of $13 and $11 re.cpecteiely

Net
eqnity

dcvi otives enclnde deointive iecsets and liabilities
of $81 and $28

respectively

If Dne ts change in CAAP adspted by the Bancstp sn jannavy 2010 all residnal interests in
secnritigatisns were eliminated csncnrrent net the csnsshdatisn

sf
the

related I/lEe See Nste
fsrjhrther

discnssisn

lnclndes residential mspgage Isans held fir sale that were
transfirred

ts held/sr investment

Inelndes interest inesme and expense

Net derivatives inclnde derivative assets and liabilities of 384 and 875 re.vpeeteicly at December 31 2009 and derivative assets and liabilities of $30 and $6 respectively at

December 31 2008

The total gains and losses included in earnings for assets and liabilides measured at fair value on recurring
basis using significant

unobservable inputs Level were recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Income as follows

Fair Value Measurements Ustng
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Year Ended

in millions Level Level Level Total December 31 2009

Commercial nonaccrual loans held for sale $60 163 $223 $56

Residential mortgage loans held for sale 55 55

Commercial and industnal loans 64 243 307 217

Commercial mortgage loans 37 303 340 136

Commercial construction loans 40 199 239 150

Commercial leases

MSRs 699 699 24
OREO property

461 461 131

Investment in FTPS Holding LLC 524 524

Total $201 524 2124 $2849 $718

During 2010 the Bancorp transferred $650 milbon of commercial

loans from the portfolio to loans held for sale Of the loans that

were transferred to held for sale $112 miffion were fair valued

based on executable bids and therefore classified within Level

of the valuation hierarchy The remaining $538 million were fair

valued based on discounted cash flow models incorporating

appraisals of the underlying collateral as well as assumptions

about investor return requirements and amounts and timing of

expected cash flows and therefore classified within Level of

the valuation hierarchy In addition existing loans held for sale of

$240 million were further adjusted $8 mdlion of which were

based on executable bids and therefore classified within Level

of the valuation hierarchy and the remaining $232 million based

on appraisals of the underlying collateral value and therefore

classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy

During 2010 and 2009 the Baneorp recorded nonrecurring

impairment adjustments to certain commercial and industrial

commercial mortgage
and commercial construction loans held for

investment Such amounts are generally based on the fair value of

the underlying collateral supporting the loan and were classified

within Level of the valuation hierarchy During 2009 certain

amounts were based on bids for the loans in active markets and

therefore classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy In

eases where the carrying value exceeds the fair value an

impairment loss is recognized

During 2010 the Baneorp recorded nonrecurring

adjustments to certain residential mortgage loans The fair value

of these loans was based on the underlying collateral values and

therefore classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy

During 2010 the Bancorp recorded nonrecurring

adjustments to certain other consumer loans As indicated in

Note 12 the Baneorp provides funding to certain entities

sponsored by third parties to finance consumer loans onginated

by third parties During 2010 one of these entities agreed to

transfer ownership of its undetiying consumer loans to the

Baneorp and these loans are now classified as held for

investment Upon transfer the Bancorp was required to measure

and record the loans at fair value which was determined using

DCF model which are classified within Level of the valuation

hierarchy and in some eases the value of the underlying

collateral which are classified within Level of the valuation

hierarchy

During 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp recognized temporary

impairments in certain classes of the MSR portfolio in which the

carrying value was adjusted to fair value as of December 31 2010

and 2009 MSRs do not trade in an active open market with

readily observable ptices While sales of MSRs do occur the

precise terms and conditions typically are not readily available

Accordingly the Baneorp estimates the fair value of MSRs using

discounted cash flow models with certain unobservable inputs

ptimarily prepayment speed assumptions resulting in

classification within Level of the valuation hierarchy Refer to

Note 13 for further information on the Bancorps MSRs

During 2010 and 2009 the Bancorp recorded nonrecurring

adjustments to certain commercial and residential real estate

properties classified as OREO and measured at the lower of

carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell Such fair value

amounts are generally based on appraisals of the property values

resulting in classification within Level of the valuation

hierarchy In cases where the carrying amount exceeds the fair

value less costs to sell an impairment loss is recognized The

previous table reflects the fair value measurements of the

properties before deducting the estimated costs to sell

During 2009 the Bancorp purchased residential mortgage

loans with principal balance of $57 million The Baneorp

subsequently recorded nonrecurnng impairment adjustments

totaling $2 mdlion during 2009 Such amounts are generally based

on the fair value of the underlying collateral supporting the loan

and therefore classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy

On June 30 2009 the Baneorp recorded an investment in

FTPS Holdings LLC related to its retained noneontrolling

interest from the Processing Business Sale The investments fair

value was based on the Baneorps proportional share of the

LLCs equity capital and was measured using observable data

directly from the sales transaction with Advent International

Therefore this investment was classified within Level of the

valuation hierarchy In subsequent periods the invesiment in

FTPS Holdings LLC has been recorded under the equity method

of accounting

Fair Value Option

The Bancorp has elected to measure residential mortgage loans held

for sale under the fair value option as allowed under U.S GAAP

Managements intent to sell residential mortgage loans classified as

held for sale may change over time due to such factors as changes in

the overall
liquidity

in markets or changes in charactensties specific to

certain loans held for sale Consequently these loans may be

reclassified to loans held for investment and maintained in the

Baneorps loan portfolio In such eases the loans will continue to be

measured at fair value Residential loans with fair values of $26

million and $29 million respectively were transferred to the

Bancorps portfolio duting 2010 and 2009 Losses related to fair

value adjustments on these loans were immaterial to the Bancorp for

the year ended December 31 2010 compared to $2 million of losses

during 2009

Fair value changes included in earnings
for instmnients for

\vhieh the fair value option was elected included losses of $191

million and $162 million respectively during 2010 and 2009 These

losses are reported as mortgage banking net revenue in the

Consolidated Statements of Income

Valuation adjustments related to instrument-specific credit nsk

for residential mortgage loans measured at fair value negatively

impacted the fair value of these loans by $5 million and $3 million

respectively doting 2010 and 2009 Interest on residential mortgage

loans measured at fair value is accrued as it is earned osing the

effective interest method and is reported as interest income in the

Consolidated Statements of Income
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The following tables summarize the difference between the aggregate fair value and the aggregate unpaid principal balance for residential

mortgage loans measured at fair value

Aggregate Aggregate Unpaid

in millions Fair Value Principal Balance Difference

As of December 31 2010

Residential mortgage loans measured at fair value $1938 1913 $25

Past duc loans of 90 days or more

Nonaccrual loans

As of December 31 2009

Residential mortgage loans measured at fair value $1496 1463 $33

Past due loans of 90 days or more

Nonaccrual loans

Fair Value of Certain Financial Instruments

The following table summarizes carrying amounts and estimated fair values for certain financial instruments excluding financial instruments

measured at fair value on recurnng basis at

$2159

868

353

1515

324

26068

10248

1890

3267

8600

11248

10910

1738

622

150
74441

2159

868

353

1515

324

27322

9513

1471

2934

7577

9366

10975

1786

682

71626

Carrying

December 31 2009 in millions Amount Fair Value

Financial assets

Cash and due from banks $2318 2318

Other securities 893 893

Held-to-maturity securities 355 355

Other short-term investments 3369 3369

Loans held for sale 543 543

Portfolio loans and leases net 73004 68748

Financial liabilities

Deposits 84305 84544

Federal funds purchased 182 182

Other short-term borrowings 1415 1415

Long-term debt 10507 9899

Excludes 326 q/residential mortgage
loans measured at/air value on

recurring
basis

Carrying

Amount Fair ValueDecember 31 2010 in millions

Financial assets

Cash and due from banks

Other securities

Held-to-maturity securities

Other short-term investments

Loans held for sale

Portfolio loans and leases

Commercial and industrial loans

Commercial mortgage loans

Commercial construction loans

Commercial leases

Residential mortgage loans

Home equity

Automobile loans

Credit card

Other consumer loans and leases

Unallocated allowance for loan and lease losses

Total portfolio loans and leases net

Financial liabilities

Deposits

Federal funds purchased

Other short-term borrowings

I.ong-tcrm debt

Excludes $46 s/residential mortgage
loans measnred at fair value on recurring basir

81648 81860

279 279

1574 1574

9558 9921

122 Fifth Third Ban corp



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and dne from banks other secarities other short-term investments

deposits federalfnndspnrchased and other short-term borrowings

For financial insrruments wirh short-term or no stated maturity

prevailing market rates and limited credit risk carrying amounts

approximate fair value Those financial instruments include cash

and due from banks FHLB and FRB restricted stock other short-

term investments certain deposits demand interest checking

savings money market and foreign office deposits
and federal

funds purchased Fair values for other time deposits certificates

of deposit $100000 and over and other short-term borrowings

were estimated using discounted cash flow calculation that

applied prevailing LIBOR/swap interest rates for the same

maturities

Held-to-matnr4y secnrities

The Bancorps held-to-maturity securities are primarily composed

of instruments that provide income tax credits as the economic

return on the investment The fair value of these instruments is

estimated based on current U.S Treasury tax credit rates

Loans held for sale

Fair values for commercial loans held for sale were valued based

on executable bids when available or on discounted cash flow

models incorporating appraisals
of the underlying collateral as

well as assumptions about investor return requirements and

amounts and timing of expected cash flows Fair values for other

consumer loans held for sale are based on contractual values upon

which the loans may be sold to third
parry

and approximate

their carrying value

Portfoho loans and leases net

Fair values were estimated by discounting future cash flows using

the current market rates of loans to borrowers with simdar credit

characteristics and similar remaining maturities

Long-term debt

Fair value of long-term debt was based on quoted market pnces

when available or discounted cash flow calculation using

LIBOR/swap interest rates and in some eases spread for new

issues for borrowings of similar terms
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29 CERTAIN REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS AND
The pnncipal source of income and funds for the Baneorp parent

company are dividends from its subsidiaries The dividends paid

by the Bancorps state chartered bank are subject to regulaoons

and bmitations prescribed by the
appropriate state authority The

Baneorps nonbank subsidiaries are also limited by certain federal

and state statutory provisions and regulaoons eovenng the amount

of dividends that may be paid in any given year

The Baneorps subsidiary banks must maintain cash reserve

balances when total reservable deposit liabilities are greater than

the regulatory exempoon These reserve requirements may be

saosfied with vault cash and noninterest-bearing cash balances on

deposit with the FRB In 2010 and 2009 the subsidiary banks were

required to maintain
average

cash reserve balances of $547 million

and $439 million respectively

The FRB adopted guidelines pursuant to which it assesses the

adequacy of capital in examining and
supervising

bank holding

company and in analyzing applications to it under the Bank

Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended These guidelines

include quantitative measures that assign nsk weightings to assets

and off-balance sheet items as wei as define and set minimum

regulatory capital requirements All bank holding companies are

required to maintain core capital Tier of at least four
percent

of

risk-weighted assets Tier capital ratio total capital of at least

eight percent of risk-weighted assets Total risk-based capital

ratio and Tier capital of at least three
percent

of adjusted

quarterly average assets Tier leverage raoo Failure to meet the

minimum capital requirements can initiate certain actions by

regulators that could have direct material effect on the

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Baneorp

Tier capital consists principally of shareholders equity

including Tier qualifying trust preferred secunoes It excludes

unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities and

unrecognized pension actuarial gains and losses and prior service

cost goodwill and certain other intangibles Current provisions of

the recently enacted Dodd-Frank Act will phase out the inclusion

of certain trust preferred securities as component of Tier

capital beginning january 2013 Under these provisions these

trust preferred securities would qualify as component of Tier II

capital At December 31 2010 the Baneorps Tier capital

included $2.8 hdlion of trust preferred securines

Tier II capital consists principally of perpetual and trust

preferred stock that is not eligible to be included as Tier capital

term subordinated debt intermediate-term preferred stock and

subject to limitations allowances for loan and lease losses

CAPITAL RATIOS

s\ssets and credit equivalent amounts of off-balance-sheet

items are assigned to one of several broad risk eategones

according to the obligor guarantor or nature of collateral The

aggregate
dollar value of the amount of each category is multiplied

by the associated risk weighting of that
category

The resulting

weighted values from each of the risk categories in sum is the total

risk-weighted assets Quarterly average assets for this purpose do

not include goodwill and
any

other intangible assets and other

investments that the FRB determines should be deducted from

Tier capital

The supervisory agencies including the Baneorps primary

regulator the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland have issued

regulanons regarding the capital adequacy of subsidiary banks

These requirements are substanoally similar to those adopted by

the FRB regarding bank holding companies as described

previously In addition the federal banking agencies have issued

substantially similar regulations to implement the
system

of

prompt corrective action established by Section 38 of the Federal

Deposit Insurance Act Under the regulations bank generally

shall be deemed to be well-capitalized if it has Total risk-based

capital ratio of 10% or more Tier capital ratio of six percent or

more Tier leverage raoo of five percent or more and is not

subject to any written capital order or directive If an institution

becomes undercapitalized it would become subeet to significant

addioonal oversight regulations and requirements as mandated by

the Federal Deposit Insurance Act

On September 30 2009 the Baneorp merged its Fifth Third

Bank Michigan and Fifth Third Bank NA charters into the Fifth

Third Bank Ohio charter As result regulatory capital

requirements are only applicable to the Baneotp and its subsidiary

bank Fifth Third Bank Ohio as of December 31 2010 and 2009

The Baneorp and its subsidiary bank had Tier Total risk-based

capital and Tier leverage ratios above the well-capitalized levels at

December 31 2010 and 2009 As of December 31 2010 the most

recent nonfieaoon from the FRB categorized the Baneorp and its

subsidiary bank as well-capitalized under the regulatory framework

for prompt corrective action To continue to qualify for financial

holding company status pursuant to the Gramm-Leaeh-Bliley Act

of 1999 the Baneorps subsidiary banks must among other things

maintain well-capitalized capital ratios

The following table
presents capital and nsk-based capital and

leverage ratios for the Baneorp and its subsidiary bank at

December 31

2010 2009

in millions Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total tisk-liased
capital to tisk-weighted assets

Fifth Third Baneorp Consolidated $18173 18.14 $17648 17.48

Fifth Third Bank 14931 15.17 15663 15.56

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

Fifth Third Baneorp Consolidated 13965 13.94 13428 13.30

Fifth Third Bank 12976 13.18 13574 13.49

Tier leverage to average assets

Fifth Third Baneorp Consolidated 13965 12.79 13428 12.34

Fifth Third Bank 12976 12.08 13574 12.69

tinder the banking ngencies nIck-based
capital guidelines

assets and credit
eqncvalent amounts o/dereratiies and of-balance sheet

exposures
are a.ecgned to Isroad isk

eategorhsc
i/se

aggregate dollar amount in each risk category ii multiplied by the ccsceated rick eiglst of
tlse

category
he

reenlting righted
alnee are added

together re cubing in the Ilancoep total

nlek-cveghted
assets
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in millions

Condensed Statements of Income Parent Company Only

For the years
ended Deeembet 31 2010 2009 2008

Income

Interest on loans to subsidiaries

Expenses

interest

Goodwill impairment

57

er

Total expenses
214 242 374

Loss Before Income Taxes and Change it

Undistributed Earnings of Subsidiaries 181 203 294

Applicable income tax benefit 64 71 84

Loss Before Change in Undistributed

Earnings of Subsidiaries 117 132 210

Undistributed earnings loss of subsidiaries 870 869 1903

Net Income Loss $753 737 2113

Condensed Balance Sheets Parent Company Only

As of December31
2010 2009

Assets

$60

2953 2350

1521 1360

15622 16105

80 80

Other assets
545 381

Total Assets $20781 20278

Liabilities

Other short-term borrowings

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
356 695

Long-term debt 5960 5806

Total Liabilities
6730 6781

Shareholders Equity
14051 13497

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity $20781 20278

activities

Provision benefit for deferred income

taxes

Goodwill impairment

Dividend from subsidiary

Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries

Net change in

83 85
339 591 40

Other net 11 65
Net Cash Provided by Used in

Operating Activities 925 538 192

Investing Activities

Capital contribution to subsidiaries

Net cash paid in business combinations

Net change in

Other short-term investments 603 1158 2423

Loans to subsidiaries

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 764 559 4793

Financing Activities

Net change in other short-term borrowings 134 503 763

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 2126

$414 280
Repayment

of long-term debt 31 1714

Dividends paid on common shares 32 27 639

Dividends paid on preferred shares 205 220 48

Issuance of preferred shares series
4480

Issuance of common shares 987

Exercise of stock-based awards

Exchange of preferred shares Series 269

Dividends on exchange of preferred shares

Series
35

Retirement of preferred shares series

Dividends on redemption of preferred

shares series Ii
19

Other net
10jL

Net Cash Used in Provided by

Financing Activities 103 384931
Net Increase Decrease in Cash 58 59 54

Cash at Beginning of Year 61115
Cash at End of Year $60 61

30 PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

________
in millions

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows Parent Company Only

For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Operating
Activities

$33 39 80 Net income loss
$753 737 2113

Adlustments to reconcile net income loss

188 222 293 to net cash provided by operating

11

57

1400

870 869 1903

Other assets

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Cash

Short-term investments

Loans to subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries

Goodwill

1600 2000
328
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31 BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The

Bancorp reports on four business segmenrs Commercial

Banking Branch Banking Consumer
Lending and Investment

Advisors Results of tbc
Bancorps business

segments are

presented based on its management structure and management
accounting practices The structure and

accounting practices are

specific to thc Bancorp therefore the financial results of the

Bancorps busincss segments are nor necessardy comparable with
simdar informanon for other financial institurions The

Bancorp
refines its methodologies from time to time as management
accounting practices are improved and businesses

change
On June 30 2009 the Baneorp completed the

Processing
Business Sale which represented the sale of

majority interest in

the Baneorps merchanr acquiring and financial institutions

processing businesses Financial data for the merchant acquiring
and financial institutions

processing businesses was originally

reported in the former Processing Solutions
segment through

June 30 2009 As result of the sale rhe Bancorp no longer
presents Processing Solutions as segment and therefore
historical financial information for the merchant acquiring and
financial instirutions

processing businesses has been reclassified

under General Corporate and Other for all periods presented

Interchange revenue previously recorded in the Processing
Solutions segmenr and associated with cards currently included in

Branch
Banking is now included in the Branch Banking segment

for all penods presented Additionally the Baneorp retained its

retail credit card and commercial multi-card service businesses
which were also originally reported in the former Processing
Solutions segment through tune 30 2009 and are now included in

the Consumer Lending and Commercial Banking segments
respectively for all penods presented Revenue from the

remaining ownership interest in the Processing Business is

recorded in General Corporate and Other as noninteresr income
The Baneorp manages interest rate risk centrally at the

corporate level by employing FTP
methodology This

methodology insulates the business segments from interest rate

volatihry enabling them to focus on serving customers through
loan onginations and deposit taking The FTP system assigns

charge rates and eredir rates to classes of assets and babiliries

respectively based on expected duration and the lABOR swap
curve Matching duration allocates interest income and interest

expense to each segment so its resulting net interest income is

insulated from interest rate risk In
tising rate environment the

Baneorp benefits from the
widening spread between deposit costs

and wholesale
funding costs However the

Baneorps FTP
system

credits this benefit to deposit-providing businesses such as

Branch
Banking and Investment Advisors on duration-adjusted

basis The net impact of the FTP methodology is captured in

General Corporate and Other

The business
segments are charged provision expense based

on the actual net eharge-offs expetieneed by the loans owned by
each

segment Provision expense arrtibutable to loan growth and

changes in factors in the allowance fir loan and lease losses are

captured in General Corporate and Other The financial results of
the business segments include allocations for shared services and

headquarters expenses liven with these allocations the financial

results are not necessanly indicative of the business segments
financial condition and results of operations as if they existed as

independent entities Additionally the business segments form

synergies by taking advantage of cross-sell opportunities and when

funding operations by accessing the capital markets as collective

unit
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Results of operations
and average assets by segment

for each of the three years
ended December 31 are

Commercial Branch Consumer Investment General

2010 in millions Banking Banking Lending Advisors Corporate Ehminations Total

Net interest income $1545 1501 418 138 20 3622

for loan

1159

and lease losses
386 959 164 94 809 2084

Noninterest income

Mortgage banking net revenue
27 619

647

Service charges on deposits
199 369

574

Corporate banking revenue 346 15
364

Investment advisory revenue
15 106 346 106b 361

Card and processing revenue 33 303 16 316

Other noninterest income 42 73 33 260 406

Noninterest expense

Salaries wages and incentives 215 433 168 131 483 1430

Employee benefits 39 119 32 25 99 314

Net occupancy expense
16 174 92 298

Technology and communicanons 14 16
155 189

Equipment expense
49 69 122

Card and processing expense
102

108

Other noninterest expense
702 648 345 237 432 106 1394

ces
Applicable income tax çoenefil

Less Net income loss attributable to

noncontrolling interest

Net income loss attributable to Bancorp
165 201 40 29 398 753

NDitidinecnodms e0oPstsar common shareholders 165 20 40
215408

Average assets
$43316 49066 22260 6461 8669 112434

Includes FIJi adjsstments of$18

Revenue sharing agreements
between Investment Advisors and Branch Banking are eliminated in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Commercial Branch Consumer Investment General

2009 in millions Banking Banking Lending Advisors Corporate Eliminanons Total

Net interest income $1383 1559 494 157 220 3373

Net interest income provision for loan

1360

and lease losses
23 974 80 100 1187 170

Noninterest income

Mortgage banking net revenue
26 526

553

Service charges on deposits
196 428

632

Corporate banking revenue 353 10 11 372

Investment advisory revenue 11 84 315 83b 326

Card and processing revenue 28 264
357 39c 615

Gain on sale of Processing Business
1758 1758

Other noninterest income 20 86 40 333 479

Trnal nomnterest income 609 898 6273
Noninterest expense

Salaries wages and incentives 186 396 160 117 480 1339

Employee benefits 35 106 27 23 120 311

Net occupancy expense
17 169 10 105 308

Technology and communicauons
16 155 181

Equipment expense

48 70 123

Card and processing expense
68 122 193

Other noninterest cx ense
741 569 312 201 330 122 1371

taxes

1372

Applicable income tax benefit expense 12032423s3457-
shareholders 120 324 23 53 231 511

Average assets
$46082 50019 22623 5679 9547 114856

Includes FTE a/iustments of S19

Revenue sharing agreements
between Investment Advisors and Branch Banking are eliminated in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Card and processing
revenues provided

to the banking segments
are eliminated in the Consolidated Statements of Income
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Commercial Branch Consumer Investment General
2008 in millions Banking Banking Lending Ads isors Corporate Eliminations Total
Net interest income 51567 1714 481 191 417 3336
Provision ftir loan and lease losses 1864 352 441 49 1854 4560
Net interest income loss after pros ision for loan

and lease losses 297 1362 40 142 2271 1024
Noninterest income

Mortgage banking net revenue 13 184 199
Service charges on deposits 186 44

641
Corporate banking revenue 401 12 12 431
Investment advisors resenue 18 84 354 84h 366
Card and processing revenue 26 246 ThI 664 912
Other noninterest income 47 105 40 169 363

124 90 34
Total noninterest income 678 907 351 386 774 50 2946
Noninterest

expense

Salanes svagcs and incentives 208 409 111 133 476 1337
Lmpkisee benefits 35 108 26 26 83 28
Net occupancy expense 17 159 10 106 300

Technologs and communications 16 164 191
Equipment expense 44 81 130
Card and processing expense 45 222 274
Goodwill impairment 7511 215

965

Othcrpp4nteresxcnse 646512 251 20447411 15li89
Total noninrcrest expgpse 1668 1293 620 376 757 JL 44Income loss beftire income taxes 1287 976 229 152 2254 2642
ppheabe income taxprpse bencfil4L l4fli 344 81 54 Jl92
Net income loss 733 632 148 98 1962 2113Dividends prypreferred stock

67 67
Net income loss as ailable to common

shareholders 733 632 148 98 2029 2180
Average assets S4834 46182 23294 5496 851 114296

lsclaelee FT adjustments sf422

Revenue sharing agree/nests
hetireen Adsiesrs and Branch Banking are elinisateel in the Csnssiidateel Statements sflncsme

ard and prncs vsigg issues prssided ts the hankig segments are eliminated in the Csnsshdated
.1 tat eniente sJ lncsme

32 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Common stock and senior notes offerings
On JanuaD 25 2011 the Bancorp raised $1.7 billion in new
common equity through the issuance of 121428572 shares of

etimmon stock in an underwnnng offering with an initial price of

$14.00 per share On January 24 2011 the underwriters exercised

their option to purchase an addinonal 12142857 shares at the

offering pnce of $14.00 per share In connection with this

exercise the Bancorp entered intt forward sale agreement which

resulted in final net payment of 959821 shares on February

2011

On January 25 2011 the Bancorp issued $1.0 billion of

senior notes to third
party investors and entered into

Supplemental Indenture dated January 25 2011 with Wilmington
Trust Company as Trustee which modifies the existing Indenture
for Senior Debt Securities dated April 30 2008 between the

Baneorp and the Trustee The Supplemental Indenture and the

Indenture define the rights of the Senior Notes which Senior

Notes are represented by Global Seeunnes dated as ofJanuary 25
2011 The senior notes bear fixed rate of interest of 3.625

per
annum The notes are unsecured senior obligations of the

Bancorp Payment of the full principal amount of the notes will be

due upon maturity on January 25 2016 The notes will not be

subject to the redempnon at the Bancorps option at any time

pnor to maturity

Repurchase of outstanding TARP preferred stock

As further discussed in Note 24 on December 31 2008 the

Bancorp issued $3.4 billion of Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual

Preferred Stock Series and related warrants to the U.S

Treasure under the U.S Treasu CPP
On February 2011 the Bancorp redeemed all 136320

shares of its Senes Preferred Stock held by the LT.S Treasury
The net proceeds from the

Baneorps previously discussed

common stock and senior notes offerings and other funds were
used to redeem the $3.4 billion of Series Preferred Stock

In connecnon with the redempnon of the Series Preferred

Stock the Bancorp accelerated the accretion of the remaining
issuance discount on the Senes Preferred Stock and recorded

corresponding reduction in retained earnings of $153 mdbon This

resulted in one-time noncash reduction in net income available

to common shareholders and related basic and diluted earnings

per share This transaction will be reflected in the
Bancorps

Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter ended March

31 2011

Dividends of 815 million were paid on February 2111
when the Senes Preferred Stock svas redeemed The Bancorp
notified the U.S Treasury on February 17 2011 of its intention to

negotiate for the purchase of the warrants issued to the U.S

Treasury in connection with the CPP preferred stock investment
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UNITED STATES Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller

Washington D.C 20549 reporting company See definitions of large accelerated filer

accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2

FORM 10-K of the Exchange Act

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer LI

Non-accelerated filer LI Do not check if smaller reporting company

15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
Smaller reporting company LI

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2010
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company

Commission file number 00 1-33653
as defined in Rule l2b-2 of the Act Yes LI No

There were 917759578 shares of the Bancorps Common Stock

without par value outstanding as of January 31 2011 The
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of the Bancorp was $8520556333 as of June 30 2010

Incorporated in the State of Ohio

I.R.S Employer Identification No 31-0854434
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the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission SEC with respect

Cincinnati Ohio 45263
to annual reports on Form 10-K and annual reports to shareholders

Telephone 800 972-3030 The Bancorps Proxy Statement for the 201 Annual Meeting of
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report

Name of each exchange
Only those sections of this 2010 Annual Report to
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Shareholders that are specified in this Cross Reference Index

Common Stock Without The NASDAQ Stock
constitute part of the Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended

Par Value Market LLC December 31 2010 No other information contained in this 2010

Annual Report to Shareholders shall be deemed to constitute any

8.5% Non-Cumulative Series The NASDAQ Stock part of this Form 10-K nor shall any such informatton be

Convertible Perpetual Preferred Market LLC incorporated into the Form 10-K and shall not be deemed filed as

Stock part of the Registrants Form 10-K

7.25% Trust Preferred Securities New York Stock Exchange 10-K Cross Reference Index

of Fifth Third Capital Trust
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7.25% Trust Preferred Securities New York Stock Exchange Employees
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8.875% Trust Preferred Securities New York Stock Exchange Analysis of Net Interest Income and Net Interest Income

of Fifth Third Capital Trust VII
changes

Investment Securities Portfolio

Loan and Lease Portfolio

Indicate by checkmark if the registrant is well-known Risk Elements of Loan and Lease Portfolio

seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act Deposits

Yes No LI
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Short-term Borrowings

Indicate by checkmark if the registrant is not required to file
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reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the Act
Unresolved Staff Comments
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Yes LI No Legal Proceedings

Removed and Reserved

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all
Executive Officers of the Bancorp

reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the
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required to file such reports and has been subject to such Item Selected Financial Data
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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
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Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on

pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T 232.405 of this Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Controls and Procedures

chapter during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter
Other Information

period that the registrant was required to submit and post such

files Yes No LI Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Govemance

Executive Compensation

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and

pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K 229.405 of this Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and

chapter is not contained herein and will not be contained to
Director Independence

the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or Principal Accounting Fees and Services

information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of

this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K LI
Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

SIGNATURES 144

Fifth Third Bancorp 129



AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Fifth Third Bancorp the Bancorp files reports with the SEC
Those reports include the annual report on Form 10-K

quarterly reports on Form lO-Q current event reports on Form

8-K and proxy statements as well as any amendments to those

reports The public may read and copy any materials the

Bancorp files with the SEC at the SECs Public Reference

Room at 450 Fifth Street NW Washington DC 20549 The

public may obtain information on the operation of the Public

Reference Room by calling the SEC at l-800-SEC-0330 The

SEC maintains an internet site that contains reports proxy and

information statements and other information regarding issuers

that file electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov The

Bancorps annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on

Form lO-Q current reports on Form 8-K proxy statements and

amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to

section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act are accessible at no

cost on the Bancorps web site at www.53.com on same day

basis after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the

SEC

PART
ITEM BUSINESS

General Information

Fifth Third Bancorp an Ohio corporation organized in 1975 is

bank holding company as defined by the Bank Holding

Company Act of 1956 as amended the BHCA and is

registered as such with the Board of Governors of the Federal

Reserve System the FRB The Bancorps principal office is

located in Cincinnati Ohio

The Bancorps subsidiaries provide wide range of

financial products and services to the retail commercial

financial governmental educational and medical sectors

including wide variety of checking savings and money

market accounts and credit products such as credit cards

installment loans mortgage loans and leases Fifth Third Bank

has deposit insurance provided by the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation FDIC through the Deposit Insurance

Fund Refer to Exhibit 21 filed as an attachment to this Annual

Report on Form 10-K for list of subsidiaries of the Bancorp as

of December 31 2010

The Bancorp derives the majority of its revenues from the

U.S Revenue from foreign countries and external customers

domiciled in foreign countries is immaterial to the Bancorps

Consolidated Financial Statements

Additional information regarding the Bancorps

businesses is included in Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Competition

The Bancorp competes for deposits loans and other banking

services in its principal geographic markets as well as in

selected national markets as opportunities arise In addition to

the challenge of attracting and retaining customers for

traditional banking services the Bancorps competitors include

securities dealers brokers mortgage bankers investment

advisors and insurance companies These competitors with

focused products targeted at highly profitable customer

segments compete across geographic boundaries and provide

customers increasing access to meaningful alternatives to

banking services in nearly all significant products The

increasingly competitive environment is result primarily of

changes in regulation changes in technology product delivery

systems and the accelerating pace of consolidation among

financial service providers These competitive trends are likely

to continue

Acquisitions

The Bancorps strategy for growth includes strengthening its

presence in core markets expanding into contiguous markets

and broadening its product offerings while taking into account

the integration and other risks of growth The Bancorp

evaluates strategic acquisition opportunities and conducts due

diligence activities in connection with possible transactions As

result discussions and in some cases negotiations may take

place and future acquisitions involving cash debt or equity

securities may occur These typically involve the payment of

premium over book value and current market price and

therefore some dilution of book value and net income per share

may occur with any future transactions

Additional information regarding acquisitions is included

in Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Regulation and Supervision

In addition to the generally applicable state and federal laws

governing businesses and employers the Bancorp and its

subsidiary bank are subject to extensive regulation by federal

and state laws and regulations applicable to financial
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institutions and their parent companies Virtually all aspects of

the business of the Bancorp and its subsidiary bank are subject

to specific requirements or restrictions and general regulatory

oversight The principal objectives of state and federal banking

laws are the maintenance of the safety and soundness of

financial institutions and the federal deposit insurance system

and the protection of consumers or classes of consumers rather

than the specific protection of shareholders of bank or the

parent company of bank such as the Bancorp In addition the

supervision regulation and examination of the Bancorp and its

subsidiaries by the bank regulatory agencies is not intended for

the protection of the Bancorps security holders To the extent

the following material describes statutory or regulatory

provisions it is qualified in its entirety by reference to the

particular statute or regulation

The Bancorp is subject to regulation and supervision by the

FRB and the Ohio Division of Financial Institutions the

Division The Bancorp is required to file various reports

with and is subject to examination by the FRB and the

Division The FRB has the authority to issue orders to bank

holding companies to cease and desist from unsound banking

practices and violations of conditions imposed by or violations

of agreements with the FRB The FRB is also empowered to

assess civil money penalties against companies or individuals

who violate the BHCA or orders or regulations there under to

order termination of non-banking activities of non-banking

subsidiaries of bank holding companies and to order

termination of ownership and control of non-banking

subsidiary by bank holding company Applicable state and

federal law also grant the FRB and the Division the authority to

impose additional requirements and restrictions on the activities

of the Bancorp and its subsidiary bank and in some situations

the imposition of such additional requirements and restrictions

will not be publicly available information

The BHCA requires the prior approval of the FRB for

bank holding company to acquire substantially all the assets of

bank or to acquire direct or indirect ownership or control of

more than 5% of any class of the voting shares of any bank

bank holding company or savings association or to increase

any such non-majority ownership or control of any bank bank

holding company or savings association or to merge or

consolidate with any bank holding company

The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching

Efficiency Act of 1994 generally authorizes bank holding

companies to acquire banks located in any state subject to

certain state-imposed age and deposit concentration limits and

also generally authorizes interstate bank holding company and

bank mergers and to lesser extent interstate branching

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 GLBA permits

qualifying bank holding company to become financial

holding company FHC and thereby to engage directly or

indirectly in broader range of activities than those permitted

for bank holding company under the BHCA Permitted

activities for FHC include securities underwriting and dealing

insurance underwriting and brokerage merchant banking and

other activities that are declared by the FRB in cooperation

with the Treasury Department to be financial in nature or

incidental thereto or are declared by the FRB unilaterally to be

complementary to financial activities In addition FHC is

allowed to conduct permissible new financial activities or

acquire permissible non-bank financial companies with after-

the-fact notice to the FRB bank holding company may elect

to become FHC if each of its subsidiary banks is well

capitalized is well managed and has at least Satisfactory

rating under the Community Reinvestment Act CRA Dodd-

Frank also extended the well capitalized and well managed

requirement to the bank holding company In 2000 the

Bancorp elected and qualified for FHC status under the GLBA
To maintain FHC status holding company must continue to

meet certain requirements The failure to meet such

requirements could result in restrictions on the activities of the

FHC or loss of FHC status If restrictions are imposed on the

activities of an FHC such information may not necessarily be

available to the public

Unless bank holding company becomes FHC under

GLBA the BHCA also prohibits bank holding company from

acquiring direct or indirect interest in or control of more than

5% of any class of the voting shares of company that is not

bank or bank holding company and from engaging directly or

indirectly in activities other than those of banking managing or

controlling banks or furnishing services to its subsidiary banks

except that it may engage in and may own shares of companies

engaged in certain activities the FRB has determined to be so

closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as

to be proper incident thereto

The FRB has authority to prohibit bank holding companies

from paying dividends if such payment is deemed to be an

unsafe or unsound practice The FRB has indicated generally

that it may be an unsafe or unsound practice for bank holding

companies to pay
dividends unless bank holding companys

net income is sufficient to fund the dividends and the expected

rate of earnings retention is consistent with the organizations

capital needs asset quality and overall financial condition The

Bancorp depends in part upon dividends received from its

subsidiary bank to fund its activities including the payment of

dividends and its subsidiary bank is subject to regulatory

limitations on the amount of dividends it may declare and pay

Under FRB policy bank holding company is expected to

act as source of financial and managerial strength to each of

its subsidiary banks and to commit resources to their support

This support may be required at times when the bank holding

company may not have the resources to provide it

The Bancorps subsidiary bank is subject to extensive

federal and state regulation and examination by the Division

the FRB and the FDIC which insures the deposits of the

Bancorps subsidiary bank to the maximum extent permitted by

law The federal and state laws and regulations that are

applicable to banks regulate among other matters the scope of

their business their investments their reserves against deposits

the timing of the availability of deposited funds the amount of

loans to individual and related borrowers and the nature

amount of and collateral for certain loans and the amount of

interest that may be charged on loans Various federal and state

consumer laws and regulations also affect the operations of

banks

In 2006 the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of

2005 was signed into law FDIRA Pursuant to the FDIRA

the Bank Insurance Fund and Savings Association Fund were

merged to create the Deposit Insurance Fund the DIF The

FDIC was granted broader authority in adjusting deposit

insurance premium rates and more flexibility in establishing the

designated reserve ratio

As contemplated by the Dodd-Frank Act the FDIC has

revised the framework by which insured depository institutions

with more than $10 billion in assets large IDIs are assessed

for purposes of payments to the DIF The final rule

implementing revisions to the assessment system was released

on February 2011 and will take effect for the quarter

beginning April 2011
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Prior to the passage of the Dodd-Frank Act large IDIs

DIF premiums principally were based on the size of an IDIs

domestic deposit base Section 331b of Dodd-Frank changed

the assessment base from an IDIs domestic deposit base to its

total assets In addition to potentially greatly increasing the size

of large IDIs assessment base the expansion of the

assessment base affords the FDIC much greater flexibility to

vary its assessment system based upon the different asset

classes that large IDIs normally hold on their balance sheets

To implement this provision the FDIC created an

assessment scheme vastly different from the deposit-based

system Under the new system large IDIs will be assessed

under complex scorecard methodology that seeks to capture

both the probability that an individual large IDI will fail and the

magnitude of the impact on the DIF if such failure occurs

Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act restrict

transactions between bank and an affiliated company

including parent bank holding company The Bancorps

subsidiary bank is subject to certain restrictions on loans to

affiliated companies on investments in the stock or securities

thereof on the taking of such stock or securities as collateral for

loans to any borrower and on the issuance of guarantee or

letter of credit on their behalf Among other things these

restrictions limit the amount of such transactions require

collateral in prescribed amounts for extensions of credit

prohibit the purchase of low quality assets and require that the

terms of such transactions be substantially equivalent to terms

of similar transactions with non-affiliates Generally the

Bancorps subsidiary bank is limited in its extension of credit to

any affiliate to 10% of the subsidiary banks capital and its

extension of credit to all affiliates to 20% of the subsidiary

banks capital

The CRA generally requires insured depository institutions

tôidentif the communities they serve and to make loans and

investments and provide services that meet the credit needs of

these communities Furthermore the CRA requires the FRB to

evaluate the performance of each of the subsidiary banks in

helping to meet the credit needs of their communities As part

of the CRA program the subsidiary banks are subject to

periodic examinations by the FRB and must maintain

comprehensive records of their CRA activities for this purpose

During these examinations the FRB rates such institutions

compliance with CRA as Outstanding Satisfactory Needs
to Improve or Substantial Noncompliance Failure of an

institution to receive at least Satisfactory rating could

inhibit such institution or its holding company from undertaking
certain activities including engaging in activities permitted as

financial holding company under the GLBA and acquiring other

financial institutions The FRB must take into account the

record of performance of banks in meeting the credit needs of

the entire community served including low- and moderate-

income neighborhoods Fifth Third Bank received

Satisfactory CRA rating in its most recent CRA examination

The FRB has established capital guidelines for bank

holding companies and FHCs The FRB the Division and the

FDIC have also issued regulations establishing capital

requirements for banks Failure to meet capital requirements

could subject the Bancorp and its subsidiary bank to variety of

restrictions and enforcement actions In addition as discussed

previously the Bancorps subsidiary bank must remain well

capitalized and well managed for the Bancorp to retain its status

as FHC In addition as of the Dodd-Frank Act transfer date

currently anticipated to be July 21 2011 the Bancorp also

must be well capitalized and well managed to retain its financial

holding company status

Historically the minimum risk-based capital requirements

adopted by the federal banking agencies typically followed the

Capital Accord of the Basel Committee on Banking

Supervision On December 16 2010 the Basel Committee on

Banking Supervision the Basel Committee issued the final

text of comprehensive update of the 2004 Basel II Accord

Basel III On January 13 2011 the Basel Committee issued

an Annex to Basel III containing the final elements of reform to

the definition of regulatory capital Basel III aims to reform the

international financial system by instituting significantly higher

global capital requirements and new liquidity and leverage

standards Basel III is not itself binding but rather must be

adopted into United States law or regulation before affecting

banks supervised in the United States Moreover if adopted in

the United States Basil Ill likely would not become effective

until 2013 and its provision would be subject to multi-year

transition period

Basel III significantly revises the definitions of regulatory

capital establishing separate capital requirements for common
equity Tier Capital new regulatory metric Tier Capital

consisting of the sum of Tier Common Equity and Additional

Tier Capital and Total Capital consisting of the sum of Tier

Common Equity Additional Tier and Tier Capital Basel

III if implemented ultimately would require banks to maintain

minimum Tier Common Equity Capital ratio of 4.5%
minimum Tier Capital ratio of 6% and minimum Total

Capital ratio of 8% Among other significant reforms to the

definition of regulatory capital Basel III disqualifies certain

structured capital instruments such as trust preferred securities

from Tier capital status Dodd-Frank also disqualifies trust-

preferred and similar instruments over three year period

beginning in 2013 In addition to higher minimum capital

standards Basel Ill also institutes new capital conservation and

countercyclical buffers that could if fully implemented create

significant incentive for banks to maintain up to an additional

5% above the minimum capital requirements

Basel III also introduces two measures of liquidity based

on risk exposure one based on 30-day time horizon under an

acute liquidity stress scenario and one designed to promote

more medium and long-term funding of the assets and activities

of banks over one-year time horizon

The FRB FDIC and other bank regulatory agencies have

adopted final guidelines the Guidelines for safeguarding

confidential personal customer information The Guidelines

require each financial institution under the supervision and

ongoing oversight of its Board of Directors or an appropriate

committee thereof to create implement and maintain

comprehensive written information security program designed

to ensure the security and confidentiality of customer

information protect against any anticipated threats or hazards to

the security or integrity of such information and protect against

unauthorized access to or use of such information that could

result in substantial harm or inconvenience to any customer

The Bancorp has adopted customer information security

program that has been approved by the Bancorps Board of

Directors the Board
The GLBA requires financial institutions to implement

policies and procedures regarding the disclosure of nonpublic

personal information about consumers to non-affiliated third

parties In general the statute requires explanations to

consumers on policies and procedures regarding the disclosure

of such nonpublic personal information and except as

otherwise required by law prohibits disclosing such

information except as provided in the subsidiary banks policies

and procedures The Bancorps subsidiary bank has
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implemented privacy policy The Uniting and Strengthening

America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept

and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 the Patriot Act
designed to deny terrorists and others the ability to obtain

access to the United States financial system has significant

implications for depository institutions brokers dealers and

other businesses involved in the transfer of money The Patriot

Act as implemented by various federal regulatory agencies

requires financial institutions including the Bancorp and its

subsidiaries to implement new policies and procedures or

amend existing policies and procedures with respect to among

other matters anti-money laundering compliance suspicious

activity and currency transaction reporting and due diligence on

customers The Patriot Act and its underlying regulations also

permit information sharing for counter-terrorist purposes

between federal law enforcement agencies and financial

institutions as well as among financial institutions subject to

certain conditions and require the FRB and other federal

banking agencies to evaluate the effectiveness of an applicant

in combating money laundering activities when considering

applications filed under Section of the BHCA or the Bank

Merger Act The Bancorps Board has approved policies and

procedures that are believed to be compliant with the Patriot

Act

Certain mutual fund and unit investment trust custody and

administrative clients are regulated as investment companies

as that term is defined under the Investment Company Act of

1940 as amended the ICA and are subject to various

examination and reporting requirements
The provisions of the

ICA and the regulations promulgated there under prescribe the

type of institution that may act as custodian of investment

company assets as well as the manner in which custodian

administers the assets in its custody As custodian for

number of investment company clients these regulations

require among other things that certain minimum aggregate

capital surplus and undivided profit levels are maintained by

the Bancorps subsidiary bank and also require the Bancorp to

manage and retain certain information about investment

company clients pursuant to specific ICA requirements that are

in addition to the Bancorps management and retention

responsibilities under other applicable federal and state laws

Additionally our arrangements with clearing agencies or other

securities depositories must meet ICA requirements for

segregation of assets identification of assets and client

approval New legislation or regulatory requirements could

have significant impact on the information reporting

requirements applicable to the Bancorp and may in the short

term adversely affect the Bancorps ability to service

investment company clients at reasonable cost

The GLBA amended the federal securities laws to

eliminate the blanket exceptions that banks traditionally have

had from the definition of broker and dealer The GLBA

also required that there be certain transactional activities that

would not be brokerage activities which banks could effect

without having to register as broker In September 2007 the

FRB and SEC approved Regulation to govern bank securities

activities Various exemptions permit banks to conduct

activities that would otherwise constitute brokerage activities

under the securities laws Those exemptions include conducting

brokerage activities related to trust fiduciary and similar

services certain services and also conducting de minimis

number of riskless principal transactions certain asset-backed

transactions and certain securities lending transactions The

Bancorp only conducts non-exempt brokerage activities through

its affiliated registered broker-dealer

Emergency Economic Stabilization

On October 2008 in response to the stresses experienced in

the financial markets the Emergency Economic Stabilization

Act EESA was enacted EESA authorizes the Secretary of

the Treasury to purchase up
to $700 billion in troubled assets

from financial institutions under the Troubled Asset Relief

Program or TARP Troubled assets include residential or

commercial mortgages and related instruments originated prior

to March 14 2008 and any other financial instrument that the

Secretary determines after consultation with the Chairman of

the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System the

purchase of which is necessary to promote financial stability

Capital Purchase Program

Pursuant to its authority under EESA Treasury created the

TARP Capital Purchase Program CPP under which the

Treasury Department was authorized to invest up to $250

billion in senior preferred stock of U.S banks and savings

associations or their holding companies Qualifying financial

institutions could issue senior preferred stock with value equal

to not less than 1% of risk-weighted assets and not more than

the lesser of $25 billion or 3% of risk-weighted assets

In connection with the issuance of the senior preferred

participating institutions were required to issue to Treasury

immediately exercisable 10-year warrants to purchase common

stock with an aggregate market price equal to 15% of the

amount of senior preferred

On December 31 2008 the Bancorp entered into Letter

Agreement including the Securities Purchase Agreement

Standard Terms incorporated by reference therein the

Purchase Agreement with Treasury pursuant to which the

Company issued and sold to Treasury for an aggregate purchase

price of approximately $3.4 billion in cash 136320 shares

of the Companys Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred

Stock Series having liquidation preference of $25000 per

share the Series Preferred Stock and ii ten-year warrant

to purchase up to 43617747 shares of the Companys common

stock no par value per share at an initial exercise price of

$11.72 per share

In the Purchase Agreement the Bancorp agreed that until

such time as Treasury ceases to own any debt or equity

securities of the Bancorp acquired pursuant to the Purchase

Agreement the Bancorp would take all necessary action to

ensure that its benefit plans with respect to its senior executive

officers comply with Section 111b of EESA as implemented

by any guidance or regulation under the EESA that had been

issued and was in effect as of the date of issuance of the Series

Preferred Stock and the Warrant and agreed to not adopt any

benefit plans with respect to or which covers its senior

executive officers that do not comply with the EESA

On February 2011 the Bancorp repurchased the Series

Preferred Stock issued to the Treasury pursuant to TARP The

Bancorp notified the U.S Treasury on February 17 2011 of its

intention to negotiate for the purchase of the warrants issued to

the U.S Treasury

Supervisory Capital Assessment Program

On February 10 2009 the U.S Treasury announced new

financial stability plan the Financial Stability Plan which

built upon existing programs and earmarked the second $350

billion of unused funds originally authorized under EESA

Pursuant to the CAP the Bancorp along with the other

domestic bank holding companies with assets of more than

$100 billion at December 31 2008 was subject to forward

looking stress test called the Supervisory Capital Assessment
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Program the SCAP The SCAP exam evaluated the

projected level and quality of each institutions capital during

specified economic scenarios through the end of 2010 which

included baseline scenario reflecting consensus estimate of

private-sector forecasters and more adverse scenario

reflecting an economic situation more severe than is generally

anticipated

On May 2009 the Bancorp announced its SCAP results

The results of the SCAP assessment indicated that the

Bancorps Tier Capital and Total Risk-Based Capital ratios

were expected to continue to exceed the levels required to

maintain well-capitalized status under the more adverse

scenario as defined by the assessment As result the Bancorp

was not required to raise additional overall capital The SCAP
results did indicate that the Bancorps Tier common equity

would be required to be augmented to maintain capital buffer

above the newly required four percent threshold of the Tier

common equity ratio under the more adverse scenario of the

assessment The total amount required prior to considering

activities by the Bancorp since the end of the fourth quarter of

2008 was $2.6 billion After considering such activities

including the sale of the Bancorps processing business the

indicated additional net Tier common equity required was

$1.1 billion During the second quarter of 2009 in order to raise

additional capital to augment Tier common equity the

Bancorp completed $1 billion common stock offering and an

exchange of portion of its Series preferred stock As result

of the common stock offering the exchange of the preferred

stock and the sale of its processing business the Bancorp

exceeded its Tier common equity requirement under the

SCAP assessment by approximately $650 million Additionally

in July of 2009 the Bancorp sold its Visa Inc Class common
shares resulting in an additional net $206 million benefit to

equity

Regulatory Reform

On July 21 2010 President Obama signed into law the Dodd-

Frank Act The Dodd-Frank Act is aimed in part at

accountability and transparency in the financial system and

includes numerous provisions that apply to and/or could

impact the Bancorp and its subsidiary bank Some of the

provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act are set forth below

Financial Stability Oversight Council

The Dodd-Frank Act creates the Financial Stability Oversight

Council which is chaired by the Secretary of the Treasury and

composed of expertise from various financial services

regulators The Financial Stability Oversight Council has

responsibility for identifying risks and responding to emerging
threats to financial stability

Executive Compensation

The Dodd-Frank Act provides for say on pay for shareholders

of all public companies Under the Dodd-Frank Act each

company must give its shareholders the opportunity to vote on

the compensation of its executives at least once every three

years The Dodd-Frank Act also adds disclosure and voting

requirements for golden parachute compensation that is payable

to named executive officers in connection with sale

transactions

The Dodd-Frank Act requires the SEC to issue rules

directing the stock exchanges to prohibit listing classes of

equity securities if companys compensation committee

members are not independent The Dodd-Frank Act also

provides that companys compensation committee may only

select compensation consultant legal counsel or other advisor

after taking into consideration factors to be identified by the

SEC that affect the independence of compensation consultant

legal counsel or other advisor

The SEC is required under the Dodd-Frank Act to issue

rules obligating companies to disclose in
proxy materials for

annual meetings of shareholders information that shows the

relationship between executive compensation actually paid to

their named executive officers and their financial performance

taking into account any change in the value of the shares of

companys stock and dividends or distributions

The Dodd-Frank Act provides that the SEC must issue

rules directing the stock exchanges to prohibit listing any

security of company unless the company develops and

implements policy providing for disclosure of the policy of

the company on incentive-based compensation that is based on

financial information required to be reported under the

securities laws and that in the event the company is required to

prepare an accounting restatement due to the material

noncompliance of the company with any financial reporting

requirement under the securities laws the company will recover

from any current or former executive officer of the company
who received incentive-based compensation during the three-

years period preceding the date on which the company is

required to prepare the restatement based on the erroneous data

any exceptional compensation above what would have been

paid under the restatement

The Dodd-Frank Act requires the SEC by rule to require

that each company disclose in the proxy materials for its annual

meetings whether an employee or board member is permitted to

purchase financial instruments designed to hedge or offset

decreases in the market value of equity securities granted as

compensation or otherwise held by the employee or board

member

Corporate Governance

The Dodd-Frank Act clarifies that the SEC may but is not

required to promulgate rules that would require that

companys proxy materials include nominee for the board of

directors submitted by shareholder

The Dodd-Frank Act requires stock exchanges to have

rules prohibiting their members from voting securities that they

do not beneficially own unless they have received voting

instructions from the beneficial owner with respect to the

election of member of the board of directors other than an

uncontested election of directors of an investment company
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940
executive compensation or any other significant matter as

determined by the SEC by rule

Additionally the Dodd-Frank Act includes number of

provisions that are targeted at improving the reliability of credit

ratings The SEC has been charged with adopting various rules

in this regard

Consumer Issues

The Dodd-Frank Act creates new Bureau of Consumer

Financial Protection which will be housed within the Federal

Reserve System but which will be independent The Bureau of

Consumer Financial Protection will have the authority to

implement regulations pursuant to numerous consumer

protection laws and will have supervisory authority including

the power to conduct examination and take enforcement

actions with respect to depository institutions with more than

$10 billion in consolidated assets The Bureau of Consumer

Financial Protection will also have new authority among other
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things to declare acts unfair deceptive or abusive and to

require certain consumer disclosures

Debit Card Interchange Fees

The Dodd-Frank Act provides for set of new rules requiring

that interchange transaction fees for electric debit transactions

be reasonable and proportional to certain costs associated

with processing the transactions The FRB is given authority to

establish standards for assessing whether interchange fees are

reasonable and proportional

FDIC Matters

The Dodd-Frank Act creates an orderly liquidation process that

the FDIC can employ for failing financial companies that are

not insured depository institutions The Dodd-Frank Act gives

the FDIC new authority to create widely available emergency

financial stabilization program to guarantee the obligations of

solvent depository institutions and their holding companies and

affiliates during times of severe economic stress Additionally

Dodd-Frank also codifies many of the temporary changes that

had already been implemented such as permanently increasing

the amount of deposit insurance to $250000

Volker Rule

In the Volker Rule the Dodd-Frank Act sets forth new

restrictions on banking organizations ability to engage in

proprietary trading and sponsorship of or investment in private

equity and hedge funds The Volker Rule also generally

prohibits any banking entity from sponsoring or acquiring any

ownership interest in private equity or hedge fund The

Volker Rule however contains number of exceptions The

Volker Rule permits transactions in the securities of the U.S

government and its agencies certain government-sponsored

enterprises and states and their political subdivisions as well as

certain investments in small business investment companies

Transactions on behalf of customers and in connection with

certain underwriting and market making activities as well as

risk-mitigating hedging activities and certain foreign banking

activities are also permitted Dodd-Frank also defines certain

parameters with respect to permissible de minimis investment

in private equity or hedge fund that the banking entity

organizes and offers In addition to the general prohibition on

sponsorship and investment the Volker Rule contains second

set of requirements applicable to any private equity or hedge

fund that is sponsored by the banking entity or for which it

serves as investment manager or investment advisor

Derivatives

The Dodd-Frank Act sets forth new regulatory system for the

U.S market for swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives

Under this new regime all derivatives transactions and all

entities that enter into them could be subject to potential

regulations and the goal of the regulatory
framework is to

promote the stability of the entire financial system and further

transparency and competition in the derivatives market

Interstate Bank Branching

The Dodd-Frank Act includes provisions permitting national

and insured state banks to engage
in de novo interstate

branching if under the laws of the state where the new branch

is to be established as state bank chartered in that state would

be permitted to establish branch

Capital

The Dodd-Frank Act instructs the FRB to seek to make capital

requirements applicable to bank holding companies

countercyclical with higher level required in times of

economic expansion and lower level needed in times of

economic contraction

Systemically SignfIcant Companies

The Dodd-Frank Act creates new regulatory regime for

entities that are deemed to be systemically significant financial

companies The Dodd-Frank Act sets $50 billion

consolidated asset floor for bank holding company to be

subject to the heightened oversight and regulation although the

FRB can adjust those amounts upward for some of the

heightened standards under certain circumstances Dodd-Frank

establishes broad framework for identifying applying

heightened supervision and regulation to and as necessary

limiting the size and activities of systemically significant

financial companies Under the Dodd-Frank Act new regime

for the orderly liquidation of financial companies whose failure

would pose systemic risk is also created
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ITEM PROPERTIES
The Bancorps executive offices and the main office of Fifth

Third Bank are located on Fountain Square Plaza in downtown

Cincinnati Ohio in 32-story office tower five-story office

building with an attached parking garage and separate ten-

story office building known as the Fifth Third Center the

William Rowe Building and the 530 Building respectively

The Bancorps main operations center is located in Cincinnati

Ohio in three-story building with an attached parking garage

known as the Madisonville Operations Center The Bank owns

100% of these buildings

At December 31 2010 the Bancorp through its banking

and non-banking subsidiaries operated 1312 banking centers

of which 904 were owned 277 were leased and 131 for which

the buildings are owned but the land is leased The banking

centers are located in the states of Ohio Kentucky Indiana

Michigan Illinois Florida Tennessee North Carolina West

Virginia Pennsylvania Missouri and Georgia The Bancorps

significant owned properties are owned free from mortgages
and major encumbrances

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE BANCORP
Officers are appointed annually by the Board of Directors at the

meeting of Directors immediately following the Annual

Meeting of Shareholders The names ages and positions of the

Executive Officers of the Bancorp as of February 28 2011 are

listed below along with their business experience during the

past years

Kevin Kabat 54 President and Chief Executive Officer of

the Bancorp since June 2006 and April 2007 respectively

Previously Mr Kabat was Chairman from June 2008 to June

2010 Previously Mr Kabat was Executive Vice President of

the Bancorp since December 2003

Greg Carmichael 49 Executive Vice President and Chief

Operating Officer of the Bancorp since June 2006 Prior to that

Mr Carmichael was the Executive Vice President and Chief

Information Officer of the Bancorp since June 2003

Mark Hazel 45 Senior Vice President and Controller of the

Bancorp since February 2010 Prior to that Mr Hazel was the

Assistant Controller of the Bancorp since 2006 and was the

Controller of Nonbank entities since 2003

James Hubbard 52 Senior Vice President and Chief Legal

Officer of the Bancorp since February 2010 Prior to that Mr
Hubbard was the Senior Vice President and Director of Legal

Services since June 2001

Gregory Kosch 51 Executive Vice President of the

Bancorp since June 2005 Previously Mr Kosch was Senior

Vice President and head of the Bancorps Commercial Division

in the Chicago affiliate since June 2002

Bruce Lee 50 Executive Vice President of the Bancorp

since June 2005 Previously Mr Lee was President and CEO of

Fifth Third Bank Northwestern Ohio since July 2002

Daniel Poston 52 Executive Vice President of the Bancorp

since June 2003 and Chief Financial Officer of the Bancorp

since September 2009 Previously Mr Poston was the

Controller of the Bancorp from July 2007 to May 2008 and

from November 2008 to September 2009 Previously Mr
Poston was the Chief Financial Officer of the Bancorp from

May 2008 to November 2008 Formerly Mr Poston was the

Auditor of the Bancorp since October 2001 and was Senior

Vice President of the Bancorp and Fifth Third Bank since

January 2002

Paul Reynolds 49 Executive Vice President Secretary and

Chief Administrative Officer of the Bancorp since September

2009 Previously Mr Reynolds was Executive Vice President

Secretary and General Counsel since 2002 Prior to that he was

Executive Vice President General Counsel and Assistant

Secretary since 1999

Joseph Robinson 43 Executive Vice President and Chief

Information Officer and Director of Information Technology

and Operations of the Bancorp since September 2009

Previously Mr Robinson was Executive Vice President and

Chief Information Officer of the Bancorp since April 2008

Prior to that he was Senior Vice President and Director of

Central Operations since November 2006 and Senior Vice

President of IT Enterprise Solutions since March 2004

Mahesh Sankaran 48 Senior Vice President and Treasurer of

the Bancorp since June 2006 Previously Mr Sankaran was

Treasurer for Huntington Bancshares Incorporated since

February 2005

Robert Sullivan 55 Senior Executive Vice President of the

Bancorp since December 2002

Teresa Tanner 42 Executive Vice President and Chief

Human Resources Officer of the Bancorp since February 2010

Previously Ms Tanner was Senior Vice President and Director

of Enterprise Learning since September 2008 Prior to that she

was Human Resources Senior Vice President and Senior

Business Partner for the Information Technology and Central

Operations divisions since July 2006 Previously she was Vice

President and Senior Business Partner for Operations since

September 2004

Mary Tuuk 46 Executive Vice President and Chief Risk

Officer of the Bancorp since June 2007 Previously Ms Tuuk

was Senior Vice President of Fifth Third Bancorp since 2003
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Maximum

Shares that

May Be

Purchased

Under the

Plans or

Programs

19201518

19201518

19201518

5-
__________

19201518

The Bancorp repurchased 6337 10690 and 8191 shares during

October November and December of 2010 in connection with various

employee compensation plans of the Bancorp These purchases are not

included against the maximum number of shares that may yet be

purchased under the Board of Directors authorization

Period

October2010 $-

November 2010

December 2010

Total

PART
ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON

EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Bancorps common stock is traded in the over-the-counter

market and is listed under the symbol FITB on the

NASDAQ Global Select Market System

High and Low Stock Prices and Dividends Paid Per Share

Shares

Purchased

Shares

Purchased

as Part of

Publicly

Announced

Plans or

Programs

Average

Price

Paid Per

Share

Dividends Paid

2010 High Low Per Share

FourthQuarter $15.11 $11.71 $0.01

Third Quarter $13.81 $10.64 $0.01

Second Quarter
$15.95 $12.00 $0.01

First Quarter $14.05 $9.81 $0.01

Dividends Paid

2009 High Low Per Share

Fourth Quarter $10.92 $8.76 $0.01

Third Quarter $11.20 $6.33 $0.01

Second Quarter $9.15 $2.50 $0.01

First Quarter $8.65 $1.01 $0.01

See discussion of dividend limitations that the subsidiaries can

pay to the Bancorp discussed in Note of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements Additionally as of

December 31 2010 the Bancorp had 57161 shareholders of

record
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The following performance graphs do not constitute soliciting material and should not be deemed filed or incorporated by
reference into any other Company filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 except to the

extent the Bancorp specifically incorporates the performance graphs by reference therein

Total Return Analysis

The graphs below summarize the cumulative return experienced by the Bancorps shareholders over the years 2006 through 2010 and
2001 through 2010 respectively compared to the SP 500 Stock and the SP Banks indices

10 Year Return

FIFTH THIRD BANCORP VS MARKET INDICES
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required by this item relating to the Executive

Officers of the Registrant is included in PART under

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE BANCORP
The information required by this item concerning Directors

and the nomination process
is incorporated herein by reference

under the caption ELECTION OF DIRECTORS of the

Bancorps Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders

The information required by this item concerning the Audit

Committee and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is

incorporated herein by reference under the captions

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE and BOARD OF

DIRECTORS ITS COMMITTEES MEETINGS AND

FUNCTIONS of the Bancorps Proxy Statement for the 2011

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

The information required by this item concerning Section

16 Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance is

incorporated herein by reference under the caption SECTION

16 BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING

COMPLIANCE of the Bancorps Proxy Statement for the 2011

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by

reference under the captions COMPENSATION DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS COMPENSATION OF NAMED

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT and

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND

INSIDER PARTICIPATION of the Bancorps Proxy Statement

for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN

BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND

RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Security ownership information of certain beneficial owners and

management is incorporated herein by reference under the

captions CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ELECTION

OF DIRECTORS COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS and COMPENSATION OF NAMED

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS of the Bancorps

Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

The information required by this item concerning Equity

Compensation
Plan information is included in Note 25 of the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED

TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by

reference under the captions CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE and BOARD OF DIRECTORS ITS

COMMITTEES MEETINGS AND FUNCTIONS of the

Bancorps Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND

SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by

reference under the caption PRINCIPAL INDEPENDENT

REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FEES of the

Bancorps Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT

SCHEDULES
Financial Statements Filed Pages

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 67

Fifth Third Bancorp and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial

Statements
68-71

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 72-128

The schedules for the Bancorp and its subsidiaries are omitted

because of the absence of conditions under which they are

required or because the information is set forth in the

Consolidated Financial Statements or the notes thereto

The following lists the Exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10-K

2.1 Master Investment Agreement excluding exhibits and schedules

dated as of March 27 2009 and amended as of June 30 2009

among Fifth Third Bank Fifth Third Financial Corporation

Advent-Kong Blocker Corp FTPS Holding LLC and Fifth Third

Processing Solutions LLC Incorporated by reference to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

Commission on July 2009

3.1 Second Amended Articles of Incorporation of Fifth Third Bancorp

as amended Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December31 2008

3.2 Code of Regulations of Fifth Third Bancorp as amended

Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K filed with the Commission on June 21 2010

4.1 Junior Subordinated Indenture dated as of March 20 1997 between

Fifth Third Bancorp and Wilmington Trust Company as Debenture

Trustee Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

on March 26 1997

4.2 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated as of March 20

1997 of Fifth Third Capital Trust II among Fifth Third Bancorp as

Depositor Wilmington Trust Company as Property Trustee and

the Administrative Trustees named therein Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on March 26 1997

4.3 Guarantee Agreement dated as of March 20 1997 between Fifth

Third Bancorp as Guarantor and Wilmington Trust Company as

Guarantee Trustee Incorporated by reference to Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on March 26 1997

4.4 Agreement as to Expense and Liabilities dated as of March 20

1997 between Fifth Third Baneorp as the holder of the Common

Securities of Fifth Third Capital Trust and Fifth Third Capital

Trust II Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

on March 26 1997

4.5 Indenture dated as of May 23 2003 between Fifth Third Bancorp

and Wilmington Trust Company as Trustee Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on May 22 2003

4.6 Global security representing Fifth Third Bancorps $500000000

4.50% Subordinated Notes due 2018 Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on May 22 2003

4.7 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 20 2006

between Fifth Third Bancorp and Wilmington Trust Company as

Trustee Incorporated by reference to Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended December 31 2006

4.8 Global security representing Fifth Third Bancorps $500000000

5.45% Subordinated Notes due 2017 Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2006

4.9 Global security representing Fifth Third Bancorps $250000000

Floating Rate Subordinated Notes due 2016 Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for the

fiscal year ended December 31 2006

4.10 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 30 2007 between

Fifth Third Bancorp and Wilmington Trust Company as trustee to

the Junior Subordinated Indenture dated as of May 20 1997

between Fifth Third and the Trustee Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on March 30 2007
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4.11 Certificate Representing $500000000.00 of 6.50% Junior

Subordinated Notes of Fifth Third Bancorp Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed for

the quarter ended March 31 2007

4.12 Certificate Representing $250010000.00 of 6.50% Junior

Subordinated Notes of Fifth Third Bancorp Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form I0-Q filed for

the quarter ended March 31 2007

4.13 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated as of March 30
2007 of Fifth Third Capital Trust IV among Fifth Third Bancorp as

Sponsor Wilmington Trust Company as Property Trustee and

Delaware Trustee and the Administrative Trustees named therein

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form

0-Q filed for the quarter ended March 31 2007

4.14 Certificate Representing 500000 6.50% Trust Preferred Securities

of Fifth Third Capital Trust IV liquidation amount $1000 per Trust

Preferred Security Incorporated by reference to Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q filed for the quarter ended March

312007

4.15 Certificate Representing 250000 6.50% Trust Preferred Securitics

of Fifth Third Capital Trust IV liquidation amount $1000 per Trust

Preferred Security Incorporated by reference to Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed for the quarter ended March
3t 2007

4.16 Certificate Representing 106.50% Common Securities of Fifth

Third Capital Trust IV liquidation amount $1000 per Common
Security Incorporated by reference to Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q filed for the quarter ended March 31 2007
4.1 Guarantee Agreement dated as of March 30 2007 between Fifth

Third Bancorp as Guarantor and Wilmington Trust Company as

Guarantee Trustee Incorporated by reference to Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q filed for the quarter ended March

31 2007

4.18 Agreement as to Expense and Liabilities dated as of March 30
2007 between Fifth Third Bancorp and Fifth Third Capital Trust IV
Incorporated by reference to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form

l0-Q filed for the quarter ended March 31 2007

4.19 Replacement Capital Covenant of Fifth Third Bancorp dated as of

March 30 2007 Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 30 2007

4.20 Amendment No to Replacement Capital Covenant dated as of

November 24 2010 amending the Replacement Capital Covenant

dated as of March 30 2007 Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on November 26 2010 Second

Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 2007 between Fifth

Third Bancorp and Wilmington Trust Company as trustee to the

Junior Subordinated Indenture dated as of May 20 1997 between

Fifth Third and the Trustee Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on August 2007

4.21 Certificate Representing $500010000 of 7.25% Junior

Subordinated Notes of Fifth Third Bancorp Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 2007
4.22 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated as of August

2007 of Fifth Third Capital Trust among Fifth Third Bancorp as

Sponsor Wilmington Trust Company as Property Trustee and

Delaware Trustee and the Administrative Trustees named therein

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Registration Statement on

Form 8-A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

August 2007

4.23 Certificate Representing 20000000 7.25% Trust Preferred

Securities of Fifth Third Capital Trust liquidation amount $25

per Trust Preferred Security Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on August 2007
4.24 Certificate Representing 400 7.25% Trust Preferred Securities of

Fifth Third Capital Trust liquidation amount $25 per Trust

Preferred Security Incorporated by reference to Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed for the quarter ended June 30
2007

4.25 Guarantee Agreement dated as of August 2007 between Fifth

Third Bancorp as Guarantor and Wilmington Trust Company as

Guarantee Trustee Incorporated by reference to Registrants

Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on August 2007

4.26 Agreement as to Expense and Liabilities dated as of August

2007 between Fifth Third Bancorp and Fifth Third Capital Trust

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form

l0-Q filed for the quarter ended June 30 2007

4.27 Replacement Capital Covenant of Fifth Third Bancorp dated as of

August 2007 Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on August 2007

4.28 Amendment No Ito Replacement Capital Covenant dated as of

November 24 2010 amending the Replacement Capital Covenant

dated as of August 2007 Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on November 26 2010 Third

Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 30 2007 between Fifth

Third Bancorp and Wilmington Trust Company as trustee to the

Junior Subordinated Indenture dated as of May 20 1997 between

Fifth Third and the trustee Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on October 31 2007

4.29 Certificate Representing $862510000 of 7.25% Junior

Subordinated Notes of Fifth Third Bancorp Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October31 2007
4.30 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated as of October 30

2007 of Fifth Third Capital Trust VI among Fifth Third Baneorp as

Sponsor Wilmington Trust Company as Property Trustee and

Delaware Trustee and the Administrative Trustees named therein

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Registration Statement on

Form 8-A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

October 31 2007

4.31 Certificate Representing 20000000 7.25% Trust Preferred

Securities of Fifth Third Capital Trust VI liquidation amount $25

per Trust Preferred Security Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on October31 2007 Issuer

also entered into an identical certificate on October 30 2007

representing $362500000 in aggregate liquidation amount of

7.25% Trust Preferred Securities of Fifth Third Capital Trust VI
4.32 Certificate Representing 400 7.25% Common Securities of Fifth

Third Capital Trust VI liquidation amount $25 per Trust Preferred

Security Incorporated by reference to Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q filed for the quarter ended September 30
2007

4.33 Guarantee Agreement dated as of October 30 2007 between Fifth

Third Bancorp as Guarantor and Wilmington Trust Company as

Guarantee Trustee Incorporated by reference to Registrants

Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on October 31 2007

4.34 Agreement as to Expense and Liabilities dated as of October 30
2007 between Fifth Third Bancorp and Fifth Third Capital Trust VI
Incorporated by reference to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form

lO-Q filed for the quarter ended September 30 2007
4.35 Replacement Capital Covenant of Fifth Third Bancorp dated as of

October 30 2007 Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 31 2007

4.36 Amendment No to Replacement Capital Covenant dated as of

November 24 2010 amending the Replacement Capital Covenant

dated as of October 30 2007 Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on November 26 2010 Global security

dated as of March 2008 representing Fifth Third Bancorps
$500000000 8.25% Subordinated Notes due 2038 Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed for

the quarter ended March 31 2008

4.37 Indenture for Senior Debt Securities dated as of April 30 2008

between Fifth Third Baneorp and Wilmington Trust Company as

trustee Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

on May 2008

4.38 Global
security dated as of April 30 2008 representing Fifth Third

Baneorps $500000000 6.25% Senior Notes due 2013

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current Report on Form
8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May
2008

4.39 Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 62008 between
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Fifth Third Bancorp and Wilmington Trust Company as trustee to

the Junior Subordinated Indenture dated as of May 20 1997

between Fifth Third and the Trustee Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2008

440 $400010000.00 8.875% Junior Subordinated Note dated as of May

2008 of Fifth Third Bancorp Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2008

4.41 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of Fifth Third Capital

Trust VII dated as of May 2008 among Fifth Third Bancorp as

Sponsor Wilmington Trust Company as Property Trustee and

Delaware Trustee and the Administrative Trustees named therein

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Registration Statement on

Form 8-A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

May 2008

4.42 Certificate dated as of May 2008 representing 16000000

$400000000 8.875% Trust Preferred Securities of Fifth Third

Capital Trust VII liquidation amount $25 per Trust Preferred

Security Incorporated by reference to Registrants Registration

Statement on Form 8-A filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on May 2008

4.43 Certificate dated as of May 2008 representing 400 $10000

8.875% Common Securities of Fifth Third Capital Trust VII

liquidation amount $25 per Common Security Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2008

4.44 Guarantee Agreement dated as of May 2008 for Fifth Third

Capital Trust VII between Fifth Third Bancorp as Guarantor and

Wilmington Trust Company as Guarantee Trustee Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2008

4.45 Agreement as to Expense and Liabilities dated as of May 2008

between Fifth Third Bancorp and Fifth Third Capital Trust VII

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May

2008

4.46 Deposit Agreement dated June 25 2008 between Fifth Third

Bancorp Wilmington Trust Company as depositary and conversion

agent and American Stock Transfer and Trust Company as transfer

agent and the holders from time to time of the Receipts described

therein Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on June 25 2008

4.47 Form of Certificate Representing the 8.50% Non-Cumulative

Perpetual Convertible Preferred Stock Series of Fifth Third

Bancorp Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on June 25 2008

4.48 Form of Depositary Receipt for the 8.50 Non-Cumulative

Perpetual Convertible Preferred Stock Series of Fifth Third

Bancorp Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Regisirants

Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on June 25 2008

4.49 Warrant to Purchase up to 43617747 shares of Common Stock

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on December 31 2008
4.50

Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 25 2011 between Fifth

Third Bancorp and Wilmington Trust Company as Trustee to the

Indenture for Senior Debt Securities dated as of April 30 2008

between Fifth Third and the Trustee Incorporated by reference to

the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on January 25 2011

4.51 Global Security dated as of January25 2011 representing Fifth

Third Bancorps $500000000 3.625% Senior Notes due 2016

Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

January 25 2011

10.1 Fifth Third Bancorp Unfunded Deferred Compensation Plan for

Non-Employee Directors Incorporated by reference to Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for fiscal year ended December

31 1985

10.2 Fifth Third Bancorp 1990 Stock Option Plan Incorporated by

reference to Registrants filing with the Securities and Exchange

Commission as an exhibit to the Registrants Registration Statement

on Form S-8 Registration No 33-34075

10.3 Fifth Third Bancorp 1987 Stock Option Plan Incorporated by

reference to Registrants filing with the Securities and Exchange

Commission as an exhibit to the Registrants Registration Statement

on Form S-8 Registration No 33-13252

10.4 Indenture effective November 19 1992 between Fifth Third

Bancorp Issuer and NBD Bank N.A Trustee incorporated by

reference to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on November 18 1992 and

as Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 5-

Registration No 33-54134

10.5 Fifth Third Bancorp Master Profit Sharing Plan as Amended

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K filed for the fiscal year ended December 31 2004

10.6 Fifth Third Bancorp Incentive Compensation Plan Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Proxy Statement dated February 19 2004

10.7 Amended and Restated Fifth Third Bancorp 1993 Stock Purchase

Plan Incorporated by reference to Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended December 31 2003

10.8 Fifth Third Bancorp 1998 Long-Term Incentive Stock Plan as

Amended Incorporated by reference to the Exhibits to Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended June 30

2003

10.9 Fifth Third Bancorp Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Plan as

Amended and Restated Incorporated by reference to Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended

December 31 2007

10.10 CNB Bancshares Inc 1999 Stock Incentive Plan 1995 Stock

Incentive Plan 1992 Stock Incentive Plan and Associate Stock

Option Plan and Indiana Federal Corporation 1986 Stock Option

and Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Registrants filing

with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to

Registration Statement on Form S-4 Registration No 333-84955

and by reference to CNB Bancshares Annual Report on Form 10-K

as amended for the fiscal year ended December 31 1998

10.11 Fifth Third Bancorp Stock Option Gain Deferral Plan Incorporated

by reference to Registrants Proxy Statement dated February

2001
10.12 Amendment No to Fifth Third Bancorp Stock Option Gain

Deferral Plan Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on May 26 2006

10.13 Old Kent Executive Stock Option Plan of 1986 as Amended

Incorporated by reference to the following filings by Old Kent

Financial Corporation with the Securities and Exchange

Commission Exhibit 10 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 1995 Exhibit 10.19 to Form 8-K filed on March

1997 Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed on March 22000

10.14 Old Kent Stock Option Incentive Plan of 1992 as Amended

Incorporated by reference to the following filings by Old Kent

Financial Corporation with the Securities and Exchange

Commission Exhibit 10b to Form 0-Q for the quarter ended

June 30 1995 Exhibit 10.20 to Form 8-K filed on March 1997

Exhibit 10d to Form lO-Q for the quarter ended June 30 1997

Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed on March 2000

10.15 Old Kent Executive Stock Incentive Plan of 1997 as Amended

Incorporated by reference to Old Kent Financial Corporations

Annual Meeting Proxy Statement dated March 1997

10.16 Old Kent Stock Incentive Plan of 1999 Incorporated by reference

to Old Kent Financial Corporations Annual Meeting Proxy

Statement dated March 1999

10.17 Notice of Grant of Performance Units and Award Agreement

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K filed for the fiscal year ended December 31 2004

10.18 Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock and Award Agreement for

Executive Officers Incorporated by reference to Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended

December31 2004

10.19 Notice of Grant of Stock Appreciation Rights and Award

Agreement Incorporated by reference to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended December 31

2004

10.20 Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock and Award Agreement for

Directors Incorporated by reference to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended December 31

2004
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10.21 Franklin Financial Corporation 1990 Incentive Stock Option Plan

Incorporated by reference to Franklin Financial Corporations

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31
l989

10.22 Franklin Financial Corporation 2000 Incentive Stock Option Plan

Incorporated by reference to Franklin Financial Corporations

Registration Statement on Form S-8 Registration No 333-52928

10.23 Amended and Restated First National Bankshares of Florida Inc

2003 Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to First National

Bankshares of Florida Inc.s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended December31 2003

10.24 Southem Community Bancorp Equity Incentive Plan Incorporated

by reference to Southern Community Bancorps Registration

Statement on Form SB-2 Registration No 333-35548

t.25
Southern Community Bancorp Director

Statutory Stock Option Plan

Incorporated by reference to Southern Community Bancorps

Registration Statement on Form SB-2 Registration No 333-35548

It.26 Peninsula Bank of Central Florida Key Employee Stock Option

Plan Incorporated by reference to Southern Community Bancorps
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2003

10.27 Peninsula Bank of Central Florida Director Stock Option Plan

Incorporated by reference to Southem Community Bancorps
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December

2003

10.28 First Bradenton Bank Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended December31 2004

10.29 Letter Agreement with Mark Graf Incorporated by reference to

the Exhibits to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the

quarter ended September 30 2005

10.30 Amendment Dated January 16 2006 to the Letter Agreement with

Mark Graf Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on January 17 2006

10.31 Separation Agreement between Fifth Third Bancorp and Neal

Amold dated as of December 14 2005 Incorporated by reference

to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on December 22 2005

10.32
Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement dated March 29 2005 as

Amended Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

on November 18 2005

10.33 Amendment to Stipulation dated May 10 2005 Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on November 18 2005

10.34 Second Amendment to Stipulation dated August 12 2005

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

November 18 2005

10.35 Order and Final Judgment of the United States District Court for the

Southem District of Ohio Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on November 18 2005

10.36 Offer letter from Fifth Third Bancorp to Ross Kari Incorporated

by reference to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 12 2008

10.37 Separation Agreement between Fifth Third Bancorp and

Christopher Marshall dated May 2008 Incorporated by

reference to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2008

tO.38 Letter Agreement dated December31 2008 including Securities

Purchase Agreement Standard Terms incorporated by reference

therein between the Company and the United States Department of

the Treasury Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on December 31 2008

10.39 Form of Waiver executed by each of Messrs Kevin Kabat Ross

Kari Greg Carmichael Charles Drucker Bruce Lee Dan Poston

Robert Sullivan and Teny Zink Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on December 31 2008

10.40 Form of Letter Agreement executed by each of Messrs Kevin

Kabat Ross Karl Greg Carmichael Charles Drucker Bruce Lee

Dan Poston Robert Sullivan and Terry Zink with the Company

Incorporated by reference to Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

December 31 2008

10.41 Form of Executive Agreements effective December31 2008
between Fifth Third Bancorp and Kevin Kabat Robert

Sullivan Greg Carmichael Ross Kari Bruce Lee Charles

Drucker and Terry Zink Incorporated by reference to Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on December31 2008

10.42
Form of Executive Agreements effective December31 2008

between Fifth Third Bancorp and Nancy Phillips Daniel Poston

Paul Reynolds and Mary Tuuk Incorporated by reference to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on December31 2008

10.43

Form of Executive Agreement effective December 2008

between Fifth Third Bancorp and Mahesh Sankaran Incorporated

by reference to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 31 2008

10.44
Warrant dated June 30 2009 issued by FTPS Holding LLC to Fifth

Third Bank Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 2009

10.45 Amended Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement

excluding certain exhibits dated as of June 30 2009 among

Advent-Kong Blocker Corp Fifth Third Bank FTPS Partners

LLC JPDN Enterprises LLC and FTPS Holding LLC
Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 2009

10.46 Amendment and Restatement Agreement and Reaffirmation

excluding certain schedules dated as of June 30 2009 among Fifth

Third Processing Solutions LLC FTPS Holding LLC Card

Management Company LLC Fifth Third Holdings LLC and Fifth

Third Bank Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 2009

10.47 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of June 30 2009 among

Advent-Kong Blocker Corp Fifth Third Bank FTPS Partners

LLC JPDN Enterprises LLC and FTPS Holding LLC
Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 2009

10.48 Form of Agreement Regarding Portion of Salary Payable in

Phantom Stock Units dated October 2009 executed by Kevin

Kabat Greg Carmichael Greg Kosch Bruce Lee Dan Poston Paul

Reynolds Robert Sullivan and Terry Zink Incorporated by

reference to the Registrants Quarterly Report on I0-Q for the

1049
quarter ended September 30 2009

Form of Agreement Regarding Portion of Salary Payable in

Phantom Stock Units dated March 26 2010 executed by Mary
Tuuk Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2009

0.50
Form of Letter Agreement dated June 29 201 executed by each of

Kevin Kabat Greg Carmichael Greg Kosch Bruce Lee Dan

Poston Paul Reynolds Robert Sullivan and Mary Tuuk with the

Company Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on I0-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2010
10.51 Form of Addendum No.1 to Agreement Regarding Portion of

Salary Payable in Phantom Stock Units executed by each of Kevin

Kabat Greg Carmichael Greg Koseh Bruce Lee Dan Poston Paul

Reynolds Robert Sullivan and Mary Tuuk with the Company
Incorporated by reference to the Registrants Quarterly Report on

l0-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2010

12.1 Computations of Consolidated Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges
12.2 Computations of Consolidated Ratios of Earnings to Combined

Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividend Requirements

14 Code of Ethics Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 of the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on January 23 2007

21
Fifth Third Bancorp Subsidiaries as of December31 2010

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Deloitte Touche LLP

1i Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 by Chief Executive Officer

31n Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 by Chief Financial Officer
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32i Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by

Chief Executive Officer

320 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by

Chief Financial Officer

99.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 111 b4 of the Emergency

Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 by Chief Executive Officer

99.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 111 b4 of the Emergency

Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 by Chief Financial Officer

101 Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T the

Consolidated Balance Sheets ii the Consolidated Statements of

Income iii the Consolidated Statements of Changes in

Shareholders Equity iv the Consolidated Statements of Cash

Flows and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

tagged as blocks of text and in detail

FiJih Third Bancorp also entered into an identical security on March 2008

representing an additional $500000000 of its 8.25% Subordinated Notes due

2038

Fifth Third Bancorp also entered into an identical security on April 30 2008

representing an additional $250000000 of i/s 6.25% Senior Notes due 2013

Fifth Third Bancorp also entered into an identical security on January 25 2011

representing an additional $500000000 of its 3.625% Senior Notes due 2016

Denotes management contractor compensatory plan or arrangement

As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T this information is furnished

and not filed for purposes of Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of

1933 and Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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SIGNATURES DIRECTORS
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused /s/ William Isaac

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned William Isaac

thereunto duly authorized Chairman

FIFTH THIRD BANCORP Is James Hackett

Registrant James Hackett

Lead Director

Is Kevin Kabat

Kevin Kabat /s Darryl Allen

President and CEO
Darryl Allen

Principal Executive Officer

February 28 2011
Is Ulysses Bridgeman Jr

Ulysses Bridgeman Jr
Pursuant to requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 this report has been signed on February 28 2011 by the
Is Emerson Brumback

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the

Emerson Brumback
capacities indicated

Is Gary Heminger
OFFICERS

Gary Heminger

Is Kevin Kabat
IsI Jewell Hoover

Kevin Kabat
Jewell Hoover

President and CEO

Principal Executive Officer
Is Kevin Kabat

Kevin Kabat
Is Daniel Poston

Daniel Poston
Is Mitchel Livingston Ph.D

Executive Vice President and CFO
Mitchel Livingston Ph.D

Principal Financial Officer

Is Hendrik Meijer
Is Mark Hazel

Hendrik MeijerMark Hazel

Senior Vice President and Controller
Is John Schiff Jr

Principal Accounting Officer
John Schiff Jr

/s Dudley Taft

Dudley Taft

Is Marsha Williams

Marsha Williams
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CONSOLIDATED TEN YEAR COMPARISON

AVERAGE ASSETS IN MILLIONS

Interest-Earning Assets

Interest-Bearing Total

Loans and Federal Funds Deposits in Cash and Due Other Average

Year Leases Sold Banks Securities Total from Banks Assets Assets

2010 $79232 11 3317 16371 $98931 2245 14841 $112434

2009 83391 12 1023 17100 101526 2329 14266 114856

2008 85835 438 183 13424 99880 2490 13411 114296

2007 78348 257 147 11630 90382 2275 10613 102477

2006 73493 252 144 20910 94799 2477 8713 15238

2005 67737 88 113 24806 92744 2750 8102 102876

2004 57042 120 195 30282 87639 2216 5763 94896

2003 52414 92 215 28640 81361 1600 5250 87481

2002 45539 155 184 23246 69124 1551 5007 75037

2001 44888 69 132 19737 64826 1482 5000 70683

AVERAGE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS IN MILLIONS

Deposits

Certificates

Interest Money Other $100000 Foreign Short-Term

Year Demand Checking Savings Market Time and Over Office Total Borrowings Total

2010 $19669 18218 19612 4808 10526 6083 3361 $82277 1926 $84203

2009 16862 15070 16875 4320 14103 10367 2265 79862 6980 86842

2008 14017 14191 16192 6127 11135 9531 4220 75413 10760 86173

2007 13261 14820 14836 6308 10778 6466 3155 69624 6890 76514

2006 13741 16650 12189 6366 10500 5795 3711 68952 8670 77622

2005 13868 18884 10007 5170 8491 4001 3967 64388 9511 73899

2004 12327 19434 7941 3473 6208 2403 4449 56235 13539 69774

2003 10482 18679 8020 3189 6426 3832 3862 54490 12373 66863

2002 8953 16239 9465 1162 8855 2237 2018 48929 7191 56120

2001 7394 11489 4928 2552 13473 3821 1992 45649 8799 54448

INCOME IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA
Per Share

Originally Rerted
Net Income

Loss
Available to

Interest Interest Noninterest Noninterest Common Diluted Dividends Iiluted

Year Income Expense Income Expense Shareholders Earnings Earnings Declared Earnings Earnings

2010 $4489 885 2729 3855 503 0.63 0.63 .04 0.63 $0.63

2009 4668 1314 4782 3826 511 0.73 0.67 .04 0.73 0.67

2008 5608 2094 2946 4564 2180 3.91 3.91 .75 3.94 3.94

2007 6027 3018 2467 3311 1075 1.99 1.98 1.70 2.00 1.99

2006 5955 3082 2012 2915 1188 2.13 2.12 1.58 2.14 2.13

2005 4995 2030 2374 2801 1548 2.79 2.77 1.46 2.79 2.77

2004 4114 1102 2355 2863 1524 2.72 2.68 1.31 2.72 2.68

2003 3991 1086 2398 2466 1664 2.91 2.87 1.13 2.91 2.87

2002 4129 1430 2111 2265 1530 2.64 2.59 .98 2.64 2.59

2001 4709 2278 1732 2397 1001 1.74 1.70 .83 1.74 1.70

MISCELLANEOUS AT DECEMBER31 IN MILLIONS EXCEPT SHARE DATA
Bancorp Shareholders Equity

Accumulated Allowance

Other Book Value for Loan

Common Shares Common Preferred Capital Retained Comprehensive Treasury Per and Lease

Year Outstanding Stock Stock Surplus Earnings Income Stock Total Share Losses

2010 796272522 $1779 3654 1715 6719 314 130 $14051 13.06 $3004

2009 795068164 1779 3609 1743 6326 241 201 13497 12.44 3749

2008 577386612 1295 4241 848 5824 98 229 12077 13.57 2787

2007 532671925 1295 1779 8413 126 2209 9161 17.18 937

2006 556252674 1295 1812 8317 179 1232 10022 18.00 771

2005 555623430 1295 1827 8007 413 1279 9446 16.98 744

2004 557648989 1295 1934 7269 169 1414 8924 15.99 713

2003 566685301 1295 1964 6481 120 962 8667 15.29 697

2002 574355247 1295 2010 5465 369 544 8604 14.98 683

2001 582674580 1294 1943 4502 7752 13.31 624

Federalfunds sold and interest-bearing deposits
in banks are combined in other short-term investments in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Adjiistedfor accounting guidance relating to the calculation of earnings per share which was adopted retroactiveLy on Januaty 2009
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DIRECTORS
William Isaac Chairman

Chairman
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Retired Chairman

President CEO
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President
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Emerson Brumback

Retired President COO
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Gao Heminger
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Jewell Hoover

Princrtal

Hoover and Associates LLC

Kevin Kabat

President CEO

Fifth Third Bancoep

Mitehel Livingston Ph.D

Vice Presidentfnr Student Affairs
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University of Cincinnati

Hendrik Meijer
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Meier Inc

JohnJ Schiffjr

Chairman
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President
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Senior Vice President Chif/
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2010

For tEe years ended Dc wish 31

rnilbu .ePtpCi .sFare data

Earn igs and Oiwderds

Net income loss attnbutable to Bancorp

Common dividends declared

Preferred dividend declared

Core ion Shar

Earnings

Dth.ited earnings

Cash dividends

Book value per share

At Year4l ccl

Assets

Total Loans and Leases md heldfor sale

Deposits

Bancorp Shareholders Equity

Key tIes

Net Interest Margin PIE
Efficiency Ratio El

Tier Com ori Ratio

Tier Ratio

Total Capital Ratio

Actual

Common Shares Outstanding 000
Banking Centers

ATMs

Full lime Equivalent Employees

Fifth 7hirdS common stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Global Select Market under the syrribol P778

Corporate Address

Fifth Third Bancorp

38 Fountain Square Plaza

Cincinnati Ohio 48263

Website www.53.com

Telephone 1-8009723030

Transfer Agent

American Stock Iransfer and Trust Company LLC

For Correspondence

6201 15th Ave

Brooklyn NY 11219

753 73/ 2113
32 29 413

208 220 48

063 073 391
063 06/ 91

004 004 075

1306 1244 1357

111007 113380 119764

79707 78846 85595

81648 84305 78613

14051 13497 12077

366% 332% 3.54%

607% 46 9% 704%

/80% 699% 4.37%

1394% 1330% 10 59%

18 4% 1748% 1478%

796273 795068 577387

1312 309 130/

2445 2358 2341

20838 20998 21476

2009

DMdends Paid Dhndends Paid

Stock Perfonnanc High Low Per Share Higi Low Per Share

Fourth Quarter 15.11 11 71 001 1092 876 001

Thfrd Quarter 13.81 10 64 0.01 11.20 633 001

Second Quarter 15.95 1200 001 9.15 2.50 0.01

Frst Quarter 14 05 9.81 0.01 8.68 1.01 0.01

Website www.amstock.com

Telephone 888 2948285

For Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan lrmnsaction Processing

P0 Box 922

Wall Street Station

New York N.Y 1O2690560
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